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An offering statement pursuant to Regulation A relating to these securities has been filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC” or the “Commission”). Information contained in this Preliminary offering circular is subject to
completion or amendment. These securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted before the offering statement
filed with the Commission is qualified. This Preliminary offering circular shall not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of
an offer to buy nor may there be any sales of these securities in any state in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be
unlawful before registration or qualification under the laws of any such state. We may elect to satisfy our obligation to deliver a
Final offering circular by sending you a notice within two business days after the completion of our sale to you that contains the
URL where the Final offering circular or the offering statement in which such Final offering circular was filed may be obtained.

KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
3,000,000 Units

Consisting of:

3,000,000 Shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per
share

and
Warrants to Purchase 750,000 Shares of Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share

(2,892,857 Shares of Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share, issuable upon Conversion of Series A
Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock and Exercise of Warrants)

Minimum purchase: 500 Units ($5,000)

£ oLorizy BENCHMARK

i
e, ) y ! | L¥ [ Y
= of e ot ol e .

i ' - d_’;‘/

—

KeyStone Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation, qualifies as an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart
Our Business (JOBS) Startups Act. We are offering units (“Units”), consisting of (a) a minimum of 300,000 shares of Series A
Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 (the “Series A Preferred Stock™), and a maximum of 3,000,000
shares of Series A Preferred Stock and (b) warrants to purchase up to 750,000 shares of our common stock, on a “best efforts” basis.
Each Unit consists of one share of Series A Preferred Stock and a warrant to purchase 0.25 shares of our common stock at any time on
or before seven years from the date of qualification of the Units as exempt from registration by the SEC (the “Qualification Date™) at an
exercise price of $2.00 per share of common stock. While the Series A Preferred Stock and the warrants will be sold together as a Unit,
the Series A Preferred Stock and warrants will be issued separately. The Units will be sold by the Company in minimum amounts of
$5,000 (500 Units).

If $3,000,000 in subscriptions for the Units (the “Minimum Offering”) is not deposited with Folio Investments, Inc., as set
forth in more detail in the “Plan of Distribution,” on or before six (6) months after the Qualification Date (the “Minimum Offering
Period™), all subscriptions will be refunded to subscribers without deduction or interest. The offering will commence within two
calendar days from the Qualification Date. The offering will expire twelve (12) months after the Qualification Date (the “Offering
Expiration Date™). See “Plan of Distribution” and “Securities Being Offered” for a description of the Units being sold and our capital
stock.
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Generally, no sale may be made to you in this offering if the aggregate purchase price you pay is more than 10% of the greater
of your annual income or net worth. Different rules apply to “Accredited Investors” as defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D
(17 CFR §230.501(a) and non-natural persons. Before making any representation that your investment does not exceed
applicable thresholds, we encourage you to review Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) of Regulation A. For general information on investing,
we encourage you to refer to www.investor.gov.

There is currently no trading market for our Units, common stock or preferred stock. We do not intend to apply to have our Units or
shares of preferred stock or common stock approved for trading on any trading market upon the completion of this offering.

These are speculative securities. Investing in the Units involves significant risks. You should purchase these

securities only if you can afford a complete loss of your investment. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page
3.

Underwriting
Discounts and
Number of Units Price to Public Commissions (1) Proceeds to Issuer (2)
Per Unit 1 $10.00 $0.60 $9.40
Total Minimum: 300,000 $3,000,000 $180,000 $ 2,820,000
Total Maximum: 3,000,000 $30,000,000 $ 1,800,000 $ 28,200,000

(1) The underwriting commission represents 6.0% of the gross proceeds for Units sold in the offering.

(2) Does not included (i) underwriters’ allowable accountable expense allocation of 1.0% of the gross proceeds of Units sold in the
offering, which is estimated to be $30,000 and $216,400 for the minimum and maximum offering amounts, respectively, (ii) non-
accountable expense allowance of 1.0% of the gross proceeds of Units sold in the offering, which is $30,000 and $300,000 for the
minimum and maximum offering amounts, respectively, and (iii) other expenses of the offering estimated to be $445,000 and
$607,000 for the minimum and maximum offering amounts. See “Plan of Distribution.”

The United States Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of or give its approval to any securities
offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering circular or other
solicitation materials. These securities are offered pursuant to an exemption from registration with the Commission; however,
the Commission has not made an independent determination that the securities offered are exempt from registration.

We are providing the disclosure in the format prescribed by Part II of Form 1-A.

14420 Albemarle Point Place, Suite 200, Chantilly, VA, 20151
(703) 953-3838; www.keystonewins.com

The date of this preliminary offering circular is September 2, 2016
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OFFERING SUMMARY

The following summary highlights selected information contained in this offering circular. This summary does not contain
all the information that may be important to you. You should read the more detailed information contained in this offering circular,
including, but not limited to, the ‘Risk Factors” beginning on page 3. References to “we,” “us,” “our,” ‘KeyStone Solutions,”
‘KeyStone” or the “Company” mean KeyStone Solutions, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Our Company

We are a Delaware holding company that owns all of the outstanding interests of our principal subsidiary, AOC Key Solutions, Inc.,
a Delaware corporation (“AOC Key Solutions™) (www.aockeysolutions.com), which is a consulting firm formed in 1983
specializing in proposal development, capture, and market strategy services for government contractors. The Company was formed
in March 2016 to facilitate its planned expansion in the government contracting outsourced services business through continued
organic growth and strategic acquisitions of other government contracts service providers. For the year ended December 31, 2015,
AOC Key Solutions generated over $9.6 million of revenue and net income of approximately $422,000. AOC Key Solutions’
revenue for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by $2,866,175, or 66.5%, to $7,177,345 compared to $4,311,170 in
the comparable period in 2015. AOC Key Solutions’ net income for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by
$836,767 to $813,128 compared to a net loss of $23,639 for the comparable period in 2015. As a result, AOC Key Solutions’
comparable period net income margin increased from a loss of 0.5% in 2015 to a gain of 11.3% in 2016.

This Offering

Securities offered Minimum of 300,000 Units with each Unit consisting of one share of our Series A
Preferred Stock and one warrant to purchase 0.25 share of our common stock (and the
shares of common stock issuable from time to time upon the conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock or the exercise of the warrants).

Maximum of 3,000,000 Units with each Unit consisting of one share of our Series A
Preferred Stock and one warrant to purchase 0.25 share of our common stock (and the
shares of common stock issuable from time to time upon the conversion of the Series A
Preferred Stock or the exercise of the warrants).

Preferred and common stock 5,000,000 shares of common stock
outstanding before the offering No shares of Series A Preferred Stock
Preferred and common stock 5,000,000 shares of common stock
outstanding after the offering (1) 300,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock

Series A Preferred Stock Dividends Generally, the Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to quarterly cash dividends of $0.175
(7% per annum) per share. For a minimum offering of 300,000 Units, we anticipate paying
the quarterly cash dividends through existing assets and cash flow. For a maximum
offering of 3,000,000 Units, we anticipate paying the quarterly cash dividends through
cash flow and potential business growth from acquired entities.

We do not expect to pay dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We
anticipate that future earnings generated from operations, if any, will be retained to develop
and expand our business. Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is restricted by
the terms of our Series A Preferred Stock, which require us to pay full cumulative
dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock before making any dividend payment on our
common stock.
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Series A Preferred Stock Liquidation
Preference

Conversion of Series A Preferred
Stock

Redemption of Series A Preferred
Stock

Warrant Exercise Period

Warrant Exercise Price

Use of proceeds

Risk factors

Market Listing

The Liquidation Preference on shares of the Series A Preferred Stock is $10 per share (the
“Issue Price™).

The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible by holders at any time after the third
anniversary of the Qualification Date into shares of our common stock. Upon conversion,
each share of Series A Preferred Stock can be converted into such number of shares of
common stock as is determined by dividing (i) the sum of (x) Issue Price ($10.00 per
share) (as adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends, reclassifications and the like) plus (y)
the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends on such shares being converted, if any,
whether or not declared, to and including the date immediately prior to such date of
conversion, by (ii) the conversion price equal to (x) $14.00 per share from ,2019 to
, 2020 or (y) $15.00 per share from and after , 2020.

The Series A Preferred Stock will automatically be converted at the then effective
conversion price (i) immediately prior to the closing of the sale of our common stock in a
firm commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement (A) which results in aggregate cash proceeds to the Company of not less than
$30,000,000 (net of underwriting discounts and commissions), (B) is made at an offering
price per share of at least the then applicable Series A Preferred Stock conversion price (as
adjusted) and (C) following such offering, the common stock is listed for trading on a
national securities exchange, and (ii) on the date specified by written consent or agreement
of the holders of at least 662/3% of the then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock

(a “Qualified IPO”). If the closing of a Qualified IPO occurs prior to , 2019, the
conversion price per share shall be (i) $11 per share from , 2016 to , 2017,
(ii) $12 per share from ,2017 to , 2018; and (iii) $13 per share from ,
2018 to ,2019.

At any time following the third anniversary of the issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock,
the Company may redeem all or any portion of the then outstanding Series A Preferred
Stock for a redemption price equal to either (a) (i) $14.00 per share from ,2019 to

, 2020 or (ii) $15.00 per share from and after , 2020 plus (b) the amount of any
accrued but unpaid dividends thereon, if any, whether or not declared, to and including the
date immediately prior to such date of redemption.

At any time after five years (sixtieth month) after the Qualification Date, each holder of the
Series A Preferred Stock will have the right to require the Company to redeem all, but not
less than all, of such holder’ s Series A Preferred Stock for a redemption price of $15.00
per share plus the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends thereon, if any, whether or
not declared, to and including the date immediately prior to such date of redemption.

The warrants are immediately exercisable upon issuance, and have an expiration date
seven years (eighty-four months) after the Qualification Date.

The warrants have an exercise price equal to $2.00 per share.

The net proceeds of this offering will be used primarily to fund the Company’ s organic
growth and strategic acquisition of, and investments in, government contract service
providers and government contractors with the balance being used for general corporate
purposes.

Investing in Units involves a high degree of risk. As an investor you should be able to bear
a complete loss of your investment. You should carefully consider the information set forth
in the “Risk Factors” section of this offering circular.

There is currently no trading market for our Units, preferred stock or common stock. We
do not intend to apply to have our Units or shares of preferred stock or common stock
approved for trading on any trading market upon the completion of this offering.

(1) Assumes the sale of the Minimum Offering Amount of 300,000 Units and no exercise of any Unit warrants.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in Units involves a high degree of risk and many uncertainties. You should carefully consider the specific factors listed
below, together with the cautionary statement that follows this section and the other information included in this offering circular,
before purchasing Units in this offering. If one or more of the possibilities described as risks below actually occur, our operating results
and financial condition would likely suffer and the trading price, if any, of our preferred stock and/or common stock could fall, causing
you to lose some or all of your investment. The following is a description of what we consider the key challenges and material risks to
our business and an investment in our securities.

Risks Related to our Business and Industry
We are a holding company; have no direct operations and depend in large part on funding from our subsidiaries.

KeyStone Solutions, Inc. was formed in March 2016 as a holding company. It has no current business operations of its own.
Until we have either formed or acquired other companies, our only significant assets are our cash and equity interest in our principal
operating subsidiary, AOC Key Solutions. As a result, we rely on funding from AOC Key Solutions to meet our obligations. If AOC
Key Solutions needs to retain its funds to meet its financial obligations or experiences other restrictions on its ability to fund us, that
may limit our access to funds and restrict our ability to meet our dividend, redemption and liquidation obligations in respect of our
Series A Preferred Stock and to pursue our acquisition strategy or other strategic objectives.

We face aggressive competition that can impact our ability to obtain contracts and therefore affect our future revenues
and growth prospects.

Our business is highly competitive, and we compete with larger companies that have greater name recognition and financial
resources, as well as many independent sole-proprietors who sell themselves as business development experts.

The markets in which we operate are characterized by rapidly changing technology, and the needs of our clients change and
evolve regularly. Accordingly, our success depends on our ability to develop services and solutions that address these changing needs of
our government contractor clients, and to provide people and technology needed to deliver these services and solutions. To remain
competitive, we must consistently provide superior service, technology and performance on a cost-effective basis to our clients. Our
competitors may be able to provide our clients with different or greater capabilities or technologies or better contract terms than we can
provide, including technical qualifications, past contract experience, geographic presence, price and the availability of qualified
professional personnel. Additionally, we anticipate that larger or new competitors or alliances among competitors may emerge which
may adversely affect our ability to compete for new contracts.

The U.S. government may adopt new contract rules and regulations or revise its procurement practices in a manner
adverse to us at any time.

Our industry has experienced, and we expect it will continue to experience, significant changes to business practices as a
result of an increased focus on affordability, efficiencies and recovery of costs, among other items. U.S. government agencies may face
restrictions or pressure regarding the type and amount of services that they may obtain from private contractors. Legislation, regulations
and initiatives dealing with procurement reform, mitigation of potential conflicts of interest, deterrence of fraud, and environmental
responsibility or sustainability, as well as any resulting shifts in the buying practices of U.S. government agencies, such as increased
usage of fixed-price contracts, multiple award contracts and small business set-aside contracts, could have adverse effects on
government contractors and the business development services we provide. Any of these changes could impair our ability to obtain new
support contracts or renew our existing contracts when those contracts are recompeted. Any new contracting requirements or
procurement methods could be costly or administratively difficult for us to implement and could adversely affect our future revenues,
profitability and prospects, or alternatively may reduce the need for government contractors to acquire our services.
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Technology improvements and disruptions could diminish the need for our traditional services.

Based on recent technological developments, the market for consultants has diminished and may continue to diminish. Some
companies are beginning to use the World Wide Web to advertise for different services, including experts for sale, anonymous authors to
complete certain proposal sections for an “introductory fee,” and even buying entire proposals on-line, sometimes from overseas
vendors. The market trend seems to be that these competitors are offering similar types of services at extremely low prices. This trend
towards utilization of unknown and unproven companies advertising traditional consulting services may diminish the demand for our
services, which may adversely affect our revenues, results of operations and financial condition.

The spending cuts imposed by the Budget Control Act of 2011 (“BCA’) could impact our operating results and profit.

The U.S. government continues to focus on developing and implementing spending, tax, and other initiatives to stimulate the
economy, create jobs, and reduce the deficit. One of these initiatives, the BCA, imposed constraints around U.S. government spending.
In an attempt to balance decisions regarding defense, homeland security, and other federal spending priorities, the BCA imposed
spending caps that contain approximately $487 billion in reductions to the Department of Defense base budgets over a seven year period
(to 2021). Additionally, the BCA triggered an automatic sequestration process, effective March 1, 2013, that would have reduced
planned defense spending by an additional $500 billion over a nine-year period that began in the U.S. government’ s 2013 fiscal year.

On November 2, 2015, the President signed into law the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2015 (“BBA 2015”). BBA 2015 raises the
limit on the U.S. government’ s debt until March 2017 and raises the sequester caps imposed by the BCA by $80 billion, split equally
between defense and non-defense spending over the next two years ($50 billion in the U.S. government’ s 2016 fiscal year and $30
billion in the U.S. government’ s 2017 fiscal year). On December 18, 2015, the President signed into law the Consolidated
Appropriations Act of 2016, funding the government through September 30, 2016 and on February 9, 2016, the President submitted a
budget proposal for the U.S. government’ s 2017 fiscal year, consistent with BBA 2015 funding levels. BBA 2015 includes
discretionary funding for Department of Defense of approximately $580 billion in the U.S. government’ s 2016 fiscal year and $583
billion in the U.S. government’ s 2017 fiscal year. This funding includes a base budget for the Department of Defense of approximately
$521 billion in the U.S. government’ s 2016 fiscal year and $524 billion in the U.S. government’ s 2017 fiscal year. BBA 2015 also
provides approximately $59 billion for Department of Defense Overseas Contingency Operations (OCO) spending in each of the U.S.
government’ s 2016 and 2017 fiscal years.

The Bipartisan Budget Act of 2013 (“BBA 2013”) passed by Congress in December 2013 alleviated some budget cuts that
would have otherwise been instituted through sequestration in the U.S. government’ s 2014 and 2015 fiscal years. While BBA 2013 and
BBA 2015 (collectively, the “Bipartisan Budget Acts”), taken together, increased discretionary spending limits through the U.S.
government’ s 2017 fiscal year, the Bipartisan Budget Acts retained sequestration cuts for the U.S. government’ s 2018 through 2021
fiscal years, including the across-the-board spending reduction methodology provided for in the BCA. As a result, there remains
uncertainty regarding how, or if, sequestration cuts will be applied in the U.S. government’ s 2018 fiscal year and beyond. Department
of Defense and other agencies may have significantly less flexibility in how to apply budget cuts in future years. While the defense
budget sustained the largest single reductions under the BCA, other civil agencies and programs have also been impacted by significant
spending reductions. In light of the BCA and deficit reduction pressures, and the upcoming change in administrations, it is likely that
discretionary spending by the U.S. government will remain constrained for a number of years. Additionally, if an annual appropriations
bill is not enacted for the U.S. government’ s 2017 fiscal year or beyond, the U.S. government may operate under a continuing
resolution, abating RFP processes, restricting new contract or program starts and government slowdowns, or even shutdowns, could
arise. We anticipate there will continue to be significant debate within the U.S. government over defense spending throughout the
budget appropriations process for the U.S. government’ s 2017 fiscal year and beyond. The outcome of these debates could have long-
term consequences for our industry and Company.
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Since we generate most of our revenues from clients that bid on contracts with U.S. government agencies, our operating
results could be adversely affected by spending caps or changes in the budgetary priorities of the U.S. government, as well as by delays
in RFP processes, program starts or the award of contracts or task orders under contracts.

Continued or increased market consolidations by large and small contractors.

Last year witnessed a variety of transactions impacting our client base: CACI acquired L-3" s National Security Solutions
business unit for $550 million; Harris Corporation acquired Exelis, Inc. for $4.7 billion; Science Applications International Corporation
(“SAIC”) acquired Scitor Corporation from Leonard Green Partners for $790 million; The Carlyle Group acquired Novetta Solutions
from Arlington Capital; and Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) split its public sector business from its commercial and
international business (the public sector business then merged with SRA International to form CSRA, Inc. the largest professional
services firm to the U.S. government). This consolidation of our client base could lead to less demand for our services.

Due to the competitive process to obtain contracts and an increase in bid protests, we may be unable to achieve or sustain
revenue growth and profitability.

We expect that a majority of the business that we seek in the foreseeable future will be under service agreements awarded to
our clients through a competitive bidding process, including Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity (“ID/IQ”) contracts. The U.S.
government has increasingly relied on contracts that are subject to a competitive bidding process, which has resulted in greater
competition and increased pricing pressure. As a result, there is a tendency for it to place undue emphasis on low price over technical
merit when selecting contractors. This in turn can result in the U.S. government contracts market attracting extremely low-priced
competitors who see certain consulting products and services as mere “‘commodities” and price accordingly. Government contractors
may decide that they can prepare their bid responses with internal resources and not engage outside organizations to assist this process.

The competitive bidding process involves substantial costs and a number of risks, including significant cost and managerial
time to prepare bids and proposals for contracts that may not be awarded to our clients, and therefore puts our reputation at risk and may
affect our future contracts with these clients, or that may be awarded but for which our customers do not receive meaningful task orders
which might make them less likely to bid for additional task orders. For support contracts awarded to us, we also face the risk of
inaccurately estimating the resources and costs that will be required to fulfill these engagements, which also could impact our reputation
and the likelihood of getting additional engagements for capture and proposal support.

Our business is directly tied to the success of our government contracting clients, which are increasingly reliant on ID/IQ
contracts. ID/IQ contracts are not firm orders for services, and we may generate limited or no revenue from these contracts which
could adversely affect our operating performance.

ID/IQ contracts are typically awarded to multiple contractors, and the award of an ID/IQ contract does not represent a firm
order for services. Generally, under an ID/IQ contract, the government is not obligated to order a minimum of services or supplies from
its contractor, irrespective of the total estimated contract value. In effect, an ID/IQ award acts as a “hunting license,” permitting a
contractor to bid on task orders issued under the ID/IQ contract, but not guaranteeing the award of individual task orders. Following an
award under a multi-award ID/IQ program, the customer develops requirements for task orders that are competitively bid against all of
the contract awardees. However, many contracts also permit the U.S. government to direct work to a specific contractor. Our clients may
not win new task orders under these contracts for various reasons, including price, past performance and responsiveness, among others.
We support our government contractor clients both when they compete to get the umbrella ID/IQ contract and subsequently when we
help the winners of those contracts compete for individual tasks. The proposals for both of these stages can be relatively brief and
require quick turn-arounds, thus potentially reducing some opportunities to be awarded significant turn-key engagements. While it is
possible that the increased importance of winning the umbrella ID/IQ contract will prompt clients to hire outside firms to prepare their
proposals, it is also likely that government contractors will decide to prepare ID/IQ proposals without the assistance from outside
experts.
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Increased reliance on task order responses as the preferred method of proposal submission may significantly and
adversely affect our future revenues, cash flow and financial results.

The U.S. government sometimes makes use of abbreviated (miniature) submissions to a solicitation by requiring a task order
response rather than a full proposal, especially for ID/IQ contracts. Task Order Responses (TORs) as a rule tend to be relatively brief
and have a short response period (often 10 days). These reduced page counts and shorter response times reduce the need for our
traditional services, and if TORs become more of a standard for the U.S. government, this could adversely impact our operations, cash
flow and financial results.

Our business could be negatively impacted by cyber and other security threats or disruptions.

We face various cyber and other security threats, including attempts to gain unauthorized access to sensitive information and
networks; insider threats; threats to the safety of our directors, officers and employees; threats to the security of our facilities and
infrastructure; and threats from terrorist acts or other acts of aggression. Our clients and partners (including subcontractors and joint
ventures) face similar threats. Although we utilize various procedures and controls to monitor and mitigate the risk of these threats,
there can be no assurance that these procedures and controls will be sufficient. These threats could lead to losses of sensitive
information or capabilities, harm to personnel, infrastructure or products, and/or damage to our reputation as well as our partners’
ability to perform.

Cyber threats are evolving and include, but are not limited to, malicious software, destructive malware, attempts to gain
unauthorized access to data, disruption or denial of service attacks, and other electronic security breaches that could lead to disruptions
in mission critical systems, unauthorized release of confidential, personal or otherwise protected information (ours or that of our
employees, customers or partners), and corruption of data, networks or systems. In addition, we could be impacted by cyber threats or
other disruptions or vulnerabilities found in products we use or in our partners’ or customers’ systems that are used in connection with
our business. These threats, if not prevented or effectively mitigated, could damage our reputation, require remedial actions and lead to
loss of business, regulatory actions, potential liability and financial losses.

We provide services to various customers (commercial and occasionally government) who also face cyber threats. Our
services may themselves be subject to cyber threats and/or they may not be able to detect or deter threats, or effectively to mitigate
resulting losses. These losses could adversely affect our customers and our Company.

The impact of these factors is difficult to predict, but one or more of them could result in the loss of information or
capabilities, harm to individuals or property, damage to our reputation, loss of business, regulatory actions and potential liability, any
one of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and/or cash flows.

Although we have identified general criteria and guidelines that we believe are important in evaluating prospective target
businesses for merger or acquisition, we may enter into a potential business combination with a target that does not meet such
criteria and guidelines, and as a result, the target business with which we enter into a potential business combination may not have
attributes entirely consistent with our general criteria and guidelines.

Although we have identified general criteria and guidelines for evaluating prospective target businesses for merger or
acquisition, it is possible that a target business with which we enter into a potential business combination will not have all of these
positive attributes. If we complete a potential business combination with a target that does not meet some or all of these guidelines, such
combination may not be as successful as a combination with a business that does meet all of our general criteria and guidelines.
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Resources could be wasted in researching acquisitions that are not completed, which could materially adversely affect
subsequent attempts to locate and acquire or merge with another business.

We anticipate that the investigation of each specific target business and the negotiation, drafting and execution of relevant
agreements, disclosure documents and other instruments will require substantial management time and attention and substantial costs
for accountants, attorneys and others. If we decide not to complete a potential business combination, the costs incurred up to that point
for the proposed transaction likely would not be recoverable. Furthermore, if we reach an agreement relating to a specific target
business, we may fail to complete a potential business combination for any number of reasons including those beyond our control. Any
such event will result in a loss to us of the related costs incurred which could materially adversely affect subsequent attempts to locate
and acquire or merge with another business.

We may seek investment opportunities in industries outside of our management’s area of expertise.

We intend to focus on target businesses in industries that complement our management team’ s backgrounds including
consulting for the procurement of government contracts. However, we may also pursue acquisition opportunities in other markets.
Although our management will endeavor to evaluate the risks inherent in any particular business combination candidate, we cannot
assure you that we will adequately ascertain or assess all of the significant risk factors. We also cannot assure you that an investment in
our Units will not ultimately prove to be less favorable to investors in this offering than a direct investment, if an opportunity were
available, in a business combination candidate.

Our strategy of growth through acquisitions could harm our business.

It is our intent to continue to grow through strategic acquisitions. Successful integration of newly acquired target companies
may place a significant burden on our management and internal resources. The diversion of management’ s attention and any difficulties
encountered in the transition and integration processes could harm our business, financial condition and operating results. In addition,
we may be unable to execute our acquisition strategy, resulting in under-utilized resources and a failure to achieve anticipated growth.
Our operating results and financial condition will be adversely affected if we are unable to achieve, or achieve on a timely basis, cost
savings or revenue opportunities from any future acquisitions, or incur unforeseen costs and expenses or experience unexpected
operating difficulties from the integration of acquired businesses.

Our ability to successfully effect a potential business combination and to be successful thereafter will be totally dependent
upon the efforts of our key personnel, some of whom may join us following a potential business combination. The loss of key
personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of our post-combination business.

Our ability to successfully effect business combinations is dependent upon the efforts of our key personnel. The role of our
key personnel in the target business, however, cannot presently be ascertained. Although some of our key personnel may remain with
the target business in senior management or advisory positions following our business combination, it is likely that some or all of the
management of the target business will remain in place. While we intend to closely scrutinize any individuals we engage after our
business combination, we cannot assure you that our assessment of these individuals will prove to be correct. These individuals may be
unfamiliar with the requirements of operating a company regulated by the SEC, which could cause us to have to expend time and
resources helping them become familiar with such requirements and take time away from oversight of our operations.

We may have a limited ability to assess the management of a prospective target business and, as a result, may effect a
potential business combination with a target business whose management may not have the skills, qualifications or abilities to
manage a growing company.

When evaluating the desirability of effecting a potential business combination with a prospective target business, our ability
to assess the target business’ s management may be limited due to a lack of time, resources or information. Our assessment of the
capabilities of the target’ s management, therefore, may prove to be incorrect and such management may lack the skills, qualifications or
abilities we suspected. Should the target’ s management not possess the skills, qualifications or abilities necessary to manage a growing
company, the operations and profitability of the post-combination business may be negatively impacted. Accordingly, any stockholders
who choose to remain stockholders following the business combination could suffer a reduction in the value of their shares. The officers
and directors of an acquisition candidate may resign upon completion of a potential business combination. The departure of a potential
business combination target’ s key personnel could negatively impact the operations and profitability of our post-combination business.
The role of an acquisition candidate’ s key personnel upon the completion of a potential business combination cannot be ascertained at
this time.
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We may issue additional common or preferred shares to complete business combinations or under an employee award
plan after completion of business combinations, any one of which would dilute the interest of our stockholders and likely present
other risks.

Our Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 32,500,000 shares - 25,000,000 shares of common stock,
par value $0.0001 per share, and 7,500,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share. Immediately after this offering
(assuming the Maximum Offering Amount is raised), there will be 16,091,270 authorized but unissued shares of common stock
available for issuance, which amount takes into account shares reserved for issuance (a) upon conversion of outstanding Series A
Preferred Stock, (b) upon the exercise of outstanding Unit Warrants and the warrant held by Avon Road, and (¢) under the Company’ s
equity award plan. Immediately after this offering, there will be (x) if the Company receives subscriptions for the minimum number of
shares available in the offering, 300,000 and (y) if the Company receives subscriptions for the maximum number of shares available in
the offering 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding. We may issue a substantial number of additional shares of
common or preferred stock to complete a proposed business combination. The issuance of additional shares of common or preferred
stock:

may significantly dilute the equity interest of investors in this offering;

may further subordinate the rights of holders of common stock if preferred stock is issued with rights senior to those afforded
our common stock;

could cause a change in control if a substantial number of common stock is issued, which could result in the resignation or
removal of our present officers and directors; and

may adversely affect prevailing market prices, if we are listed on an exchange, for our Units, preferred stock, common stock
and/or warrants.

We may issue additional notes or other debt securities, or otherwise incur substantial additional debt, to complete a
business combination, which may adversely affect our leverage and financial condition and thus negatively impact the value of our
stockholders’ investment in us.

The anticipated cash needs of our business could change significantly as we pursue and complete business acquisitions, if our
business plans change, if economic conditions change from those currently prevailing or from those now anticipated, or if other
unexpected circumstances arise that may have a material effect on the cash flow or profitability of our business. If we require additional
capital resources to grow our business, either internally or through acquisition, we may seek to secure debt financing. We may not be
able to obtain financing arrangements in amounts or on terms acceptable to us in the future.

Although we have no commitments as of the date of this offering circular to issue any additional notes or other debt
securities, or to otherwise incur additional outstanding debt, we may choose to incur substantial debt to complete a business
combination. The incurrence of debt could have a variety of negative effects, including:

default and foreclosure on our assets if our operating revenues are insufficient to repay our debt obligations;

acceleration of our obligations to repay the indebtedness even if we make all principal and interest payments when due if we
breach certain covenants that require the maintenance of certain financial ratios or reserves without a waiver or renegotiation
of that covenant;

our immediate payment of all principal and accrued interest, if any, if the debt security is payable on demand;

our inability to obtain necessary additional financing if the debt security contains covenants restricting our ability to obtain
such financing while the debt security is outstanding;

our inability to pay dividends on our preferred stock and common stock;

using a substantial portion of our cash flow to pay principal and interest on our debt, which will reduce the funds available
for dividends on our common stock if declared, expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general corporate
purposes;

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents
limitations on our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business and in the industry in which we operate;

increased vulnerability to adverse changes in general economic, industry and competitive conditions and adverse changes in
government regulation; and

limitations on our ability to borrow additional amounts for expenses, capital expenditures, acquisitions, debt service
requirements, execution of our strategy and other purposes and other disadvantages compared to our competitors who have
less debt.

We may attempt to simultaneously complete business combinations with multiple prospective targets, which may hinder
our ability to complete a business combination and give rise to increased costs and risks that could negatively impact our operations
and profitability.

If we attempt to simultaneously acquire several businesses that are owned by different sellers, we may need for each of such
sellers to agree that our purchase of its business is contingent on the simultaneous closings of the other business combinations. With
multiple business combinations, we could also face additional risks, including additional burdens and costs with respect to possible
multiple negotiations and due diligence investigations (if there are multiple sellers) and the additional risks associated with the
subsequent assimilation of the operations and services or products of the acquired companies in a single operating business. If we are
unable to adequately address these risks, it could negatively impact the Company’ s profitability and results of operations.

Risks Related to the Investment in our Securities
The ownership of our common stock is concentrated among existing executive officers and directors.

Upon the sale of all of the shares offered in this offering, our executive officers and directors will continue to own
beneficially, in the aggregate, a vast majority of the outstanding shares of our common stock. As a result, they will be able to exercise a
significant level of control over all matters requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors, amendments to our
Certificate of Incorporation, and approval of significant corporate transactions. This control could have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change of control of the Company or changes in management and will make the approval of certain transactions difficult or
impossible without the support of these stockholders.

Holders of our Series A Preferred Stock will have limited voting rights.

Except with respect to certain material changes in the terms of the Series A Preferred Stock and certain other matters and
except as may be required by Delaware law, holders of Series A Preferred Stock will have no voting rights unless and until such Series
A Preferred Stock is converted into our common stock. You will have no right to vote for any members of our Board of Directors unless
and until such Series A Preferred Stock you hold is converted into our common stock.

Although we have five directors on our Board of Directors, only one is independent and four are our executive officers,
and we may not be able to appoint additional qualified independent directors.

Currently, although we have five directors, we have only one independent director, Glen Goord, who joined our Board of
Directors in March 2016 in connection with the formation of the Company. Although we do not currently intend to apply to have our
Units or shares of preferred stock or common stock approved for trading on any trading market or securities exchange upon the
completion of this offering, to have our stock listed on a securities exchange we will be required to have a majority of independent
directors, but we may not be able to identify independent directors qualified to be on our board who are willing to serve. In the absence
of a majority of independent directors, we would be prevented from listing our stock on any such exchange. In addition, the Board of
Directors, which includes four of our executive officers, could establish policies and enter into transactions over the objections of the
sole independent director. This could present the potential for a conflict of interest between us and our stockholders generally and the
executive officers, stockholders or directors. The absence of more independent directors who could provide a more neutral point of view
could jeopardize your interests. For example, in the absence of a compensation committee, or a nominating and governance committee,
comprised of at least a majority of independent directors, decisions concerning matters such as compensation packages to our officers,
or recommendations for director nominees, respectively, may be made by existing members of the Board of Directors, who may have a
direct or indirect interest in the outcome of those decisions.

Additionally, we do not currently have, nor are we currently required to have under the rules and regulations applicable to us,
an audit committee or an audit committee financial expert, and therefore have not established independent oversight over our
management and internal controls. Audit committees must be comprised of entirely independent members of the Board of Directors
with a minimum of three members under the independence standards of the major securities exchanges. Therefore, we are exposed to
the risk that material misstatements or omissions caused by errors or fraud with respect to our financial statements or other disclosures
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may occur and not be detected in a timely manner or at all. In the event there are deficiencies or weaknesses in our internal controls, we
may misreport our financial results or lose significant amounts due to misstatements caused by errors or fraud. These misstatements or
acts of fraud could also cause our company to lose value and investors to lose confidence in us.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment.

We may have to engage in common equity, preferred stock or debt financing in the future, as a result of which our
stockholders could suffer significant dilution. Your rights and the value of your investment in Units could be reduced. Interest on debt
securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with
such designation, rights, preferences, and limitations as are needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more
advantageous to those investors than to the holders of common stock. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale
of common stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms at least as, and possibly more, favorable than the terms of your
investment. Shares of common stock which we sell could be sold into any market which develops, which could adversely affect the
market price.
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If our Series A Preferred Stock is converted into common stock, these converting stockholders will have significant voting
power, and they will have the ability to exert substantial influence over matters requiring stockholder approval.

The Series A Preferred stockholders may convert their shares of Series A Preferred Stock at any time after the third
anniversary of the Qualification Date into shares of our common stock. If all of our Series A Preferred Stock is converted into common
stock (assuming the Maximum Offering Amount is raised), the shares issued upon this conversion will total approximately 24.1% of our
outstanding common stock. Therefore, although these stockholders may not acquire majority control upon conversion of their Series A
Preferred Stock, if these distinct stockholders were to act together, they will have the ability to exert substantial influence over all
matters requiring approval of our stockholders, including the election and removal of directors, the approval of mergers or other
business combinations, and other significant corporate actions. This ability to influence the Company’ s affairs might be
disadvantageous to our other stockholders.

Provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws and Delaware law could delay or discourage a takeover and
could adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue 7,500,000 shares of preferred stock, and to determine the price, rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights, of those shares without any further vote or action by holders of our
common stock. If additional preferred stock is issued, the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock may be subject to,
and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of our preferred stock. The issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control of the Company that could have been at a premium price to our stockholders.

Certain provisions of our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws could discourage potential takeover attempts and make
stockholders’ attempts to change management difficult. Our Board of Directors has the authority to impose various procedural and
other requirements that could make it more difficult for our stockholders to effect certain corporate actions.

In addition, certain provisions of Delaware law could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of the
Company. Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, for example, prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any
business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years from the date the person became an interested
stockholder unless certain conditions are met.

The cumulative feature of the Series A Preferred Stock will create obligations for the Company.

If any dividends payable with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock are not paid when due, the dividends will accrue, even
in cases when the Company is financially unable to pay such dividends. As dividends in arrears accrue they can become a significant
obligation to the Company which will accumulate and compound at the rate of seven percent (7%) per annum. Any accumulation of
dividends can become a financial burden that the Company is obligated to pay in full. Such accumulations if not paid down on a regular
basis can become an obligation that may delay or prevent the Company from using its cash to meet its obligations for operations,
acquisitions by the Company and dividends on the Company’ s common stock.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends on common stock in the foreseeable future.

We have not declared or paid cash or other dividends on our common stock and do not expect to pay cash dividends for the
foreseeable future. Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is also restricted by the terms of our Series A Preferred Stock
which require us to pay full cumulative dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock before making any dividend payment on our common
stock. Generally, the Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to quarterly dividends of $0.175 (7% per annum) per share. We currently intend
to retain all future earnings for use in the operation of our business and to fund future growth. Any future cash dividends will depend
upon our results of operations, financial conditions, cash requirements, the availability of a surplus and other factors.
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There currently is no public trading market for our securities and an active market may not develop or, if developed, be
sustained. If a public trading market does not develop, you may not be able to sell any of your securities.

There is currently no public trading market for our common stock, our preferred stock or our warrants, and an active market
may not develop or be sustained. If an active public trading market for our securities does not develop or is not sustained, it may be
difficult or impossible for you to resell your securities at any price. Even if a public market does develop, the market price could decline

below the amount you paid for your securities.

11

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents
USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate the net proceeds from the sale of Units by us in this offering, excluding the proceeds, if any, from the exercise of
the warrants, after deducting the placement agent fees and estimated offering expenses payable by us, will be approximately $2,315,000
for the minimum offering or $27,076,600 for the maximum offering. We cannot predict when or if the warrants will be exercised, and it
is possible that the warrants may expire and never be exercised. We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of the Units offered by
us in this offering to fund the Company’ s organic growth and strategic acquisition of, and investments in, government contract service
providers and government contractors, and for general corporate purposes. We intend for any such acquisitions to become 100% wholly
owned subsidiaries of KeyStone Solutions. We do not anticipate our ownership in any particular acquisition to be less than 80%. The
Company does not believe that its acquisition strategy will cause it to become an “investment company” under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”) nor does it intend to become one.

Accordingly, although our expected use of proceeds is based on reasonable estimates, it is subject to change as the
Company’ s opportunities for acquisitions and operational expenses change from time-to-time. Set forth below is a table showing the
estimated sources and uses of the proceeds from this offering.

Minimum Offering Maximum Offering
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Gross Proceeds $3,000,000 100.0 % $30,000,000 100.0 %
Underwriting Discounts & Commissions (1) 180,000 6.0 % 1,800,000 6.0 %
Estimated Offering Expenses (2) 505,000 16.8 % 1,123,400 3.7 %
Net Proceeds $2,315,000 772 % $27,076,600 90.3 %
Strategic acquisition of government contract service

providers and government contractors $1,743,000 58.1 % $24,376,600 813 %
General corporate purposes 572,000 19.1 % 2,700,000 9.0 %
Total Use of Net Proceeds $3,000,000 100.0 % $30,000,000 100.0 %

(1) The underwriting commission represents 6.0% of the gross proceeds for Units sold in the offering.

(2) Includes (i) underwriters’ allowable accountable expense allocation of 1.0% of the gross proceeds of Units sold in the offering,
which is estimated to be $30,000 and $216,400 for the minimum and maximum offering amounts, respectively, (ii) non-
accountable expense allowance of 1.0% of the gross proceeds of Units sold in the offering, which is $30,000 and $300,000 for the
minimum and maximum offering amounts, respectively, and (iii) other expenses of the offering estimated to be $445,000 and
$607,000 for the minimum and maximum offering amounts. See “Plan of Distribution.”

Since this is a best efforts offering, if we are only able to sell $3,000,000, the minimum offering amount required to be raised
in order to continue with the offering, we expect to use the net proceeds from the sale to fund the Company’ s strategic acquisition of]
and investments in, government contract service providers and government contractors, and for general corporate purposes. To the
extent that we sell more than 300,000 Units, the additional net proceeds will be used primarily to fund the Company’ s strategic
acquisition of, and investments in, government contract service providers and government contractors, with the remainder being used
for general corporate purposes. These general corporate purposes may include capital expenditures and additions to working capital.

The foregoing information is an estimate based on our current business plan. We may find it necessary or advisable to re-
allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad discretion in doing so. Pending these
uses, we intend to invest the net proceeds of this offering in short-term, interest-bearing securities.
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General

The Company was formed in March 2016 as a holding company for the purpose of creating or acquiring professional
services companies that provide support to the government contracting (GovCon) industry. We formed the Company through a
corporate reorganization of AOC Key Solutions, which, as a result, became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. We believe this
structure will allow the Company to make acquisitions and raise capital in a more efficient manner.

The operations of the Company are currently conducted by and through its wholly owned subsidiary, AOC Key Solutions.
AOC Key Solutions is an established business development and consulting firm that assists government contractors in winning
government contracts. It also helps commercially focused firms gain entry into the government contracting market for the first time.
Since commencing operations in 1983, AOC Key Solutions has assisted clients in winning over approximately $150 billion of
government contract awards.

AOC Key Solutions was a division of American Operations Corporation before being spun off in 2008 and has been
profitable since becoming an independent company in 2008.

The Company identifies winnable government contracts for clients and provides teaming support to help its clients identify
qualified teaming opportunities from the Company’ s large database of government contractors. Next, AOC Key Solutions helps its
clients develop the strategy and plan to win contracts, implement and execute their strategy and plan, and prepare a compliant,
compelling and winning proposal document. For more than 30 years AOC Key Solutions has provided market intelligence, proposal,
capture, advisory and teaming support and other important services to Fortune 50 companies and small businesses alike. Since the 2008
spin-off, AOC Key Solutions’ cumulative client awards have exceeded $72 billion. For the year ended December 31, 2015, AOC Key
Solutions generated over $9.6 million of revenue and net income of approximately $422,000. For the six-month period ended June 30,
2016, AOC Key Solutions’ revenues were $7,177,345 as compared to $4,311,170 for the same period in 2015.

We seek to improve how the federal government and government contractors operate. For the former, KeyStone works to
increase the efficiency and effectiveness of government on behalf of the taxpayer. For the latter, KeyStone assists companies who are in,
or seek to enter, the lucrative government contracting market. KeyStone helps contractors seeking to achieve two types of results:
positive societal contributions; and success measured by our clients’ profits and return on investment.

Members of KeyStone’ s management team have extensive experience in the government contracting sector and collective
breadth of experience managing organic growth as well as growth through acquisitions and integration. In connection with the
formation of the Company as a platform for expansion in the GovCon sector, Robert A. Berman joined the Company as Chief Executive
Officer and became an investor in the Company. See ‘Interest of Management and Others in Certain Transactions.” Prior to investing
in the Company, Mr. Berman executed a successful growth acquisition strategy by building a $6 million in annual revenue, 50-employee
hospitality company into the hospitality sector’ s premiere service provider. In just three years, the hospitality company grew by more
than 3,000 employees and $280 million in revenues with offices around the globe by acquiring well-run synergistic companies. In
addition to successfully operating and growing businesses through acquisitions, Mr. Berman has extensive capital market experience in
both the public and private sectors. Mr. James McCarthy is the Company’ s Chairman and his career spans over 30 years of marketing
strategy creation, proposal development, and oral presentation coaching to contractors seeking to expand their market shares or to enter
the government contracts market sector. Dr. Richard Nathan, our Chief Operating Officer, President and Member of the Board, brings
over 45 years of corporate management, program management, and business and proposal development experience. He has led large
management and operation contracts valued at more than a billion dollars and managed service and technical contracts for DOE, DoD,
DHS, NASA, EPA, and state government. We believe that the combined expertise of Mr. Berman, Mr. McCarthy and Dr. Nathan will
help to identify and evaluate key strategic acquisitions as we pursue our growth strategy.
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KeyStone’ s strategy includes diversifying its services offering within the market it knows well gaining a critical mass of
sustainable revenues. We intend to use the net proceeds of this offering to fund organic growth and to add both vertical and horizontal
capabilities by acquiring GovCon service providers through a disciplined acquisition strategy. We intend to foster communication and
knowledge transfer by constructing a “bridge” across which efficiencies and best practices will be shared between the private sector and
government, benefiting government, industry and the taxpayer.

Our Mission Statement

Through acquisitions and integration, KeyStone intends to provide a “one-stop,” full suite of services and products to the Government
Contracting Market, making us a cohesive force in an extremely fragmented industry. KeyStone will diversify its services within the
market it knows well in an effort to gain a critical mass of sustainable revenues.

Cumulative Value of Federal Government Contract
Awards to AOC Key Solutions' Clients
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Background

On March 15, 2016, the Company entered into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with KCS Merger Sub, Inc.
(“Merger Sub”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and AOC Key Solutions. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on
March 15, 2016, Merger Sub was merged with and into AOC Key Solutions, with AOC Key Solutions becoming a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Our Process

AOC Key Solutions works with clients across nearly all federal agencies and market sectors, and specializes in information
technology, defense and homeland security, healthcare, energy and environment, infrastructure support services, design/build, and new
and emerging markets. Our full service business development process is shown below.
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AOC Key Solution’s Full Service

Business Development Process for Its Clients

(TR A= i » |dentify winnable government contracts

contracts

+ Help dients implerment and execute their strategy and plan
+ Teaming support to identify qualified teaming opportunities

* Help dients prepare a compliant, compelling and winning
proposal document

+ Train and rehearse dient personnel for oral presentations to
the Government

= Train and rehearses clients for question and answer sessions

+ Help dients develop the strategy and plan for winning J
and negotiations ]

Distinctive Characteristics

The United States Government purchases between $450 billion and $500 billion in products and services each year from the
private sector, making it the single largest customer on the planet. As policy evolves, KeyStone evolves with government keeping itself
and its clients ahead of the curve.

The following characteristics have contributed to our success and, we believe will have a material and positive impact on the
growth anticipated from KeyStone’ s strategy:

Win Record. Each year we list, in our Billion Dollar Club, the major contract awards that we have helped our clients to win. Our 2015
members are shown below. From 2011 through 2015 we provided support to our clients for over 175 winning bids. During this period,
we averaged $9 billion annually in government contract award wins for our clients. Our clients compensated us on a time and materials
basis for our services. We do not provide additional services after a contract has been awarded.
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Ability to Provide Value to the Influx of Small Businesses. Recent data suggest that the Small Business Administration helps to start
approximately 14,200 small businesses per year. We believe that a number of these new entities intend to enter the GovCon sector and
may be potential KeyStone clients. We have a toolbox of services and products tailored to help new businesses gain entry into this
lucrative market.

Access to Government and Industry Decision-Makers. We support our clients in seeking work from a majority of federal agencies. We
know well the executive and working-level staff at all of our government contractor clients, and they are aware of the value of our
services. As a result, we have key market intelligence that allows us to recommend teaming arrangements that have strategic value and
are designed to increase the likelihood of our client winning a contract.

Government Contracting Weekly. This is a TV show we produced and are transitioning to the Internet to broaden its exposure. This
show was previously broadcast for several years on CBS in Washington, DC and continues to open doors to us. Government
Contracting Weekly also provides an open and transparent forum to discuss the many issues relevant to both the government and
contractors.

Expertise and Depth of Resources. We employ over 25 in-house proposal development specialists backed by approximately 300 contract
technical and management subject matter experts. Many of our employees maintain federal security clearances up to and including Top
Secret.

Client Base of World Class Companies. Our client base has grown to over 450 companies, ranging from Fortune 50 firms to small and
minority-owned businesses and start-ups. Over the Company’ s 33-year history, we have supported a majority of the top-100 federal
contractors, based on revenue.

Client Base Continues to Expand. Even with the size of our client base, the total number of contractors registered in the government’ s
System for Acquisition Management (SAM) exceeds 413,000, the majority of whom we do not currently serve.

Successful Long-Term Performance is Due to Our Sound and Proven Business Model. We have been in business for over 33 years with
continuity of management from the beginning. Our proprietary processes and tools have afforded us the opportunity to train the next
generation of talent.

Dedication to Principle-Centered Winning (PCW). We create value for our clients by focusing on winning— but winning the right way,
not just any way. PCW is a code of conduct, a set of ethical principles and rules; based on service, sacrifice where necessary, and always
seeking to act in the interests of our clients. We also seek to act in the best interests of the Federal Government. In part, this is because
we are selective about who we take on as clients - only those companies which we believe will be able to successfully perform to
government requirements. Thus, we play the important role of providing the right capabilities and the right price to the government
entity with which our client is contracting.

State-of-the-Art Proposal Facility. For those clients who prefer an off-site proposal venue, we have a modern, secure and well-equipped
proposal facility capable of simultaneously hosting multiple client engagements.

Our Network of Strategic Relationships. To increase our access to senior executives in government and industry, we have created a wide
network of strategic relationships with organizations that include the George Washington University, Virginia Science and Technology
Campus, Technology Accelerator, George Mason University Procurement and Technical Assistance Center, Arbinger Institute, Coalition
for Government Procurement and the Veterans Institute for Procurement. It is through these relationships that we are able to:

Keep our finger on the pulse of the GovCon market
Secure meetings for our clients that may be denied to outsiders

Continuously refresh our pool of prospective clients and subject matter experts
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Our Services

We believe clients value our services for four primary reasons. First, we offer a full suite of services for GovCon industry best
practices allowing our clients to outsource their non-core competencies and focus on performing their contracts more efficiently.
Second, many companies cannot maintain a large support infrastructure in-house and find it more cost effective to outsource. Third, our
proprietary tools help clients maintain a healthy pipeline. And fourth, our win record supports their top-line revenue growth.

Clients engage us for a variety of important reasons when they:
Identify a strategically important contract
Face an upcoming recompete of one or more of their foundational “bread and butter” contracts
Want to form and lead a team of companies to pursue a large, complex contract
Have special expertise and want to secure a spot on a team led by a prime contractor
Want to break into the GovCon market for the first time, or expand into a new line of business
Seek a footprint in a government agency for which they never before have worked
Need introductions to government decision-makers and senior executives from industry
Realize that their opportunity pipeline is empty, or filled with too many of the wrong kinds of targets
Know that their business development, capture and proposal processes are not working
Have a new technology or process they wish to bring to the market
Realize they are experiencing declines in market share, top-line revenues, or bottom-line profits
Face formidable competition and are unaware of how best to proceed
Have selected a contract target, but have no compelling strategy to win
Lack differentiators that separate them from the pack of bidders
Have never produced a complex or large proposal
Are in the midst of a prolonged losing streak and must quickly turn the tide
Lack the capacity or bandwidth to provide the necessary resources to win
Produce proposals that are boring, dense, wordy, unattractive, and non-compliant with the government’ s requirements
Have an internal champion who must deliver results, but lacks necessary support infrastructure
Lack a program manager or other key personnel to feature in their proposal
Win a contract but are unable to staff it with technically-skilled personnel or those with the required security clearances
Rely too heavily in their proposal on boilerplate and outdated or recycled material
Are about to grow out of their small business size standard or graduate from the SBA’ s 8(a) program
Recognize a need for our industry leading best practices and our expertise in winning

Wish to make their company attractive to potential buyers or outside investors

The services we provide include:

Market Research. We monitor funds that the government spends on government contractors, the consumption of government
spending by government contractors, and latest developments in the sector. We identify trends and emerging issues and track
where congressionally appropriated funds eventually result in a program or procurement. We also keep tabs on contractors
competing for government contracts, diagnose the health of the various segments within the overall GovCon market and
advise clients on whether and how to best operate in those segments.
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Identifying Funded and Winnable Contract Opportunities. We highlight opportunities that we consider to be most
advantageous for our clients. Using various market research tools, we identify and screen the contract opportunity, estimate
its potential dollar value, forecast its lifecycle schedule and timeline, research the type and extent of work to be performed,
provide the names and contact information for government decision-makers and identify which companies might be best to
participate with by forming and leading a team, or joining another team.

Managing Client Opportunity Pipelines. We install an infrastructure for our clients to track and manage the universe of
opportunities available to them. We refresh a client’ s opportunity pipeline and help them identify contracts that match their
core competencies and which we believe have the highest probability of winning (“P-Win”) for them.
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Assistance Making a Bid Decision. After assembling the requisite data, we help clients make informed decisions on which
opportunities—among hundreds or even thousands of targets—to bid and spend scarce bid and proposal dollars on.

Assistance in the Early Phases of Business Development and Capture. In some cases, we take the lead in laying the
groundwork for an ultimate win. In other cases, we may be advisors to the client’ s pursuit team to bid a given contract
opportunity. In either case, we set up meetings with government decision-makers, prepare the necessary capability statements
and other documents and prep our clients to meet with the government to create a strong first impression.

Help Developing a Strategy to Win. To provide an overall strategy to win, we host a strategy session to develop certain tools
and artifacts (e.g., SWOT analyses, Value Proposition, Opportunity Profile) that are necessary to win. At these sessions, we
guide clients on how to address government’ s needs, wants, and biases. We help craft win themes and discriminators for the
eventual proposal, assemble an “Offer Design” that represents the value proposition to be carried forth to the proposal,
conduct an analysis of our client’ s strengths and vulnerabilities, offering suggestions on how to leverage the former, and
mitigate the latter. We also evaluate the likely competition and provide our recommendations and input to the strategy. In
short, we develop the concepts and action plans necessary to win.

Assembling Teams of Companies. If our client elects to be the prime contractor and lead a team, we identify compatible
companies to join the team and increase their P-Win. If our client elects to support a team in the role as a subcontractor or
teammate, we approach the market and work to convince prime contractors to work with our client. In all cases, we fill the
role of matchmaker, by arranging meetings, establishing agendas, preparing necessary collateral material, and facilitating
dialogue.

Leading or Contributing to Proposal Efforts. Our roles differ depending on circumstances. In some cases, we provide end-to-
end support to plan, write, review, edit, produce, and publish the proposal document. In other cases, we provide a proposal
manager or strategic advisor to help client personnel, including supplying one or more subject matter experts, proposal
managers, technical writers, pricing experts, process coordinators, editors, quality control experts, graphic artists, and other
personnel required to assemble a large, complex proposal.

Helping Staff the Contract. Before, during, or after the proposal effort, we identify and secure personnel to perform the
contract. Our involvement could include everything from recruiting technical staff to locating the program manager or other
key personnel.

Helping Launch the Contract. When requested by our clients, we lead and/or support the transition and phase-in of the
contract from the predecessor contractor to our client. Types of activities include: pre-negotiation support, mobilization,
logistics, employee on-boarding, the preparation of operations manuals, and audits and inspections.

Our Clients

KeyStone works with many highly-regarded government contractors, including start-ups, small and medium sized
businesses, and large defense contractors and integrators. We have supported brand name firms such as Lockheed Martin, Northrop
Grumman, Boeing, Raytheon, General Dynamics, Honeywell, BAE, Siemens, CSC, SAIC/Leidos, HP, CACI, AT&T, Booz Allen
Hamilton, IBM, Oshkosh, Sodexo and others. Over the Company’ s 33-year history, we have supported a majority of the top-100 federal
contractors (by revenue). We provide our clients with quality value-added service through efficiencies of scale, productivity
enhancements and expertise.

Our potential GovCon clients are the various levels of government and those companies that support them. They consist of
two groups:

The Private Sector Group consists of those contractors and service companies that serve and support the various levels of
Government. Contractors include firms that offer an array of important products and services. These are provided in the areas of
national security, defense, homeland security, intelligence, information technology, energy, environment, healthcare, transportation,
education, operations and maintenance, infrastructure, logistics, and others. Examples of service companies include law firms,
accounting firms, banks and financial institutions, insurance companies, staffing and recruiting firms, media companies, market
research, public relations houses, and all manner of consulting firms dedicated to supporting the taxpayer at every level of government.
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The Public Sector Group is comprised of the government entities or agencies of the United States including those at the
federal, state and municipal levels.

Business Development

In the GovCon market, business development is tailored and scaled to meet the opportunity and the players associated with
that opportunity. Business development is primarily carried out by our team of full-time business developers. To promote our business,
our officers and employees take leadership positions in key GovCon industry organizations including industry trade groups and
associations, chambers of commerce, veterans organizations, and civic and community organizations. Our leadership routinely engages
in writing blogs, newsletters, white papers and thought pieces and developing podcasts and webinars for the GovCon industry on
various GovCon subjects. We further this educational and brand recognition process by offering seminars and training, participating on
roundtables and presenting at industry conferences. We also use several technology platforms to monitor industry developments and
identify targets of contract opportunity for our clients. Because of our breadth of industry contacts and relationships we frequently
facilitate and help create teams of multiple companies to pursue targets of opportunity. On each occasion, we become accessible to
potential new clients by brokering the relationships.

The GovCon Market Defined
The GovCon market is defined as:

“The economic system through which different companies compete with each other to sell their services
or products to the Government.”

A government contractor is an organization — either for profit or non-profit — that produces goods or services under a contract for the
government. The GovCon market functions at the intersection of government and private industry.

Size of GovCon Market-Leading Market Metrics

The GovCon market is massive. The US Federal Government is estimated to procure between $450 billion and $500 billion
annually for products and services from the private sector — making it the world’ s largest customer. KeyStone is positioned to become a
leading provider of outsourced services to government contractors.

Government Contracting Sector Outlook

We believe the outlook for the GovCon sector for GFY 2016 (the federal government fiscal year starts on October 1 and ends
on September 30) is promising. Congress has repealed sequestration and late last year a potential government shutdown was averted
with pledges to avoid future disruptions. $88 billion of defense cuts from sequestration were restored. An omnibus-spending bill, ending
the need for stopgap funding, was passed by Congress and signed into law. The government relaxed certain restrictions affecting
spending ceilings and budget deficits, and a new House Speaker was elected, giving rise to hopes of stemming the partisan tide on the
Hill. The shortage in the government’ s acquisition workforce received attention accompanied by the recognition that training for
government contracting personnel is a national priority.

Industry has also bounced back. The number of undercapitalized, unprofitable, and unstable companies was reduced-leaving
a smaller, yet more robust contractor base. The volume and frequency of RFPs is increasing, outdated and ill-conceived programs have
been eliminated in favor of higher priority programs and Low Price Technically Acceptable (LPTA) is more and more falling into
disfavor.
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We believe the following indicators suggest a restoration of normalcy in the market:

Industry sources have identified 20 high-profile federal opportunities for GFY 2016 valued at over $231 billion —an $11 billion
increase in total contract value from GFY 2015. (Source: Deltek GovWin)

The top-10 civilian opportunities for GFY 2016 combine to create $171 billion total value of prime contract opportunities—more
than triple the value in GFY 2015. (Source: Deltek GovWin)

In the arena of architecture, engineering, and construction contracts, estimates are as high as $10 billion in total contract value for
GFY 2016. (Source: Deltek GovWin)

The total contract value of the GFY 2016 top-10-small set-aside opportunities is $31 billion - 48% more than that of the GFY
2015 top-10 set-aside opportunities combined value (Source: Deltek GovWin)

Each day, GSA’ s Federal Business Opportunities (FBO), tracks 26,600 active federal contract opportunities (those released in the
last 90 days) (Source: fbo.gov)

We believe that GovCon’ s future appears bright. The following chart provides a recap of federal government spending,
demonstrating the size and scope of the GovCon market.

Federal Government Contracts Awarded GFY 2008 - 2015
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KeyStone intends to bring together in one platform many of the products, services, and expertise used by both the public and
private sector groups in the GovCon market. Our intent is to set up a structure of “cross pollination” and “cross selling” among all
companies throughout the platform. This gives us a strong marketing tool which we believe will help us achieve our vision. The net
proceeds from this offering will enable KeyStone to pursue this strategy.

Our Growth Strategy

KeyStone intends to acquire companies that provide a wide range of complementary services as described below.
KeyStone’ s acquisition strategy is to buy well-run profitable businesses, like AOC Key Solutions, focusing on top-line revenues to
achieve critical mass while concurrently leveraging our platform to create economies of scale and best practices. Our strategy targets
companies that provide both vertical and horizontal integrated services. We intend for any such acquisitions to become 100% wholly
owned subsidiaries of KeyStone Solutions. We do not anticipate our ownership in any particular acquisition to be less than 80%. The
Company does not believe that its acquisition strategy will cause it to become an “investment company” under the 1940 Act, nor does it
intend to become one.
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A vertical is a company that provides products and services within the GovCon market that are compatible and synergistic,
and supplement those currently provided by KeyStone. Through strategic acquisitions of verticals, our plan is to be the preeminent
source for many of the services and products required to provide end-to-end support to government contractors.
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GovCon verticals under consideration include companies engaged in staffing and recruiting, back office support services,
information technology support, operations and contract performance, opportunity identification tracking and pipeline management
services, teaming solutions, training and business development, price-to-win strategies, hardware and product offerings, traditional and
social media services, M&A-related products and services, market research, specialized insurance, government executive recruiting,
event planning and concierge services and logistics. We may consider investing in more than one company in any vertical category if it
is a strategic fit.

A horizontal is a company that provides products and services that competes in whole or in part with AOC Key Solutions
which operates in a highly-fragmented market. No single firm is dominant in the market and none has a large market share. As part of
our growth strategy, we will seek to acquire firms that are qualified, meet our standards, and offer a supportable business case.

In the past the Company has been presented with numerous opportunities where a potential client has asked the Company to
go at risk in some fashion in pursuit of a particular contract opportunity. In addition to our acquisition strategy, we may use a portion of
the net proceeds from this offering to make strategic investments in targeted GovCon entities.

The likely recipients of any direct investments are high potential/high performing companies, primarily, but not exclusively,
small businesses. Candidates could also include firms whose owners are executing a growth or exit strategy and are positioning
themselves for an eventual liquidity event.

These types of investments may be deployed in certain sectors of the GovCon market including but not limited to:
information technology; health care; national defense; homeland security; energy and the environment; maintenance and operation of
government facilities and infrastructure; architecture, engineering, and construction; transportation; law enforcement; and new and
emerging market sectors.
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PROPERTIES

Our principal properties as of the date of this offering circular are set forth below:

Square

Location Feet Principal Use Ownership Lease Expiration
14420 Albemarle Point Place
Suite 200 18,587 Principal Office; October 31, 2019
Chantilly, VA 20152 (8,297 subleased) Daily Operations Lease for lease and sublease
2030 Dickory Avenue
Suite 202
New Orleans, LA 70123 746 Accounting Operations Lease May 31, 2018

We believe our existing facilities are adequate to meet our current needs and we can renew our existing leases or obtain
alternate space on terms that would not have a material impact on our financial results.
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SUMMARY HISTORICAL AND PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summary Historical Financial Data

The following summary historical and pro forma financial data should be read in conjunction with: (a) “Management’ s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”; (b) the AOC Key Solutions audited financial statements
and accompanying notes for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014; (c¢) the AOC Key Solutions unaudited financial statements
for the three-months and six-months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015; and (d) the KeyStone Solutions unaudited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016. The summary financial
data in this section are not intended to replace the respective financial statements and related notes included in the “Financial
Statements” section of this offering circular.

As the Company was formed in March 2016, has no assets other than holding its shares in AOC Key Solutions and has had
no operations since its formation other than those incidental to its formation and this proposed offering, no substantive information
would be communicated to investors by including audited financials for KeyStone Solutions that is not otherwise provided by the AOC
Key Solutions audited and interim financials and the pro forma financial information included herein.

The selected statements of income data for AOC Key Solutions for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the
selected balance sheets data as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, are derived from the AOC Key Solutions audited financial statements
for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, appearing in the “Financial Statements” section of this offering circular. The selected
statements of income data for the three-months and six-months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the selected balance sheets data as of
June 30, 2016 and 2015, are derived from the AOC Key Solutions unaudited financial statements for the periods ended June 30, 2016
and 2015, appearing in the “Financial Statements” section of this offering circular.

The selected statements of income consolidated data for KeyStone Solutions for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of
inception) to June 30, 2016, and the selected balance sheets data as of June 30, 2016 are derived from the KeyStone Solutions unaudited
consolidated financial statements for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 appearing in the “Financial
Statements” section of this offering circular.

The unaudited financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with our audited financial statements included in
this offering circular. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in the future and the results
for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full fiscal year.
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Statements of Income Data:
Revenue
Operating costs and expenses
Cost of revenue
Billable expenses
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating income
Other income (expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Total other (expenses)
Net income before taxes
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes
Current
Deferred
Total provision for income tax
Net income (loss)

Balance Sheets Data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Working capital

Total assets

Long-term debt

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
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KeyStone
Solutions
Unaudited
Consolidated
March 15, 2016 AOC Key Solutions
(Date of Unaudited AOC Key Solutions
Inception) to Six Month Ended Audited
June 30, 2016 June 30, Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2015 2014
$4,377,095 $7,177,345 $4,311,170  $9,661,795 $11,519,457
2,491,176 3,955,119 2,361,872 5,281,484 6,396,617
129,434 207,035 78,009 215,238 222,614
1,610,554 2,094,830 1,838,458 3,673,031 4,705,786
31,432 53,318 56,470 70,268 79,646
4,262,596 6,310,302 4,334,809 9,240,021 11,404,663
114,499 867,043 (23,639 ) 421,774 114,794
28 - - - -
(13,065 ) - - - (16
(13,037 ) - - - (16
101,462 867,043 (23,639 ) 421,774 114,778
161,159 161,159 - - -
(107,244 ) (107244 ) - - -
53,915 53,915 - - -
$47,547 $813,128 $(23,639 ) $421,774 $$114,778
KeyStone
Solutions
Unaudited AOC Key Solutions AOC Key Solutions
As of Unaudited Audited
June 30, 2016 As of June 30, As of December 31,
Consolidated 2016 2015 2015 2014
$26,181 $17,136 $425,000 $567,866  $632,308
1,665,368 2,054,173 1,231,083 1,409,029 1,242,088
4,199,831 3,729,038 2,545,576 2,549,029 2,542,639
500,000 - - - -
2,267,282 1,459,111 1,140,816 966,612 1,114,238
1,932,549 2269927 1,404,760 1,582,417 1,428,401
25
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Pro Forma Financial Data

The following unaudited pro forma combined financial statements are based on the KeyStone Solutions unaudited
consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016, and
the AOC Key Solutions unaudited financial statements for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, as adjusted to give
effect to the Reorganization. The unaudited pro forma combined statements of income for the six months ended June 30, 2016 give
effect to the acquisition of AOC Key Solutions as if it had occurred on January 1, 2016. The unaudited pro forma combined balance
sheets as of June 30, 2016 gives effect to the Reorganization as if it had occurred on June 30, 2016.

The assumptions and estimates underlying the unaudited adjustments to the pro forma condensed combined financial
statements are described in the accompanying notes in this section, which should be read together with the KeyStone Solutions
unaudited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30,
2016.

The pro forma combined financial statements do not necessarily reflect what the combined Company’ s financial condition or
results of operations would have been had the Reorganization occurred on the dates indicated. They also may not be useful in predicting
the future financial condition and results of operations of the combined Company. The actual financial position and results of operations
may differ significantly from the pro forma amounts reflected herein due to a variety of factors.
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KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Balance Sheets

June 30, 2016
Assets
AOC Key
KeyStone Solutions Pro Forma Pro Forma
Solutions Historical Adjustments Notes Combined

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $9,045 $17,136 $537,414 b $563,595

Accounts receivable = 3,280,721 - 3,280,721

Intercompany receivable/payable (113,707 ) 113,707 - -

Prepaid expenses - 57,679 - 57,679

Note receivable 24,000 - - 24,000

Accrued interest receivable 28 - - 28

Deferred tax asset - 44,041 (44,041 ) a -

Total current assets (80,634 ) 3,513,284 493,373 3,926,023
Net property and equipment - 113,269 - 113,269
Costs of preferred stock offering 537,414 = (537,414 ) b -
Loan origination costs 14,013 - - 14,013
Investment in subsidiary 2,393,320 - (2,393,320) c -
Deferred tax asset - 63,203 (63,203 ) -
Deposits = 39,282 = 39,282
Total assets $2,864,113  $3,729,038  $(2,500,564) $4,092,587

See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information
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KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Balance Sheets
June 30, 2016

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

AOC Key
KeyStone Solutions Pro Forma Pro Forma
Solutions Historical Adjustments Notes Combined
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $306,356 $618,475 $- $924,831
Deposits = 4,242 = 4,242
Accrued expenses - 19,757 - 19,757
Accrued wages and leave - 616,126 - 616,126
Accrued income taxes payable - 161,159 - 161,159
Line of credit = 39,352 = 39,352
Accrued interest payable 1,815 - 1,815
Total current liabilities 308,171 1,459,111 = 1,767,282
Note payable 500,000 - - 500,000
Total long-term liabilities 500,000 - - 500,000
Total liabilities 808,171 1,459,111 - 2,267,282
Common stock, no par value, 1,500 shares authorized, 1,370 shares

issued and outstanding for 2016 - - - -
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized,

5,000,000 shares issued and outstanding 500 - (500 ) c -
Preferred stock - - - -
Additional paid in capital 1,581,917 597,704 (1,581,917) c 597,704
Retained earnings 473,525 1,672,223 (918,147 ) 1,227,601

Total stockholders’ equity 2,055,942 2,269,927 (2,500,564) 1,825,305
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,864,113  $3,729,038  $(2,500,564) $4,092,587

See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information
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KeyStone Solutions, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Statements of Income
For the Period March 15, 2016 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2016

KeyStone AOC Key
Solutions Solutions
March 15, Historical Pro Forma
2016 (Date of Six Months Combined
Inception) to Ended Six Months
June 30, June 30, Pro Forma Ended June 30,
2016 2016 Adjustments Notes 2016
Revenue $- $7,177,345 $- $7,177,345
Cost of revenue - 3,955,119 - 3,955,119
Billable expenses = 207,035 - 207,035
Selling, general and administrative 324,341 2,094,830 2,419,171
Depreciation and amortization - 53,318 - 53,318
Income (loss) from operations (324,341) 867,043 - 542,702
Other (expenses) (13,037 ) - - (13,037
Equity in income of subsidiary 810,903 - (810,903 ) c -
Net income before taxes 473,525 867,043 (810,903 ) 529,637
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes - 53,915 107,244 a 161,159
Net Income $473,525 $813,128 $(918,147) $368,506

See accompanying Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information
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Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

Note 1 - Basis of presentation

KeyStone Solutions interim unaudited consolidated financial statements have been adjusted in the pro forma condensed
combined financial statements to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the Reorganization, (2) factually
supportable and (3) with respect to the pro forma condensed combined statement of operations, expected to have a continuing impact on
the combined results following the business combination.

The pro forma combined financial statements do not necessarily reflect what the combined Company’ s financial condition or
results of operations would have been had the Reorganization occurred on the dates indicated. They also may not be useful in predicting
the future financial condition and results of operations of the combined Company. The actual financial position and results of operations
may differ significantly from the pro forma amounts reflected herein due to a variety of factors. The combined pro forma financial
information does not reflect the realization of any expected cost savings or other synergies from the Reorganization and other possible
cost savings initiatives following the completion of the Reorganization.

Note 2 - Pro forma adjustments

The pro forma adjustments are based on our preliminary estimates and assumptions that are subject to change. The following
adjustments have been reflected in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information:

(a) The provision for deferred income taxes ($107,244) and the related current deferred tax asset ($44,041) and non-current
deferred tax asset ($63,203) have been eliminated from the combined pro forma financial statements

(b) Nonrecurring costs and expenses, are limited to the costs of the preferred stock offering ($537,414) are eliminated from the
combined pro forma financial statements.

(¢) All intercompany accounts related to the Reorganization, including investment in subsidiary, equity in income of subsidiary
and the related equity accounts are eliminated from the combined pro forma financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

General

KeyStone Solutions was formed on March 15, 2016 as a holding company for the purpose of creating or acquiring
professional services companies that provide support to the government contracting (GovCon) industry. While KeyStone Solutions has
no direct current business operations, our significant assets are our cash and equity interest in our principal operating subsidiary, AOC
Key Solutions.

AOC Key Solutions is an established provider of outsourced services to the GovCon market. AOC Key Solutions helps
government contractors target and win government contracts. For more than 30 years AOC Key Solutions has provided market
intelligence, proposal, capture, advisory and teaming support and other important services to Fortune 50 companies and small
businesses alike. We intend to use the net proceeds of this offering to fund organic growth and add both vertical and horizontal
capabilities by acquiring GovCon service providers through a market-focused and disciplined strategy. Our efforts to identify
prospective target businesses will not be limited to any geographic region or any particular sector of the GovCon support industry.

We are based in Chantilly, Virginia and have a satellite office in New Orleans, Louisiana. As of June 30, 2016 we had 32
employees and access to approximately 350 consultants.

We generate revenues from fees and reimbursable expenses for professional services usually billed on an hourly rate, time-
and-materials (T&M) basis. Clients are typically invoiced on a monthly basis, with revenue recognized as the services are provided. In a
few cases, we may enter into a fixed-fee engagement for our services. Fixed-fee engagements can be invoiced once for the entire job, or
there could be several “progress” invoices for accomplishing various phases or reaching contractual milestones. T&M contracts
represent over 95% of our client engagements. Revenues related to materials (mainly out-of-pocket expenses such as airfare, lodging
and meals) required during an engagement generally are billed on a pass-through basis and do not include overhead, general and
administrative and profit mark-ups and can be charged and reimbursed separately or as part of the overall fee arrangement.
Time-and-materials engagements do not provide us with a high degree of predictability of future period performance.

Our financial results are impacted principally by the:
1) success of our sales team in generating client engagements;
2) full-time revenue-generating staff utilization rate;
3) demand by our clients for our consultants; and

4) number of business days in each quarter.

The number of quarterly business days is affected by the number of vacation days taken by our staff and consultants, as well
as the number of holidays in each quarter. We typically have fewer business work days available in the fourth quarter of the year, which
can impact revenues during that period. Our staff utilization rate can also be affected by seasonal variations in the demand for our
services from our clients. Our revenues have historically been weighted slightly toward the second and third calendar quarters, with the
fourth quarter generally experiencing the least amount of revenue. Our earnings may trend with revenue seasonality and results for any
quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for a full fiscal year.

Unexpected changes in the demand for our services can result in significant variations in utilization and revenues, and
present a challenge to optimal hiring, staffing and use of consultants. The volume of work performed can vary from period to period.

We anticipate an increasing demand for our services in 2016 as the volume of government spending increases and as our
clients elect to outsource their bid and proposal activities. We believe the outlook for the GovCon sector for GFY 2016 (the federal
government fiscal year starts on October 1 and ends on September 30) is promising. The volume and frequency of RFPs is increasing,
outdated and ill-conceived programs have been eliminated in favor of higher priority programs and Low Price Technically Acceptable
(LPTA) contracts are increasingly falling into disfavor. We have seen a growth in AOC Key Solutions’ comparable unaudited year-
over-year revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2016.
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Operating Results

Since KeyStone Solutions was not formed until March 2016, we are presenting the following reviews of operating results:

1. An interim period review of AOC Key Solutions’ unaudited operating results for the three-month periods ended June 30,
2016 and 2015;

2. Aninterim period review of AOC Key Solutions’ unaudited operating results for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016
and 2015

3. A review of AOC Key Solutions’ audited operating results for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014; and

4.  Areview of the Company’ s unaudited consolidated operating results for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception)
to June 30, 2016 which represents the Company’ s interim operating history.

Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (Unaudited) - AOC Key Solutions Only

Since the Company was formed on March 15, 2016, a comparison of the unaudited financial results for the three months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is provided below for AOC Key Solutions in order to provide a comparative review of the Company’ s
only wholly owned operating subsidiary.

The interim period comparison for the second quarters of 2016 and 2015 was not adjusted for a difference in period-start and
period-end dates. Prior to 2016, AOC Key Solutions used second quarter start and end dates that coincided with its billing and payroll
quarter start date of March 27, 2015 and end date of June 26, 2015. In 2016, AOC Key Solutions changed its quarterly end dates to
coincide with the calendar end of each quarter. The number of business days of comparison between the second quarters of 2016 and
2015 is identical. We have determined that the difference in the 2016 and 2015 period-start and period-end dates does not have a
material effect on the financial statement presentation because the majority of AOC Key Solutions’ expenses are directly associated
with AOC Key Solutions’ revenue.

The unaudited results for the periods shown below should be reviewed in conjunction with the financial statements included
elsewhere in this offering circular.
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AOC Key Solutions, Inc.
Statements of Income
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Unaudited
Quarter ended June 30,
2016 2015 Period-to-Period Change
Revenue $3,744,579  $2,184,996 $1,559,583 71.4 %
Operating Costs & Expenses
Cost of revenue 2,076,236 1,156,433 919,803 79.5 %
Billable expenses 113,611 39,714 73,897 186.1 %
Selling, general and administrative 1,091,061 884,459 206,602 234 %
Depreciation and amortization 27,055 28,287 (1,232 ) (44 %)
Total operating costs & expenses 3,307,963 2,108,893 1,199,070 56.9 %
Income from operations 436,616 76,103 360,513 473.7 %
Net income before taxes 436,616 76,103 360,513 473.7 %
Provision For (Benefit From) Income Taxes
Current 161,159 = 161,159 -
Deferred 81,319 ) - 81,319 ) -
Total provision for income taxes 79,840 - 79,840 -
Net Income $356,776 $76,103 $280,673 368.8 %
Revenue

AOC Key Solutions’ revenue for the second quarter of 2016 increased by $1,559,583, or 71.4%, to $3,744,579 compared to

$2,184,996 in the comparable period in 2015. This increase was primarily due to an increase in demand by clients for our services as a
result of the federal government procurement process putting more contracts out for bid.

Operating Costs and Expenses

AOC Key Solutions’ most significant operating costs and expenses are described below:

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue includes direct labor, related employee benefits, and consultants. Direct labor compensation
costs consist of salaries and sales commission bonuses. A portion of labor costs for certain billable employees is allocated
between cost of revenue and selling, general and administrative costs based on relative time spent between billable and
non-billable activities. Employee benefits include employee taxes, health insurance, workers’ compensation and disability
insurance. Consultant-related costs represent the majority of the cost of revenue and vary in relation to our revenue.

Billable Expenses. Billable expenses include travel and other direct expenses incurred to perform work for our clients and are
typically billed at cost.

Selling General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include indirect labor of non-
billable management, administrative and marketing staff, fringe benefits, net rent, overhead and other discretionary spending.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization includes the depreciation of computers, leasehold
improvements, furniture and other equipment over their estimated useful lives.
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Total operating costs and expenses for the second quarter of 2016 increased by $1,199,070, or 56.9%, to $3,307,963
compared to $2,108,893 in the comparable period in 2015. This increase was mostly attributable to a $919,803, or 79.5%, increase in
our cost of revenue compared to the prior year period primarily due to an increased use of consultants to support the additional demand
for our services. Billable expenses increased by $73,897, or 186.1%, for the second quarter of 2016 as compared to the comparable
period in 2015 due to additional client engagements requiring increased travel and other direct costs. Selling, general and administrate
expenses increased by $206,602, or 23.4%, compared to the prior year period primarily due to increases in payroll related expenses and
employee bonuses, offset by decreases in net rent and administrative expenses. Depreciation and amortization expense for the second
quarter of 2016 decreased by $1,232, or 4.4%, for the comparable period in 2015.

Income Taxes

As presented below in the Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates discussion regarding income taxes, AOC Key
Solutions elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions, AOC Key
Solutions did not pay federal corporate income tax, and in most instances state income tax, on its taxable income. AOC Key Solutions
revoked its S Corporation election upon the March 16, 2016 merger with the Company and is now subject to corporate income taxes.

The provision for income taxes for the three-month period ended June 30, 2016 is $79,840.

The deferred tax assets on AOC Key Solutions’ balance sheets are due to temporary differences related primarily to
depreciation of property and equipment and accrued deferred employee compensation. There was no valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets at June 30, 2016, as management believes that the deferred tax assets will be realized through future operations.

The difference between the effective tax rate and federal statutory tax rate is due primarily to certain expenses which are not
deductible for income tax purposes.

Net Income

Net income in the second quarter of 2016 increased by $280,673, or 368.8%, to $356,776 compared to $76,103 for the
comparable period in 2015. As a result, AOC Key Solutions’ net income margin increased from 1.8% in 2015 to 5.0% for the
comparable period in 2016.

Stockholders’ Distributions

There were no stockholders’ distributions for the second quarter of 2016 and 2015.

Cash Flow

We expect to finance our operations over the next twelve months primarily through existing cash flow and from the net
proceeds of this offering, supplemented as necessary by funds available through our $1,000,000 revolving line of credit.

The unaudited net cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the periods below were as follows:

Three Months Ended June 30,

2016 2015
Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities $(117,420 ) $53,686
Investing activities (21,486 ) (2,086 )
Financing activities 39,352 -
Net increase (decrease) in cash: $(99,554 )  $51,600
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Cash Used for Operating Activities

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2016, net cash used for operating activities of $117,420 consisted of AOC Key
Solutions’ net income of $356,776 adjusted by $27,055 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $501,251 in cash used
by changes in working capital including intercompany receivables from KeyStone Solutions, prepaid expenses, accrued wages and
leave, accrued income taxes payable, deferred taxes and other activities.

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2015, net cash from operating activities of $53,686 consisted of AOC Key
Solutions’ net income of $76,103 adjusted by $28,287 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $50,704 in cash used by
changes in working capital, prepaid expenses, accrued wages and leave, and other activities.

Cash Used for Investing Activities

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2016, net cash used for investing activities of $21,486 was entirely for the
purchase of computer hardware and equipment.

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2015, net cash used for investing activities of $2,086 was entirely for the purchase
of computer hardware and equipment.

Cash Used for Financing Activities

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2016, net cash from financing activities of $39,352 was from advances on the line
of credit.

For the three-month period ended June 30, 2015, no cash was used for financing activities.

Comparison of the Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (Unaudited) - AOC Key Solutions Only

Since the Company was formed on March 16, 2016, a comparison of the unaudited financial results for the six months ended
June 30, 2016 and 2015 is provided below for AOC Key Solutions in order to provide a comparative review of the Company’ s only
wholly owned operating subsidiary.

The interim period comparison for the first two quarters of 2016 and 2015 was not adjusted for a difference in period-end
closing dates. Prior to 2016, AOC Key Solutions used a second quarter end date that coincided with its billing and payroll quarter end
date of June 26, 2015. In 2016, AOC Key Solutions changed its quarterly ended dates to coincide with the calendar end of each quarter.
The number of days of comparison between the first two quarters of 2016 and 2015 differs by three business days. We have determined
that the absence of accruing for the three business days does not have a material effect on the financial statement presentation because
the majority of AOC Key Solutions’ expenses are directly associated with AOC Key Solutions’ revenue.

The unaudited results for the periods shown below should be reviewed in conjunction with the financial statements included
elsewhere in this offering circular.
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AOC Key Solutions, Inc.
Statements of Income
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Unaudited
Six Months ended June 30,
2016 2015 Period-to-Period Change

Revenue $7,177,345 $4,311,170  $2,866,175 66.5 %
Operating Costs & Expenses

Cost of revenue 3,955,119 2,361,872 1,593,247 67.5 %

Billable expenses 207,035 78,009 129,026 1654 %

Selling, general and administrative 2,094,830 1,838,458 256,372 139 %

Depreciation and amortization 53,318 56,470 (3,152 ) (5.6 %)
Total operating costs & expenses 6,310,302 4,334,809 1,975,493 456 %
Income from operations 867,043 (23,639 ) 890,682 3,767.8%
Net income before taxes 867,043 (23,639 ) 890,682 3,767.8%
Provision For (Benefit From) Income Taxes

Current 161,159 = 161,159 -

Deferred (107,244 ) - (107,244 ) -

Total provision for income taxes 53,915 - 53,915 -

Net Income $813,128 $(23,639 ) $836,767 3,539.8%

Revenue

AOC Key Solutions’ revenue for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by $2,866,175, or 66.5%, to

$7,177,345 compared to $4,311,170 in the comparable period in 2015. This increase was primarily due to an increase in demand by
clients for our services as a result of the federal government procurement process putting more contracts out for bid.

Operating Costs and Expenses

AOC Key Solutions’ most significant operating costs and expenses are described below:

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue includes direct labor, related employee benefits, and consultants. Direct labor compensation
costs consist of salaries and sales commission bonuses. A portion of labor costs for certain billable employees is allocated
between cost of revenue and selling, general and administrative costs based on relative time spent between billable and
non-billable activities. Employee benefits include employee taxes, health insurance, workers’ compensation and disability
insurance. Consultant-related costs represent the majority of the cost of revenue and vary in relation to our revenue.

Billable Expenses. Billable expenses include travel and other direct expenses incurred to perform work for our clients and are
typically billed at cost.

Selling General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses include indirect labor of non-
billable management, administrative and marketing staff, fringe benefits, net rent, overhead and other discretionary spending.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization includes the depreciation of computers, leasehold
improvements, furniture and other equipment over their estimated useful lives.

Total operating costs and expenses for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by $1,975,493, or 45.6%, to

$6,310,302 compared to $4,334,809 in the comparable period in 2015. This increase was mostly attributable to an increase in our cost of
revenue which increased by $1,593,247, or 67.5%, compared to the prior year period primarily due to an increased use of consultants to
support the additional demand for our services. Billable expenses increased by $129,026, or 165.4%, for the second quarter of 2016 as
compared to the comparable period in 2015 due to additional client engagements requiring increased travel and other direct costs.
Selling, general and administrate expenses increased by $256,372, or 13.9%, compared to the prior year period primarily due to
increases in payroll related expenses and employee bonuses, offset by decreases in net rent and administrative expenses. Depreciation
and amortization expense for the second quarter of 2016 decreased by $3,152, or 5.6%, for the comparable period in 2015.

36

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents
Income Taxes

As presented below in the Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates discussion regarding income taxes, AOC Key
Solutions elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions, AOC Key
Solutions did not pay federal corporate income tax, and in most instances state income tax, on its taxable income. AOC Key Solutions
revoked its S Corporation election upon the March 16, 2016 merger with the Company and is now subject to corporate income taxes.

The provision for income taxes for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 is $53,915.

The deferred tax assets on AOC Key Solutions’ balance sheets are due to temporary differences related primarily to
depreciation of property and equipment and accrued deferred employee compensation. There was no valuation allowance for deferred
tax assets at June 30, 2016, as management believes that the deferred tax assets will be realized through future operations.

The difference between the effective tax rate and federal statutory tax rate is due primarily to certain expenses which are not
deductible for income tax purposes.

Net Income

Net income in the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 increased by $836,767, or 3,540%, to $813,128 compared to a net
loss of $23,639 for the comparable period in 2015. As a result, AOC Key Solutions’ net income margin increased from a loss of 0.5%
in 2015 to a gain of 11.3% for the comparable period in 2016.

Stockholders’ Distributions

The Stockholders’ distributions for the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 were $125,615 compared to $0 for the
comparable period in 2015.

Cash Flow

We expect to finance our operations over the next twelve months primarily through existing cash flow and from the net
proceeds of this offering, supplemented as necessary by funds available through our $1,000,000 revolving line of credit.

The unaudited net cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the periods below were as follows:

Six-Month Period Ended June 30,

2016 2015
Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities $(431,986 )  $(163,473 )
Investing activities (32,481 ) (43,835 )
Financing activities (86,263 ) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash: $(550,730 )  $(207,308 )

Cash Used for Operating Activities

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2016, net cash used for operating activities of $431,986 consisted of AOC Key
Solutions’ net income of $813,128 adjusted by $53,318 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $1,298,432 in cash
used by changes in working capital including intercompany receivables from KeyStone Solution, prepaid expenses, accrued wages and
leave, employee advances, accrued income taxes payable, deferred taxes and other activities.

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2015, net cash used for operating activities of $163,473 consisted of AOC Key
Solutions’ net loss of $23,639 adjusted by $56,470 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $196,304 in cash used by
changes in working capital, prepaid expenses, employee advances, accrued wages and leave, and other activities.
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Cash Used for Investing Activities

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2016, net cash used for investing activities of $32,481 was entirely for the purchase
of computer hardware and equipment.

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2015, net cash used for investing activities of $43,835 was entirely for the purchase
of computer hardware and equipment.

Cash Used for Financing Activities

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2016, net cash used for financing activities of $86,263 was used for stockholders’
distributions and advances on the line of credit.

For the six-month period ended June 30, 2015, no cash was used for financing activities.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 - AOC Key Solutions Only

AOC Key Solutions is KeyStone’ s historical operating entity that has been in business for over 30 years. A comparison for
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 is provided below. The audited results for the periods shown below should be reviewed in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes included elsewhere in this Offering Circular.

AOC Key Solutions, Inc.

Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 Period-to-Period Change

Revenue $9,661,795  $11,519,457  $(1,857,662) (16.1%)
Operating costs & expenses

Cost of revenue 5,281,484 6,396,617 (1,115,133)  (17.4%)

Billable expenses 215,238 222,614 (7,376 ) (3.3%)

Selling, general and administrative 3,673,031 4,705,786 (1,032,755)  (21.9%)

Depreciation and amortization 70,268 79,646 (9,378 ) (11.8%)
Total operating costs & expenses 9,240,021 11,404,663 (2,164,642)  (19.0%)
Income from operations 421,774 114,794 306,980 267.4%
Other expenses: - - -

Interest expenses - 16 (16 ) 100.0%
Total other expenses - 16 (16 ) 100.0%
Net income $421,774 $114,778 $306,996 267.5%
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Revenue

Total revenue for 2015 decreased by $1,857,662, or 16.1%, compared to 2014 primarily due to a decrease in federal
government spending and the resultant reduction in the number of contracts on which our clients bid.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Total operating costs and expenses for 2015 decreased by $2,164,642, or 19.0%, compared to 2014. As our expectations for
revenue decreased during 2015, we reduced our use of consultants to maximize profitability. As a result, our cost of revenue during
2015 decreased by $1,115,133, or 17.4%, compared to 2014. Billable expenses decreased by $7,376, or 3.3%, in 2015 as compared to
2014 due to the net change of travel and other direct costs requirements of individual client engagements. Selling, general and
administrate expenses decreased by $1,032,755, or 21.9%, in 2015 as compared to 2014 primarily due to a reduction in overhead
expenses and also due to a reduction in fringe benefit expenses.

Depreciation and amortization expense in 2015 and 2014 were $70,268 and $79,646, respectively, representing a $9,378 or
11.8%, decrease. Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets.

We sublease part of our Chantilly, Virginia office space to a subtenant. To further reduce our overhead, we amended the
sublease on April 7, 2015 to provide more space for the subtenant. As a result of these changes, rental income from this sublease
arrangement increased from $101,522 in 2014 to $156,375 in 2015, thus helping to reduce our net rent.

Other Expenses

Total other expenses for 2015 decreased by $16, or 100%, compared to 2014 because we did not draw any funds from our
credit facility.

Net Income

While we experienced a significant decrease in 2015 revenue, 2015 net income increased by $306,996, or 267.5%, due to
operational changes and cost reductions. As a result, our net income margin increased from 1.0% in 2014 to 4.4% in 2015.

Stockholders’ Distributions

We reduced stockholders’ distributions from $319,909 in 2014 to $267,758 in 2015. This reduction coupled with the 2015
increase in net income resulted in the total shareholders’ equity balance increasing to $1,582,417 as of December 31, 2015, a $154,016
or a 10.8% increase over the balance as of December 31, 2014. Throughout its history and until March 15, 2016, AOC Key Solutions
was an S corporation and the 2014 and 2015 financial statements reflect this status.

Cash Flow

We expect to finance our operations over the next twelve months primarily through existing cash flow and from the net
proceeds of this offering, supplemented as temporarily necessary by funds available through our $1,000,000 revolving line of credit
(See “Debt Issuances” below.) If we are unable to raise funds when required or on acceptable terms, we may have to significantly scale
back, or discontinue, our intended acquisitions.

Net cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities for the periods below were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014
Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities $260,659 $53,831
Investing activities (57,343 ) (32,070 )
Financing activities (267,758) (319,909)
Net increase (decrease) in cash: $(64,442 ) $(298,148)
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Cash Provided By Operating Activities

For year ended December 31, 2015, net cash provided by operating activities of $260,659 consisted of our net income of
$421,774 adjusted by $70,268 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $231,383 in cash used by changes in working
capital, accrued wages and leave, and other activities.

For year ended December 31, 2014, net cash provided by operating activities of $53,831 consisted of our net income of
$114,778 adjusted by $79,646 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $140,593 in cash used by changes in working
capital, accrued wages and leave, and other activities.

Cash Used For Investing Activities

For year ended December 31, 2015, net cash used for investing activities of $57,343 was entirely for the purchase of
computer hardware and equipment.

For year ended December 31, 2014, net cash used for investing activities of $32,070 was entirely for the purchase of
computer hardware and equipment.

Cash Used For Financing Activities

For year ended December 31, 2015, net cash used for financing activities of $267,758 was used for stockholders’
distributions.

For year ended December 31, 2014, net cash used for financing activities of $319,909 was used for stockholders’
distributions.

Period from March 15, 2016 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2016

On March 15, 2016, AOC Key Solutions, Inc. entered into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with KeyStone
Solutions and KCS Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of KeyStone Solutions. Pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, on March 15, 2016, Merger Sub was merged with and into AOC Key Solutions, and thus AOC Key Solutions became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of KeyStone Solutions (the “Reorganization’). The operations of AOC Key Solutions have not changed, nor
have any assets or operations transferred to either KeyStone Solutions or Merger Sub. The stockholders’ proportionate ownership of
KeyStone Solutions remains the same as it was for AOC Key Solutions.

The unaudited consolidated results for the period shown below should be reviewed in conjunction with the KeyStone
Solutions unaudited financial statements and notes for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 included
elsewhere in this offering circular and represent the consolidated operations from the Company’ s inception on March 15, 2016 through
June 30, 2016.
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KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Period March 15, 2016 (Date of Inception) to June 30, 2016

Unaudited
For the Period
Three Months March 15, 2016
Ended (Date of Inception)
June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2016
Revenue $3,744,579 $ 4,377,095
Operating Costs & Expenses
Cost of revenue 2,067,236 2,491,176
Billable expenses 113,611 129,434
Selling, general and administrative 1,190,196 1,610,554
Depreciation and amortization 27,055 31,432
Total operating costs and expenses 3,407,098 4,262,596
Operating income 337,481 114,499
Other Expenses
Interest income 28 28
Interest expense (11,250 ) (13,065 )
Total other (expenses) (11,222 ) (13,037 )
Net income before taxes 326,259 101,462
Provision For (Benefit From) Income Taxes
Current 161,159 161,159
Deferred (81,319 ) (107,244 )
Total provision for income taxes 79,840 53,915
Net income $246,419 $ 47,547
Revenue

Consolidated revenue for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 was $4,377,095 and is entirely
attributable to the Company’ s wholly-owned subsidiary, AOC Key Solutions. As discussed in the comparative review of AOC Key
Solutions for the three-month and six-month periods ended June 30, 2016, AOC Key Solutions’ revenue increase period over period
due to an increase in demand by clients for our services as a result of the federal government procurement process putting more
contracts out for bid.

Operating Costs and Expenses

Total consolidated operating costs and expenses for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016
were $4,262,596. Operating cost attributable only to KeyStone at the holding company level during this period totaled $324,342 and
were primarily for selling, general and administrative expenses primarily associated with professional and legal services in forming
KeyStone, the merger which made AOC Key Solutions a subsidiary of KeyStone.

We anticipate selling, general and administrative expenses increasing in future periods. These increases will include costs
related to hiring of personnel and fees to outside consultants, lawyers and accountants as well as expenses related to maintaining
compliance with applicable listing rules and SEC requirements, insurance, and investor relations activities. These expenses may further
increase if we are required to comply with certain SEC reporting requirements from which we are currently exempt.

Other Expenses

Net other expenses for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 were $13,037 and were
comprised of $13,065 of interest expense associated with the $500,000 Avon Road Partners, L.P. subordinated note offset by $28 of
interest income.

Income Taxes
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As presented below in the Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates discussion regarding Income Taxes, AOC Key
Solutions elected to be taxed under the provision of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions, AOC Key
Solutions did not pay federal corporate income tax, and in most instances state income tax, on its taxable income. AOC Key Solutions
revoked its S Corporation election upon the March 15, 2016 merger with the Company and is now subject to corporate income taxes.
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The provision for income taxes for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 is $53,915 and is
comprised of a $161,159 current tax provision offset by an $81,319 deferred tax benefit.

The deferred tax assets are due to temporary differences related primarily to depreciation of property and equipment and
accrued deferred employee compensation. There was no valuation allowance for deferred tax assets at June 30, 2016, as management
believes that the deferred tax assets will be realized through future operations.

The difference between the effective tax rate and federal statutory tax rate is due primarily to certain expenses which are not
deductible for income tax purposes.

Net Income

Net income for the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 was $47,547 or 1.1%. Net income for
the three-months ended June 30, 2016 was $246,419 or 6.6%.

Cash Flow

We expect to finance our operations over the next twelve months primarily through existing cash flow, the Avon Road
Partners, L.P. subordinated note and from the net proceeds of this offering, supplemented as temporarily necessary by funds available
through our $1,000,000 revolving line of credit.

The unaudited net cash flow from consolidated operating, investing and financing activities for the period below was as
follows:

March 15, 2016

(Date of Inception)
Net cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities $ (473,129 )
Investing activities (32,481 )
Financing activities (36,075 )
Net increase (decrease) in cash: $ (541,685 )

Cash Used For Operating Activities

For the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016, net cash used for operating activities of $473,129
consisted of KeyStone’ s net income of $47,547 adjusted by $31,432 of non-cash depreciation and amortization, and offset by $552,108
in cash used by changes in working capital, employee advances, prepaid expenses, accrued wages and leave, interest payable, deferred
taxes and other activities.

Cash Used For Investing Activities
For the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016, net cash used for investing activities of $32,481

was entirely for the purchase of computer hardware and equipment.

As of June 30, 2016, we did not have any material commitments for capital expenditures.

Cash Provided By Financing Activities

For the period from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016, net cash used for financing activities of $36,075
was the result of borrowing $500,000 through the Avon Partners, L.P. subordinated note and the temporary receipt of funds from a line
of credit offset by the costs of the preferred stock offering and the issuance of a note receivable.

Non-Cash Financing Activities
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As more fully disclosed in Note 7 of the KeyStone Solutions, Inc. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
March 31, 2016, the stockholders exchanged 100% of their outstanding shares of common stock in AOC Key Solutions for
proportionate shares of KeyStone’ s outstanding common stock.
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Lease Obligations

The Company leases office space in Chantilly, Virginia under the terms of a ten-year lease expiring October 31, 2019. The
lease contains one five-year renewal option. The lease terms include an annual increase in base rent and expenses of 2.75%. The
Company also leases office space in New Orleans, Louisiana under a three-year lease expiring May 31, 2018.

Rent expense was $142,041 for the period from March 15 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016.

Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company’ s long-term lease expiring in 2019 are as follows:

2016 $248,451
2017 505,484
2018 513,939
2019 435,314
Total $1,703,188

The Company is the lessor in an agreement to sublease office space in Chantilly, Virginia with an initial term of two years with eight
one-year options to renew the lease through October 31, 2019. The lease provides for an annual increase in base rent and expenses of
2.90%. The initial term ended October 31, 2011 and the Company exercised the renewal options through 2014. On April 7, 2015, the
lease was amended to sublease more space to the subtenant and change the rental calculation. Rent income was $53,239 for the period
from March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have funded our operations primarily through cash from operating activities of AOC Key Solutions. As of June 30, 2016
we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $26,181 and working capital of $1,665,368.

For a minimum offering of 300,000 Units, we anticipate paying the quarterly cash dividends through existing assets and cash
flow. For a maximum offering of 3,000,000 Units, we anticipate paying the quarterly cash dividends through cash flow and potential
business growth from acquired entities. We do not believe the dividend payments will have a material effect on our liquidity and capital
resources when compared to anticipated future cash flow.

As of December 31, 2015 we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $567,865 and a working capital of $3,342,253, as
compared to unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $632,308 and working capital of $3,470,564 as of December 31, 2014.

Operating assets and liabilities consist primarily of receivables from billed and unbilled services, accounts payable, accrued
expenses, and accrued payroll and related benefits. The volume of billings and timing of collections and payments affect these account
balances.

Debt Issuances

AOC Key Solutions was a party to a business loan agreement (the “2015 Loan Agreement”) with Sandy Spring Bank (the
“Lender”) dated as of September 25, 2015. The primary credit facility was an asset based revolving line of credit up to $1,000,000
which was due to mature on September 30, 2016. To secure our obligations under the 2015 Loan Agreement, AOC Key Solutions had
granted to the Lender a security interest in its accounts receivable. The Lender was required to advance funds to AOC Key Solutions up
to the lesser of (1) $1,000,000 or (2) eighty percent (80%) of the aggregate amount of all of AOC Key Solutions’ accounts receivable
aged 90-days or less which contained selling terms and conditions acceptable to the Lender. AOC Key Solutions’ obligations under the
2015 Loan Agreement were guaranteed by James McCarthy, our Chairman of the Board, and his wife. AOC Key Solutions did not draw
any funds from this credit facility in 2015. Pursuant to First Amendment to Business Loan Agreement (Asset Based), dated May 9,
2016, the Lender had waived the restrictions in the 2015 Loan Agreement on AOC Key Solutions’ ability to make dividends to the
Company.

On August 11, 2016, KeyStone Solutions entered into a Loan and Security Agreement (the “2016 Line of Credit”) with
Sandy Spring Bank (the “Lender”) that replaces the 2015 Loan Agreement. The 2016 Line of Credit is comprised of: 1) an asset-based
revolving line of credit up to $1,000,000 for short-term working capital needs and general corporate purposes which is due to mature on
July 31, 2017, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, floating, plus 0.50% and is secured by a first lien on all of
KeyStone’ s business assets; and 2) an optional term loan of $100,000 which must be drawn by July 31, 2017, is for permanent working

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

capital, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, floating, plus 0.75%, requires monthly payments of principal plus interest to
fully amortize the loan over four (4) years, is secured by a first lien on all of KeyStone’ s business assets, cross-collateralized and cross-
defaulted with the revolving line of credit, and matures on February 15, 2019. The 2016 Line of Credit does not require any personal
guarantees.
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The borrowing base for the 2016 Line of Credit is up to the lesser of (1) $1,000,000 or (2) eighty percent (80%) of the
aggregate amount of all of Keystone’ s eligible accounts receivable as defined by the Lender. The borrowing base for the $100,000 term
loan is fully reserved under the borrowing base for the revolving line of credit. The 2016 Line of Credit has periodic reporting
requirements and balance sheet covenants, as well as affirmative and negative operational and ownership covenants.

As of June 30, 2016, the Company had a $39,352 balance due on the 2015 Line of Credit. When the Company replaced the
2015 Line of Credit with the 2016 Line of Credit on August 11, 2016, neither line of credit had a balance due.

On March 16, 2016, the Company entered into a Subordinated Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement (the “Note Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue up to $1,000,000 in subordinated debt and warrants to purchase up to
125,000 shares of the Company’ s common stock (“Subordinated Note Warrants™). The exercise price for the Subordinated Note
Warrants is equal to $2.00 per share of common stock. As of the date of this offering circular, subordinated notes with a face amount of
$500,000 and Subordinated Note Warrants to purchase 62,500 shares of the Company’ s common stock have been issued pursuant to the
Note Purchase Agreement to Avon Road Partners, L.P. (“Avon Road”), an affiliate of Robert Berman, the Company’ s acting CEO and a
member of the Company’ s Board of Directors.

The note is subordinated to the 2016 Line of Credit and any successor financing facility. Simple interest accrues on the
unpaid principal of the note at a rate equal to the lower of (a) 9% per annum, or (b) the highest rate permitted by applicable law. Interest
is payable monthly and the note matures on March 16, 2019.

As of June 30, 2016, we did not have any material commitments for capital expenditures.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of the date of this offering circular, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have had or are reasonably
likely to have a material effect on our financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital resources or
capital expenditures.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our financial statements which
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”). The preparation of
these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts in our financial statements.

We believe the application of accounting policies, and the estimates inherently required therein, are reasonable. These
accounting policies and estimates are periodically reevaluated, and adjustments are made when facts and circumstances dictate a
change. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form our basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that may not
be readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, or if
management made different judgments or utilized different estimates.

Our accounting policies are further described in our financial statements and the accompanying notes included in this
offering circular. We have identified the following critical accounting policies:

Revenue Recognition

We recognize our revenues for the sale of services when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been
rendered or delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable, and the collectability of the related revenue is reasonably assured.
We principally derive revenues from fees for services generated on a project by project basis. Prior to the commencement of a project,
we reach agreement with the client on rates for services based upon the scope of the project, the proposed schedule, staffing
requirements and the level of client involvement. Numerous assumptions are also set forth to guide on-going work. It is our policy to
obtain written agreements from new clients prior to performing services. In these agreements, the clients acknowledge that they will pay
based upon the amount of time spent on the project, and the completion of certain deliverables or milestones based on an agreed upon
fee structure.

Revenues for time-and-materials contracts are recognized based on the number of hours worked by our employees or
consultants at an agreed upon rate per hour set forth in our standard rate sheet or as written from time to time in our contracts or
purchase orders. These costs are recognized in the period in which services are performed. Revenues for time-and-materials contracts
are billed monthly or in accordance with the specific contractual terms of each project. All invoices rendered are fully supported by time
sheets documenting labor costs. Where required by our client’ s need to follow the Federal Travel Regulations, all other direct costs are
supported by receipts or other documentation.

Revenues related to firm fixed price contracts are recognized as revenue as value is delivered to the customer. The pattern of
revenue recognition for these contracts varies depending on the terms of the individual contracts, and may be recognized proportionally
over the term of the contract or deferred until the end of the contract term and recognized when our obligations have been fulfilled with
the customer. In instances where substantive acceptance provisions are specified in customer contracts, revenues are deferred until all
acceptance criteria have been met. The pattern of revenue recognition for contracts where revenues are recognized proportionally over
the term of the contact is based on the proportional performance method of accounting using the ratio of labor hours incurred to
estimated total labor hours, which we consider to be the best available indicator of the pattern and timing in which contract obligations
are fulfilled. This percentage is multiplied by the contracted dollar amount of the project to determine the amount of revenue to
recognize in an accounting period. The contracted amount used in this calculation typically excludes the amount the client pays for
reimbursable expenses. There are situations where the number of hours to complete projects may exceed our original estimate as a result
of an increase in project scope or unforeseen events. On a regular basis, we review the hours incurred and estimated total labor hours to
complete. The results of any revisions in these estimates are reflected in the period in which they become known. We believe we have
demonstrated a history of successfully estimating the total labor hours to complete a project.
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Fees for services that have been performed, but for which we have not invoiced the customers are recorded as unbilled
receivables in the accompanying balance sheets.

The agreements entered into in connection with a project, whether on a time-and-materials basis or firm fixed price basis,
typically allow our clients to terminate early due to breach or for convenience with 30-days’ notice. In the event of termination, the
client is contractually required to pay for all time, materials and expenses incurred by us through the effective date of the termination.

Accounts Receivables

Management reviews the collectability of accounts receivable on a monthly basis, assessing the credit-worthiness of
customers whose accounts are past due. Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Generally
accepted accounting principles require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts. However, the effect of the use of the
direct write-off method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been
followed.

Income Taxes

Through March 15,2016, AOC Key Solutions had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal
Revenue Code. Under those provisions, AOC Key Solutions does not pay federal corporate income taxes, and in most instances state
income tax, on its taxable income. Instead, the stockholders of AOC Key Solutions are liable for individual income taxes on their
respective shares of AOC Key Solutions’ net income. AOC Key Solutions effectively revoked its S Corporation election upon the
March 15, 2016 merger with the Company. Both the Company and AOC Key Solutions are subject to corporate income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company’ s evaluation as of June 30, 2016 revealed no tax positions that would have a material impact on the financial
statements. The 2012 through 2015 tax years remain subject to examination by the IRS. Management does not believe that any
reasonably possible changes will occur within the next twelve months that will have a material impact on the financial statements.

Change to AOC Key Solutions Quarter End Date

Prior to 2016, AOC Key Solutions used quarter end dates that coincided with its billing and payroll quarter end dates. AOC
Key Solutions has used December 31 as its fiscal year end date. In 2016 AOC Key Solutions changed its quarterly ended dates to
coincide with the calendar end date of each quarter.
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DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Our directors, executive officers and significant employees, and their ages as of September 2, 2016, are as follows:

Name Position Age

Executive Officers:
Robert A. Berman Chief Executive Officer and Member of the Board 56
James K. McCarthy Chairman of the Board and Chief Strategy Officer 64
Dr. Richard Nathan Chief Operating Officer, President and Member of

the Board 71
Riaz Latifullah Chief Financial Officer 60
Greg McCarthy Chief Executive Officer of AOC Key Solutions and

Member of the Board 52
Directors:
James K. McCarthy Chairman 64
Robert Berman Director 56
Dr. Richard Nathan Director 71
Greg McCarthy Director 52
Glenn Goord Director 65
Significant Employees:
Gina Gallagher President of AOC Key Solutions 53
Shelby Rudd Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of

AOC Key Solutions 29

Executive Officers
Robert A. Berman, Chief Executive Officer and Member of the Board.

Robert Berman is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He also currently serves as the General Partner of Avon Road
Partners, L.P., a limited partnership investing in real estate and the broadcast media industry. From 2006 through March 2015
Mr. Berman held the office of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer at Cinium Financial Services Corporation, a privately held
specialty finance company, which included as one of its subsidiaries a New York State domiciled property and causality carrier licensed
and admitted in 19 states.

While Mr. Berman led Cinium, it made the ranking of the /nc. 500 for both 2012 and 2013. Prior to Cinium Mr. Berman was
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Empire Resorts, Inc., a NASDAQ-listed gaming company, from 2001-2005.

From 1995 until 2000, Mr. Berman was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Hospitality Worldwide Services (“HWS”),
a publicly traded company that became the premiere service provider to the hospitality industry. Under Mr. Berman’ s leadership HWS
grew profitably from a small company with 50 employees and $6 million in revenues to excess of $280 million in revenues with offices
on several continents and 3,000 employees. While at HWS Mr. Berman executed a successful acquisition strategy that resulted in
multiple strategic operating divisions that created a one-stop shop for the hotel industry.

Mr. Berman was also instrumental in forging partnerships with institutional investors including ING and Apollo RE leading
to the acquisition, re-positioning, and sale of more than $100 million of hotel properties such as the Historic Inn in Richmond, VA, the
Warwick Hotel in Philadelphia, and the Radisson Hotel at Chicago O’ Hare airport among others.
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Mr. Berman was director at Executone Information Systems, Inc. a publicly traded telecom company. In 1996 Executone’ s
board chose Mr. Berman to chair a special committee whose task it was to identify a new strategic direction for the company. The result
of the special committees work was the transformation of the company increasing the company’ s market capitalization by more than
$500 million.

On March 16, 2016, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Berman (the “Berman Employment
Agreement”).

James K. McCarthy, Chief Strategy Officer and Chairman of the Board.

Mr. McCarthy’ s career spans over 30 years of marketing strategy creation, proposal development, and oral presentation
coaching to contractors seeking to expand their market shares or to enter the government contracts market sector. As a founder and the
Technical Director of AOC Key Solutions, he built an organization that, over the last five years, has played a part in winning an average
of $9 billion per year in federal contract awards for its clients. Mr. McCarthy has worked at AOC Key Solutions for over 33 years.

An innovative builder of tools and processes aimed at continuous improvement, Mr. McCarthy created AOC Key Solutions’
approach known as Principle Centered Winning - a collection of proven best practices for market assessment, capture support, and
proposal services that help win government contracts.

Mr. McCarthy often serves as a strategic advisor and “‘capture coach” to senior executives and rising corporate superstars. In
these capacities, Mr. McCarthy mentors and guides both large and small business clients on market leadership, capture management,
and strategy development to pursue and win government contracts. Mr. McCarthy frequently crafts powerful executive summaries,
presentations, or other key documents in pursuit of government contracts. These contracts are valued from tens of millions of dollars to
a billion dollars or more. He also frequently serves as a guest speaker on topics ranging from leadership to winning government
contracts through every legitimate means available and is an advisor to the Arbinger Institute. Mr. McCarthy has served in an advisory
role with the George Washington University, Virginia Science and Technology Campus, Technology Accelerator and has been a
frequent speaker with the George Mason University Procurement and Technical Assistance Center. Mr. McCarthy has also served on the
board of Coalition for Government Procurement and on the Veterans Institute for Procurement GovCon Council. In February 2016,

Mr. McCarthy was named to Executive Mosaic’ s Washington 100 as one of the top- 100 most influential leaders in the government
contracting arena.

Dr. Richard Nathan, Chief Operating Olfficer, President and Member of the Board.

Dr. Nathan brings over 45 years of corporate management, program management and business and proposal development
experience. He has led large management and operation contracts valued at more than a billion dollars and managed service and
technical contracts for DOE, DoD, DHS, NASA, EPA, and state governments. Dr. Nathan has directed and grown the environmental
and energy business for a large corporation, and served as a corporate officer and held management and technical positions at Battelle
Memorial Institute and Mason & Hanger. Dr. Nathan has worked at AOC Key Solutions for over 16 years, most recently as Chief
Executive Officer.

Dr. Nathan excels in assisting companies to increase their market share through effective growth management, strategic
planning, competitive analysis, and other approaches through all phases of the business development process. This includes building
upon initial strategic decisions to develop tactical implementation plans for business sector growth.

Dr. Nathan’ s management and business development skills span the full range of activities. He has served as capture
manager, proposal manager, orals coach, and review team lead. His ability to develop and integrate effective win themes and
discriminators unique to a given contract opportunity has resulted in multiple large contract wins for the Company’ s customers to
include contracts with DOE, NASA, DHS, and DoD as well as state and local governments.
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Greg McCarthy, Chief Executive Officer of AOC Key Solutions and Member of the Board

Greg McCarthy has over 25 years of sales management, marketing, capture and proposal experience. As President,
Mr. McCarthy is responsible for overseeing the high degree of customer satisfaction that our clients expect. Mr. McCarthy has worked
in virtually every role of the bid and proposal process, including proposal management, proposal writing, orals coach, and compliance
manager.

Mr. McCarthy also leads the Key Solutions group specializing in Third Party Performance Assessments. In that capacity, he
has interviewed more than 1,000 government personnel regarding contractor performance across dozens of government agencies, giving
him “front line” experience in understanding Government needs and translating that understanding into winning proposals. As former
COO of AOC Key Solutions, Mr. McCarthy was honored with Smart CEO Magazine’ s Executive Management Award.

Riaz Latifullah, Chief Financial Officer

Prior to joining the Company, Riaz Latifullah served as the Chief Financial Officer of the American Grandparents
Association / Grandparents.com. In this position he was responsible for directing and overseeing all of the company’ s financial and
accounting activities. He provided strategic advice to executive management on the financial implications of business activities and
interacted with the board of directors.

Mr. Latifullah spent 13 years with AARP, a non-profit organization that advocates on behalf of people over age 50. With
AARP he served as Vice President, Financial Management, Senior Director Strategic Markets and Director Brand Operations. As an in-
house entrepreneur with AARP he created and launched five start-up operations bringing significant changes to the organization.

In other positions before AARP Mr. Latifullah served as General Manager for TV on the WEB, an internet video production
company, a Government Relations Representative for the US Merchant Marine Academy Alumni Foundation and an Investment
Banking Associate for Ryan, Lee and Company.

Glenn Goord, Director.

Mr. Goord is a 32-year veteran of the New York State Department of Correctional Services and served as Commissioner
from 1996 until 2006. As Commissioner, he oversaw the nation’ s fourth largest state prison system, administering an operating budget
of $2.3 billion in state and federal funds, plus $245 million in capital expenditures.

Mr. Goord’ s outstanding contributions to furthering excellence in corrections earned him the Carl Robison Award, the
highest honor bestowed by the Middle Atlantic States Correctional Association. In 1998 he earned the Charles Evans Hughes Award for
public service from the Albany based Capital Area Chapter for the American Society for Public Administration (ASPA). In 2002, the
ASPA awarded Mr. Goord its highest honor, the Governor Alfred E. Smith Award, for his direction of the Department’ s immediate and
expansive efforts to aid New York City following the September 11, 2001 terrorist attack. He also currently serves on the American
Correctional Association Board of Governors.

Significant Employees
Gina Gallagher, President of AOC Key Solutions.

Gina Gallagher has more than 20 years of business strategy, business development and market experience in the federal
government sector. She started her career at Electronic Data Systems (EDS), an HP Company, where she worked as an account manager
for the organization’ s Department of Defense contract and director of business development. She has held numerous additional
leadership and senior executive management positions with large systems integrators and small companies such as DynCorp (CSC),
Titan (L3), LEADS Corporation, and Satyam. Ms. Gallagher led the sales and marketing efforts for one of the most successful T4
primes at Systems Made Simple (SMS) and was instrumental in helping SMS win many of its large government contracts. This success
helped develop Systems Made Simple into an industry leader in health information technology. In all of these positions,

49

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents

Ms. Gallagher has had the responsibilities of creating corporate strategic plans, building business development departments, identifying
and selecting teaming ventures for competitive procurement initiatives, and winning new business. She also has extensive GWAC/IDIQ
strategy experience.

Shelby Rudd, Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of AOC Key Solutions

Shelby Rudd has more than 8 years of experience in operations and Federal Government business development, capture
management, and proposal support. As Chief Operating Officer, she leads a team of full time and associate capture, proposal
management, technical writing, and production support professionals. She manages AOC Key Solutions’ staff scheduling, resourcing,
and recruiting efforts. She is responsible for ensuring clients receive high quality support and communications. In addition to her
responsibilities as COO, she provides bid strategy, proposal management, review team, and technical writing support for AOC Key
Solutions’ client proposals, focusing on large intelligence and defense procurements. Her ability to lead large, geographically dispersed
teams and quickly learn complex technical and management information has resulted in large and strategic contract wins.

Previously, Ms. Rudd managed DHA Group, Inc.’ s information technology and national security proposals to DoD and DOJ
customers from opportunity identification to award. Prior to that, she provided proposal development support for AOC Key Solutions’
clients.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth information about the annual compensation of each of our three highest paid persons who were
executive officers or directors of AOC Key Solutions during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015.

Capacities in which Other
compensation Cash compensation Total
Name was received compensation (1) compensation
James K. McCarthy Chief Strategy Officer $461,601 $ 10,600 $472,201
Dr. Richard Nathan Chief Operating Officer 332,055 7,728 339,783
Greg McCarthy Chief Executive Officer of AOC Key
Solutions 394,282 9,711 403,993

(1) Amount represents 401(k) matching contributions

Compensation of Directors

The following table sets forth information about the annual compensation of each of the directors at AOC Key Solutions who
were directors during our last completed fiscal year. There was no director compensation for the 2015 fiscal year as there were no
independent directors.

Capacities in which

compensation Cash Other Total
Name was received compensation compensation compensation
James K. McCarthy Chairman - - -
Dr. Richard Nathan Director - - -
Greg McCarthy Director - - -
Kevin Berrigan Director - - -

Future Compensation
Non-Independent Compensation Committee

As disclosed in the Risk Factors at page 9, and in the section entitled “Interest of Management and Others in Certain
Transactions - Non-Independent Directors™ at page 63, although the Company has a Board of Directors consisting of five members,
only one is independent and the remaining four are our executive officers. Therefore we do not currently have a Compensation
Committee comprised of a majority of independent directors. Decisions concerning matters such as compensation packages to our
officers may be made by existing members of our Board of Directors, who may have a direct or indirect interest in the outcome of those
decisions.

Director Compensation

Directors who are officers or employees of the Company are not entitled to compensation for services as a director. The
Company’ s independent director, Glenn Goord, will receive annual compensation of $32,000, to be paid in equal quarterly installments.
Mr. Goord will also receive options to purchase shares of common stock on terms to be determined. The Company intends to
compensate other independent directors in a similar manner.

Bonus Eligibility

Bonuses for the executive officers may be conditioned on the achievement of objective goals, which may not be waived after
being set, based on one or more of the following performance measures: earnings; operating profits (including measures of earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; free cash flow or adjusted free cash flow; cash from operating activities; revenues;
net income (before or after tax); financial return ratios; market performance; stockholder return and/or value; net profits; earnings per
share; profit returns and margins; stock price; working capital; capital investments; returns on assets; returns on equity; returns on
capital investments; selling, general and administrative expenses; discounted cash flows; productivity; expense targets; market share;
cost control measures; strategic initiatives; changes between years or periods that are determined with respect to any of the above-listed
performance criteria; net present value; sales volume; cash conversion costs; leverage ratios; maintenance of liquidity; integration of
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acquired businesses; operational efficiencies, including Lean Six Sigma initiatives; regulatory compliance, including the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002; and economic profit.

Employment Agreements
Berman Employment Agreement

The Berman Employment Agreement provides that upon the initial closing of this offering, Mr. Berman is our Chief
Executive Officer for an initial term of five years with automatically renewing one-year terms thereafter. His base salary will be
$395,000 per annum, and he will be eligible for a bonus as determined by the Company’ s compensation committee. Mr. Berman will
also be eligible to receive all such other benefits as are provided by the Company to other management employees that are consistent
with the Company’ s fringe benefits available to any other officer or executive of the Company.

In the event of a Change of Control, as defined in the Berman Employment Agreement, whether during the initial term or
thereafter, the Company shall have the right to terminate the Berman Employment Agreement. In the event the Company exercises the
option to terminate Mr. Berman, the Company will be required to pay Mr. Berman an amount equal to Mr. Berman’ s base salary per
annum multiplied by the number of years and portions thereof remaining under the Berman Employment Agreement. Mr. Berman may
be terminated by the Company for “Cause”, as defined in the Berman Employment Agreement.
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Mr. Berman also agreed as consideration for entering into the Berman Employment Agreement, that for the period during his
employment and for twelve months thereafter, he will not (i) compete with the Company in the “Geographic Area”, as defined in the
Berman Employment Agreement, or (ii) solicit any of the Company’ s existing employees, suppliers or customers.

James K. McCarthy Offer Letter

The James K. McCarthy Offer Letter provides that Mr. McCarthy is our Chief Strategy Officer. His employment will be at
will, subject to providing 120-days’ notice of resignation or termination. The Company may pay Mr. McCarthy’ s salary in lieu of
notice for some or all of the 120-day notice period. His base salary will be $279,789 per annum, and he will be eligible for a bonus as
determined by the Company’ s compensation committee. Mr. McCarthy will also be eligible to receive all such other benefits as are
provided by the Company to other management employees that are consistent with the Company’ s fringe benefits available to any other
officer or executive of the Company.

Mr. McCarthy also agreed that, for the period during his employment and for two years thereafter, he will not (i) compete
with the Company in the “Restricted Territory”, as defined in Exhibit A to the McCarthy Offer Letter, or (ii) solicit any of the
Company’ s existing employees, suppliers or customers.

Nathan Employment Agreement

The Nathan Employment Agreement provides Mr. Nathan is our President/Chief Operating Officer for an initial term
extending until April 15, 2017, with the option to extend the term in writing. His base salary will be $225,200 per annum, and he will be
eligible for a bonus as determined by the Company’ s compensation committee. Mr. Nathan will also be eligible to receive all such other
benefits as are provided by the Company to other management employees that are consistent with the Company’ s fringe benefits
available to any other officer or executive of the Company.

The Company may terminate Mr. Nathan’ s employment agreement for “Cause,” as defined in the Nathan Employment
Agreement. In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Nathan’ s employment other than for “Cause,” or Mr. Nathan terminates his
employment for “Good Reason”, as defined in the Nathan Employment Agreement, the Company will be required to pay Mr. Nathan an
amount equal to six months of Mr. Nathan’ s base salary and the Company’ s contribution to Mr. Nathan’ s health insurance premiums.

Mr. Nathan also agreed that, for the period during his employment and for two years thereafter, he will not (i) compete with
the Company in the “Restricted Territory”, as defined in Exhibit A to the Nathan Employment Agreement, or (ii) solicit any of the
Company’ s existing employees, suppliers or customers.

Latifullah Employment Agreement.

The Latifullah Employment Agreement provides that upon the closing of this offering his employment agreement will
become effective for an initial three year term. His base salary will be $285,000 per annum, and he will be eligible for a bonus as
determined by the Company’ s compensation committee. Mr. Latifullah will also be eligible to receive all such other benefits as are
provided by the Company to other management employees that are consistent with the Company’ s fringe benefits available to any other
officer or executive of the Company. Mr. Latifullah will also be granted options to purchase 90,000 shares of common stock, which
shall begin vesting on the first anniversary of his initial employment as Chief Financial Officer and continue vesting monthly over the
following two years, at a strike price to be determined.
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Gregory McCarthy Employment Agreement.

The Gregory McCarthy Employment Agreement provides that Mr. McCarthy is the Chief Executive Officer of AOC Key
Solutions for an initial term through April 21, 2017, with the option to extend the term in writing. His base salary will be $229,800 per
annum, and he will be eligible for a bonus as determined by the Company’ s compensation committee. Mr. McCarthy will also be
eligible to receive all such other benefits as are provided by the Company to other management employees that are consistent with the
Company’ s fringe benefits available to any other officer or executive of the Company.

The Company may terminate Mr. McCarthy’ s employment agreement for “Cause,” as defined in the Gregory McCarthy
Employment Agreement. In the event that the Company terminates Mr. McCarthy’ s employment other than for “Cause,” or
Mr. McCarthy terminates his employment for “Good Reason”, as defined in the Gregory McCarthy Employment Agreement, the
Company will be required to pay Mr. McCarthy an amount equal to six months of Mr. McCarthy’ s base salary and the Company’ s
contribution to Mr. McCarthy’ s health insurance premiums.

Mr. McCarthy also agreed that, for the period during his employment and for two years thereafter, he will not (i) compete
with the Company in the “Restricted Territory”, as defined in Exhibit A to the Gregory McCarthy Employment Agreement, or
(i1) solicit any of the Company’ s existing employees, suppliers or customers.

Berrigan Employment Agreement.

The Berrigan Employment Agreement provides that Mr. Berrigan is the Executive Vice President and Principal Accounting
Officer of AOC Key Solutions for an initial term through April 21, 2017, with the option to extend the term in writing. His base salary
will be $195,800 per annum, and he will be eligible for a bonus as determined by the Company’ s compensation
committee. Mr. Berrigan will also be eligible to receive all such other benefits as are provided by the Company to other management
employees that are consistent with the Company’ s fringe benefits available to any other officer or executive of the Company.

The Company may terminate Mr. Berrigan’ s employment agreement for “Cause”, as defined in the Berrigan Employment
Agreement. In the event that the Company terminates Mr. Berrigan’ s employment other than for “Cause,” or Mr. Berrigan terminates
his employment for “Good Reason”, as defined in the Berrigan Employment Agreement, the Company will be required to pay
Mr. Berrigan an amount equal to six months of Mr. Berrigan’ s base salary and the Company’ s contribution to Mr. Berrigan’ s health
insurance premiums.

Mr. Berrigan also agreed that, for the period during his employment and for two years thereafter, he will not (i) compete with
the Company in the “Restricted Territory”, as defined in Exhibit A to the Berrigan Employment Agreement, or (ii) solicit any of the
Company’ s existing employees, suppliers or customers.

53

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents
KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC. 2016 EQUITY AWARD PLAN

In May 2016, the Board and the stockholders unanimously approved and adopted the KeyStone Solutions, Inc. 2016 Equity Award
Plan (the “Plan”). The purpose of the Plan is to promote the interests of the Company (including its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates, if
any) and its stockholders by using equity interests in the Company to attract, retain and motivate its management, nonemployee
directors and other eligible persons and to encourage and reward their contributions to the Company’ s performance and profitability.
The Board believes that the ability to provide equity-based incentives will be vital to the Company’ s ability to continue to attract and
retain individuals in the competitive labor markets in which we compete.

The total shares of common stock issuable under the Plan will be 923,016 shares.

Highlights of the Plan

The Plan permits the Company to take a flexible approach to its equity awards by permitting the grant of restricted stock, restricted
stock units, restricted stock purchase rights, stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance awards and other stock awards. We
have also designed the Plan to include a number of provisions that we believe promote best practices by reinforcing the alignment of
equity compensation arrangements for nonemployee directors, officers, employees, consultants and stockholders’ interests. These
provisions include, but are not limited to, the following:

No Discounted Awards. Awards that have an exercise price cannot be granted with an exercise price less than the fair market value
on the grant date.

No Repricing Without Stockholder Approval. We cannot, without stockholder approval, reduce the exercise price of an award
(except for adjustments in connection with a Company recapitalization), and at any time when the exercise price of an award is above
the market value of our common stock, we cannot, without stockholder approval, cancel and re-grant or exchange such award for cash,
other awards or a new award at a lower (or no) exercise price.

No Evergreen Provision. There is no evergreen feature under which the shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the
Plan can be automatically replenished.

No Automatic Grants. The Plan does not provide for “reload” or other automatic grants to recipients.

No Transferability. Awards generally may not be transferred, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution or pursuant to a
qualified domestic relations order, unless approved by the Administrator.

No Tax Gross-Ups. The Plan does not provide for any tax gross-ups.

No liberal change-in-control definition. The change-in-control definition contained in the Plan is not a “liberal” definition that
would be activated on mere stockholder approval of a transaction.

“Double-trigger” change in control vesting. If awards granted under the Plan are assumed by a successor in connection with a
change in control of the Company, such awards will not automatically vest and pay out solely as a result of the change in control, unless
otherwise expressly set forth in an award agreement.

No dividends on unearned performance awards. The Plan prohibits the current payment of dividends or dividend equivalent rights
on unearned performance-based awards.

Limitation on amendments. No amendments to the Plan may be made without stockholder approval if any such amendment would
materially increase the number of shares reserved or the per-participant award limitations under the Plan, diminish the prohibitions on
repricing stock options or stock appreciation rights, or otherwise constitute a material change requiring stockholder approval under
applicable laws, policies or regulations or the applicable listing or other requirements of the principal exchange on which the
Company’ s shares are traded.

54

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents
Administered by the Administrator. The Plan will be administered by the Company’ s Board, or a Committee, which shall be
appointed in accordance with Section 3 of the Plan, or a combination thereof (the “Administrator™).

Clawbacks. Awards based on the satisfaction of financial metrics that are subsequently reversed, due to a financial statement
restatement or reclassification, are subject to forfeiture.

Plan Principal Features

The principal features of the Plan are summarized below. This summary is not complete, however, and is qualified by the terms of
the Plan, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 6.2 to this offering statement on Form 1-A.

Shares Available Under the Plan

The maximum aggregate number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the Plan is 923,016. Shares subject to an
award may be authorized but unissued, or reacquired shares of common stock or treasury shares. If an award under the Plan expires or
becomes unexercisable without having been exercised in full, or an award is settled for cash, the unissued shares that were subject to the
award will become available for future grant under the Plan, as will any shares that are withheld by the Company when an option is
exercised or tax withholdings are satisfied by the tendering of shares. However, shares that have actually been issued under the Plan will
not be returned to the Plan and will not be available for future distribution under the Plan.

Plan Administration

The Plan is administered by the Administrator. The Administrator has the exclusive authority, subject to the terms and conditions
set forth in the Plan, to determine all matters relating to awards under the Plan, including the selection of individuals to be granted an
award, the type of award, the number of shares of common stock subject to an award, and all terms, conditions, restrictions and
limitations, if any, including, without limitation, vesting, acceleration of vesting, exercisability, termination, substitution, cancellation,
forfeiture, or repurchase of an award and the terms of any instrument that evidences the award.

Term

The Plan shall continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years, unless sooner terminated pursuant to its provisions.

Eligibility

Awards under the Plan may be granted to employees (including officers), consultants and directors of the Company, its parent,
subsidiaries and affiliates. In addition, an award under the Plan may be granted to a person who is offered employment by the Company
or its parent, a subsidiary or affiliate, provided that such award shall be immediately forfeited if such person does not accept such offer
of employment within an established time period. If otherwise eligible, an employee, consultant or director who has been granted an
award under the Plan may be granted other awards. Although all employees of the Company, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates are
eligible to receive awards under the Plan, it is not possible to estimate the number of additional individuals who may become eligible to
receive awards under the Plan from time to time.

Awards

The Plan is broad-based and flexible, providing for awards to be made in the form of (a) restricted stock and restricted stock units,
(b) restricted stock purchase rights, (c) incentive stock options, which are intended to qualify under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue
Code (the “Tax Code”), (d) non-qualified stock options, which are not intended to qualify under Section 422 of the Tax Code, (e) stock
appreciation rights, (f) performance awards, (g) performance shares, (h) performance units or (i) other stock-based awards that relate to
or serve a similar function to the awards described above. Awards may be made on a standalone, combination or tandem basis.
Additional information about some of the awards is set forth below.
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Restricted Common Stock Awards, Restricted Stock Purchase Rights and Restricted Stock Units

Awards of Restricted Common Stock, Restricted Stock Purchase Rights and Restricted Stock Units. Awards of restricted common
stock and grants of restricted stock purchase rights are shares of common stock awarded or granted to the recipient, all or a portion of
which are subject to a restriction period set by the Administrator during which restriction period the recipient or purchaser shall not be
permitted to sell, transfer or pledge the restricted common stock. Restricted stock units are notional accounts that are valued solely by
reference to shares of common stock, subject to a restriction period set by the Administrator and payable in common stock, cash or a
combination thereof. The restriction period for both restricted stock and restricted stock units may be based on period of service, which
shall not be less than one (1) year, performance of the recipient or the Company, its parent, subsidiary, division or department for which
the recipient is employed or such other factors as the Administrator may determine.

Rights as a Stockholder. Subject to any restrictions set forth in the award agreement, a recipient or purchaser of restricted common
stock will possess all of the rights of a holder of common stock of the Company, including the right to vote and receive dividends. Cash
dividends on the shares of common stock that are the subject of an award agreement shall be paid in cash to the recipient or purchaser
and may be subject to forfeiture as set forth in the award agreement. The recipient of restricted stock units shall not have any of the
rights of a stockholder of the Company; the Administrator shall be entitled to specify with respect to any restricted stock unit award that
upon the payment of a dividend by the Company, the Company will hold in escrow an amount in cash equal to the dividend that would
have been paid on the restricted stock units had they been converted into the same number of shares of common stock and held by the
recipient on that date. Upon adjustment and vesting of the restricted stock unit, any cash payment due with respect to such dividends
shall be made to the recipient.

Termination of Employment, Consultancy or Director Relationship. Generally, upon termination of employment, consultancy or a
director relationship for any reason during the restricted period, the recipient or purchaser will forfeit the right to the shares of restricted
common stock to the extent that the applicable restrictions have not lapsed at the time of such termination.

Common Stock Options

Types. Common stock options may be granted under the Plan to directors and consultants in the form of nonqualified stock options
and to employees in the form of incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options.

Exercise Price. The per share exercise price for shares underlying common stock options will be determined by the Administrator,
provided that the exercise price must be at least equal to 100% of the fair market value per share of common stock on the date of grant.
In the case of an incentive stock option granted to an employee who, at the time of grant, owns more than 10% of the total combined
voting power of all classes of stock of the Company, the per share exercise price must be at least equal to 110% of the fair market value
per share of common stock on the date of grant.

Term of Option; Vesting. The term during which a common stock option may be exercised will be determined by the
Administrator, provided that no common stock option will be exercisable more than ten (10) years from the date of grant. In the case of
an incentive stock option granted to an employee who, at the time of grant, owns more than 10% of the total combined voting power of
all classes of stock of the Company or its parent, subsidiaries or affiliates, the term of such common stock option may not be more than
five (5) years. The Administrator has full authority, subject to the terms of the Plan, to determine the vesting period or limitation or
waiting period with respect to any common stock option granted to a participant or the shares purchased upon exercise of such option;
provided, however, that such vesting restriction or limitation or waiting period shall not be less than one (1) year. In addition, the
Administrator may, for any reason, accelerate the exercisability of any common stock option.

Other Awards

Stock Appreciation Rights. The Administrator may grant to an employee, consultant or a director a right to receive the excess of
the fair market value of shares of the Company’ s common stock on the date the stock appreciation right is exercised over the fair
market value of such shares on the date the stock appreciation right was granted. Such spread may, in the sole discretion of the
Administrator, be paid in cash or common stock or a combination of both.
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Performance Awards. The Administrator may grant performance awards to employees based on the performance of a recipient
over a specified period. Such performance awards may be awarded contingent upon future performance of the Company or its parent,
affiliates or subsidiaries during that period. A performance award may be in the form of common stock (or cash in an amount equal to
the fair market value thereof) or the right to receive an amount equal to the appreciation, if any, in the fair market value of common
stock over a specified period. Performance awards may be paid, in the Administrator’ s discretion, in cash or stock or some combination
thereof. Each performance award will have a maximum value established by the Administrator at the time the award is made. Unless
otherwise provided in an award agreement or by the Administrator, performance awards terminate if the recipient does not remain an
employee of the Company, or its parent, affiliates or subsidiaries, at all times during the applicable performance period.

Other Stock-Based Awards. The Administrator may, in its discretion, grant other stock-based awards that are related to or serve a
similar function to the awards described above.

Material Terms of Performance Goals for Qualified Performance-Based Compensation

Under section 162(m) of the Tax Code, in order for the Company to deduct compensation in excess of $1,000,000 that is paid in
any year to any “covered employee,” such compensation must be treated as “qualified performance-based,” within the meaning of
section 162(m) of the Tax Code. A “covered employee” is defined under section 162(m) of the Tax Code as a company’ s principal
executive officer or any of such company’ s three other most highly compensated executive officers named in the proxy statement (other
than the principal executive officer or principal financial officer). Section 7 of the Plan sets forth the procedures the Administrator
should follow to avoid the deductibility limitations of section 162(m) of the Tax Code when making long-term incentive performance
awards under the Plan to current covered employees and employees whom the Administrator anticipates may become covered
employees between the time of grant and payment of the award. However, there can be no guarantee that amounts payable under the
Plan will be treated as “qualified performance-based” compensation and the Company reserves the flexibility to pay nondeductible
compensation when necessary to achieve our compensation objectives.

Among other things, in order for an award under Section 7 of the Plan to be treated as “‘qualified performance-based”
compensation that is not subject to the $1,000,000 cap, stockholder approval of the material terms of the performance goals is required
at least every five (5) years. The material terms include the employees eligible to receive the compensation, a description of the
performance criteria and the maximum amount of compensation that may be paid to any one employee. A description of the material
terms for qualified performance-based compensation in the Plan follows.

Employees Eligible to Receive Compensation. A performance-based award under the Plan may be granted to employees (including
officers) of the Company, its parent, subsidiaries and affiliates. In addition, a performance-based award may be granted to a person who
is offered employment by the Company or its parent, a subsidiary or affiliate, provided that such award shall be immediately forfeited if
such person does not accept such offer of employment within an established time period.

Performance Criteria. When making an award under the Plan, the Administrator may designate the award as “qualified
performance-based compensation,” which means that performance criteria must be satisfied in order for an employee to be paid the
award. Qualified performance-based compensation may be made in the form of restricted common stock, restricted stock units, common
stock options, performance shares, performance units or other stock equivalents. Section 7 of the Plan includes the performance criteria
the Administrator has adopted, subject to stockholder approval, for a “qualified performance-based compensation” award, which shall
consist of objective tests based on one or more of the following:

earnings;

operating profits (including measures of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization;
free cash flow or adjusted free cash flow;

cash from operating activities;

revenucs;
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net income (before or after tax);

financial return ratios;

market performance;

stockholder return and/or value;

net profits;

earnings per share;

profit returns and margins;

stock price;

working capital;

capital investments;

returns on assets;

returns on equity;

returns on capital investments;

selling, general and administrative expenses;

discounted cash flows;

productivity;

expense targets;

market share;

cost control measures;

strategic initiatives;

changes between years or periods that are determined with respect to any of the above-listed performance criteria;
net present value;

sales volume;

cash conversion costs;

leverage ratios;

maintenance of liquidity;

integration of acquired businesses;

operational efficiencies, including Lean Six Sigma initiatives;
regulatory compliance, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002; and
economic profit.

Performance criteria may be measured solely on a Company, parent, subsidiary or business unit basis, on specific capital projects
or groups of projects or a combination thereof. Further, performance criteria may reflect absolute entity performance or a relative
comparison of entity performance to the performance of one or more peer groups of entities or other external measure of the selected
performance criteria. The measure for any such award may include or exclude items to retain the intents and purposes of specific
objectives, such as losses from discontinued operations, extraordinary gains or losses, the cumulative effect of accounting changes,
acquisitions or divestitures, foreign exchange impacts, acceleration of payments, costs of capital invested, discount factors, and any
unusual or nonrecurring gain or loss. In order to qualify as performance-based under section 162(m) of the Tax Code, the performance
criteria will be established before 25% of the performance period has elapsed and will not be subject to change (although future awards
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may be based on different performance criteria). The performance periods may extend over one to five calendar years, and may overlap
one another.
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Other Provisions

Termination, Amendment and Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ( “ERISA”) Status. The Plan provides that the
Board may generally amend, alter, suspend or terminate the Plan and the Administrator may prospectively or retroactively amend any or
all of the terms of awards granted under the Plan, so long as any such amendment does not impair the rights of any recipient without the
recipient’ s consent. Stockholder approval is required for any material Plan amendment or any amendment necessary to comply with the
Tax Code or any other applicable laws or stock exchange requirements. The Plan is not subject to the provisions of ERISA.

Anti-dilution Provisions. Subject to any required action by the stockholders of the Company, the number of shares of common
stock covered by each outstanding award (and the purchase or exercise price thereof), and the number of shares of common stock that
have been authorized for issuance under the Plan, but as to which no awards have yet been granted (or which have been returned to the
Plan upon cancellation or expiration of an award or the withholding of shares by the Company) will be proportionately adjusted to
prevent dilution or enlargement of rights in the event of any stock split, stock dividend, combination or reclassification of the common
stock or other relevant capitalization change.

Prohibition on Loans to Participants. The Company may not lend money to any participant under the Plan for the purpose of
paying the exercise or base price associated with any award or for the purpose of paying any taxes associated with the exercise or
vesting of an award.

Withholding Obligations. The Company may take such steps as are considered necessary or appropriate for the withholding of any
federal, state, local or foreign taxes of any kind that the Company is required by any law or regulation of any governmental authority to
withhold in connection with any award under the Plan, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the withholding of all
or any portion of any payment or the withholding of the issue of common stock to be issued under the Plan, until such time as the
recipient has paid the Company for any amount the Company is required to withhold with respect to taxes. Unless otherwise determined
by the Administrator, withholding obligations may be settled with vested common stock, including vested common stock that is part of
the award that gives rise to the withholding requirement. The Administrator may establish such procedures as it deems appropriate,
including the making of irrevocable elections, for the settlement of withholding obligations with vested common stock.

Potential Dilutive Impact of Plan

We are committed to effectively managing our employee equity compensation programs while minimizing stockholder dilution.
For this reason, in administering our equity compensation program, we consider both our “burn rate” and our “overhang” in evaluating
the impact of the program on our stockholders. We define “burn rate” as the number of equity awards granted during the year, divided
by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. The burn rate measures the potential dilutive
effect of our equity grants. We define “overhang” as the number of full value awards granted (but not yet vested or issued) and stock
options granted (but not yet exercised) divided by the number of shares of common stock outstanding at the end of the period.

Certain Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following is a brief summary of the principal federal income tax consequences of the receipt of restricted common stock and
restricted stock units, the grant and exercise of common stock options awarded under the Plan and the subsequent disposition of shares
acquired upon such exercise and the receipt of certain other awards under the Plan. This summary is based upon the provisions of the
Tax Code as in effect on the date of this offering circular, current regulations adopted and proposed thereunder and existing judicial
decisions, as well as administrative rulings and pronouncements of the Internal Revenue Service (all of which are subject to change,
possibly with retroactive effect). This summary is not intended to be exhaustive and does not describe all federal, state or local tax laws.
Furthermore, the general rules discussed below may vary, depending upon the personal circumstances of the individual holder.
Accordingly, participants should consult a tax advisor to determine the income tax consequences of any particular transaction.

Taxation of Restricted Common Stock. In general, except in the case of an election under section 83(b) of the Tax Code, a
participant will not incur any tax upon the grant of shares of stock which are subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. However, when
the restrictions lapse or the shares become freely transferable, the participant will recognize ordinary income equal to the fair market
value of the applicable shares at such time, less the amount, if any, paid for such shares, unless the participant has made a section 83(b)
election with respect to such shares or has elected to defer receipt of such shares, as discussed below.
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If a participant makes a section 83(b) election within 30 days of a grant of restricted common stock, the participant will recognize
ordinary income at the time of grant in an amount equal to the difference between the fair market value of the restricted shares on the
grant date and the amount, if any, paid for such restricted shares. If the participant makes such an election, he or she will not recognize
any further income with respect to such shares solely as a result of a later lapse of the restrictions.

If a participant holds the restricted common stock as a capital asset after the earlier of either (1) the vesting of such restricted
common stock or (2) the making of a timely section 83(b) election with respect to such restricted common stock, any subsequent gain or
loss will be taxable as long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending upon the holding period. For this purpose, the basis in the
restricted common stock generally will be equal to the sum of the amount (if any) paid for the restricted common stock and the amount
included in ordinary income as a result of the vesting event or section 83(b) election, as applicable; provided, however, that, if a
participant forfeits restricted common stock with respect to which a section 83(b) election was made prior to vesting, the participant’ s
capital loss is limited to the amount (if any) paid for such restricted common stock.

In general, at the time a participant recognizes ordinary income with respect to the restricted common stock, the Company will be
entitled to a deduction in an amount equal to the ordinary income recognized by the participant, which deduction may be limited by
section 162(m) of the Tax Code.

Taxation of Restricted Stock Units; Stock Appreciation Rights; Performance Shares and Performance Units. In general, a
participant will not incur any tax upon the grant of restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance shares or performance
units. However, when the restrictions lapse, the participant will recognize ordinary income in an amount equal to the sum of the cash
and the fair market value of any property received.

Taxation of Non-Qualified Stock Options. In general, a participant will not recognize any income upon the grant of a non-qualified
stock option. Upon the exercise of a non-qualified stock option, however, a participant generally will recognize ordinary income in an
amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the non-qualified option stock on the date of exercise over the exercise price (i.e.,
the “spread”) and the Company will be entitled to a deduction in an equal amount, which may be limited by section 162(m) of the Tax
Code.

Upon subsequent sales of shares obtained through the exercise of non-qualified stock options, the participant may realize short-
term or long-term capital gain or loss, depending upon the holding period of the shares, if such shares constitute capital assets in the
participant’ s hands. The gain or loss will be measured by the difference between the sales price and the tax basis of the shares sold. The
tax basis for this purpose generally will be fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise.

Taxation of Incentive Stock Options. A participant who is granted an incentive stock option does not recognize taxable income at
the time the option is granted or upon its exercise, although the exercise is an adjustment item for alternative minimum tax purposes and
may subject the participant to alternative minimum tax. If the shares acquired upon exercise are sold after the expiration of two years
from the grant of the option and one year after exercise of the option, any gain or loss is treated as long-term capital gain or loss. If these
holding periods are not satisfied, the participant recognizes ordinary income at the time of disposition equal to the difference between
the exercise price and the lower of (1) the fair market value of the shares at the date of the option exercise or (2) the sale price of the
shares. Any gain or loss recognized on such a premature disposition of the shares in excess of the amount treated as ordinary income is
treated as long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending on the holding period. Unless limited by section 162(m) of the Tax
Code, the Company is generally entitled to a deduction in the same amount as the ordinary income recognized by the participant.

Taxation of Other Stock Based Awards. Other awards may be granted under the Plan. Since the amount, character and timing of
income recognized in connection with such awards will vary depending upon the specific terms and conditions of such awards, no
information regarding the tax consequences of the receipt of such awards may be provided at this time.
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Tax Withholding. The obligations of the Company under the Plan are conditioned upon proper arrangements being in place with
participants in the Plan for the payment of withholding tax obligations. Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, withholding
tax obligations may be settled with shares of common stock, including shares that are part of the award that gives rise to the withholding

obligation.

In light of the factors described above, the Administrator believes that the ability to grant equity compensation is vital to the
Company’ s ability to continue to attract, motivate, reward, and retain individuals.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SECURITY HOLDERS

Set forth below is information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock, our only outstanding class of capital
stock, as of September 2, 2016 by (i) each person whom we know beneficially owned more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our
common stock, and (ii) all of the current directors and executive officers individually and as a group. We believe that, except as
otherwise noted below, each named beneficial owner has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed. Unless
otherwise indicated herein, beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and includes voting or
investment power with respect to shares beneficially owned.

Amount and nature

of beneficial
Amount and nature of ownership
Name and address of beneficial owner (1) beneficial ownership (2) acquirable Percent of class (3)

Robert A. Berman 0 2,288,778 “) 45.2 %
Kevin Berrigan 273,722 0 5.5 %
James McCarthy 2,810,220 0 56.2 %
Gregory McCarthy 273,722 0 5.5 %
Richard Nathan 1,642,336 0 32.8 %
Riaz Latifullah 0 0 *
All directors and officers as a group

(6 persons) 5,000,000 2,288,778 4) 100.0 %

* less than 1%

(1) The address of those listed is ¢c/o KeyStone Solutions, Inc., 14420 Albemarle Point Place, Suite 200, Chantilly, VA, 20151.

(2) Unless otherwise indicated, all shares are owned directly by the beneficial owner.

(3) Based on 5,000,000 shares outstanding prior to this offering. Shares of common stock subject to options or warrants currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of September 2, 2016 are deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage
ownership of the person holding such options or warrants, but are not deemed outstanding for purposes of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person.

(4) Consists of: (i) options to purchase 2,226,278 outstanding shares in the aggregate from Mr. James McCarthy (1,405,110 shares)
and Dr. Richard Nathan (821,168) granted by Mr. McCarthy and Dr. Nathan to Avon Road Partners, L.P. (“Avon Road”), an
affiliate of Mr. Berman (the “Options™), and (ii) a warrant to purchase 62,500 shares from the Company issued to Avon
Road. Mr. Berman is the general partner of Avon Road, and therefore may be deemed to share beneficial ownership with Avon
Road of the shares reported herein. The shares of common stock subject to the warrant are deemed outstanding for the purposes of
computing the percentage ownership of the person holding such warrant, but are not deemed outstanding for the purposes of
computing beneficial ownership for any other person. The 2,226,278 shares underlying the Options are already outstanding as they
are held by Mr. James McCarthy and Dr. Richard Nathan and are therefore included in the beneficial ownership calculation for all
persons including Mr. Berman.
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INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Formation of KeyStone Solutions

On March 15, 2016, the Company entered into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with KCS Merger Sub, Inc.
(“Merger Sub”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and AOC Key Solutions, Inc. (“Key Solutions”). Pursuant to the Merger
Agreement, on March 15, 2016, Merger Sub was merged with and into Key Solutions, and thus Key Solutions became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Non-Independent Directors

Currently, although we have five directors, we have only one independent director, Glen Goord, who joined our Board of
Directors in March 2016 in connection with the formation of the Company. In addition, the Board of Directors, which includes four of
our executive officers, could establish policies and enter into transactions over the objections of the sole independent director. This
could present the potential for a conflict of interest between us and our stockholders generally and the executive officers, stockholders
or directors. The absence of more independent directors who could provide a more neutral point of view could jeopardize your
interests. For example, in the absence of a compensation committee, or a nominating and governance committee, comprised of at least a
majority of independent directors, decisions concerning matters such as compensation packages to our officers, or recommendations for
director nominees, respectively, may be made by existing members of the Board of Directors, who may have a direct or indirect interest
in the outcome of those decisions.

Subordinated Notes

On March 16, 2016, the Company entered into a Subordinated Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement (the “Note Purchase
Agreement”) with Avon Road pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue up to $1,000,000 in subordinated debt and warrants to
purchase up to 125,000 shares of the Company’ s common stock (“Subordinated Note Warrants”). The exercise price for the
Subordinated Note Warrants is equal to $2.00 per share of common stock. As of the date of this offering circular, subordinated notes
with a face amount of $500,000 and Subordinated Note Warrants to purchase 62,500 shares of the Company’ s common stock have been
issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement to Avon Road.

Stockholders Agreement

On March 16, 2016, Robert Berman, Avon Road, James McCarthy, Richard Nathan, Gregory McCarthy and Kevin Berrigan
entered into a stockholders’ agreement (the “Stockholders’ Agreement”). The parties to the Stockholders’ Agreement, who currently
control 100% of the Company’ s common stock, have agreed to vote their shares of common stock in favor of the following directors:

Three directors nominated collectively by James McCarthy, Richard Nathan, Gregory McCarthy and Kevin Berrigan
and their affiliated transferees

See “Securities Being Offered - Stockholders’ Agreement”.

Option Grants

On March 16, 2016, James McCarthy, Richard Nathan and Avon Road, an affiliate of Mr. Berman, entered into an option
agreement (the “Option Agreement”). Pursuant to the Option Agreement, Messrs. McCarthy and Nathan (each a “Grantor) granted
Avon Road the right to purchase up to 50% of the shares of the Company’ s common stock held by such Grantor as of the date of the
Option Agreement. If Avon Road exercised all such options and the subordinated note warrant, Avon Road would then own 38.9% of
the issued and outstanding common stock of the Company.

Berman Employment Agreement

The Berman Employment Agreement provides that upon the initial closing of the offering, Mr. Berman will become our
Chief Executive Officer for an initial term of five years with automatically renewing one-year terms thereafter. His base salary will be
$395,000 per annum, and he will be eligible for a bonus as determined by the Company’ s compensation committee. Mr. Berman will
also be eligible to receive all such other benefits as are provided by the Company to other management employees that are consistent
with the Company’ s fringe benefits available to any other officer or executive of the Company.
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In the event of a “Change of Control”, as defined in the Berman Employment Agreement, whether during the initial term or
thereafter, the Company shall have the right to terminate Mr. Berman’ s employment. In the event the Company exercises that option to
terminate Mr. Berman’ s employment, the Company shall pay to Mr. Berman, an amount equal to Mr. Berman’ s base salary per annum
multiplied by the number of years and portions thereof remaining in his current term under the Berman Employment Agreement.
Mr. Berman may be terminated by the Company for “Cause”, as defined in the Berman Employment Agreement.

Mr. Berman also agreed as consideration for entering into the Berman Employment Agreement, that for the period during his
employment and for twelve months thereafter, he will not (i) compete with the Company in the Geographic Area, as defined in the
Berman Employment Agreement, or (ii) solicit any of the Company’ s existing employees, suppliers or customers.
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SECURITIES BEING OFFERED

In this offering, we are offering Units, consisting of up to 3,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and warrants to
purchase up to 750,000 shares of common stock. Each Unit consists of one share of Series A Preferred Stock and a 7-year warrant that
is immediately exercisable to purchase 0.25 shares of common stock, at an exercise price of $2.00 per share of common stock. The
shares of Series A Preferred Stock and warrants will be issued separately but can only be purchased together as a Unit in this offering.
The separate purchase and sale of warrants, solely as warrants detached from a Unit, are restricted for a period of 180 days from the date
the Unit, for which the warrant is associated, is purchased. This offering circular also relates to the offering of shares of our common
stock upon the conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock and the exercise, if any, of the warrants.

Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding preferred stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock,
the holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably the dividends, if any, that may be declared from time to time by the Board of
Directors out of funds legally available for such dividends. We have never declared a dividend on our common stock and do not
anticipate doing so in the foreseeable future. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, subject to the prior
rights of the preferred stock, including the Series A Preferred Stock, the holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably in any
remaining assets, if any such assets exist, after payment of liabilities. The common stock has no preemptive or other subscription rights
and is not subject to any future calls or assessments. There are no conversion rights or redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable
to shares of common stock. All of the outstanding shares of common stock are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

Stockholders’ Agreement

The following is a summary of the material terms and provisions of the KeyStone Solutions, Inc. Stockholders’ Agreement, dated
March 16, 2016, among the Company and the stockholders party thereto.

Board Representation. The board of directors of the Company shall not exceed five members and shall include (a) two directors
nominated by Mr. Berman and Avon Road Partners, L.P. (the “Investor Holders™), which nominees shall be reasonably acceptable to the
Founding Holders (as defined below), and (b) three directors designated by James McCarthy, Richard Nathan, Greg McCarthy and
Kevin Berrigan (the “Founding Holders™), which nominees shall be reasonably acceptable to the Investor Holders.

Registration Rights. If the Company enters into any registration rights agreement or similar agreement granting “demand”,
“piggyback” and/or S-3 registration rights with respect to, or proposes to register any of, equity securities, the Founding Holders and
Investor Holders shall be made a party to such agreement (or enter into such an agreement in the event of a proposed registration) with
equal rights to participate in the “demand”, “piggyback” and/or S-3 registration rights.

Right of First Offer. The Company shall have a right of first offer for a period of 30 days to purchase any shares proposed to be
sold by any Founding Holder or Investor Holder to a third party. If the Company does not intend to purchase any of the offered shares
(or intends to purchase less than the total number of offered shares), then each of the other Founding Holders and Investor Holders shall
have the right to purchase their pro rata portion of the remaining shares.

Co-Sale Rights. If any Founding Holder or Investor Holder receives an offer to transfer any equity securities to a third party, the
other Founding Holders or Investor Holders have the right to participate pro rata in such sale.
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Sale of the Company. At any time that the holders of a majority of the equity securities held by the Founding Holders and the
Investor Holders propose a sale of the Company, such holders can compel all other Founding Holders and Investor Holders of the
Company to approve such sale.

Series A Preferred Stock

The following summary of certain material terms and provisions of our Series A Preferred Stock offered in this offering is
subject to changes based on the final terms of the offering. The following summary is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the
form of Certificate of Designations of Series A Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock (the “Certificate of
Designations”), which is attached hereto as Annex A. You should review a copy of the Certificate of Designations for a complete
description of the terms and conditions applicable to the Series A Preferred Stock.

Voting Rights. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not have any voting rights except as expressly set forth below or
as otherwise from time to time required by law.

So long as any shares of Series A Preferred Stock are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders
required by law or by our Certificate of Incorporation, the vote or consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series
A Preferred Stock at the time outstanding and entitled to vote thereon shall be necessary for effecting or validating, either directly or
indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or otherwise:

any amendment, alteration or repeal to our Certificate of Incorporation or bylaws which have an adverse effect
on the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series A Preferred Stock;

at any time until the second (2nd) anniversary of the Qualification Date, (x) any declaration or payment of cash
dividends on any of our common stock or other stock that is specifically designated as junior to the Series A
Preferred Stock; (y) any purchase, redemption or other acquisition for consideration of any of our common stock
or other junior stock, whether directly or indirectly; or (z) if and only if the Company is delinquent in the
payment of dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock, any declaration or payment of cash dividends or purchase,
redemption or other acquisition for consideration of any class of securities hereafter authorized that is
specifically designated as ranking pari passu with the Series A Preferred Stock, whether directly or indirectly;
provided, further, however, that the consent of the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall not be required in
connection with any repurchase of any junior stock (A) held by any employee or consultant of the Company

(x) upon any termination of such employee’ s or consultant’ s employment or consultancy pursuant to any
agreement providing for such repurchase or (y) otherwise permitted pursuant to an agreement between the
Company and an employee or consultant thereof; or (B) pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders’ Agreement
dated March 16, 2016 by and among the Company and the stockholders party thereto; or

any consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Series A Preferred Stock, or of a
merger or consolidation of the Company with another corporation or other entity, unless in each case (x) the
shares of Series A Preferred Stock remain outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with
respect to which the Company is not the surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for
preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, in each case, that is an entity
organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or the District of
Columbia and (y) such shares of Series A Preferred Stock remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as
the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
thereof, taken as a whole, as are not less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights, preferences, privileges
and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions
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thereof, of the Series A Preferred Stock immediately prior to such consummation, taken as a whole; provided,
further, that no vote by the holders of Series A Preferred Stock under the foregoing shall be required to the extent
a plan of merger, binding share exchange or similar event otherwise provides that the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock would receive an amount of cash in such merger, share exchange or similar event equal to the
liquidation preference as of the consummation of such merger, share exchange or similar event.

Dividends. The Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to quarterly dividends of $0.175 (7.0% per annum) per share.

Conversion Rights. At any time after the third anniversary of the Qualification Date, each holder of the Series A Preferred
Stock will have the right to convert each share of Series A Preferred Stock into our common stock at an initial conversion price of (a)(i)
$14.00, equivalent to a conversion rate of 0.714 shares of common stock for each share of Series A Preferred Stock from , 2019
to , 2020 or (ii) $15.00, equivalent to a conversion rate of 0.667 shares of common stock for each share of Series A Preferred
Stock from and after , 2020 plus (b) the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends thereof, if any, whether or not declared, to
and including the date immediately prior to such date of conversion.

The Series A Preferred Stock will automatically be converted at the then effective conversion price (i) except as provided
below, immediately prior to the closing of the Company’ s sale of its common stock in a firm commitment underwritten public offering
pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), (A) which results in
aggregate cash proceeds to the Company of not less than $30,000,000 (net of underwriting discounts and commissions), (B) is made at
an offering price per share of at least the then applicable conversion price (as adjusted) and (C) following such offering, the common
stock is listed for trading on a national securities exchange, and (ii) on the date specified by written consent or agreement of the holders
of at least 662/3% of the then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock (a “Qualified IPO”). If the closing of a Qualified IPO
occurs prior to , 2019, the conversion price per share shall be (i) $11 per share from , 2016 to ,2017; (ii) $12 per
share from ,2017 to , 2018; and (iii) $13 per share from ,2018 to ,2019.

Redemption by Company. At any time following the third anniversary of the Qualification Date, the Company may redeem
all or any portion of the then outstanding Series A Preferred Stock for a redemption price equal to either (a) (i) $14.00 per share from
,2019 to , 2020 or (ii) $15.00 per share from and after , 2020 plus (b) the amount of any accrued but unpaid
dividends thereof, if any, whether or not declared, to and including the date immediately prior to such date of redemption.

Redemption by Holder. At any time after the sixtieth month after the Qualification Date, each holder of the Series A Preferred
Stock will have the right to require the Company to redeem all, but not less than all, of such holder’ s Series A Preferred Stock for a
redemption price of $15 per share plus the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends thereof, if any, whether or not declared, to and
including the date immediately prior to such date of redemption.

Liguidation Rights. In the event of a “Liquidation Event” (as defined below), the holders of Series A Preferred Stock are
entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to stockholders an amount equal to $10 per share plus the
amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends thereof, if any, whether or not declared, to and including such date of liquidation.
“Liquidation Event” shall mean a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company in a single transaction or series of transactions.
The sale, conveyance, exchange or transfer (for cash, shares of stock, securities or other consideration) of all or substantially all of the
property and assets of the Company shall not be deemed a Liquidation Event, nor shall the merger, consolidation or any other business
combination transaction of the Company into or with any other corporation or person or the merger, consolidation or any other business
combination transaction of any other corporation or person into or with the Company be deemed to be a Liquidation Event.
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The following summary of certain material terms and provisions of our Unit warrants offered in this offering is subject to
changes based on the final terms of the offering. The following summary is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the form of
warrant, which is attached hereto as Annex B . You should review a copy of the form of warrant for a complete description of the terms
and conditions applicable to the warrants.

Exercisability. The warrants are exercisable on or before seven years from the Qualification Date. The warrants will be
exercisable, at the option of each holder, in whole or in part, by delivering to us a duly executed exercise notice accompanied by
payment in full for the number of shares of our common stock purchased upon such exercise (except in the case of a cashless exercise as
discussed below).

Cashless Exercise. If at any time there is not a current, valid and effective registration statement covering the warrant shares
that are the subject of the exercise notice, the holder may, in its sole discretion, exercise the warrant in whole or in part and, in lieu of
making the cash payment otherwise contemplated to be made to us upon such exercise in payment of the aggregate exercise price, elect
instead to receive upon such exercise the net number of shares of common stock determined according to the formula set forth in the
warrant. In no event shall we be required to make any cash payments or net cash settlement to the registered holder in lieu of issuance of
common stock underlying the warrants.

Exercise Price. The initial exercise price per share of common stock purchasable upon exercise of the warrants is $2.00 per
share. The exercise price is subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of certain stock dividends and distributions, stock splits, stock
combinations, reclassifications or similar events affecting our common stock and also upon any distributions of assets, including cash,
stock or other property to our stockholders.

Certain Adjustments. The exercise price and the number of shares of common stock purchasable upon the exercise of the
warrants are subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of specific events, including stock dividends, stock splits, combinations and
reclassifications of our common stock.

Redemption. Provided that there is an effective registration statement registering the shares of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the warrant, on or before the expiration date of the warrant, upon 20 days prior written notice to the holders of warrants
following the date on which the last sale price of the common stock equals or exceeds $ per share for 20 consecutive trading days
(“Call Notice™), as may be adjusted for stock splits, stock dividends and similar corporate events, and the daily average minimum
volume of the common stock during those 20 days is at least shares, the Company has the right to call any or all of the warrants
at a call price of $ per share of common stock underlying the warrant. Warrant holders will have the period from the date of the
Call Notice until 5 p.m., Eastern time, on the 20th day following the Call Notice to exercise the warrant. Any warrants which have been
called but remain unexercised by the 20th day will automatically terminate and no longer entitle the holder to exercise such warrant or to
receive any consideration therefor, other than the call price. For any warrants which are not exercised by the 20th day, the Company will
pay the call price to the holder of any warrants which have been called and not exercised.

Transferability. Subject to applicable laws, the warrants may be transferred at the option of the holders upon surrender of the
warrants to us together with the appropriate instruments of transfer, provided however that the separate purchase and sale of warrants,
solely as warrants detached from a Unit, are restricted for a period of 180 days from the date the Unit, for which the warrant is
associated, is purchased.

Exchange Listing. There is no established public trading market for the warrants detached from the Series A Preferred Stock.
We do not plan on making an application to list the warrants on any national securities exchange or other nationally recognized trading
system.
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Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while the warrants are outstanding, there is a “Fundamental Transaction” (as
defined below), then upon any subsequent exercise of the warrants, the holders thereof will have the right to receive the same amount
and kind of securities, cash or property as it would have been entitled to receive upon the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction if
it had been, immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction, the holder of the number of warrant shares then issuable upon exercise
of the warrant, and any additional consideration payable as part of the Fundamental Transaction. “Fundamental Transaction” shall mean
(i) a merger or consolidation of the Company into or with another corporation in which the stockholders of the Company immediately
prior to the consummation of such transaction shall own less than 50% of the voting securities or less than 50% of the voting power of
the surviving corporation (or the parent corporation of the surviving corporation where the surviving corporation is directly or indirectly
wholly-owned by the parent corporation) immediately following the consummation of such transaction, (ii) any sale or other transfer, in
one transaction or a series of related transactions, of fifty percent (50%) or more of the outstanding voting stock of the Company, or
(iii) the consummation of the sale, transfer or lease (including by merger or consolidation of one or more subsidiaries or otherwise, but
not including a transfer or lease by pledge or mortgage to a bona fide lender) of all or substantially all of (A) the assets of the Company
or (B) the assets of the Company and/or one or more subsidiaries constituting all or substantially all of the assets of the Company
(determined on a consolidated basis with the Company and all of its subsidiaries)

Rights as a Stockholder. Except as otherwise provided in the warrants or by virtue of such holder’ s ownership of shares of
our common stock, the holder of a warrant does not have the rights or privileges of a holder of our common stock, including any voting
rights, until the holder exercises the warrant.

Certain Anti-takeover Effects

The following is a summary of certain provisions of Delaware law, our Certificate of Incorporation and our bylaws. This
summary does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the corporate law of Delaware and our
Certificate of Incorporation and bylaws.

Effect of Delaware Anti-Takeover Statute

We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, an anti-takeover law. In general, Section 203
prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any business combination (as defined below) with any interested stockholder (as
defined below) for a period of three years following the date that the stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless:

prior to that date, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction
that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the
interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction
commenced, excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares of voting stock outstanding (but not the
voting stock owned by the interested stockholder) those shares owned by persons who are directors and officers and
by excluding employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to determine whether shares
held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

on or subsequent to that date, the business combination is approved by the board of directors of the corporation and
authorized at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at
least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 defines “business combination” to include the following:

any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder;
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any sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition of 10% or more of the assets of the corporation involving the interested
stockholder;

subject to certain exceptions, any transaction that results in the issuance or transfer by the corporation of any stock of
the corporation to the interested stockholder;

subject to limited exceptions, any transaction involving the corporation that has the effect of increasing the
proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the corporation beneficially owned by the interested
stockholder; or

the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial
benefits provided by or through the corporation.

In general, Section 203 defines an interested stockholder as any entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of the
outstanding voting stock of the corporation, or who beneficially owns 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation at
any time within a three-year period immediately prior to the date of determining whether such person is an interested stockholder, and
any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by any of these entities or persons.

Our Charter Documents

Our charter documents include provisions that may have the effect of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in
control or an unsolicited acquisition proposal that a stockholder might consider favorable, including a proposal that might result in the
payment of a premium over the market price for the shares held by our stockholders. Certain of these provisions are summarized in the
following paragraphs.

Effects of authorized but unissued common stock and blank check preferred stock. One of the effects of the existence of
authorized but unissued common stock and undesignated preferred stock may be to enable our board of directors to make more difficult
or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of our Company by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest or otherwise, and
thereby to protect the continuity of management. If, in the due exercise of its fiduciary obligations, the board of directors were to
determine that a takeover proposal was not in our best interest, such shares could be issued by the board of directors without stockholder
approval in one or more transactions that might prevent or render more difficult or costly the completion of the takeover transaction by
diluting the voting or other rights of the proposed acquirer or insurgent stockholder group, by putting a substantial voting block in
institutional or other hands that might undertake to support the position of the incumbent board of directors, by effecting an acquisition
that might complicate or preclude the takeover, or otherwise.

In addition, our Certificate of Incorporation grants our board of directors broad power to establish the rights and preferences
of authorized and unissued shares of preferred stock. The issuance of shares of preferred stock could decrease the amount of earnings
and assets available for distribution to holders of shares of common stock. The issuance also may adversely affect the rights and powers,
including voting rights, of those holders and may have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control of our
Company.

Cumulative Voting. Our Certificate of Incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors which
would allow holders of less than a majority of the stock to elect some directors.

Vacancies. Our bylaws provide that all vacancies, including newly created directorships, may, except as otherwise required
by law, be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum.
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Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Board of Directors may amend or repeal the corporation’ s
bylaws unless: (1) the articles or applicable law reserves this power exclusively to stockholders in whole or in part; (2) the shareholders
in amending or repealing a particular bylaw provide expressly that the Board may not amend or repeal that bylaw; or (3) such
amendment or repeal adversely affects the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series A Preferred Stock (unless
waived by the majority of the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock). A Delaware corporation’ s stockholders may amend or repeal the
corporation’ s bylaws even though they may also be amended or repealed by the Board of Directors. Our bylaws may not be amended or
repealed without the vote of a majority of the Board of Directors then in office or the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast on the
matter at a meeting of shareholders.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

VStock Transfer, LLC, 18 Lafayette Place, Woodmere, New York 11598, is the transfer agent and registrar for the Company’ s
securities, including the Units, the Series A Preferred Stock, and the common stock.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Sales Agent and the Underwriting

Moloney Securities Co., Inc. (“Moloney”) has agreed to act as the lead placement agent and dealer manager for the offering
and The Benchmark Company, LLC (“Benchmark™) has agreed to act as co-dealer manager (Moloney and Benchmark are collectively
referred to in this offering circular as the “Sales Agent”). In connection with this offering the Sales Agent has entered into a Sales
Agency Agreement and a “Co-Agent Agreement,” both dated , 2016.

The Series A Preferred Stock and warrants will be sold together as Units, with each Unit consisting of one share of Series A
Preferred Stock and a seven-year warrant dated from the Qualification Date that is immediately exercisable to purchase 0.25 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share. Although the warrants are detachable, that is, the warrant may be traded
separately, and may be exercised immediately, the warrants may not be detached or traded separately for a period of 180 days after the
Qualification Date.

This offering is not a firm commitment underwriting, which means that the Sales Agent is not purchasing or selling any Units
offered by this offering circular for resale to investors, nor is the Sales Agent required to arrange the purchase or sale of any specific
number or dollar amount of the Units. The Sales Agent has agreed to use its commercially reasonable best-efforts to arrange for the sale
of all of the Units offered hereby. The Sales Agent is utilizing for the offering a platform operated by Folio Investments, Inc. (“Folio™),
a Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA™) member and SEC-registered broker-dealer and clearing firm, which permits
access to certain offering information and the Subscription Agreements. See “~Procedures for Acquiring Units ” below.

Offering Amount, Distributions and Closings

The minimum number of Units to be sold in this offering is 300,000 Units totaling an aggregate price to the public of
$3,000,000 the “Minimum Offering Amount” at the price per Unit to the public of $10.00. The “Maximum Offering Amount” of the
offering is 3,000,000 Units totaling $30,000,000 at the price per Unit to the public of $10.00 per Unit. The Sales Agent has the right to
enter into participating dealer agreements with other broker-dealers participating in the offering, all of whom must be members of
FINRA (defined herein as a “Dealer” or “Dealers”). The Sales Agent may also sell Units for cash directly to its own clients and
customers at the offering price and subject to the terms and conditions stated in this offering circular.

After the qualification of the Units as exempt from registration pursuant to Section 3(b)(2) of the Securities Act and Tier 2
under Regulation A promulgated thereunder by the SEC, the Sales Agent and the Dealers will commence the offering of the Units for
cash to the public in jurisdictions in which the Units are registered or qualified for sale or in which the offering is otherwise permitted.
Each investor in the offering must invest a minimum of $5,000 per subscription (500 Units).

If all conditions precedent to the consummation of the Minimum Offering Amount as established and agreed to by the
Company and the Sales Agent are satisfied, the Company will issue the Units on the Closing Date, as defined below, against payment to
the Company of the amount for the Units sold pursuant to this offering circular. No sale will be regarded as effective unless and until
accepted by the Company. We anticipate that there will be more than one closing during the offering. The first closing (the “Initial
Closing”) will occur as soon as practical after we raise the Minimum Offering Amount of $3,000,000, but in no event will it occur more
than six (6) months after the Qualification Date (the “Minimum Offering Period”). If the Minimum Offering Amount is not raised for
this offering prior to or on the last day of the Minimum Offering Period or the Company elects to terminate the offering prior to the end
of the Minimum Offering Period upon payment of an early termination fee as provided for below, the offering will terminate and the
investors will receive a full refund of the amounts which they have invested in the offering, which means that such funds shall remain in
the Folio accounts for the benefit of the investors and shall not be transferred to the Company, as provided in this Plan of Distribution.
The Company also has the option to terminate the offering prior to the expiration of the Minimum Offering Period upon payment of an
early termination fee relating to expenses incurred. We anticipate and have designed the Initial Closing so that the investments made as
part of raising the Minimum Offering Amount for the Initial Closing will be made through the Folio investment platform as described
below in this Plan of Distribution Section. After we have raised the Minimum Offering Amount,
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investments may be made by Dealers for investors either through the Folio platform or, if requested by a Dealer or investor and deemed
appropriate and beneficial for the offering by the Sales Agent, then through an escrow agent, to be selected by the Sales Agent (“Escrow
Agent”) without having to establish an account with Folio. As of the date of this Offering Circular the Sales Agent has not retained the
services of an Escrow Agent, however the Sales Agent retains the right to engage an Escrow Agent of its choice to provide escrow
services for this offering if the Sales Agent deems that the use of an Escrow Agent would be appropriate and beneficial for completion
on the offering.

After raising the Minimum Offering (the sale of 300,000 Units) and completing the Initial Closing, subsequent Closings will
occur when: (i) the Company raises an additional $3,000,000 (300,000 Units) over the amount raised in the immediately preceding
Closing; or (ii) two (2) months after the immediately preceding Closing, whichever occurs first. Therefore, following the Initial Closing,
an investor should not have to wait longer than approximately two (2) months to receive his or her Units and earlier if the incremental
$3,000,000 is raised sooner. Investors will not have a right to a return of invested funds after a Closing is completed, including but not
limited to the Initial Closing, and the invested funds have been transferred to the Company. After the Initial Closing the Company and
the Sales Agent may jointly agree to conduct a Closing earlier than the two months or the sale of 300,000 incremental Units. The
offering shall expire twelve (12) months after the Qualification Date (“Offering Expiration Date™).

After the Initial Closing, if any one of the subsequent Closings fails to result in raising an incremental aggregate amount of at
least $3,000,000 or if the offering is discontinued for any reason prior to raising an incremental aggregate amount of at least $3,000,000,
the amount actually raised will be disbursed to the Company and the Units will be issued to the investors. After the Initial Closing the
offering will continue until the first to occur of the following: (i) we raise the Maximum Offering Amount of $30,000,000; (ii) we
terminate the offering; or (iii) the Offering Expiration Date. We cannot make any assurance that this offering will continue to any
predetermined amount of capital raised and the offering may be terminated by the Company prior to raising the Maximum Offering
Amount.

Sales Fees, Reallowance and Sales Agent’ s Expense Reimbursements

The Sales Agent will receive for its services a commission on each Closing Date equal to six percent (6%) of the aggregate
dollar amount of the proceeds of the Units sold in the offering (the “Sales Fee™). This Sales Fee may be subject to a reallowance in
whole or part to Dealers who make sales as a part of this offering, as determined by the Sales Agent.

The Company will pay or reimburse the Sales Agent for all actual, accountable and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses of the
Sales Agent not to exceed one percent (1.00%) of the aggregate dollar amount of the proceeds of the Units sold in the offering and in no
event will it exceed the amount permitted as accountable expenses under FINRA Rules (“Accountable Expenses™). In addition to the
payment or reimbursement for the Accountable Expenses, the Company will pay the Sales Agent with a non-accountable expense
allowance equal to one percent (1.00%) of the aggregate dollar amount of the proceeds of the Units sold in the offering as permitted by
FINRA Rule 5110(f)(2)(B) (“Non-Accountable Expenses™).

The Company shall pay Folio for its services in the offering equal to 0.50% (50 basis points) of the aggregate dollar amount
of the proceeds of the Units sold in the offering (the “Folio Fee™). All or a portion of the Folio Fee may be determined by FINRA to be
included as “compensation” to the Sales Agent, and to the extent so included that amount will be credited toward the Non-Accountable
and Accountable Expenses to be paid to the Sales Agent.
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In the event that FINRA determines that any portion of the Folio Fee is due to expenses that FINRA deems not to be
classified as underwriter compensation, then such percentage of Folio’ s compensation shall not be credited toward reimbursement for
Accountable Expenses or Non-Accountable Expenses of the Sales Agent. Such reduction of the FINRA classified amount of Folio Fees
from compensation to the Sales Agent shall first serve to increase the amount available for reimbursement of the Sales Agents’ Non-
Accountable Expenses up to 1.00% of the aggregate dollar amount of the Units sold in the offering. Thereafter such reduction shall
serve to increase the amount available for reimbursement of the Sales Agents’ Accountable Expenses up to 1.00% of all Accountable
Expenses of the Sales Agent. Regardless of how the Folio fees are classified by FINRA, the 0.5% (50 basis points) of the aggregate
dollar amount of the proceeds of the Units sold in the offering shall remain payable by the Company to Folio and the total Accountable
Expenses of the Sales Agent as defined by FINRA shall not exceed 1.00% and the Non-Accountable Expenses of the Sales Agent as
defined by FINRA shall not exceed 1.00% of the aggregate dollar amount of the Units sold in the offering.

Reduced Sales Fee

The Sales Agent may reduce the Sales Fee in its sole discretion with respect to Units sold to: (i) clients of investment
advisors registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended or under applicable state securities laws (other than any
registered investment advisor that is also registered as a broker-dealer, with the exception of clients who have “wrap” accounts which
have asset based fees with such advisor); (ii) registered principals or representatives of the Sales Agent or any Dealer (and immediate
family members of any of the foregoing); (iii) the Company’ s or its wholly owned Subsidiary’ s employees, officers and directors or the
affiliates of any of the foregoing entities (and the immediate family members of any of the foregoing persons), any benefit plan
established exclusively for the benefit of such persons or entities, and, if approved by the Company’ s board of directors, joint venture
partners, consultants and other service providers; (iv) any investor in an entity affiliated with the Company; and (v) any other person
identified by the Company and agreed to by the Sales Agent.

Procedures for Acquiring Units

Prospective investors who meet the requirements and abide by the investment limitations described below in this Plan of
Distribution section, may subscribe for our Units. We anticipate that all subscriptions that are part of the Minimum Offering Amount
will be made through the Folio platform, either in individual accounts or through omnibus accounts opened by Dealers or the Sales
Agent composed of funds from more than one investor. Following the raising of the Minimum Offering Amount investors will also be
permitted to complete and submit their subscription agreements through their Dealers electronically, through either the Folio platform or
if determined appropriate and beneficial by the Sales Agent then through an Escrow Agent, if one is established as indicated above in
this Plan of Distribution.
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Initial Closing and the Minimum Offering Amount

As a condition to the transfer of funds from subscribers to the Company for the Initial Closing only, the total amount of
subscriptions accepted by the Company and supported by cleared funds in subscriber brokerage accounts at Folio must be equal to or
greater than the Minimum Offering Amount. When funds from all subscriptions in the offering equal or exceed the Minimum Offering
Amount are deposited with Folio for the exclusive benefit of customers by no later than the end of the Minimum Offering Period, the
funds will be transferred to the Company for the Initial Closing. Funds from subscriptions will be held by Folio in customer accounts for
the exclusive benefit of its customers until such time as all conditions to the Initial Closing are met before being transferred to the
Company’ s Folio account. If the Minimum Offering Amount is not raised before the expiration of the Minimum Offering Period, or the
Company exercises its option to earlier terminate the offering upon payment of the early termination fee, the subscriptions shall not be
accepted by the Company and customer funds held in accounts at Folio shall be refunded to the investors, which means that such funds
shall remain in the customer accounts for the benefit of the investors and will not be transferred to the Company.

Investment Procedures Generally

Prior to purchasing any of our Units, you should review this entire offering circular and any appendices, exhibits and
supplements accompanying this offering circular. For the Minimum Offering, prospective investors will acquire our Units through book-
entry order through the Sales Agent or a participating Dealer by opening an account with Folio, which will be either an individual
account owned by the investor and held by Folio for the exclusive benefit of such customer or an omnibus account set up by a Dealer or
Sales Agent. After the Minimum Offering is raised and the sales are closed for the Initial Closing investors may make investments
through an account at Folio, either previously established or through a new Folio account, or directly through the investor’ s Dealer
using an Escrow Agent, if one is engaged as indicated above in this Plan of Distribution, without establishing an account with Folio. For
all Closings after the Initial Closing investors may utilize either Folio or an Escrow Agent, if established, to hold funds prior to a
Closing.

Subscriptions for the Units made through Folio, which is a FINRA member and SEC-registered broker-dealer and clearing
firm are processed online. The Company has engaged V-Stock Transfer, LLC (the “Transfer Agent™) as the transfer agent for this
offering. The Transfer Agent will record and maintain records of the Units issued by the Company.

Investment Procedures Using the Folio Platform

For raising the Minimum Offering Amount and thereafter, if the Folio platform is utilized, the process for investing through
Folio will work in the following manner. Folio has, as of the date of this offering circular, entered into a custody agreement with the
Company pursuant to which the Company will issue uncertificated securities to be held in the Company’ s account at Folio, and the
Units held at Folio will show as an omnibus position on the Company’ s records and the Transfer Agent’ s records in the name of “Folio
Investments, Inc. for the exclusive benefit of its customers.” The Company’ s brokerage account with Folio will hold the Units to be
sold in the offering in book-entry form. When the Units are sold as described below, Folio maintains a record of each investor’ s
ownership interest in those securities. Under an SEC no-action letter provided to Folio in January 2015, Folio is allowed to treat the
issuer as a good control location pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 15¢3-3(c)(7) under these circumstances. The customer’ s funds in
accounts owned by the customer at Folio will not be transferred into a separate account awaiting the Initial Closing, or any other
Closing, but will remain at Folio in the Dealer’ s or the Sales Agent’ s omnibus account or the investor’ s account pending instructions to
release funds to the Company if all conditions necessary for a Closing are met. Therefore, up until the consummation of a Closing for
accounts established by customers or for the benefit of customers at Folio the funds awaiting investment in the offering will remain in
accounts owned and controlled by the customers.
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In order to subscribe to purchase the Units, a prospective investor must complete and execute (electronically) a subscription
agreement and provide payment using the procedures indicated below. Investors must answer certain questions to determine compliance
with the investment limitations set forth in Regulation A under the Securities Act. The Securities Act and Regulation A provide, in part,
that in Regulation A offerings, such as this one, where the securities will not be listed on a registered national securities exchange upon
qualification, the aggregate purchase price to be paid by the investor, who is not an “Accredited Investor” pursuant to Rule 501 (a) of
Regulation D (See Investor Qualification and Compliance herein below for a definition of “Accredited Investor”) cannot exceed 10%
of the greater of the investor’ s annual income or net worth. In the case of an investor who is not a natural person, revenues or net assets
for the investor’ s most recently completed fiscal year are used instead.

To invest in this offering through Folio’ s platform, a prospective investor must have a brokerage account with Folio, either
directly or through a broker dealer that is operating under a fully disclosed clearing agreement with Folio as the clearing brokerage.
Prospective investors will be able to access the offering materials, including this offering circular, online, where they can submit a
subscription request to purchase Units in the offering. When submitting the subscription request, a prospective investor is required to
agree to various terms and conditions by checking boxes and to review and electronically sign any necessary documents.

The funds that will be used by the investor to purchase the securities through the Folio platform are deposited by the investor
prior to the Closing Date into a brokerage account at Folio, which will be owned by the investor or may be owned as part of an omnibus
account with Folio through a Dealer or through the Sales Agent. The funds for the investor’ s account at Folio can be provided by check,
wire, Automated Clearing House (“ACH”) push, ACH pull, direct deposit, Automated Customer Account Transfer Service (“ACATS”)
or non-ACATS transfer. Under an SEC no-action letter provided to Folio in July 2015, the funds may remain in the customer’ s account
after they are deposited and until the conditions of the offering are satisfied, including without limitation, the raising of the Minimum
Offering Amount for the Initial Closing. The funds in customer accounts at Folio are generally swept into FDIC-insured bank accounts
on a daily basis as part of Folio’ s cash sweep program. After all contingencies of the offering are met, the Company will notify Folio
when it wishes to conduct a Closing. Folio executes the Closing by transferring each investor’ s funds from their Folio accounts to the
Company’ s Folio account and transferring the correct number of book-entry shares to each investor’ s account from the Company’ s
Folio account. Series A Preferred Stock and Unit warrants are then reflected in the investor’ s online account and shown on the
investor’ s Folio account statements. Folio will also send trade confirmations individually to the investors.

Other than this offering circular in electronic format, the information on Folio’ s web site or any information contained in any
other website maintained by the Sales Agent or any Dealer or by us is not part of this offering circular or the Offering Statement of
which this offering circular forms a part, and therefore has not been approved or endorsed by us or the Sales Agent in their capacity as
Sales Agent, and should not be relied upon by investors.

Investment Procedures Using the Escrow Agent, if Established

After the Minimum Offering Amount has been raised and the Initial Closing is completed, investors may choose to invest
through the Escrow Agent, if established, or through Folio. If making their investments in the offering though the Escrow Agent, if
established, a prospective investor must complete a subscription agreement and send payment by wire transfer or ACH to the Escrow
Agent. Investors must answer certain questions and make certain declarations to determine compliance with the investment limitations
set forth in Regulation A, which are summarized in Investor Qualification and Compliance below. Once the Sales Agent has determined
that sufficient aggregate funds are on deposit with Folio and the Escrow Agent (if established) or two months have elapsed from the
immediately preceding Closing as described above in this Plan of Distribution, whichever is sooner, then the Sales Agent and the
Company shall initiate a Closing by transferring invested funds from investor’ s Folio accounts and from the Escrow Agent if one is
established, to the Company’ s account in exchange for Units to be transferred by the Company to subscribers either through a transfer
to the subscriber’ s Folio account, or if using an Escrow Agent, by delivering the Units to the subscriber after the investment funds are
transferred to the Company from an Escrow Agent, if established.
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Investor Qualification and Compliance

This offering is being conducted pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A as a Tier 2 Offering. In accordance with
recent amendments to Regulation A, generally, no sale may be made to you in this offering if the aggregate purchase price you
pay is more than 10% of the greater of your annual income or net worth. Different rules apply to “Accredited Investors” as
defined in Rule 501 (a) of Regulation D (17 CFR §230.501 (a)) (definition summarized below) and non-natural persons, for
example, entities. Before making any representation that your investment does not exceed applicable thresholds, we encourage
you to review Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) of Regulation A. For general information on investing, we encourage you to refer to
www.investor.gov. (More details of these restrictions are described below).

NOTE: The Company, the Sales Agent and each Dealer will not accept any investment from you if there is any uncertainty
about whether or not you qualify to subscribe to the Units in this Offering. The Company, the Sales Agent, and Folio cannot
provide you with legal advice with regard to this offering.

As part of this process, the investors must answer certain questions to determine compliance with the investment limitations
set forth in Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) under the Securities Act, which states that in offerings such as this one, where the securities will not be
listed on a registered national securities exchange upon qualification, the aggregate purchase price to be paid by the investor for the
securities cannot exceed 10% of the greater of the investor’ s annual income or net worth. In the case of an investor who is not a natural
person, revenues or net assets for the investor’ s most recently completed fiscal year are used instead.

The investment limitation does not apply to “Accredited Investors,” as that term is defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D
promulgated under the Securities Act. An individual is an Accredited Investor if he or she meets one of the following criteria:

1. A natural person whose individual net worth, or joint net worth with his or her spouse, at the time of this purchase exceeds
$1,000,000 and having no reason to believe that net worth will not remain in excess of $1,000,000 for the foreseeable future.

0 A natural person’ s primary residence shall not be included as an asset;

0 Indebtedness that is secured by the person’ s primary residence, up to the estimated fair market value of the primary
residence at the time of the sale of the Units, shall not be included as a liability (except that if the amount of such
indebtedness outstanding at the time of sale of securities exceeds the amount outstanding 60 days before such time,
other than as a result of the acquisition of the primary residence, the amount of such excess shall be included as a
liability); and

0 Indebtedness that is secured by the person’ s primary residence in excess of the estimated fair market value of the
primary residence at the time of the sale of the Units shall be included as a liability;

or;
2. a natural person who has individual annual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint annual

income with that person’ s spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of those years and who reasonably expects an income in excess of
those levels in the current year.

An entity other than a natural person is an “Accredited Investor” if it falls within any one of the following categories:

1. an employee benefit plan within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended,
(1) if the decision to invest is made by a plan fiduciary which is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, or
registered investment adviser; (ii) if such employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000; or (iii) if it is a self-
directed plan whose investment decisions are made solely by Accredited Investors;

2. a tax-exempt organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, a corporation, a Massachusetts or
similar business trust or a partnership, which was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities offered and which
has total assets in excess of $5,000,000;

3. a trust, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, which was not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities
offered, whose decision to purchase such securities is directed by a
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“sophisticated person” as described in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) under Regulation D; or

4. certain financial institutions such as banks and savings and loan associations, registered broker-dealers, insurance companies,

and registered investment companies.

Our obligation to issue and sell Units to investors is subject to the conditions set forth in the subscription agreements, which
may be waived by us at our discretion.
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Annex A

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS
OF
SERIES A CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERRED
STOCK
OF
KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

KeyStone Solutions, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware
(hereinafter called the “Corporation”), hereby certifies that the following resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation (hereinafter called the “Board of Directors™) on [ ], 2016.

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority expressly granted to and vested in the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, the Board of Directors hereby creates a series of Preferred Stock, par
value $0.0001 per share (the “Preferred Stock™), of the Corporation and hereby states the designation and number of shares, and fixes
the relative rights, powers and preferences, and qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof as follows:

Section 1. Designation; Number of Shares. The shares of such series shall be classified and designated as Series A Cumulative
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock™), and the number of shares
constituting such series shall be 3,000,000. That number may from time to time be increased or decreased (but not below the number of
Shares then outstanding) by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law. The Series A
Preferred Stock shall be issued in certificated form.

Section 2. Defined Terms. For purposes hereof, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

“Applicable Dividend Rate” shall equal seven percent (7.00%).

“Base Redemption Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.

“Board of Directors” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Business Day” means a day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York, New York,
United States of America, are required to or may be closed.
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“Certificate of Designations™” means this Certificate of Designations creating the Series A Preferred Stock.

“Certificate of Incorporation” means the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation.

“Common Stock™ means the common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Corporation.
“Conversion Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.

“Conversion Ratio” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.

“Corporation” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

“Dividend Payment Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

“Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

“Junior Securities” means, collectively, the Common Stock and any other class of securities hereafter authorized that is
specifically designated as ranking junior to the Series A Preferred Stock.

“Liquidation Event” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Liquidation Preference” means, with respect to any Share on any given date, the sum of (i) the Liquidation Value and (ii) the
amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends thereof, if any, whether or not declared, to and including such date.

“Liquidation Value” means, with respect to any Share on any given date, the Series A Original Issue Price.

“Original Issuance Date” means [®], 2016.

“Parity Securities” means any class of securities hereafter authorized that is specifically designated as ranking pari passu with the
Series A Preferred Stock.

“Person” means an individual, firm, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, incorporated or unincorporated
association, joint venture, joint stock company, trust or other entity or organization of any kind, including a governmental authority.

“Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Qualification Date” means [ ], 2016.

A-2

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Table of Contents
“Qualified [PO” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.2.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor federal statute, and the rules and regulations
thereunder, which shall be in effect at the time.

“Senior Securities” means any class of securities hereafter authorized that is specifically designated as ranking senior to the Series
A Preferred Stock.

“Series A Liquidation Preference Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Series A Original Issue Price” means $10.00 per Share.

“Series A Redemption” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1.

“Series A Redemption Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.
“Share” means a share of Series A Preferred Stock.

“Subsidiary” or “subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person: (a) any other Person of which such Person beneficially owns,
either directly or indirectly, more than fifty percent (50%) of (i) the total combined voting power of all classes of voting securities of
such other Person, (ii) the total combined equity interests of such other Person, or (iii) the capital or profit interests of such other Person;
or (b) any other Person of which such Person has the power to vote, either directly or indirectly, sufficient securities to elect a majority
of the board of directors or similar governing body of such other Person.

Section 3. Rank. With respect to payment of dividends and distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, all Shares of the Series A Preferred Stock shall rank (i) pari passu with all Parity
Securities, (ii) senior to all Junior Securities and (iii) junior to all Senior Securities.

Section 4. Dividends.

4.1 Accrual and Payment of Dividends. From and after the issuance date of any Share, cumulative dividends on such Share
shall accrue, whether or not declared by the Board of Directors and whether or not there are funds legally available for the payment of
dividends, in arrears at a per annum rate equal to the Applicable Dividend Rate on the Liquidation Preference. The dividends on the
Series A Preferred Stock shall accrue from the issuance date thereof and shall be payable quarterly in arrears within five (5) Business
Days following the last day of March, June, September and December of each calendar year (each such date, a “Dividend Payment
Date”) to the holders of record of the Series A Preferred Stock on such Dividend Payment Date, except
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that if any such date is not a Business Day, then such dividend shall be payable on the next Business Day. All accrued dividends on any
Share shall be paid in cash only when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefor or upon a
liquidation or redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock in accordance with the provisions of Section 5, Section 7 or Section 8. All
accrued and accumulated dividends on the Shares shall be prior and in preference to any dividend on any Junior Securities and shall be
fully declared and paid before any dividends are declared and paid, or any other distributions or redemptions are made, on any Junior
Securities, other than to declare or pay any dividend or distribution payable on Junior Securities in shares of Junior Securities.

Each dividend period (a “Dividend Period”) shall commence on and include a Dividend Payment Date and shall end on and
include the calendar day preceding the next Dividend Payment Date, except that (x) the initial Dividend Period for Series A Preferred
Stock issued on the Original Issuance Date shall commence on and include the Original Issuance Date, (y) the initial Dividend Period
for any Series A Preferred Stock issued after the Original Issuance Date shall commence on and include such date as the Board of
Directors shall determine and disclose at the time such additional shares are issued, or if no such determination is made, the date of
issuance of such Series A Preferred Stock, and (z) the final Dividend Period with respect to redeemed Shares shall end on and include
the calendar day preceding the date of redemption. Dividends payable on the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend Period
shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

If, on any Dividend Payment Date, the Corporation fails to pay dividends in respect of the Shares equal to all dividends on
the Shares accrued but unpaid as of such date, the accrued but unpaid dividends on the Shares shall nonetheless accumulate and
compound at the Applicable Dividend Rate on such Dividend Payment Date and shall remain accumulated, compounding dividends on
such Applicable Dividend Rate, until paid pursuant hereto.

Section 5. Liquidation.

5.1 Liquidation. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (a
“Liquidation Event”), the holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders, before any payment shall be made to the holders of Junior Securities by
reason of their ownership thereof, with respect to each Share of Series A Preferred Stock, an amount equal to the Liquidation Preference
(the “Series A Liquidation Preference Amount”). The Series A Liquidation Preference Amount shall be paid to the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock in cash and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any further payments in the event of any
Liquidation Event other than what is expressly provided for in this Section 5.
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5.2 Insufficient Assets. If upon any Liquidation Event the remaining assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
stockholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of the Shares of Series A Preferred Stock the full Series A Liquidation Preference
Amount and the holders of any Parity Securities the full preferential amount to which they are entitled under the terms of the relevant
instrument governing such Parity Securities, (a) the holders of the Shares and any Parity Securities shall share ratably in any distribution
of the remaining assets and funds of the Corporation in proportion to the respective full preferential amounts which would otherwise be
payable in respect thereof upon such Liquidation Event if all amounts payable on or with respect to such Shares and Parity Securities
were paid in full, and (b) the Corporation shall not make or agree to make any payments to the holders of Junior Securities.

5.3 Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all holders of Series A Preferred Stock and
all other amounts payable upon a Liquidation Event have been paid in full to all holders of any Parity Stock, the holders of Common
Stock and any other Junior Securities shall be entitled to receive all remaining assets of the Corporation according to their respective
rights and preferences.

5.4 Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this Section 5, the sale, conveyance, exchange
or transfer (for cash, shares of stock, securities or other consideration) of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the
Corporation shall not be deemed a Liquidation Event, nor shall the merger, consolidation or any other business combination transaction
of the Corporation into or with any other corporation or person or the merger, consolidation or any other business combination
transaction of any other Person into or with the Corporation be deemed to be a Liquidation Event.

Section 6. Voting Rights.

6.1 Voting Generally. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not have any voting rights except as expressly set forth
below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.

6.2 Amendment of Series A Preferred Stock; Dividends; Material Acquisitions; Mergers and Consolidations. So long as any

Shares are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation,
the vote or consent of the holders of a majority of the Shares at the time
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outstanding and entitled to vote thereon, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting
called for the purpose, shall be necessary for effecting or validating, either directly or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or
otherwise:

(i) Any amendment, alteration or repeal, as applicable, of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws
of the Corporation so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series A Preferred Stock;

(i1) At any time until the second (2nd) anniversary of the Qualification Date, (x) any declaration or payment of cash
dividends on any Common Stock or other Junior Securities, (y) any purchase, redemption or other acquisition for consideration of any
Common Stock or other Junior Securities, whether directly or indirectly; or (z) if and only if the Corporation is delinquent in the
payment of dividends on the Shares, any declaration or payment of cash dividends or purchase, redemption or other acquisition for
consideration of any Parity Securities, whether directly or indirectly; provided, further, however, that the consent of the holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock shall not be required in connection with any repurchase of any Junior Securities (A) held by any employee or
consultant of the Corporation (x) upon any termination of such employee’ s or consultant’ s employment or consultancy pursuant to any
agreement providing for such repurchase or (y) otherwise permitted pursuant to an agreement between the Corporation and an employee
or consultant thereof; or (B) pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders’ Agreement dated March 16, 2016 by and among the Corporation
and the shareholders party thereto, as such agreement may be amended and in effect at the time of any such repurchase; or

(iii) Any consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Series A Preferred Stock, or of a
merger or consolidation of the Corporation with another corporation or other entity, unless in each case (x) the Shares remain
outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the Corporation is not the surviving or resulting
entity, are converted into or exchanged for preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, in each case,
that is an entity organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or the District of Columbia and
(y) such Shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and
voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, taken as a whole, as are not less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights,
preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, of the Series A Preferred Stock immediately prior to
such consummation, taken as a whole; provided, further, that no vote by the holders of Series A Preferred Stock under this clause
(iii) shall be required to the extent a plan of merger, binding share exchange or similar event provides that the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock would receive an amount of cash in such merger, share exchange or similar event equal to the Liquidation Preference as
of the consummation of such merger, share exchange or similar event.
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Section 7. Redemption by the Corporation.

7.1 At any time following the third (3rd) anniversary of the Qualification Date, the Corporation may, upon thirty (30) days’
notice, redeem all or any portion of the then outstanding Shares for cash at a redemption price per Share equal to the sum of (i) the
corresponding redemption price below (the “Base Redemption Price”) plus (ii) the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends on such
Shares being redeemed, if any, whether or not declared, to and including the date immediately prior to such date of redemption (such

sum, the “Series A Redemption Price”):

Redemption Period Base Redemption Price
, 2019 to , 2020 $ 14
From and after , 2020 $ 15

7.2 In order to exercise its right of redemption, the Corporation shall, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption
date give to each holder of record of the Series A Preferred Stock, at such holder’ s address as it shall appear upon the stock register of
the Corporation on such date, notice by first class mail, postage prepaid. Each such notice of redemption shall be irrevocable and shall
specify the date that is the redemption date, the redemption price, the number of Shares to be redeemed, the place or places of payment
and that payment will be made upon presentation and, to the extent that such Shares are certificated, surrender of the certificate(s)
evidencing the Shares to be redeemed (properly endorsed or assigned for transfer, if the Corporation shall so require).

Section 8. Redemption by the Holders.

8.1 At any time following the sixty (60th) month anniversary of the Qualification Date, the holders of the then outstanding
Shares shall have the right (a “Series A Redemption”), to require the Corporation to redeem all, but not less than all of such holder’ s
Series A Preferred Stock, out of funds legally available therefor, at the Series A Redemption Price. In exchange for the surrender to the
Corporation by the respective holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock of their certificate or certificates representing such Shares
(to the extent that such Shares are certificated) in accordance with Section 8.4 below, the aggregate Series A Redemption Price for all
Shares held by each holder of Shares shall be payable in cash in immediately available funds to the respective holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock on the applicable Series A Redemption Date and the Corporation shall contribute all of its assets to the payment of the
Series A Redemption Price, and to no other corporate purpose, except to the extent prohibited by applicable Delaware law.
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8.2 Redemption. The date of the closing of any such redemption of Shares pursuant to Section 8.1 shall be no later than
ninety (90) days following receipt by the Corporation of the request to effect a redemption of such Shares of Series A Preferred Stock
(the “Series A Redemption Date™).

8.3 Insufficient Funds; Remedies For Nonpayment.

(a) Insufficient Funds. If on any Series A Redemption Date, the assets of the Corporation legally available are insufficient to pay
the full Series A Redemption Price for the total number of Shares elected to be redeemed pursuant to Section 8.1, the Corporation shall
(i) redeem out of all such assets legally available therefor on the applicable Series A Redemption Date the maximum possible number of
Shares that it can redeem on such date, pro rata among the holders of such Shares to be redeemed in proportion to the aggregate number
of Shares elected to be redeemed by each such holder on the applicable Series A Redemption Date and (ii) following the applicable
Series A Redemption Date, at any time and from time to time when additional assets of the Corporation become legally available to
redeem the remaining Shares, the Corporation shall immediately use such assets to pay the remaining balance of the aggregate
applicable Series A Redemption Price.

(b) Remedies For Nonpayment. If on any Series A Redemption Date, all of the Shares elected to be redeemed pursuant to
Section 8.1 are not redeemed in full by the Corporation by paying the entire Series A Redemption Price, until such Shares are fully
redeemed and the aggregate Series A Redemption Price paid in full, (i) all of the unredeemed Shares shall remain outstanding and
continue to have the rights, preferences and privileges expressed herein, including the accrual and accumulation of dividends thereon as
provided in Section 4, (ii) interest on the portion of the aggregate Series A Redemption Price applicable to the unredeemed Shares shall
accrue daily in arrears at a rate equal to the lesser of (x) [ .0]% or (y) the prime rate, as published in the Eastern Edition of the Wall
Street Journal per annum, compounded quarterly.

8.4 Surrender of Certificates. To the extent that such Shares are certificated, on or before the Series A Redemption Date, each
holder of Shares shall surrender the certificate or certificates representing such Shares to the Corporation, in the manner and place
designated by the Corporation, duly assigned or endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock
powers relating thereto), or, in the event the certificate or certificates are lost, stolen or missing, shall deliver an affidavit of loss, in the
manner and place designated by the Corporation. To the extent
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that such Shares are certificated, each surrendered certificate shall be canceled and retired and the Corporation shall thereafter make
payment of the applicable Series A Redemption Price by certified check or wire transfer to the holder of record of such certificate;
provided, however, that if less than all the Shares represented by a surrendered certificate are redeemed, then a new stock certificate
representing the unredeemed Shares shall be issued in the name of the applicable holder of record of canceled stock certificate.

8.5 No Rights Subsequent to Redemption. If on the applicable Series A Redemption Date, the Series A Redemption Price is
paid (or tendered for payment) for any of the Shares to be redeemed on such Series A Redemption Date, then on such date all rights of
the holder in the Shares so redeemed and paid or tendered, including any rights to dividends on such Shares, shall cease, and such
Shares shall no longer be deemed issued and outstanding.

Section 9. Conversion. Each holder of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall have conversion rights as follows:

9.1 Right to Convert. Subject to Section 9.3, (i) each Share shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any
time after the third (3rd) anniversary of the date of issuance of such Share, at the office of the Corporation or any transfer agent for such
stock, into such number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing (i) the sum of (x) the
Series A Original Issue Price (as adjusted pursuant hereto for stock splits, stock dividends, reclassifications and the like) plus (y) the
amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends on such Shares being converted, if any, whether or not declared, to and including the date
immediately prior to such date of conversion, by (ii) the Conversion Price applicable to such Share, in effect on the date the certificate is
surrendered for conversion. The number of shares of Common Stock into which each Share is convertible, after taking into account any
such adjustments, is hereinafter referred to as the “Conversion Ratio.” Upon any decrease or increase in the Conversion Price as
described below and in Section 9.4, the Conversion Ratio shall be appropriately increased or decreased. The “Conversion Price” per
Share shall be equal to the price corresponding in the table below:

Conversion Period Conversion Price
,2019 to , 2020 $ 14
From and after , 2020 $ 15
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9.2 Automatic Conversion. Each Share shall automatically be converted into shares of Common Stock in accordance with the
then-effective Conversion Ratio upon the earlier of (i) except as provided below in Section 9.4, immediately prior to the closing of the
Corporation’ s sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), (A) which results in aggregate cash proceeds to the
Corporation of not less than $30,000,000 (net of underwriting discounts and commissions) (B) is made at an offering price per share of
at least the then applicable Conversion Price (as adjusted and subject to the last paragraph of this Section 9.2) and (C) following such
offering, the Common Stock is listed for trading on a national securities exchange, and (ii) the date specified by written consent or
agreement of the holders of at least 662/3% of the then outstanding Shares (a “Qualified IPO”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the
closing of a Qualified IPO occurs prior to , 2019, the Conversion Price per Share applicable to the conversion effected pursuant
to this Section 9.2 shall be the price corresponding in the table below:

Conversion Period Conversion Price
,2016 to ,2017 § 11
,2017 to ,2018 $§ 12
,2018 to ,2019 § 13

9.3 Mechanics of Conversion. Before any holder of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to convert such Series A
Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock, the holder shall surrender the certificate or certificates therefor, duly endorsed (or a
reasonably acceptable affidavit and indemnity undertaking in the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed certificate), at the office of the
Corporation or of any transfer agent for such Series A Preferred Stock, and shall give written notice to the Corporation at its principal
corporate office, of the election to convert the same and shall state therein the name or names in which the certificate or certificates for
shares of Common Stock are to be issued. The Corporation shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, issue and deliver at such office to
such holder of Series A Preferred Stock, or to the nominee or nominees of such holder, a certificate or certificates for the number of
shares of Common Stock to which such holder shall be entitled as aforesaid, and a certificate for the remaining number of Shares if less
than all of such Series A Preferred Stock evidenced by the certificates were surrendered. Such conversion shall be deemed to have been
made immediately prior to the close of business on (i) the date of such surrender of the Shares to be converted or (ii) if applicable, the
date of automatic conversion specified in Section 9.2 above, and the Person or Persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock
issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such shares of Common Stock as of
such date. If the conversion is in connection with an underwritten public offering of securities registered pursuant to the Securities Act
the
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conversion may, at the option of any holder tendering such Series A Preferred Stock for conversion, be conditioned upon the closing
with the underwriters of the sale of securities pursuant to such offering, in which event any Persons entitled to receive Common Stock
upon conversion of such Series A Preferred Stock shall not be deemed to have converted such Series A Preferred Stock until
immediately prior to the closing of such sale of securities.

9.4 Conversion Price Adjustments of Preferred Stock for Splits and Combinations. If the Corporation at any time after the
date of issue of the Series A Preferred Stock (a) declares a dividend or makes a distribution on Common Stock payable in Common
Stock, (b) subdivides or splits the outstanding Common Stock, (¢) combines or reclassifies the outstanding Common Stock into a
smaller number of shares, (d) issues any shares of its capital stock in a reclassification of Common Stock (including any such
reclassification in connection with a consolidation or merger in which the Corporation is the continuing corporation), or (¢) consolidates
with, merges with or into or is converted into any other Person, the Conversion Price in effect at the time of the record date for such
dividend or distribution or of the effective date of such subdivision, split, combination or reclassification shall be adjusted so that the
conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock after such time shall entitle the holder to receive the aggregate number of shares of Common
Stock or other securities of the Corporation (or shares of any security into which such shares of Common Stock have been combined,
consolidated, merged, converted or reclassified pursuant to Sections 9.4(a), 9.4(d) or 9.4(e)) which, if this Series A Preferred Stock had
been converted immediately prior to such time, such holder would have owned upon such conversion and been entitled to receive by
virtue of such dividend, distribution, subdivision, split, combination, consolidation, merger, conversion or reclassification. Such
adjustment shall be made successively whenever any event listed above shall occur.

9.5 Other Distributions. In the event the Corporation shall declare a distribution in respect of the Common Stock (other than a
subdivision, combination or merger or sale of assets transaction provided for in Section 9.4) payable in securities of other Persons,
evidences of indebtedness issued by the Corporation or other Persons, assets (excluding cash dividends) or options or rights not referred
to in Section 9.4(a), then, in each such case for the purpose of this Section 9.5, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled
to a proportionate share of any such distribution as though they were the holders of the number of shares of Common Stock of the
Corporation into which their shares of Series A Preferred Stock are convertible as of the record date fixed for the determination of the
holders of Common Stock of the Corporation entitled to receive such distribution.
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9.6 Recapitalizations. If at any time or from time to time there shall be a recapitalization of the Common Stock (other than a
subdivision, combination or merger or sale of assets transaction provided for in Section 9.4) provision shall be made so that the holders
of Series A Preferred Stock shall thereafter be entitled to receive upon conversion of such Series A Preferred Stock the number of shares
of stock or other securities or property of the Corporation or otherwise, to which a holder of Common Stock deliverable upon
conversion would have been entitled on such recapitalization. In any such case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application
of the provisions of this Section 9 with respect to the rights of the holders of such Series A Preferred Stock after the recapitalization to
the end that the provisions of this Section 9 (including adjustment of the Conversion Ratio then in effect and the number of shares
purchasable upon conversion of such Preferred Stock) shall be applicable after that event and be as nearly equivalent as practicable.

9.7 No Fractional Shares and Certificate as to Adjustments.

(a) No fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of any Share, and the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued
shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share. The number of shares issuable upon such conversion shall be determined on the basis
of the total number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock the holder is at the time converting into Common Stock and the number of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such aggregate conversion. If the conversion would result in any fractional share, the
Corporation shall, in lieu of issuing any such fractional share, pay the holder thereof an amount in cash equal to the fair market value of
such fractional share on the date of conversion, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

(b) Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Price of any series of Preferred Stock pursuant to
this Section 9, the Corporation, at its expense, shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms
hereof and prepare and furnish to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such adjustment or readjustment and
showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The Corporation shall, upon the written request at any
time of any holder of Series A Preferred Stock, furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth (A) such
adjustment and readjustment, (B) the Conversion Price for the Series A Preferred Stock at the time in effect and (C) the number of
shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other property which at the time would be received upon the conversion of a share
of Series A Preferred Stock.

9.8 Notices of Record Date. In the event of any taking by the Corporation of a record of the holders of any class of securities
for the purpose of determining the holders thereof who are entitled to receive any dividend (other than a
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cash dividend) or other distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of stock of any class or any
other securities or property, or to receive any other right, the Corporation shall mail to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock, at least
ten (10) days prior to the date specified therein, a notice specifying the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of
such dividend, distribution or right, and the amount and character of such dividend, distribution or right.

9.9 Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of Series A Preferred
Stock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding
shares of the Series A Preferred Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall not be
sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, in addition to such other remedies as shall
be available to the holder of Series A Preferred Stock, the Corporation will take such corporate action as may, in the opinion of its
counsel, be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient for
such purposes, including, without limitation, engaging in best efforts to obtain the requisite stockholder approval of any necessary
amendment to this Certificate of Designations.

Section 10. Reissuance of Series A Preferred Stock. Any Shares redeemed or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any
Subsidiary shall become authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred
Stock to be created by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject to the conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth
herein.

Section 11. Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other
communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given: (a) when delivered by hand (with written
confirmation of receipt); (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); or
(c) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications
must be sent (a) to the Corporation, at its principal executive offices and (b) to any stockholder, at such holder’ s address at it appears in
the stock records of the Corporation (or at such other address for a stockholder as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with
this Section 11).
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Section 12. Waiver. The holders of at least a majority of the outstanding Shares, voting as one class, may also amend and waive
compliance with any provision of this Certificate of Designations.

Section 13. No Preemptive Rights. No Share shall have any rights of preemption whatsoever as to any securities of the
Corporation, or any warrants, rights or options issued or granted with respect thereto, regardless of how such securities, or such
warrants, rights or options, may be designated, issued or granted.

Section 14. No Sinking Fund. No sinking fund shall be created for the redemption or purchase of shares of the Series A Preferred
Stock.

Section 15. Transfer Taxes. The Corporation shall pay any and all stock transfer, documentary, stamp and similar taxes that may be
payable in respect of any initial issuance or delivery of the Series A Preferred Stock or certificates representing such Shares, if any. The
Corporation shall not, however, be required to pay any such tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance
or delivery of Shares in a name other than that in which the Shares were registered, or in respect of any payment to any Person other
than a payment to the initial registered holder thereof.

Section 16. Other Rights. The Shares shall not have any rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers or relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as expressly set forth herein or in the
Certificate of Incorporation or as required by applicable law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, KeyStone Solutions, Inc. has caused its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and this Certificate of
Designations to be signed by its[e], this [@] day of 2016.

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:
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Annex B - Unit Warrant

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

Warrant No.: [ ]
Number of Shares of Common Stock: [ ]
Date of Issuance: [ ], 2016 (“Issuance Date”)

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, [HOLDER], the registered holder hereof or its permitted
assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price (as defined
below) then in effect, at any time or times on or after [ ], 2016 (the “Initial Exercisability Date”), but not after 11:59 p.m., New
York time, on the Expiration Date, (as defined below), [ ] ([ ]) fully paid nonassessable shares of Common Stock, subject to adjustment
as provided herein (the “Warrant Shares”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Warrant to Purchase Common
Stock (including any Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, this “Warrant”), shall
have the meanings set forth in Section 17. This Warrant is issued pursuant to that certain Subscription Agreement, dated [ ], 2016
(the “Subscription Date”), between the Company and Holder (the “Subscription Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein and not
otherwise defined shall have the definitions ascribed to such terms in the Subscription Agreement.

EXERCISE OF WARRANT.

Mechanics of Exercise. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder at any
time or times on or after the Initial Exercisability Date, in whole or in part, by (i) delivery of a written notice, in the form attached hereto
as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’ s election to exercise this Warrant and (ii) (A) payment to the Company of an
amount equal to the applicable Exercise Price multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is being exercised
(the “Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash by wire transfer of immediately available funds or (B) if the provisions of Section 1(d) are
applicable, by notifying the Company that this Warrant is being exercised pursuant to a Cashless Exercise (as defined in Section 1(c)).
The Holder shall not be required to deliver the original Warrant in order to effect an exercise hereunder. Execution and delivery of the
Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the original Warrant and
issuance of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase the remaining number of Warrant Shares. On or before the first (1st) Trading
Day following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by facsimile or e-mail an
acknowledgment of confirmation of receipt of the Exercise Notice to the Holder and the Company’ s transfer agent (the “Transfer
Agent”). On or before the third (3rd) Trading Day following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice, so long
as the Holder delivers the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise) on or prior to the second (2nd) Trading Day
following the date on which the Company has received the Exercise Notice (the “Share Delivery Date”) (provided that if the
Aggregate Exercise Price has not been delivered by such date, the Share Delivery Date shall be one (1) Trading Day after the Aggregate
Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise) is delivered), the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating
in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, credit such aggregate number of Warrant
Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’ s or its designee’ s balance account with DTC through its
Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system, or (Y) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities
Transfer Program, issue and dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in
the Company’ s share register in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled
pursuant to such exercise. The Company shall be responsible for all fees and expenses of the Transfer Agent and all fees and expenses
with respect to the issuance of Warrant Shares via DTC, if any. Upon delivery of the Exercise Notice and payment of the Aggregate
Exercise Price, the Holder shall be deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the
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holder of record of the Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant has been exercised, irrespective of the date such Warrant
Shares are credited to the Holder’ s DTC account or the date of delivery of the certificates evidencing such Warrant Shares, as the case
may be. If this Warrant is submitted in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares
represented by this Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then
the Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event later than three (3) Trading Days after any exercise and at its own expense,
issue a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares issuable
immediately prior to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant is
exercised. No fractional Warrant Shares are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of Warrant Shares to be
issued shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number.

Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $2.00 per Warrant Share, subject to adjustment
as provided herein.

Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, if at any time there is not a current,
valid and effective registration statement covering the issuance of the Warrant Shares that are the subject of the Exercise Notice, the
Holder may, in its sole discretion, exercise this Warrant in whole or in part and, in lieu of making the cash payment otherwise
contemplated to be made to the Company upon such exercise in payment of the Aggregate Exercise Price, elect instead to receive upon
such exercise the “Net Number” of shares of Common Stock determined according to the following formula (a “Cashless Exercise”):

Net Number=(AxB)-(AxC)
D

For purposes of the foregoing formula:
A= the total number of shares with respect to which this Warrant is then being exercised.

B= the arithmetic average of the Closing Sale Prices of the Common Stock for the five (5) consecutive Trading Days
ending on the date immediately preceding the date of the Exercise Notice.

C= the Exercise Price then in effect for the applicable Warrant Shares at the time of such exercise.

D= the Closing Sale Price of the Common Stock on the date of the Exercise Notice.

If Warrant Shares are issued pursuant to such a Cashless Exercise, the parties acknowledge and agree that in accordance with
Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act, the Warrant Shares shall take on the registered characteristics of the Warrants being exercised. The
Company agrees not to take any position contrary to this Section 2(c), subject to any change in applicable law, regulation or guidance.

Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the
Warrant Shares, the Company shall promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such
dispute in accordance with Section 12.

Insufficient Authorized Shares. If at any time while this Warrant remains outstanding the Company does not have a
sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve for issuance upon exercise
of this Warrant at least a number of shares of Common Stock equal to the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time
be necessary to effect the exercise of all of this Warrant then outstanding (the “Required Reserve Amount” and the failure to have
such sufficient number of authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock, an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the Company
shall immediately take all action necessary to increase the Company’ s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount sufficient to
allow the Company to reserve the Required Reserve Amount for this Warrant then outstanding.
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ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES. The Exercise Price and the number of
Warrant Shares shall be adjusted from time to time as follows:

(a) Voluntary Adjustment By Company. The Company may at any time during the term of this Warrant, with the prior
written consent of the Holder, reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount and for any period of time deemed appropriate by
the Board of Directors of the Company.

Adjustment Upon Subdivision or Combination of Common Stock. If the Company at any time on or after the
Subscription Date subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding
Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such subdivision will be
proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any time on or after the
Subscription Date combines (by combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding Common Stock
into a smaller number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased
and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately decreased. Any adjustment under this Section 2(b) shall become effective at
the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination becomes effective.

RIGHTS UPON DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS. If the Company shall declare or make any dividend or other distribution of
its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including, without
limitation, any distribution of cash, stock or other securities, property, options, evidence of indebtedness or any other assets by way of a
dividend, spin off, reclassification, corporate rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other similar transaction) (a “Distribution™), at
any time after the issuance of this Warrant, then, in each such case, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such Distribution to the
same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable
upon complete exercise of this Warrant (without regard to any limitations or restrictions on exercise of this Warrant) immediately before
the date of which a record is taken for such Distribution, or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of
Common Stock are to be determined for the participation in such Distribution.

FUNDAMENTAL TRANSACTIONS:; COMPANY’ S CALL RIGHT.

(b) Fundamental Transactions. The Company shall not enter into or be party to a Fundamental Transaction unless the
Successor Entity assumes in writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant in accordance with the provisions of this
Section 4(a) pursuant to written agreements, including agreements to deliver to the Holder in exchange for such Warrant a security of
the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Warrant, including, without
limitation, an adjusted exercise price equal to the value for the Common Stock reflected by the terms of such Fundamental Transaction,
and exercisable for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock equivalent to the Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon
exercise of this Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with an exercise price which applies the exercise price hereunder to
such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction
and the value of such shares of capital stock, such adjustments to the number of shares of capital stock and such exercise price being for
the purpose of protecting the economic value of this Warrant immediately prior to the occurrence or consummation of such
Fundamental Transaction). Upon the occurrence or consummation of any Fundamental Transaction, and it shall be a required condition
to the occurrence or consummation of any Fundamental Transaction that, the Company and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities,
(i) jointly and severally, shall succeed to, and the Company shall cause any Successor Entity or Successor Entities to jointly and
severally succeed to, and be added to the term “Company” under this Warrant (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental
Transaction, each and every provision of this Warrant referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to each of the Company and the
Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly and severally), and the Company and the Successor Entity or Successor Entities, jointly
and severally, may exercise every right and power of the Company prior thereto and shall assume all of the obligations
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of the Company prior thereto under this Warrant with the same effect as if the Company and such Successor Entity or Successor
Entities, jointly and severally, had been named as the Company in this Warrant and (ii) shall deliver to the Holder confirmation that
there shall be issued upon exercise of this Warrant at any time after the occurrence or consummation of the Fundamental Transaction,
Common Stock, Successor Capital Stock or, in lieu of the shares of Common Stock or Successor Capital Stock (or other securities, cash,
assets or other property purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction), such shares of stock,
securities, cash, assets or any other property whatsoever (including warrants or other purchase or subscription rights), which for
purposes of clarification may continue to be shares of Common Stock, if any, that the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon
the happening of such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event resulting in such
Fundamental Transaction, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction or the record, eligibility
or other determination date for the event resulting in such Fundamental Transaction as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of this
Warrant. In addition to and not in substitution for any other rights hereunder, prior to the occurrence or consummation of any
Fundamental Transaction pursuant to which holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive securities, cash, assets or other property
with respect to or in exchange for Common Stock (a “Corporate Event”), the Company shall make appropriate provision to insure
that, and any applicable Successor Entity or Successor Entities shall ensure that, and it shall be a required condition to the occurrence or
consummation of such Corporate Event that, the Holder will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise of this Warrant at any
time after the occurrence or consummation of the Corporate Event, Common Stock or Successor Capital Stock or, if so elected by the
Holder, in lieu of the Common Stock (or other securities, cash, assets or other property) purchasable upon the exercise of this Warrant
prior to such Corporate Event (but not in lieu of such items still issuable under Section 3, which shall continue to be receivable on the
Common Stock or on the such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property otherwise receivable with respect to or in
exchange for Common Stock), such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property whatsoever (including warrants or
other purchase or subscription rights and any Common Stock) which the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the
occurrence or consummation of such Corporate Event or the record, eligibility or other determination date for the event resulting in such
Corporate Event, had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to such Corporate Event or the record, eligibility or other
determination date for the event resulting in such Corporate Event. Provision made pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be in a form
and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder. The provisions of this Section 4(a) shall apply similarly and equally to successive
Fundamental Transactions and Corporate Events.

(c) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, and providing that there is an effective registration statement
registering the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant, on or before the Expiration Date, upon twenty (20) days
prior written notice to the Holder (each, a “Call Notice”) following the date on which the last sale price of the Company’ s Common
Stock equals or exceeds $ per share for twenty (20) consecutive Trading Days, as may be adjusted for stock splits, stock
dividends and similar corporate events, and the daily average minimum volume of the Common Stock during those twenty (20) Trading
Days is at least shares, the Company shall have the right to call any or all of the Warrants at a call price of $ per
underlying Warrant Share (the “Call Price”). Warrant holders shall have the period from the date of the Call Notice until 5 p.m., Eastern
time, on the twentieth (20th) day following the Call Notice (the “Call Date™) to exercise the Warrant pursuant to the terms hereof. Any
Warrants which have been called but remain unexercised by the Call Date shall automatically terminate and no longer entitle the Holder
to exercise such Warrant or to receive any consideration therefor, other than the Call Price. For any Warrants which are not exercised by
the Call Date, the Company shall promptly as possible following the Call Date pay the Call Price to the Holder of any Warrants which
have been called and not exercised.

NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its
Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme of arrangement,
dissolution, issue or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action, avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the
terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all of the provisions of this Warrant and take all action as may be
required to protect the rights of the Holder hereunder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company shall (i) not
increase the par value of any shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in
effect, (ii) take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order that the Company may validly and
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legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) take all action necessary
to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the exercise of this
Warrant, the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of this Warrant then
outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise).

WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder,
solely in such Person’ s capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of
share capital of the Company for any purpose, nor shall anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder,
solely in such Person’ s capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of the Company or any right to vote,
give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation,
merger, conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior to the
issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which such Person is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In
addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the Holder to purchase any securities (upon
exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by
creditors of the Company. Notwithstanding this Section 6, the Company shall provide the Holder with copies of the same notices and
other information given to the stockholders of the Company generally, contemporaneously with the giving thereof to the stockholders.

REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.

(d) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company,
whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)),
registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares being transferred by the Holder
and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with
Section 7(d)) to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company
of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification
undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary form and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this
Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to
purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.

Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the
principal office of the Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing in the aggregate the right
to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant, and each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase
such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender.

Issuance of New Warrants. Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this
Warrant, such new Warrant (i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant,
the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant (or in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to
Section 7(a) or Section 7(c), the Warrant Shares designated by the Holder which, when added to the number of shares of Common Stock
underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then
underlying this Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the
Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and conditions as this Warrant.

NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, unless otherwise provided herein, such notice
shall be given in accordance with Section of the Subscription Agreement. The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt
written notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant,
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including in reasonable detail a description of such action and the reason therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Company will give written notice to the Holder (i) immediately upon any adjustment of the Exercise Price, setting forth in reasonable
detail, and certifying, the calculation of such adjustment and (ii) at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date on which the Company closes
its books or takes a record (A) with respect to any dividend or distribution upon the Common Stock, (B) with respect to any grants,
issuances or sales of any Options, Convertible Securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property to holders of
Common Stock or (C) for determining rights to vote with respect to any Fundamental Transaction, dissolution or liquidation; provided
in each case that such information shall be made known to the public prior to or in conjunction with such notice being provided to the
Holder. It is expressly understood and agreed that the time of exercise specified by the Holder in each Exercise Notice shall be definitive
and may not be disputed or challenged by the Company.

AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended
or waived and the Company may take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it,
only if the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holder.

GOVERNING LAW:; JURISDICTION; JURY TRIAL. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced
in accordance with, and all questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be
governed by, the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule
(whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdictions other than
the State of New York. The Company hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in
The City of New York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any
transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or
proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit, action or proceeding is brought
in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. The Company hereby irrevocably waives
personal service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to the
Company at the address set forth in the Subscription Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service
of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner
permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or operate to preclude the Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal
action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on the Company’ s obligations to the Holder, to realize on any collateral
or any other security for such obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. THE COMPANY
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL
FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS
WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

HEADINGS. The headings used in this Warrant are for convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose,
form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic
calculation of the Warrant Shares, the Company shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile within
two (2) Business Days of receipt of the Exercise Notice giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and
the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or calculation of the Exercise Price or the Warrant Shares within three
(3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation being submitted to the Holder, then the Company shall,
within two (2) Business Days submit via facsimile (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price to an independent, reputable
investment bank selected by the Company and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares
to the Company’ s independent, outside accountant. The Company shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant, as
the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and notify the Company and the Holder of the results no later than ten
(10) Business Days from the time it receives the disputed determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’ s or accountant’ s
determination or calculation, as the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.
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REMEDIES. OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The remedies provided in this Warrant
shall be cumulative and in addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant and the Subscription Agreement, at law or in
equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the right of the Holder
to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company acknowledges that a
breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may
be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the holder of this Warrant shall
be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach, without the necessity of showing
economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.

TRANSFER. This Warrant and the Warrant Shares may be offered for sale, sold, transferred, pledged or assigned without the
consent of the Company.

SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be
deemed amended to apply to the broadest extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such
provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so long as this Warrant as so modified continues to
express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal
obligations of the parties or the practical realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will
endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect
of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s).

DISCLOSURE. Upon receipt or delivery by the Company of any notice in accordance with the terms of this Warrant, unless
the Company has in good faith determined that the matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information
relating to the Company or its subsidiaries, the Company shall within one (1) Business Day after any such receipt or delivery publicly
disclose such material, nonpublic information on a Current Report on Form 8-K or otherwise. In the event that the Company believes
that a notice contains material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its subsidiaries, the Company so shall indicate to such
Holder contemporaneously with delivery of such notice, and in the absence of any such indication, the Holder shall be allowed to
presume that all matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(e) “Bloomberg” means Bloomberg Financial Markets.

“Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of
New York are authorized or required by law to remain closed.

“Closing Bid Price” and “Closing Sale Price” means, for any security as of any date, the last closing bid price and
last closing trade price, respectively, for such security on the Principal Market, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market
begins to operate on an extended hours basis and does not designate the closing bid price or the closing trade price, as the case may be,
then the last bid price or the last trade price, respectively, of such security prior to 4:00:00 p.m., New York time, as reported by
Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal securities exchange or trading market for such security, the last closing bid
price or last trade price, respectively, of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed
or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or if the foregoing do not apply, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such
security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no closing bid
price or last trade price, respectively, is reported for such security by Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices, or the ask prices,
respectively, of any market makers for such security as
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reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Closing Bid Price or
the Closing Sale Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Closing Bid Price or the
Closing Sale Price, as the case may be, of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the
Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such
dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section 12. All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split,
stock combination, reclassification or other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

“Common Stock” means (i) the Company’ s Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (ii) any share capital
into which such Common Stock shall have been changed or any share capital resulting from a reclassification of such Common Stock.

“Convertible Securities” means any stock or securities (other than Options) directly or indirectly convertible into or
exercisable or exchangeable for Common Stock.

“Eligible Market” means the Principal Market, the NYSE MKT LLC, The NASDAQ Global Select Market, The
NASDAQ Capital Market, The NASDAQ Global Market or The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

“Expiration Date” means the date eighty-four (84) months after the Initial Exercisability Date or, if such date falls on
a day other than a Business Day or on which trading does not take place on the Principal Market (a “Holiday”), the next day that is not
a Holiday.

“Fundamental Transaction” means (i) a merger or consolidation of the Company into or with another corporation in
which the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to the consummation of such transaction shall own less than 50% of the
voting securities or less than 50% of the voting power of the surviving corporation (or the parent corporation of the surviving
corporation where the surviving corporation is directly or indirectly wholly-owned by the parent corporation) immediately following the
consummation of such transaction, (ii) any sale or other transfer, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, of fifty percent
(50%) or more of the outstanding voting stock of the Company, or (iii) the consummation of the sale, transfer or lease (including by
merger or consolidation of one or more subsidiaries or otherwise, but not including a transfer or lease by pledge or mortgage to a bona
fide lender) of all or substantially all of (A) the assets of the Company or (B) the assets of the Company and/or one or more subsidiaries
constituting all or substantially all of the assets of the Company (determined on a consolidated basis with the Company and all of its
subsidiaries).

“Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase Common Stock or Convertible
Securities.

“Parent Entity” of a Person means an entity that, directly or indirectly, controls the applicable Person, including such
entity whose Common Stock or common stock or equivalent equity security is quoted or listed on an Eligible Market, or, if there is more
than one such Person or such entity, such Person or entity with the largest public market capitalization as of the date of consummation of
the Fundamental Transaction.

“Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an
unincorporated organization, any other entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.

“Principal Market” means [ .

“Successor Entity” means one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or Parent
Entity) formed by, resulting from or surviving any Fundamental Transaction or one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the
Holder, the Company or the Parent Entity) with which such Fundamental Transaction shall have been entered into.
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“Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal
Market is not the principal trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on
which the Common Stock are then traded; provided that “Trading Day” shall not include any day on which the Common Stock are
scheduled to trade on such exchange or market for less than 4.5 hours or any day that the Common Stock are suspended from trading
during the final hour of trading on such exchange or market (or if such exchange or market does not designate in advance the closing
time of trading on such exchange or market, then during the hour ending at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time).

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the

Issuance Date set out above.

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:
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EXHIBIT A
EXERCISE NOTICE
TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK
KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase of the Common Stock (““Warrant Shares”) of

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common
Stock (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the
Warrant.

1. Form of Exercise Price. The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as:

a “Cash Exercise” with respect to Warrant Shares; and/or

a “Cashless Exercise” with respect to Warrant Shares.

2. Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or all of the Warrant
Shares to be issued pursuant hereto, the holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of § to the Company in
accordance with the terms of the Warrant.

3. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms
of the Warrant.

Date: s

Name of Registered Holder

By:

Name:
Title:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
AOC Key Solutions, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AOC Key Solutions, Inc. (a Delaware corporation), which comprise the
balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’ s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’ s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’ s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’ s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Board of Directors
AOC Key Solutions

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of AOC Key
Solutions, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

March 15, 2016
New Orleans, Louisiana

/s/ Ericksen Krentel & LaPorte, LLP

Certified Public Accountants
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Exhibit “A”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
B ALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
ASSETS
2015 2014
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $567,866 $632,308
Accounts receivable 1,734,022 1,627,074
Employee advances 20,594 39,335
Prepaid expenses 53,159 57,609
Total current assets 2,375,641 2,356,326
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Furniture and fixtures 136,327 136,327
Office equipment 434,037 402,716
Leasehold improvements 33,259 7,237
603,623 546,280
Less: accumulated depreciation (469,517 ) (399,249 )
Net property and equipment 134,106 147,031
OTHER ASSETS:
Deposits 39,282 39,282
Total other assets 39,282 39,282
Total assets $2,549,029  $2,542,639

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Exhibit “A”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
2015 2014
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $419,482 $378,751
Deposits 4,242 4,242
Accrued expenses 31,684 33,957
Accrued wages and leave 511,204 697,288
Total current liabilities 966,612 1,114,238
Total liabilities 966,612 1,114,238
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, no par value, 1,500 shares authorized, 1,370 shares issued and outstanding = =
Additional paid-in capital 597,704 597,704
Retained earnings 984,713 830,697
Total stockholders’ equity 1,582,417 1,428,401
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $2,549,029  $2,542,639

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Exhibit “B”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014

REVENUES $9,661,795  $11,519,457
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of revenue 5,281,484 6,396,617
Billable expenses 215,238 222,614
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 3,673,031 4,705,786
Depreciation and amortization 70,268 79,646

Total operating costs and expenses 9,240,021 11,404,663

Operating income 421,774 114,794
OTHER EXPENSES:
Interest expense - 16

Total other expenses = 16

Net income $421,774 $114,778

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Exhibit “C”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014

COMMON STOCK:
Balance at beginning of year $- $-
Balance at end of year $- $-
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Balance at beginning of year $597,704 $597,704
Capital contributed - -
Balance at end of year $597,704 $597,704
RETAINED EARNINGS:
Balance at beginning of year $830,697 $1,035,328
Net income 421,774 114,778
Stockholders’ distributions (267,758 ) (319,909 )
Balance at end of year $984,713 $830,697

Total stockholders’ equity $1,582,417  $1,428,401

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Exhibit “D”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $421,774 $114,778
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 70,268 79,646
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (106,948) 307,893
Employee advances 18,741 (21,124 )
Prepaid expenses 4,450 13,682
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 40,731 2,369
Accrued expenses (2,273 ) (2,793 )
Accrued wages and leave (186,084) (440,620)
Net cash from operating activities 260,659 53,831
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (57,343 ) (32,070 )
Net cash (used for) investing activities (57,343 ) (32,070 )
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Stockholders’ distributions (267,758) (319,909)
Net cash (used for) financing activities (267,758) (319,909)
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (64,442 ) (298,148)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 632,308 930,456
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $567,866 $632,308

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

AOC Key Solutions, Inc. (the Company) provides consulting and technical writing services to assist clients seeking federal
government contracts in the technology, telecommunications, defense, and aerospace industries. The Company is headquartered in
Chantilly, Virginia and has an office in New Orleans, Louisiana.

Method of Accounting

Assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with the maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Management reviews the collectability of accounts receivable on a monthly basis, assessing the credit-worthiness of customers
whose accounts are past due. Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Generally accepted
accounting principles require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts. However, the effect of the use of the direct
write-off method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been
followed.

Property and Equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets. Depreciation is computed on both the
straight line and accelerated basis for financial and tax reporting purposes.

The range of estimated useful lives used for computing depreciation for financial reporting purposes for major asset classifications
are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was $70,268 and $79,646, respectively.
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NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues for the sale of services when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been
rendered or delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and the collectability of the related revenue is reasonably
assured. The Company principally derives revenues from fees for services generated on a project-by-project basis. Revenues for
time-and-materials contracts are recognized based on the number of hours worked by the employees or consultants at an agreed
upon rate per hour set forth in the Company’ s standard rate sheet or as written from time to time in the Company’ s contracts or
purchase orders. Revenues related to firm-fixed-price contracts are recognized as revenue as value is delivered to the client.

Advertising

The Company expenses all non direct-response advertising costs as incurred.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual amounts may differ from these estimates.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under those provisions,
the Company does not pay federal corporate income taxes, and in most instances state income tax, on its taxable income. Instead,
the stockholders are liable for individual income taxes on their respective shares of the Company’ s net income.

The Company’ s evaluation as of December 31, 2015 revealed no tax positions that would have a material impact on the financial
statements. The 2012 through 2015 tax years remain subject to examination by the IRS. Management does not believe that any
reasonably possible changes will occur within the next twelve months that will have a material impact on the financial statements.
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(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 15, 2016, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

(2) SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information for the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $- $16

(3) LEASE OBLIGATIONS
Operating Leases

The Company leases office space in Chantilly, Virginia under the terms of a ten-year lease expiring October 31, 2019. The lease
contains one five-year renewal option. The lease terms include an annual increase in base rent and expenses of 2.75%.

The Company leases office space in New Orleans, Louisiana. The lease is a three year lease expiring May 31, 2018.
Rent expense was $500,415 and $478,079 respectively for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company’ s long-term lease expiring in 2019 are as follows:

2016 $491,934
2017 505,484
2018 513,939
2019 435314
Total $1,946,671
F-12
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LEASE OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Operating Leases (Continued)

The Company is the lessor in an agreement to sub-lease office space in Chantilly, Virginia under the terms of a seven-year lease,
which expired October 31, 2014. The Company exercised the first and second renewal options on the lease. These options extend
the lease until August 31, 2016. The lease terms include an annual increase in base rent and expenses of 2.90%. On April 7, 2015,
the lease was amended to sub-lease more space to the subtenant and change the rental calculation.

Rent income was $156,375 and $101,522, respectively for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has an available line of credit with the Sandy Spring Bank for up to $1,000,000. The Company’ s borrowing base
under the terms of this credit line is 80% of accounts receivable aged less than 90 days, up to the maximum $1,000,000 available.
The line has a maturity date of September 30, 2016 and bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus a margin of .50%,
or 3.75% at December 31, 2015 and 2014. There was no outstanding balance on this line of credit at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company invests the majority of its excess cash in demand deposit accounts with a federally insured financial institution
located in Virginia, which at times may exceed the federally insured limit of $250,000. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company had $375,972 and $238,789, respectively, of cash on deposit that exceeded federally insured limit.

The Company routinely extends credit to customers in connection with the consulting and technical writing services provided.
These accounts receivable are unsecured.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company advanced $30,000 to a family member of a 30% owner. The advance was made in July 2014, and the entire amount
was still outstanding at December 31, 2014. The amount outstanding under this receivable was $20,594 at December 31, 2015.
The outstanding balance is included in employee advances on the accompanying balance sheet.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On March 15, 2016, AOC Key Solutions, Inc. (“Key Solutions™) entered into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with
Keystone Solutions, Inc. (“Keystone) and KCS Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Keystone.
Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on March 15, 2016, Merger Sub was merged with and into Key Solutions, and thus Key
Solutions became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Keystone. The operations of Key Solutions have not changed, nor have any assets

or operations transferred to either Keystone or Merger Sub. The stockholders’ proportionate ownership of Keystone remains the
same as it was for Key Solutions.
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AOC KEY SOLUTIONS. INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE THREE AND SIX MONTHS ENDED

JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
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Schedule “1”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
ASSETS
2016 2015
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $17,136 $425,000
Accounts receivable 3,280,721 1,845,593
Intercompany receivable 113,707 -
Employee advances - 29,413
Prepaid expenses 57,679 71,893
Deferred tax asset 44,041 -
Total current assets 3,513,284 2,371,899
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Furniture and fixtures 136,327 136,327
Office equipment 466,518 446,550
Leasehold improvements 33,259 7,237
636,104 590,114
Less: accumulated depreciation (522,835 ) (455,719 )
Net property and equipment 113,269 134,395
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred tax asset 63,203 =
Deposits 39,282 39,282
Total other assets 102,485 39,282
Total assets $3,729,038  $2,545,576
F-17
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Schedule “1” (cont.)

AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2016 2015

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $618,475 $405,093
Deposits 4,242 4,242
Accrued expenses 19,757 26,447
Accrued wages and leave 616,126 705,034
Line of credit 39,352 -
Accrued income taxes payable 161,159 -

Total current liabilities 1,459,111 1,140,816
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Deferred tax liability - _

Total long-term liabilities = =

Total liabilities 1,459,111 1,140,816
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, no par value, 1,500 shares authorized, 1,370 shares issued and outstanding for 2015 - -
Additional paid-in capital 597,704 597,704
Retained earnings 1,672,223 807,056

Total stockholders’ equity 2,269,927 1,404,760

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $3,729,038  $2,545,576
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Schedule “2”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
2016 2015
REVENUES $7,177,345  $4,311,170
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of revenue 3,955,119 2,361,872
Billable expenses 207,035 78,009
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 2,094,830 1,838,458
Depreciation and amortization 53,318 56,470
Total operating costs and expenses 6,310,302 4,334,809
Operating income (loss) 867,043 (23,639 )
Net income (loss) before taxes 867,043 (23,639 )
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXES:
Current 161,159 -
Deferred (107,244 ) -
Total (benefit from) income taxes (83915 ) -
Net income (loss) $813,128 $(23,639 )
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Schedule “3”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED
2016 2015
COMMON STOCK:
Balance at beginning of period $- $-
Balance at end of period $- $-
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Balance at beginning of period $597,704 $597,704
Capital contributed - -
Balance at end of period $597,704 $597,704
RETAINED EARNINGS:
Balance at beginning of period $984,710 $830,695
Net income (loss) 813,128 (23,639 )
Stockholders’ distributions (125,615 )
Balance at end of period $1,672,223  $807,056
Total stockholders’ equity $2,269,927  $1,404,760
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AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Intercompany receivables
Employee advances
Prepaid expenses
Deferred tax asset

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued wages and leave
Accrued income taxes payable
Deferred tax liability

Net cash (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Capital expenditures
Net cash (used for) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Advances on line of credit
Repayment of loans from officers
Proceeds from additional paid-in-capital
Stockholders’ distributions
Net cash (used for) financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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2016 2015
$813,128 $(23,639 )
53,318 56,470
(1,546,699) (218,519)
(113,707 ) =
20,594 9,922
(4,520 ) (14,284 )
(107,244 ) -
198,993 26,342
(11,927 ) (7,510 )
104,919 7,745
161,159 =
(431,986 ) (163,473)
(32,481 ) (43,835 )
(32,481 ) (43,835 )
39,352 -
(125,615 ) =
(86,263 ) -
(550,730 ) (207,308)
567,866 632,308
$17,136 $425,000
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Schedule “5”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
2016 2015

REVENUES $3,744,579  $2,184,996
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of revenue 2,076,236 1,156,433
Billable expenses 113,611 39,714
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 1,091,061 884,459
Depreciation and amortization 27,055 28,287

Total operating costs and expenses 3,307,963 2,108,893

Operating income (loss) 436,616 76,103

Net income (loss) before taxes 436,616 76,103
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXES:
Current 161,189 -
Deferred 81,319 ) -

Total (benefit from) income taxes 79,840 -

Net income (loss) $356,776 $76,103
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Schedule “6”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED
2016 2015
COMMON STOCK:
Balance at beginning of period $- $-
Balance at end of period $- $-
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Balance at beginning of period $597,704  $597,704
Capital contributed - -
Balance at end of period $597,704  $597,704
RETAINED EARNINGS:
Balance at beginning of period $- $-
Net income 356,776 76,103
Stockholders’ distributions = =
Balance at end of period $356,776  $76,103
Total stockholders’ equity $954,480  $673,807
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Schedule “7”
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015
(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $356,776 $76,103
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 27,055 28,287
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (434,760) (154,301)
Intercompany receivables 85,885 -
Employee advances - 587
Prepaid expenses 38,216 12,490
Deferred tax asset (47,244 ) -
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable (265,385) 112,998
Accrued expenses 4,847 1,015
Accrued wages and leave (9,894 ) (23,493 )
Accrued income taxes payable 161,159 -
Deferred tax liability (34,075 ) -
Net cash (used for) operating activities (117,420) 53,686
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (21,486 ) (2,086 )
Net cash (used for) investing activities (21,486 ) (2,086 )
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Advances on line of credit 39,352 -
Net cash from financing activities 39,352 -
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (99,554 ) 51,600
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 116,690 373,400
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $17,136 $425,000
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KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS. INC.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 15, 2016 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO JUNE 30, 2016

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
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Exhibit “A”
KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2016
(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
ASSETS
2016
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $26,181
Accounts receivable 3,280,721
Prepaid expenses 57,679
Note receivable 24,000
Accrued interest receivable 28
Deferred tax asset 44,041
Total current assets 3,432,650
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Furniture and fixtures 136,327
Office equipment 466,518
Leasehold improvements 33,259
636,104
Less: accumulated depreciation (522,835 )
Net property and equipment 113,269
OTHER ASSETS:
Cost of preferred stock offering 537,414
Loan origination costs 14,013
Deferred tax asset 63,203
Deposits 39,282
Total other assets 653,912
Total assets $4,199,831

See accompanying NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Exhibit “A” (cont.)

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2016

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2016

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $924,831
Deposits 4,242
Accrued expenses 19,757
Accrued wages and leave 616,126
Accrued income taxes payable 161,159
Line of credit 39,352
Accrued interest payable 1,815

Total current liabilities 1,767,282
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Note payable 500,000
Deferred tax liability _

Total long-term liabilities 500,000

Total liabilities 2,267,282
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized, 5,000,000 shares issued and outstanding 500
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 7,500,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding =
Additional paid-in capital 1,884,502
Retained earnings 47,547

Total stockholders’ equity 1,932,549

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $4,199,831

See accompanying NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CONSOLIDATE STATEMENTS OF INCOME

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 15, 2016 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO JUNE 30, 2016

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)

REVENUES
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of revenue
Billable expenses
Selling, general, and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating income (loss)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):
Interest income
Interest expense
Total other (expenses)
Net income (loss) before taxes

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAXES:

Current

Deferred
Total (benefit from) income taxes
Net income (loss)

Exhibit “B”
For the Period
March 15,2016
Three Months (Date of
Ended Inception) To
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
$3,744,579 $4,377,095
2,076,236 2,491,176
113,611 129,434
1,190,196 1,610,554
27,055 31,432
3,407,098 4,262,596
337,481 114,499
28 28
(11250 ) (13,065 )
(11,222 ) (13,037 )
326,259 101,462
161,159 161,159
(81,319 ) (107,244 )
79,840 53,915
$246,419 $47,547

See accompanying NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 15, 2016 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO JUNE 30, 2016

(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)

COMMON STOCK:

Balance at beginning of period
Common stock shares issued
Balance at end of period
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL:
Balance at beginning of period
Paid-in capital resulting from merger
Balance at end of period
RETAINED EARNINGS:

Balance at beginning of period

Net income

Stockholders’ distributions

Balance at end of period

Total stockholders’ equity
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Exhibit “C”
For the Period
March 15,2016
Three Months (Date of
Ended June 30, Inception) To
2016 June 30, 2016
$500 $-
= 500
$500 $500
$1,884,502 $-
= 1,884,502
$1,884,502 $1,884,502
$(198,872 )  $-
246,419 47,547
$47,547 $47,547
$1,932,549 $1,932,549
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Exhibit “D”
KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD MARCH 15, 2016 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO JUNE 30, 2016
(UNAUDITED - NO ASSURANCE IS PROVIDED)
For the Period
March 15,
Three Months 2016 (Date of
Ended June Inception) To
30, 2016 June 30, 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $246,419 $47,547
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 27,055 31,432
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable (434,760 ) (989,544 )
Interest receivable (28 ) (28 )
Prepaid expenses 38,216 (4,520 )
Employee advances = 20,594
Deposits - -
Deferred tax asset (47,244 ) (107,244 )
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 40,971 272,665
Accrued expenses 4,847 (11,927 )
Accrued wages and leave (9,891 ) 104,922
Accrued income taxes payable 161,159 161,159
Accrued interest payable = 1,815
Deferred tax liability (34,075 ) -
Net cash (used for) operating activities (7,331 ) (473,129 )
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (21,489 ) (32,481 )
Net cash (used for) investing activities (21,489 ) (32,481 )
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings - 500,000
Cost of preferred stock offering (336,250 ) (537,414 )
Issuance of note receivable (24,000 ) (24,000 )
Loan origination costs (14,013 ) (14,013 )
Advances on line of credit 39,352 39,352
Net cash (used for) financing activities (334,911 ) (36,075 )
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (363,731 ) (541,685 )
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 389,912 567,866
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $26,181 $26,181
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(1) NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Keystone Solutions, Inc. (the Company) was formed in March 2016 as a holding company for its wholly owned subsidiary AOC
Key Solutions, Inc. (KSI). AOC Key Solutions, Inc. provides consulting and technical writing services to assist clients seeking
federal government contracts in the technology, telecommunications, defense, and aerospace industries. Both the Company and
KSI are headquartered in Chantilly, Virginia and have an office in New Orleans, Louisiana.

Method of Accounting

Assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Keystone Solutions, Inc., the parent company, and its wholly-owned

subsidiary:

Entity Location

AOC Key Solutions, Inc. Chantilly, Virginia

All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with the maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Management reviews the collectability of accounts receivable on a monthly basis, assessing the credit-worthiness of customers
whose accounts are past due. Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Generally accepted
accounting principles require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts. However, the effect of the use of the direct
write-off method is not materially different from the results that would have been obtained had the allowance method been
followed.
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NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property and Equipment

The cost of property and equipment is depreciated over the useful lives of the related assets. Depreciation is computed on both the
straight line and accelerated basis for financial and tax reporting purposes.

The range of estimated useful lives used for computing depreciation for financial reporting purposes for major asset classifications
are as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 -10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years

Depreciation expense for the period of March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 was $31,432.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues for the sale of services when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services have been
rendered or delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and the collectability of the related revenue is reasonably
assured. The Company principally derives revenues from fees for services generated on a project-by-project basis. Revenues for
time-and-materials contracts are recognized based on the number of hours worked by the employees or consultants at an agreed
upon rate per hour set forth in the Company’ s standard rate sheet or as written from time to time in the Company’ s contracts or
purchase orders. Revenues related to firm-fixed-price contracts are recognized as revenue as value is delivered to the client.

Advertising

The Company expenses all non direct-response advertising costs as incurred.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual amounts may differ from these estimates.
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NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

Through March 15, 2016, KSI had elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. Under
those provisions, KSI does not pay federal corporate income taxes, and in most instances state income tax, on its taxable income.
Instead, the stockholders are liable for individual income taxes on their respective shares of KSI’ s net income. KSI effectively
revoked its S Corporation election upon the March 16, 2016 merger with the Company. Both the Company and KSI are subject to
corporate income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company’ s evaluation as of June 30, 2016 revealed no tax positions that would have a material impact on the financial
statements. The 2012 through 2015 tax years remain subject to examination by the IRS. Management does not believe that any
reasonably possible changes will occur within the next twelve months that will have a material impact on the financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 18, 2016, which is the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

Prior to 2016, KSI used quarter ended dates that coincided with its billing and payroll quarter ended dates of March 27,
2015; June 26, 2015; and September 25, 2015. KSI has used December 31 as its fiscal year end date. In 2016 KSI changed its
quarterly ended dates to coincide with the calendar end date of each quarter.

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information for the period March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016 is as
follows:

Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $13,065

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Non-cash Financing Activities

As more fully disclosed in Note 7, on March 16, 2016, the stockholders exchanged 100% of their outstanding shares of common
stock in KSI for proportionate shares of Keystone Solutions, Inc.” s outstanding common stock.
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(3) LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space in Chantilly, Virginia under the terms of a ten-year lease expiring October 31, 2019. The lease
contains one five-year renewal option. The lease terms include an annual increase in base rent and expenses of 2.75%.

The Company leases office space in New Orleans, Louisiana. The lease is a three year lease expiring May 31, 2018.
Rent expense was $142,041 for the period of March 15 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016.

Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company’ s long-term lease expiring in 2019 are as follows:

2016 $248,451
2017 505,484
2018 513,939
2019 435,314
Total $1,703,188

The Company is the lessor in an agreement to sub-lease office space in Chantilly, Virginia with an initial term of two years with
eight one year options to renew the lease through October 31, 2019. The lease provides for an annual increase in base rent and
expenses of 2.90%. The initial term ended October 31, 2011 and the Company exercised the renewal options through 2015. On
April 7, 2015, the lease was amended to sublease more space to the subtenant and change the rental calculation.

Rent income was $53,239 for the period of March 15, 2016 (date of inception) to June 30, 2016.
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DEBT
Line of Credit

The Company has an available line of credit with the Sandy Spring Bank for up to $1,000,000. The Company’ s borrowing base
under the terms of this credit line is 80% of accounts receivable aged less than 90 days, up to the maximum $1,000,000 available.
The line has a maturity date of September 30, 2016 and bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus a margin of
0.50%, or 4.0% at June 30, 2016. There was no outstanding balance on this line of credit at June 30, 2016.

Long-term Debt

The Company entered into a note payable to Avon Road Partners, L.P. for $500,000 on March 16, 2016. The note is subordinated
to the Company’ s current financing facility with Sandy Spring Bank and any successor financing facility. Simple interest accrues
on the unpaid principal of the note at a rate equal to the lower of (a) 9% per annum, or (b) the highest rate permitted by applicable
law. Interest is payable monthly. The note matures on March 16, 2019.

INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Current $161,159
Deferred (107,244)
Provision for income taxes $(53,915 )

The deferred tax assets on the Company’ s consolidated balance sheets are due to temporary differences related primarily to
depreciation of property and equipment and accrued deferred employee compensation. There was no valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets at June 30, 2016, as management believes that the deferred tax assets will be realized through future operations.

The difference between the effective tax rate and federal statutory tax rate is due primarily to certain expenses which are not
deductible for income tax purposes.
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CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company invests the majority of its excess cash in demand deposit accounts with a federally insured financial institution
located in Virginia, which at times may exceed the federally insured limit of $250,000. At June 30, 2016, the Company had no
cash on deposit that exceeded federally insured limit.

The Company routinely extends credit to customers in connection with the consulting and technical writing services provided.
These accounts receivable are unsecured.

MERGER

On March 15, 2016, the stockholders of AOC Key Solutions, Inc. (“Key Solutions™) formed Keystone Solutions, Inc.
(“Keystone™) as a holding company with the same proportionate ownership percentage as Key Solutions. On that same date Key
Solutions entered into a merger agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) with Keystone and KCS Merger Sub, Inc. (“Merger Sub”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Keystone with no activity. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on March 15, 2016, Merger Sub was
merged with and into Key Solutions, and thus Key Solutions became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Keystone. To complete the
merger, the stockholders exchanged 100% of the outstanding common stock of Key Solutions (the acquiree) for newly issued
common stock of Keystone (the acquirer), representing 100% of the outstanding common stock. This effectively transferred 100%
of the voting equity interest and control of Key Solutions to Keystone. The operations of Key Solutions have not changed, nor
have any assets or operations transferred to either Keystone or Merger Sub. The merger transaction resulted in no gain or loss to
either entity. The stockholders’ proportionate ownership of Keystone remains the same as it was for Key Solutions.

The Company accounts for the merger transaction as a business combination in accordance with ASC 805-10-55 in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. All intercompany accounts and equity in the investment and income of the
subsidiary have been eliminated upon consolidation.

STOCK WARRANTS

As part of the terms of the subordinated long term debt discussed more fully in Note 4, the Company issued a common stock
purchase warrant to Avon Road Partners, L.P. The warrant grants the registered holder the right to purchase 62,500 shares of the
Company’ s common stock at $2 per share upon exercise of the warrants. The warrant has an expiration date of March 16, 2019.

COMMON STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

On March 16, 2016 two stockholders of the Company entered into an option agreement with Avon Road Partners, L.P. Under the
terms of this agreement Avon Road Partners, L.P. paid to the stockholders $10,000 each (a total of $20,000) for the right to
purchase, on a simultaneous and pro-rata basis, up to 2,226,278 shares, at $1 per share, of the Company’ s outstanding common
stock owned by those two shareholders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 11, 2016, KeyStone Solutions entered into Loan and Security Agreement (the “2016 Line of Credit”) with Sandy
Spring Bank (the “Lender”) that replaces the 2015 Loan Agreement. The 2016 Line of Credit is comprised of: 1) an asset-based
revolving line of credit up to $1,000,000 for short-term working capital needs and general corporate purposes which is due to
mature on July 31, 2017, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, floating, plus 0.50% and is secured by a first lien on
all of KeyStone’ s business assets; and 2) an optional term loan of $100,000 which must be drawn by July 31, 2017, is for
permanent working capital, bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, floating, plus 0.75%, requires monthly payments
of principal plus interest to fully amortize the loan over four (4) years, is secured by a first lien on all of KeyStone’ s business
assets, cross-collateralized and cross-defaulted with the revolving line of credit, and matures on February 15, 2019. The 2016 Line
of Credit does not require any personal guarantees.

The borrowing base for the 2016 Line of Credit is up to the lesser of (1) $1,000,000 or (2) eighty percent (80%) of the aggregate
amount of all of Keystone’ s eligible accounts receivable as defined by the Lender. The borrowing base for the $100,000 term loan
is fully reserved under the borrowing base for the revolving line of credit. The 2016 Line of Credit has periodic reporting
requirements, balance sheet and profitability covenants, as well as affirmative and negative operational and ownership covenants.
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PART III

Exhibit

Form of Sales Agency Agreement by and among KeyStone Solutions, Inc., Moloney Securities Co., Inc. and The
Benchmark Company, LLC**

Certificate of Incorporation of KeyStone Solutions, Inc. (Previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Offering Statement on Form
1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Bylaws of KeyStone Solutions, Inc. (Previously filed as Exhibit 2.2 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the
SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Certificate of Designations of Series A Cumulative Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock*

Form of Subordinated Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Offering Statement on
Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Subordinated Note (Previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on
May 12, 2016.)

Form of Subordinated Note Warrant (Previously filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with
the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Unit Warrant (Previously filed as Exhibit 3.4 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May
12,2016.)

Stockholders’ Agreement dated as of March 16, 2016, among the Company, Robert Berman, Avon Road Partners, L.P.,
James McCarthy, Richard Nathan, Gregory McCarthy and Kevin Berrigan (Previously filed as Exhibit 3.5 to the Offering
Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Option Agreement dated as of March 16, 2016 among James McCarthy, Richard Nathan, and Avon Road Partners, L.P.
(Previously filed as Exhibit 3.7 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Subscription Agreement and Purchaser Questionnaire®*

Employment Agreement, dated March 16, 2016 between the Company and Robert Berman (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.1
to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

2016 KeyStone Solutions, Inc. Equity Award Plan (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.2 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A
as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.3 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A
as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.4 to the Offering Statement on Form
1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Restricted Stock Units Notice of Grant and Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.5 to the Offering Statement
on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.6 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed
with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Credit Agreement with Sandy Spring Bank dated September 25, 2015 (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.7 to the Offering
Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Amendment to Credit Agreement with Sandy Spring Bank dated May 9, 2016 (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.8 to the
Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

James McCarthy Offer Letter dated as of April 22, 2016 (Previously filed as Exhibit 6.9 to the Offering Statement on Form
1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated April 18, 2016 between the Company and Richard Nathan
(Previously filed as Exhibit 6.10 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

Employment Agreement dated August 1, 2016 between the Company and Riaz Latifullah*

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

6.12 Loan and Security Agreement by and between KeyStone Solutions, Inc., AOC Key Solutions, Inc., and Sandy Spring Bank,
dated August 11, 2016.*

7.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 15, 2016 between the Company, AOC Key Solutions, Inc. and KCS Merger
Sub, Inc. (Previously filed as Exhibit 7.1 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

8.1 Form of Issuer Custody and Services Agreement**
10.1 Power of attorney - reference is made to the signature page of this offering statement*
11.1 Consent of Ericksen, Krentel & LaPorte, LLP*
11.2 Consent of Crowell & Moring LLP (included in Exhibit 12.1) (Previously filed as Exhibit 11.2 to the Offering Statement on
Form 1-A as filed with the SEC on May 12, 2016.)
12.1 Opinion of Crowell & Moring LLP (Previously filed as Exhibit 12.1 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A as filed with

the SEC on May 12, 2016.)

13.1 Testing the Waters materials**

*  Filed herewith.
**  To be filed by subsequent amendment.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the
requirements for filing on Form 1-A and has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized, in Chantilly, Virginia on September 2, 2016.

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ Robert Berman

Robert Berman
Chief Executive Officer

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Robert
Berman and Riaz Latifullah, or any of them, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution, for him and
in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Form 1-A offering statement, and to file
the same with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ James K. McCarthy Chairman of the Board September 2, 2016
James K. McCarthy
/s/ Riaz Latifullah Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Riaz Latifullah Financia'l Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)
/s/ Robert Berman Director September 2, 2016

Robert Berman Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Glenn Goord Director September 2, 2016
Glenn Goord

/s/ Greg McCarthy Director September 2, 2016
Greg McCarthy

/s/ Dr. Richard Nathan Director and Chief Operating Officer September 2, 2016
Dr. Richard Nathan
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Exhibit 2.3

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATIONS
OF
SERIES A CUMULATIVE CONVERTIBLE REDEEMABLE PREFERRED
STOCK
OF
KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

KeyStone Solutions, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware
(hereinafter called the “Corporation™), hereby certifies that the following resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Corporation (hereinafter called the “Board of Directors™) on [ ], 2016.

RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority expressly granted to and vested in the Board of Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, the Board of Directors hereby creates a series of Preferred Stock, par
value $0.0001 per share (the “Preferred Stock™), of the Corporation and hereby states the designation and number of shares, and fixes
the relative rights, powers and preferences, and qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof as follows:

Section 1. Designation; Number of Shares. The shares of such series shall be classified and designated as Series A Cumulative
Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock™), and the number of shares
constituting such series shall be 3,000,000. That number may from time to time be increased or decreased (but not below the number of
Shares then outstanding) by the Board of Directors in accordance with the Certificate of Incorporation and applicable law. The Series A
Preferred Stock shall be issued in certificated form.

Section 2. Defined Terms. For purposes hereof, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

“Applicable Dividend Rate” shall equal seven percent (7.00%).

“Base Redemption Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.

“Board of Directors™ has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Business Day” means a day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in New York, New York,
United States of America, are required to or may be closed.
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“Certificate of Designations™” means this Certificate of Designations creating the Series A Preferred Stock.

“Certificate of Incorporation” means the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation.

“Common Stock™ means the common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of the Corporation.

“Conversion Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.
“Conversion Ratio” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1.
“Corporation” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
‘Dividend Payment Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

“Dividend Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

“Junior Securities” means, collectively, the Common Stock and any other class of securities hereafter authorized that is
specifically designated as ranking junior to the Series A Preferred Stock.

“Liquidation Event” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Liquidation Preference” means, with respect to any Share on any given date, the sum of (i) the Liquidation Value and (ii) the
amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends thereof, if any, whether or not declared, to and including such date.

“Liquidation Value” means, with respect to any Share on any given date, the Series A Original Issue Price.

“Original Issuance Date” means [®], 2016.

“Parity Securities” means any class of securities hereafter authorized that is specifically designated as ranking pari passu with the
Series A Preferred Stock.

“Person” means an individual, firm, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, incorporated or unincorporated
association, joint venture, joint stock company, trust or other entity or organization of any kind, including a governmental authority.

“Preferred Stock” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

“Qualification Date” means [ ], 2016.
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“Qualified [PO” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.2.

“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any successor federal statute, and the rules and regulations
thereunder, which shall be in effect at the time.

“Senior Securities” means any class of securities hereafter authorized that is specifically designated as ranking senior to the Series
A Preferred Stock.

“Series A Liquidation Preference Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.1.

“Series A Original Issue Price” means $10.00 per Share.

“Series A Redemption” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1.

“Series A Redemption Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.1.

“Share” means a share of Series A Preferred Stock.

“Subsidiary” or “subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person: (a) any other Person of which such Person beneficially owns,
either directly or indirectly, more than fifty percent (50%) of (i) the total combined voting power of all classes of voting securities of
such other Person, (ii) the total combined equity interests of such other Person, or (iii) the capital or profit interests of such other Person;
or (b) any other Person of which such Person has the power to vote, either directly or indirectly, sufficient securities to elect a majority
of the board of directors or similar governing body of such other Person.

Section 3. Rank. With respect to payment of dividends and distribution of assets upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the
Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, all Shares of the Series A Preferred Stock shall rank (i) pari passu with all Parity
Securities, (ii) senior to all Junior Securities and (iii) junior to all Senior Securities.

Section 4. Dividends.

4.1 Accrual and Payment of Dividends. From and after the issuance date of any Share, cumulative dividends on such Share
shall accrue, whether or not declared by the Board of Directors and whether or not there are funds legally available for the payment of
dividends, in arrears at a per annum rate equal to the Applicable Dividend Rate on the Liquidation Preference. The dividends on the
Series A Preferred Stock shall accrue from the issuance date thereof and shall be payable quarterly in arrears within five (5) Business
Days following the last day of March, June, September and December of each calendar year (each such date, a “Dividend Payment
Date”) to the holders of record of the Series A Preferred Stock on such Dividend Payment Date, except

3
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that if any such date is not a Business Day, then such dividend shall be payable on the next Business Day. All accrued dividends on any
Share shall be paid in cash only when, as and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefor or upon a
liquidation or redemption of the Series A Preferred Stock in accordance with the provisions of Section 5, Section 7 or Section 8. All
accrued and accumulated dividends on the Shares shall be prior and in preference to any dividend on any Junior Securities and shall be
fully declared and paid before any dividends are declared and paid, or any other distributions or redemptions are made, on any Junior
Securities, other than to declare or pay any dividend or distribution payable on Junior Securities in shares of Junior Securities.

Each dividend period (a “Dividend Period™) shall commence on and include a Dividend Payment Date and shall end on and
include the calendar day preceding the next Dividend Payment Date, except that (x) the initial Dividend Period for Series A Preferred
Stock issued on the Original Issuance Date shall commence on and include the Original Issuance Date, (y) the initial Dividend Period
for any Series A Preferred Stock issued after the Original Issuance Date shall commence on and include such date as the Board of
Directors shall determine and disclose at the time such additional shares are issued, or if no such determination is made, the date of
issuance of such Series A Preferred Stock, and (z) the final Dividend Period with respect to redeemed Shares shall end on and include
the calendar day preceding the date of redemption. Dividends payable on the Series A Preferred Stock in respect of any Dividend Period
shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

If, on any Dividend Payment Date, the Corporation fails to pay dividends in respect of the Shares equal to all dividends on
the Shares accrued but unpaid as of such date, the accrued but unpaid dividends on the Shares shall nonetheless accumulate and
compound at the Applicable Dividend Rate on such Dividend Payment Date and shall remain accumulated, compounding dividends on
such Applicable Dividend Rate, until paid pursuant hereto.

Section 5. Liquidation.

5.1 Liquidation. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation (a
“Liquidation Event”), the holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders, before any payment shall be made to the holders of Junior Securities by
reason of their ownership thereof, with respect to each Share of Series A Preferred Stock, an amount equal to the Liquidation Preference
(the “Series A Liquidation Preference Amount”). The Series A Liquidation Preference Amount shall be paid to the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock in cash and the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to any further payments in the event of any
Liquidation Event other than what is expressly provided for in this Section 5.

4
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5.2 Insufficient Assets. If upon any Liquidation Event the remaining assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
stockholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of the Shares of Series A Preferred Stock the full Series A Liquidation Preference
Amount and the holders of any Parity Securities the full preferential amount to which they are entitled under the terms of the relevant
instrument governing such Parity Securities, (a) the holders of the Shares and any Parity Securities shall share ratably in any distribution
of the remaining assets and funds of the Corporation in proportion to the respective full preferential amounts which would otherwise be
payable in respect thereof upon such Liquidation Event if all amounts payable on or with respect to such Shares and Parity Securities
were paid in full, and (b) the Corporation shall not make or agree to make any payments to the holders of Junior Securities.

5.3 Residual Distributions. If the Liquidation Preference has been paid in full to all holders of Series A Preferred Stock and
all other amounts payable upon a Liquidation Event have been paid in full to all holders of any Parity Stock, the holders of Common
Stock and any other Junior Securities shall be entitled to receive all remaining assets of the Corporation according to their respective
rights and preferences.

5.4 Merger, Consolidation and Sale of Assets Not Liquidation. For purposes of this Section 5, the sale, conveyance, exchange
or transfer (for cash, shares of stock, securities or other consideration) of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the
Corporation shall not be deemed a Liquidation Event, nor shall the merger, consolidation or any other business combination transaction
of the Corporation into or with any other corporation or person or the merger, consolidation or any other business combination
transaction of any other Person into or with the Corporation be deemed to be a Liquidation Event.

Section 6. Voting Rights.

6.1 Voting Generally. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not have any voting rights except as expressly set forth
below or as otherwise from time to time required by law.

6.2 Amendment of Series A Preferred Stock; Dividends; Material Acquisitions; Mergers and Consolidations. So long as any

Shares are outstanding, in addition to any other vote or consent of stockholders required by law or by the Certificate of Incorporation,
the vote or consent of the holders of a majority of the Shares at the time

5
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outstanding and entitled to vote thereon, given in person or by proxy, either in writing without a meeting or by vote at any meeting
called for the purpose, shall be necessary for effecting or validating, either directly or indirectly by amendment, merger, consolidation or
otherwise:

(i) Any amendment, alteration or repeal, as applicable, of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws
of the Corporation so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series A Preferred Stock;

(i1) At any time until the second (2nd) anniversary of the Qualification Date, (x) any declaration or payment of cash
dividends on any Common Stock or other Junior Securities, (y) any purchase, redemption or other acquisition for consideration of any
Common Stock or other Junior Securities, whether directly or indirectly; or (z) if and only if the Corporation is delinquent in the
payment of dividends on the Shares, any declaration or payment of cash dividends or purchase, redemption or other acquisition for
consideration of any Parity Securities, whether directly or indirectly; provided, further, however, that the consent of the holders of the
Series A Preferred Stock shall not be required in connection with any repurchase of any Junior Securities (A) held by any employee or
consultant of the Corporation (x) upon any termination of such employee’ s or consultant’ s employment or consultancy pursuant to any
agreement providing for such repurchase or (y) otherwise permitted pursuant to an agreement between the Corporation and an employee
or consultant thereof; or (B) pursuant to the terms of the Stockholders’ Agreement dated March 16, 2016 by and among the Corporation
and the shareholders party thereto, as such agreement may be amended and in effect at the time of any such repurchase; or

(iii) Any consummation of a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Series A Preferred Stock, or of a
merger or consolidation of the Corporation with another corporation or other entity, unless in each case (x) the Shares remain
outstanding or, in the case of any such merger or consolidation with respect to which the Corporation is not the surviving or resulting
entity, are converted into or exchanged for preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, in each case,
that is an entity organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, any state thereof or the District of Columbia and
(y) such Shares remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and
voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, taken as a whole, as are not less favorable to the holders thereof than the rights,
preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions thereof, of the Series A Preferred Stock immediately prior to
such consummation, taken as a whole; provided, further, that no vote by the holders of Series A Preferred Stock under this clause
(iii) shall be required to the extent a plan of merger, binding share exchange or similar event provides that the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock would receive an amount of cash in such merger, share exchange or similar event equal to the Liquidation Preference as
of the consummation of such merger, share exchange or similar event.

6
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Section 7. Redemption by the Corporation.

7.1 At any time following the third (3rd) anniversary of the Qualification Date, the Corporation may, upon thirty (30) days’
notice, redeem all or any portion of the then outstanding Shares for cash at a redemption price per Share equal to the sum of (i) the
corresponding redemption price below (the “Base Redemption Price”) plus (ii) the amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends on such
Shares being redeemed, if any, whether or not declared, to and including the date immediately prior to such date of redemption (such

sum, the “Series A Redemption Price”):

Redemption Period Base Redemption Price
, 2019 to , 2020 $ 14
From and after , 2020 $ 15

7.2 In order to exercise its right of redemption, the Corporation shall, not less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption
date give to each holder of record of the Series A Preferred Stock, at such holder’ s address as it shall appear upon the stock register of
the Corporation on such date, notice by first class mail, postage prepaid. Each such notice of redemption shall be irrevocable and shall
specify the date that is the redemption date, the redemption price, the number of Shares to be redeemed, the place or places of payment
and that payment will be made upon presentation and, to the extent that such Shares are certificated, surrender of the certificate(s)
evidencing the Shares to be redeemed (properly endorsed or assigned for transfer, if the Corporation shall so require).

Section 8. Redemption by the Holders.

8.1 At any time following the sixty (60th) month anniversary of the Qualification Date, the holders of the then outstanding
Shares shall have the right (a “Series A Redemption”), to require the Corporation to redeem all, but not less than all of such holder’ s
Series A Preferred Stock, out of funds legally available therefor, at the Series A Redemption Price. In exchange for the surrender to the
Corporation by the respective holders of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock of their certificate or certificates representing such Shares
(to the extent that such Shares are certificated) in accordance with Section 8.4 below, the aggregate Series A Redemption Price for all
Shares held by each holder of Shares shall be payable in cash in immediately available funds to the respective holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock on the applicable Series A Redemption Date and the Corporation shall contribute all of its assets to the payment of the
Series A Redemption Price, and to no other corporate purpose, except to the extent prohibited by applicable Delaware law.

7
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8.2 Redemption. The date of the closing of any such redemption of Shares pursuant to Section 8.1 shall be no later than
ninety (90) days following receipt by the Corporation of the request to effect a redemption of such Shares of Series A Preferred Stock
(the “Series A Redemption Date™).

8.3 Insufficient Funds; Remedies For Nonpayment.

(a) Insufficient Funds. If on any Series A Redemption Date, the assets of the Corporation legally available are insufficient to pay
the full Series A Redemption Price for the total number of Shares elected to be redeemed pursuant to Section 8.1, the Corporation shall
(i) redeem out of all such assets legally available therefor on the applicable Series A Redemption Date the maximum possible number of
Shares that it can redeem on such date, pro rata among the holders of such Shares to be redeemed in proportion to the aggregate number
of Shares elected to be redeemed by each such holder on the applicable Series A Redemption Date and (ii) following the applicable
Series A Redemption Date, at any time and from time to time when additional assets of the Corporation become legally available to
redeem the remaining Shares, the Corporation shall immediately use such assets to pay the remaining balance of the aggregate
applicable Series A Redemption Price.

(b) Remedies For Nonpayment. If on any Series A Redemption Date, all of the Shares elected to be redeemed pursuant to
Section 8.1 are not redeemed in full by the Corporation by paying the entire Series A Redemption Price, until such Shares are fully
redeemed and the aggregate Series A Redemption Price paid in full, (i) all of the unredeemed Shares shall remain outstanding and
continue to have the rights, preferences and privileges expressed herein, including the accrual and accumulation of dividends thereon as
provided in Section 4, (ii) interest on the portion of the aggregate Series A Redemption Price applicable to the unredeemed Shares shall
accrue daily in arrears at a rate equal to the lesser of (x) [ .0]% or (y) the prime rate, as published in the Eastern Edition of the Wall
Street Journal per annum, compounded quarterly.

8.4 Surrender of Certificates. To the extent that such Shares are certificated, on or before the Series A Redemption Date, each
holder of Shares shall surrender the certificate or certificates representing such Shares to the Corporation, in the manner and place
designated by the Corporation, duly assigned or endorsed for transfer to the Corporation (or accompanied by duly executed stock
powers relating thereto), or, in the event the certificate or certificates are lost, stolen or missing, shall deliver an affidavit of loss, in the
manner and place designated by the Corporation. To the extent
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that such Shares are certificated, each surrendered certificate shall be canceled and retired and the Corporation shall thereafter make
payment of the applicable Series A Redemption Price by certified check or wire transfer to the holder of record of such certificate;
provided, however, that if less than all the Shares represented by a surrendered certificate are redeemed, then a new stock certificate
representing the unredeemed Shares shall be issued in the name of the applicable holder of record of canceled stock certificate.

8.5 No Rights Subsequent to Redemption. If on the applicable Series A Redemption Date, the Series A Redemption Price is
paid (or tendered for payment) for any of the Shares to be redeemed on such Series A Redemption Date, then on such date all rights of
the holder in the Shares so redeemed and paid or tendered, including any rights to dividends on such Shares, shall cease, and such
Shares shall no longer be deemed issued and outstanding.

Section 9. Conversion. Each holder of Shares of Series A Preferred Stock shall have conversion rights as follows:

9.1 Right to Convert. Subject to Section 9.3, (i) each Share shall be convertible, at the option of the holder thereof, at any
time after the third (3rd) anniversary of the date of issuance of such Share, at the office of the Corporation or any transfer agent for such
stock, into such number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock as is determined by dividing (i) the sum of (x) the
Series A Original Issue Price (as adjusted pursuant hereto for stock splits, stock dividends, reclassifications and the like) plus (y) the
amount of any accrued but unpaid dividends on such Shares being converted, if any, whether or not declared, to and including the date
immediately prior to such date of conversion, by (ii) the Conversion Price applicable to such Share, in effect on the date the certificate is
surrendered for conversion. The number of shares of Common Stock into which each Share is convertible, after taking into account any
such adjustments, is hereinafter referred to as the “Conversion Ratio.” Upon any decrease or increase in the Conversion Price as
described below and in Section 9.4, the Conversion Ratio shall be appropriately increased or decreased. The “Conversion Price” per
Share shall be equal to the price corresponding in the table below:

Conversion Period Conversion Price
,2019 to , 2020 $ 14
From and after , 2020 $ 15
9
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9.2 Automatic Conversion. Each Share shall automatically be converted into shares of Common Stock in accordance with the
then-effective Conversion Ratio upon the earlier of (i) except as provided below in Section 9.4, immediately prior to the closing of the
Corporation’ s sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), (A) which results in aggregate cash proceeds to the
Corporation of not less than $30,000,000 (net of underwriting discounts and commissions) (B) is made at an offering price per share of
at least the then applicable Conversion Price (as adjusted and subject to the last paragraph of this Section 9.2) and (C) following such
offering, the Common Stock is listed for trading on a national securities exchange, and (ii) the date specified by written consent or
agreement of the holders of at least 662/3% of the then outstanding Shares (a “Qualified IPO”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the
closing of a Qualified IPO occurs prior to , 2019, the Conversion Price per Share applicable to the conversion effected pursuant
to this Section 9.2 shall be the price corresponding in the table below:

Conversion Period Conversion Price
,2016 to ,2017 § 11
,2017 to ,2018 $§ 12
,2018 to ,2019 § 13

9.3 Mechanics of Conversion. Before any holder of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to convert such Series A
Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock, the holder shall surrender the certificate or certificates therefor, duly endorsed (or a
reasonably acceptable affidavit and indemnity undertaking in the case of a lost, stolen or destroyed certificate), at the office of the
Corporation or of any transfer agent for such Series A Preferred Stock, and shall give written notice to the Corporation at its principal
corporate office, of the election to convert the same and shall state therein the name or names in which the certificate or certificates for
shares of Common Stock are to be issued. The Corporation shall, as soon as practicable thereafter, issue and deliver at such office to
such holder of Series A Preferred Stock, or to the nominee or nominees of such holder, a certificate or certificates for the number of
shares of Common Stock to which such holder shall be entitled as aforesaid, and a certificate for the remaining number of Shares if less
than all of such Series A Preferred Stock evidenced by the certificates were surrendered. Such conversion shall be deemed to have been
made immediately prior to the close of business on (i) the date of such surrender of the Shares to be converted or (ii) if applicable, the
date of automatic conversion specified in Section 9.2 above, and the Person or Persons entitled to receive the shares of Common Stock
issuable upon such conversion shall be treated for all purposes as the record holder or holders of such shares of Common Stock as of
such date. If the conversion is in connection with an underwritten public offering of securities registered pursuant to the Securities Act
the

10

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

conversion may, at the option of any holder tendering such Series A Preferred Stock for conversion, be conditioned upon the closing
with the underwriters of the sale of securities pursuant to such offering, in which event any Persons entitled to receive Common Stock
upon conversion of such Series A Preferred Stock shall not be deemed to have converted such Series A Preferred Stock until
immediately prior to the closing of such sale of securities.

9.4 Conversion Price Adjustments of Preferred Stock for Splits and Combinations. If the Corporation at any time after the
date of issue of the Series A Preferred Stock (a) declares a dividend or makes a distribution on Common Stock payable in Common
Stock, (b) subdivides or splits the outstanding Common Stock, (¢) combines or reclassifies the outstanding Common Stock into a
smaller number of shares, (d) issues any shares of its capital stock in a reclassification of Common Stock (including any such
reclassification in connection with a consolidation or merger in which the Corporation is the continuing corporation), or (¢) consolidates
with, merges with or into or is converted into any other Person, the Conversion Price in effect at the time of the record date for such
dividend or distribution or of the effective date of such subdivision, split, combination or reclassification shall be adjusted so that the
conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock after such time shall entitle the holder to receive the aggregate number of shares of Common
Stock or other securities of the Corporation (or shares of any security into which such shares of Common Stock have been combined,
consolidated, merged, converted or reclassified pursuant to Sections 9.4(a), 9.4(d) or 9.4(e)) which, if this Series A Preferred Stock had
been converted immediately prior to such time, such holder would have owned upon such conversion and been entitled to receive by
virtue of such dividend, distribution, subdivision, split, combination, consolidation, merger, conversion or reclassification. Such
adjustment shall be made successively whenever any event listed above shall occur.

9.5 Other Distributions. In the event the Corporation shall declare a distribution in respect of the Common Stock (other than a
subdivision, combination or merger or sale of assets transaction provided for in Section 9.4) payable in securities of other Persons,
evidences of indebtedness issued by the Corporation or other Persons, assets (excluding cash dividends) or options or rights not referred
to in Section 9.4(a), then, in each such case for the purpose of this Section 9.5, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled
to a proportionate share of any such distribution as though they were the holders of the number of shares of Common Stock of the
Corporation into which their shares of Series A Preferred Stock are convertible as of the record date fixed for the determination of the
holders of Common Stock of the Corporation entitled to receive such distribution.
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9.6 Recapitalizations. If at any time or from time to time there shall be a recapitalization of the Common Stock (other than a
subdivision, combination or merger or sale of assets transaction provided for in Section 9.4) provision shall be made so that the holders
of Series A Preferred Stock shall thereafter be entitled to receive upon conversion of such Series A Preferred Stock the number of shares
of stock or other securities or property of the Corporation or otherwise, to which a holder of Common Stock deliverable upon
conversion would have been entitled on such recapitalization. In any such case, appropriate adjustment shall be made in the application
of the provisions of this Section 9 with respect to the rights of the holders of such Series A Preferred Stock after the recapitalization to
the end that the provisions of this Section 9 (including adjustment of the Conversion Ratio then in effect and the number of shares
purchasable upon conversion of such Preferred Stock) shall be applicable after that event and be as nearly equivalent as practicable.

9.7 No Fractional Shares and Certificate as to Adjustments.

(a) No fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of any Share, and the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued
shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share. The number of shares issuable upon such conversion shall be determined on the basis
of the total number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock the holder is at the time converting into Common Stock and the number of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon such aggregate conversion. If the conversion would result in any fractional share, the
Corporation shall, in lieu of issuing any such fractional share, pay the holder thereof an amount in cash equal to the fair market value of
such fractional share on the date of conversion, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.

(b) Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the Conversion Price of any series of Preferred Stock pursuant to
this Section 9, the Corporation, at its expense, shall promptly compute such adjustment or readjustment in accordance with the terms
hereof and prepare and furnish to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock a certificate setting forth such adjustment or readjustment and
showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The Corporation shall, upon the written request at any
time of any holder of Series A Preferred Stock, furnish or cause to be furnished to such holder a like certificate setting forth (A) such
adjustment and readjustment, (B) the Conversion Price for the Series A Preferred Stock at the time in effect and (C) the number of
shares of Common Stock and the amount, if any, of other property which at the time would be received upon the conversion of a share
of Series A Preferred Stock.

9.8 Notices of Record Date. In the event of any taking by the Corporation of a record of the holders of any class of securities
for the purpose of determining the holders thereof who are entitled to receive any dividend (other than a

12

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

cash dividend) or other distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire any shares of stock of any class or any
other securities or property, or to receive any other right, the Corporation shall mail to each holder of Series A Preferred Stock, at least
ten (10) days prior to the date specified therein, a notice specifying the date on which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of
such dividend, distribution or right, and the amount and character of such dividend, distribution or right.

9.9 Reservation of Stock Issuable Upon Conversion. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its
authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of Series A Preferred
Stock, such number of its shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding
shares of the Series A Preferred Stock; and if at any time the number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock shall not be
sufficient to effect the conversion of all then outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock, in addition to such other remedies as shall
be available to the holder of Series A Preferred Stock, the Corporation will take such corporate action as may, in the opinion of its
counsel, be necessary to increase its authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock to such number of shares as shall be sufficient for
such purposes, including, without limitation, engaging in best efforts to obtain the requisite stockholder approval of any necessary
amendment to this Certificate of Designations.

Section 10. Reissuance of Series A Preferred Stock. Any Shares redeemed or otherwise acquired by the Corporation or any
Subsidiary shall become authorized but unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be reissued as part of a new series of Preferred
Stock to be created by resolution or resolutions of the Board of Directors, subject to the conditions and restrictions on issuance set forth
herein.

Section 11. Notices. Except as otherwise provided herein, all notices, requests, consents, claims, demands, waivers and other
communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given: (a) when delivered by hand (with written
confirmation of receipt); (b) when received by the addressee if sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier (receipt requested); or
(c) on the third day after the date mailed, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Such communications
must be sent (a) to the Corporation, at its principal executive offices and (b) to any stockholder, at such holder’ s address at it appears in
the stock records of the Corporation (or at such other address for a stockholder as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with
this Section 11).
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Section 12. Waiver. The holders of at least a majority of the outstanding Shares, voting as one class, may also amend and waive
compliance with any provision of this Certificate of Designations.

Section 13. No Preemptive Rights. No Share shall have any rights of preemption whatsoever as to any securities of the
Corporation, or any warrants, rights or options issued or granted with respect thereto, regardless of how such securities, or such
warrants, rights or options, may be designated, issued or granted.

Section 14. No Sinking Fund. No sinking fund shall be created for the redemption or purchase of shares of the Series A Preferred
Stock.

Section 15. Transfer Taxes. The Corporation shall pay any and all stock transfer, documentary, stamp and similar taxes that may be
payable in respect of any initial issuance or delivery of the Series A Preferred Stock or certificates representing such Shares, if any. The
Corporation shall not, however, be required to pay any such tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issuance
or delivery of Shares in a name other than that in which the Shares were registered, or in respect of any payment to any Person other
than a payment to the initial registered holder thereof.

Section 16. Other Rights. The Shares shall not have any rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers or relative, participating,
optional or other special rights, or qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, other than as expressly set forth herein or in the
Certificate of Incorporation or as required by applicable law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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Exhibit 2.3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, KeyStone Solutions, Inc. has caused its corporate seal to be hereunto affixed and this Certificate of
Designations to be signed by its[e], this [@] day of 2016.

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:

Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 6.11
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated as of the 1st day of August, 2016, by and between KeyStone
Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Riaz Latifullah (the “Executive”).

WITNESSETH:

The Company desires to employ the Executive, and the Executive wishes to accept such employment with the Company, upon the
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

In consideration of the mutual promises and agreements set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1. Employment and Effective Date.

a) The Effective Date of this Agreement (the “Effective Date”) is the date on which the Company closes on the sale of its
Series A Preferred Stock resulting in gross proceeds to the Company as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”). The Effective Date is the date on which this Agreement first becomes binding on the Company and the Executive.

b) The Executive’ s initial title shall be Chief Financial Officer. The Executive’ s position and assignments are subject to
change. The Executive hereby accepts such employment by the Company upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

2. Compensation.

a) For performance of all services rendered under this Agreement, the Company shall pay the Executive a base salary at an
annualized rate of $285,000 (the “Base Salary”) in installments payable in accordance with the Company’ s customary payroll practices
and the law. The Executive shall receive a performance review on an annual basis, which will include a determination of potential
adjustment of the Executive’ s Base Salary, along with consideration for a discretionary performance bonus. Nothing herein should be
interpreted as a guarantee of any discretionary performance bonus or salary increase.

b) The Executive shall be granted an option to purchase 90,000 shares of the Company’ s common stock (the “Option™). The
Option shall be subject to the terms of the KeyStone Solutions, Inc. 2016 Equity Award Plan (the “Plan”) and applicable stock option
agreement to be provided by the Company and signed by the Executive and subject to formal approval by the Board. Pursuant to the
terms of the applicable stock option agreement and Plan, the Option shares shall vest in successive equal monthly installments starting
March 1, 2017 and continuing over the 24-month period thereafter, provided that the Executive continues in Service with the Company
through each vesting event.

3. Duties. The Executive shall be employed as an executive of the Company, and shall have such duties as are assigned or
delegated to him by the Company. The Executive shall
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devote his full working time and attention to the business of the Company and shall cooperate fully in the advancement of the best
interests of the Company. Subject to approval from the Company in writing in advance, the Executive agrees not to engage in any
activities outside of the scope of the Executive’ s employment that would detract from, or interfere with, the fulfillment of his
responsibilities or duties under this Agreement.

4. Expenses. Subject to compliance by the Executive with such policies regarding expenses and expense reimbursement as may be
adopted from time to time by the Company, the Executive is authorized to incur reasonable expenses in the performance of his duties
hereunder in furtherance of the business and affairs of the Company, and the Company will reimburse the Executive for all such
reasonable expenses, upon the presentation by the Executive of an itemized account satisfactory to the Company in substantiation of
such expenses when claiming reimbursement.

5. Employee Benefits; Vacations. The Executive shall be eligible to participate in such life insurance, medical and other employee
benefit plans of the Company that may be in effect from time to time, to the extent he is eligible under the terms of those plans, on the
same basis as other similarly situated executive officers of the Company. The Company may from time to time modify or eliminate any
or all benefits extended or provided in its sole discretion, subject to applicable law. The Executive shall be entitled to three weeks of
paid vacation per year, which shall accrue and be used in accordance with the policies of the Company in effect from time to time, as
determined by the Board. Subject to such policies, any accrued but unused paid vacation shall be paid out to Executive upon termination
of employment unless the Company terminates Executive’ s employment for Cause (as defined in Section 11) or the Executive resigns
his employment for other than Good Reason (as defined in Section 11).

6. Taxation of Payments and Benefits. The Company shall make deductions, withholdings and tax reports with respect to payments
and benefits under this Agreement to the extent that it reasonably and in good faith believes that it is required to make such deductions,
withholdings and tax reports. Payments under this Agreement shall be in amounts net of any such deductions or withholdings. Nothing
in this Agreement shall be construed to require the Company to make any payments to compensate the Executive for any adverse tax
effect associated with any payments or benefits or for any deduction or withholding from any payment or benefit.

7. Termination. Either the Executive or the Company may terminate the employment relationship at any time, with or without
Cause (as such term is defined in Section 11) on advance notice as provided herein or with immediate effect if the termination is for
Cause. The Executive agrees to give the Employer at least fourteen (14) days prior written notice if he decides to terminate his
employment. Except in the case of a termination for Cause, the Company agrees that it will provide identical notice. The term of the
Executive’ s employment hereunder shall continue until this Agreement is terminated as provided below, and is hereinafter referred to as
the “Employment Period.” Upon termination of the Executive’ s employment for any reason, the Executive will be entitled to any
earned but unpaid Base Salary, commission, and bonus, as required by law, as well as the following additional benefits:
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a) Subject to compliance with Section 7(d), in the event that the Executive’ s employment is terminated by the Company for
reasons other than Cause (as such term is defined in Section 11) or in the event the Executive resigns his employment for Good Reason
(as defined in Section 11), the Executive will be provided a severance package equal to twelve (12) months of Base Salary and such
percentage of health premiums for the Executive’ s family as would have been paid for by the Company (pursuant to the applicable
policy and plan documents) for a period of twelve (12) months after termination (collectively, the “Separation Payment”). The
Separation Payment shall be paid in twelve monthly installments and shall begin within fifteen (15) business days of the effective date
of the release noted in Section 7(d). In the event that the Executive’ s employment is terminated by the Company for reasons other than
Cause or by the Executive for Good Reason, half of all unvested Option shares shall vest immediately, pursuant to the terms of the
applicable stock option agreement and Plan (together with Separation Payment, the “Separation Consideration™).

b) In the event that the Executive’ s employment is terminated for Cause or the Executive resigns without Good Reason, the
Executive will not be entitled to any Separation Consideration or any other severance remuneration.

c¢) Notwithstanding any termination of the Executive’ s employment for any reason (with or without Cause or Good Reason),
the Executive will continue to be bound by the provisions of the Proprietary Rights Agreement (as defined below).

d) All payments and benefits provided pursuant to Section 7(a) shall be conditioned upon the Executive’ s execution and non-
revocation of a general release of liabilities favoring the Company. The Executive’ s refusal to execute a general release shall constitute
a waiver by the Executive of any and all benefits referenced in Section 7(a). The Company will not be obligated to commence or
continue any such payments to the Executive under Section 7(a) in the event the Executive materially breaches the terms of this
Agreement or the Confidentiality Agreement (as defined below) and fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) days of written notice
thereof detailing such breach.

8. Confidentiality, Non- Solicitation and Invention Assignment Agreement. The Company considers the protection of its
confidential information and proprietary materials to be very important. Therefore, as a condition of the Executive’ s employment, the
Executive will be required to execute a confidentiality, non-solicitation and invention assignment agreement substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Proprietary Rights Agreement”) on the date hereof.

9. Documents, Records, etc. All documents, records, data, apparatus, equipment and other physical property, whether or not
pertaining to Confidential Information (as defined in the Proprietary Rights Agreement), which are furnished to the Executive by the
Company or are produced by the Executive in connection with the Executive’ s employment will be and remain the sole property of the
Employer. The Executive will return to the Company all such materials and property as and when requested by the Employer. In any
event, the Executive will return all such materials and property immediately upon termination of the Executive’ s employment for any
reason.

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

10. No Conflict. The Executive hereby represents and warrants to the Company that (a) this Agreement constitutes the Executive’ s
legal and binding obligation, enforceable against him in accordance with its terms, (b) his execution and performance of this Agreement
does not and will not breach any other agreement, arrangements, understanding, obligation of confidentiality or employment
relationship to which he is a party or by which he is bound, and (c) while employed by the Company, he will not enter into any
agreement, either written or oral, in conflict with this Agreement or his obligations hereunder.

11. Definitions.

a) The term “Cause” shall mean (i) the Executive’ s intentional, willful or knowing failure or refusal to perform the
Executive’ s duties (other than as a result of physical or mental illness, accident or injury); (ii) dishonesty, willful or gross misconduct,
or illegal conduct by the Executive in connection with the Executive’ s employment with the Companys; (iii) the Executive’ s conviction
of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to, a charge of commission of a felony (exclusive of any felony relating to negligent operation of
a motor vehicle); and (iv) a material breach by the Executive of the Proprietary Rights Agreement; provided, however, in the case of
clauses (i) and (iv) above, the Company shall be required to give the Executive fifteen (15) calendar days prior written notice of its
intention to terminate the Executive for Cause and the Executive shall have the opportunity during such fifteen (15) day period to cure
such event if such event is capable of being cured; provided, further, that in the event that the Executive terminates his employment with
the Company during such fifteen (15) day period for any reason, such termination shall be considered a termination for Cause.

b) The term “Good Reason” shall mean (i) any material reduction of the Executive’ s Base Salary, unless similar reductions
are imposed on all similarly situated executive officers of the Company (ii) any material breach by the Company of its obligations under
this Agreement, and (iii) a change without the Executive’ s consent in the principal location of the Company’ s office to an office that is
more than 25 miles from the current location and the Executive’ s primary residence (if such move increases the Executive’ s commute);
provided that in any case the Executive provides the Company with written notice of the Executive’ s intention to terminate the
Executive’ s employment for Good Reason within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the event that the Executive believes would
constitute Good Reason, gives the Company an opportunity to cure for thirty (30) days following receipt of such notice from the
Executive, if the event is capable of being cured or, if not capable of being cured, to have the Company’ s representatives meet with the
Executive and the Executive’ s counsel to be heard regarding whether Good Reason exists for the Executive to terminate the
Executive’ s employment with the Company and the Executive terminates employment within thirty days after the end of the cure
period if the Good Reason condition is not cured.

c) The term “person” shall mean any individual, corporation, firm, association, partnership, other legal entity or other form
of business organization.

12. Section 409A.

a) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if at the time of the Executive’ s separation from service
within the meaning of Section 409A of the Code, the
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Company determines that the Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, then to
the extent any payment or benefit that the Executive becomes entitled to under this Agreement on account of the Executive’ s separation
from service would be considered deferred compensation subject to the 20 percent additional tax imposed pursuant to Section 409A(a)
of the Code as a result of the application of Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, such payment shall not be payable and such benefit
shall not be provided until the date that is the earlier of (A) six months and one day after the Executive’ s separation from service, or
(B) the Executive’ s death. If any such delayed cash payment is otherwise payable on an installment basis, the first payment shall
include a catch-up payment covering amounts that would otherwise have been paid during the six-month period but for the application
of this provision, and the balance of the installments shall be payable in accordance with their original schedule.

b) The parties intend that this Agreement will be administered in accordance with Section 409A of the Code. To the extent
that any provision of this Agreement is ambiguous as to its compliance with Section 409A of the Code, the provision shall be read in
such a manner so that all payments hereunder comply with Section 409A of the Code. The parties agree that this Agreement may be
amended, as reasonably requested by either party, and as may be necessary to fully comply with Section 409A of the Code and all
related rules and regulations in order to preserve the payments and benefits provided hereunder without additional cost to either party.

c) The determination of whether and when a separation from service has occurred shall be made by the Company in
accordance with the presumptions set forth in Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h).

d) The Company makes no representation or warranty and shall have no liability to the Executive or any other person if any
provisions of this Agreement are determined to constitute deferred compensation subject to Section 409A of the Code but do not satisfy
an exemption from, or the conditions of, such Section.

13. Successors and Assigns; Entire Agreement; No Assignment. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective successors or heirs, distributes and personal representatives. This Agreement and the Proprietary Rights
Agreement contain the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede other prior and
contemporaneous arrangements or understandings with respect thereto. The Executive may not assign this Agreement without the prior
written consent of the Company.

14. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted hereunder or necessary or convenient in connection
herewith shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given when hand-delivered, mailed by registered or certified mail (three
days after deposited), faxed (with confirmation received) or sent by a nationally recognized courier service, as follows (provided that
notice of change of address shall be deemed given only when received):
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If to the Company: KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
14420 Albemarle Point Place
Chantilly, VA 20151
Attn : Chairman
Attn : CEO

If to the Executive: Riaz Latifullah
4920 30th St. NW
Washington, DC 20008

or to such other names and addresses as the Company or the Executive, as the case may be, shall designate by notice to each other
person entitled to receive notices in the manner specified in this Section 14.

15. Changes; No Waiver; Remedies Cumulative. The terms and provisions of this Agreement may not be modified or amended, or
any of the provisions hereof waived, temporarily or permanently, without the prior written consent of each of the parties hereto. Either
party’ s waiver or failure to enforce the terms of this Agreement or any similar agreement in one instance shall not constitute a waiver of
its or his rights hereunder with respect to other violations of this or any other agreement. No remedy conferred upon the Company or the
Executive by this Agreement is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to any other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity.

16. Governing Law. This Agreement and (unless otherwise provided) all amendments hereof and waivers and consents hereunder
shall be governed by the law of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without regard to the conflicts of law principles.

17. Severability. The Executive and the Company agree that should any provision of this Agreement be judicially determined
invalid or unenforceable, that portion of this Agreement may be modified to comply with the law. The Executive and the Company
further agree that the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement will not affect the validity or enforceability of its
remaining provisions.

18. Execution of Other Agreements. The Confidentiality Agreement is hereby incorporated into this Agreement in its entirety and
is made an integral part of this Agreement.

19. Headings; Counterparts. All section headings are for convenience only. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which is an original, and may be transmitted electronically, with such electronic copy serving as an original.

20. Termination of this Employment Agreement. Unless otherwise terminated pursuant to Section 7, this Agreement expires three
years from the Effective Date of the Agreement, but may be extended in writing by mutual consent.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Employment Agreement as of the date first above written.

KeyStone Solutions, Inc.

By: /s/ James McCarthy

EXECUTIVE:

/s/ Riaz Latifullah
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LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.
AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.

and
SANDY SPRING BANK

Dated as of August 11, 2016
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LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
This Loan and Security Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated this 11th day of August, 2016, by and among KEYSTONE
SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (‘“Parent”), AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (“AOC”; together
with Parent, individually and collectively, “Borrower””), and SANDY SPRING BANK (“Lender”).

RECITALS

A. Borrower desires to establish financing arrangements with Lender and Lender is willing to make loans and extensions of credit
to Borrower under the terms and provisions hereinafter set forth.

B. The parties desire to define the terms and conditions of their relationship in writing.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:
SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
1.1. Terms Defined: As used in this Agreement, the following terms have the following respective meanings:
Account - All of the “accounts” (as that term is defined in the UCC) of Borrower, whether now existing or hereafter arising.
Account Debtor - Any Person obligated on any Account owing to Borrower.

Advance(s) - Any monies advanced or credit extended to Borrower by Lender under the Revolving Credit, including without
limitation, cash advances and the issuance of Letters of Credit.

Advance Request - Section 2.4(d).

Affiliate - With respect to any Person, (a) any Person which, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries
controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person, or (b) any Person who is a director or officer (i) of such
Person, (ii) of any Subsidiary of such Person, or (iii) any person described in clause (a) above. For purposes of this definition, control of
a Person shall mean the power, direct or indirect, (x) to vote 10% or more of the Capital Stock having ordinary voting power for the
election of directors (or comparable equivalent) of such Person, or (y) to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of
such Person whether by contract or otherwise. Control may be by ownership, contract, or otherwise.

Anti-Terrorism Laws - Any statute, treaty, law (including common law), ordinance, regulation, rule, order, opinion, release,
injunction, writ, decree or award of any Governmental Authority relating to terrorism or money laundering, including Executive Order
No. 13224 and the USA Patriot Act.
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Asset Sale - The sale, transfer, lease, license or other disposition by Borrower, or by any Subsidiary of Borrower, to any
Person other than another Borrower, of any Property now owned, or hereafter acquired, of any nature whatsoever in any transaction or
series of related transactions other than the sale of Inventory in the ordinary course of business. An Asset Sale includes, but is not
limited to, a merger, consolidation, division, conversion, dissolution or liquidation.

Assignment of Claims Act - The Federal Assignment of Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3727 et seq., as amended from time to time.
At-Risk Work - Work performed under Government Contracts, or any other contract, (a) for which funds have not been

appropriated and allocated, (b) that have not been awarded or (c¢) for which all required contract documents, including any documents
required to modify or renew a contract previously awarded, have not been executed.

Authorized Officer - Any officer (or comparable equivalent) of a Borrower authorized by specific resolution of such
Borrower to request Advances or execute Compliance Certificates as set forth in the authorization certificate delivered to Lender
substantially in the form of Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

Avon - Avon Road Partners, L.P.

Avon Subordination Agreement - The Subordination Agreement, dated on or about the date hereof, whereby Avon
subordinates to the Obligations all Indebtedness owed by Borrower to Avon.

Bank Affiliate - With respect to Lender, any Person which, directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or is under
common control with Lender. For purposes of this definition, control of a Person shall mean the power, direct or indirect, (x) to vote
25% or more of any class of Capital Stock having ordinary voting power for the election of directors of such Person or other Persons
performing similar functions for any such Person, or (y) to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person
whether by ownership of Capital Stock, contract or otherwise.

Bankruptcy Code - Title 11 of the United States Code entitled “Bankruptcy”, as now or hereinafter in effect, or any successor
statute.

Berrigan Loan - The loan in the original principal amount of $24,000 made by Parent to Kevin Berrigan (an employee of
Borrower) on June 23, 2016.

Blocked Person - Section 5.23.
Borrowing Base - As of the date of determination thereof, an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the Maximum Revolving

Credit Amount; or (ii) the sum (without duplication) of (A) eighty percent (80%) of amounts due with respect to Eligible Accounts,
minus (B) the
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unpaid principal amount of the Term Loan (if any), minus (C) such reserves, in such amounts and with respect to such matters, as
Lender may deem reasonably proper and necessary from time to time.

Borrowing Certificate - Section 6.10(a)(iii).

Business Day - A day other than Saturday or Sunday when Lender is open for business in Fairfax, Virginia.

Capital Stock - Any and all shares, interests, participations or other equivalents (however designated) of capital stock of a
corporation, any and all other ownership interests in a Person (including limited liability company membership interests) and any and all
warrants or options to purchase any of the foregoing.

Capitalized Lease Obligations - Any Indebtedness represented by obligations under a lease that is required to be capitalized
for financial reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP, consistently applied.

Change of Control - The result caused by the occurrence of any event which results in (a) any “person” or “group” (as such
terms are used in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the Securities Exchange Act, but excluding any employee benefit plan of such person or
its Subsidiaries, and any person or entity acting in its capacity as trustee, agent or other fiduciary or administrator of any such plan),
other than the Original Holders and Robert Berman, becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rules 13d-3 and 13d-5 under the
Securities Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of 40% or more of the equity securities of Parent entitled to vote for members of the
board of directors or equivalent governing body of Parent on a fully-diluted basis (and taking into account all such securities that such
person or group has the right to acquire pursuant to any option right or (b) Parent owning, directly or indirectly (beneficially, legally or
otherwise) less than eighty five percent (85%) of any class of the issued and outstanding Capital Stock of each Borrower (other than
Parent) entitled to vote.

Closing - Section 4.6.

Closing Date - Section 4.6.

Collateral - All of the Property and interests in Property described in Section 3.1 of this Agreement and all other Property and
interests in Property that now or hereafter secure payment of the Obligations and satisfaction by Borrower of all covenants and

undertakings contained in this Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

Compliance Certificate - Section 6.11.

Consolidated Net Income - For any period, consolidated net income after taxes of Borrower as such would appear on
Borrower’ s consolidated statement of income, prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Default - Any event, act, condition or occurrence which with notice, or lapse of time or both, would constitute an Event of
Default hereunder.
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Disqualified Stock - Any Capital Stock which by its terms (or by the terms of any security into which it is convertible or for
which it is exchangeable) or upon the happening of any event (i) matures or is mandatorily redeemable for any reason, (ii) is convertible
or exchangeable for Indebtedness or Capital Stock that meets the requirements of clauses (i) and (ii), or (iii) is redeemable at the option
of the holder thereof, in whole or in part, in each case on or prior to the Term Loan Maturity Date.

Distribution -

a. Cash dividends or other cash distributions on any now or hereafter outstanding Capital Stock of Borrower;

b. The redemption, repurchase, defeasance or acquisition of such Capital Stock or of warrants, rights or other options to
purchase such Capital Stock; and

c. Any loans or advances (other than salaries), to any shareholder(s), partner(s) or member(s) of Borrower.

Eligible Accounts - All Accounts of Borrower meeting all of the following specifications: (i) the Account is lawfully and
exclusively owned by Borrower and subject to no Lien (other than Permitted Liens, if applicable, and Liens granted under this
Agreement) and Borrower has the right of assignment thereof and the power to grant a security interest therein; (ii) the Account is valid
and enforceable representing the undisputed indebtedness of an Account Debtor not more than ninety (90) days past the original invoice
date and does not represent a rebilling; (iii) not more than 50% of the aggregate balance of all Accounts owing from an Account Debtor
(other than an Exempt Account Debtor) obligated on the Account are outstanding more than ninety (90) days past their original invoice
dates; (iv) the Account is not subject to any defense, set-off, or counterclaim, deduction, discount, credit, chargeback, freight claim,
allowance or adjustment of any kind; (v) the Account is net of any portion thereof attributable to the sale of goods that have been
returned, rejected, lost or damaged; (vi) if the Account arises from the sale of goods by Borrower, such sale was an absolute sale and not
on consignment or on approval or on a sale-or-return basis nor subject to any other repurchase or return agreement, and such goods have
been shipped to the Account Debtor or its designee; (vii) if the Account arises from the performance of services, such services have
actually been performed; (viii) the Account arose in the ordinary course of Borrower’ s business; (ix) no notice of the bankruptcy,
receivership, reorganization, liquidation, dissolution, or insolvency of the Account Debtor has been received by Lender or Borrower;

(x) the Account is an Account for which Lender believes that the validity, enforceability or collection of the Account is not invalid or
otherwise impaired; (xi) the Account Debtor is not a Subsidiary or Affiliate of any Borrower; (xii) if an Event of Default has occurred
and is continuing, the sale does not represent a sale pursuant to a Prime Government Contract unless Borrower has complied, for the
benefit of Lender, with the Assignment of Claims Act if requested by Lender; (xiii) the Account is not an Account of an Account Debtor
having its principal place of business or executive office outside the United States, unless the payment of such Account is guaranteed by
an irrevocable letter of credit satisfactory to Lender or by credit insurance, satisfactory to Lender; (xiv) the Account is not an Account
on which the Account Debtor is obligated to Borrower under any Instrument; (xv) the transaction which gave rise to the Account
complies in all respects with all applicable
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laws, rules and regulations of any Governmental Authority; and (xvi) the Account meets such other reasonable specifications and
requirements which may from time to time be established by Lender. Eligible Accounts shall not include At-Risk Work, cost overruns,
progress payments, costs incurred in excess of approved or allowed billing rates, rebillings or retainages, Accounts arising out of a
contract under which the performance of Borrower is guaranteed by a surety bond, any account receivable pursuant to which payment of
any portion thereof is assigned to or for the benefit of a subcontractor, either directly or pursuant to an escrow arrangement, or that
portion of an Account representing interest or finance charges for past due balances or debit memos.

Environmental Laws - Any and all Federal, foreign, state, local or municipal laws, rules, orders, regulations, statutes,
ordinances, codes, decrees and any and all common law requirements, rules and bases of liability regulating, relating to or imposing
liability or standards of conduct concerning pollution, protection of the environment, or the impact of pollutants, contaminants or toxic
or hazardous substances on human health or the environment, as now or may at any time hereafter be in effect.

ERISA - The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as the same may be amended, from time to time.
Event of Default - Section 8.1.

Executive Order No. 13224 - The Executive Order No. 13224 on Terrorist Financing, effective September 24, 2001, as the
same has been, or shall hereafter be, renewed, extended, amended or replaced.

Exempt Account Debtor - An Account Debtor that (a) is the United States of America or any of its departments or agencies,
(b) has been designated as an “Exempt Account Debtor” in a written notice made by Lender and delivered to Borrower or (c) a Person
who has an actual or implied rating on such Person’ s senior long-term unsecured debt at or above BBB from S&P or at or above Baa
from Moody’ s; provided, that if either S&P or Moody’ s changes its system of classification after the date of this Agreement, the actual
or implied rating of such Person’ s senior long-term unsecured debt is at or above the new rating which most closely corresponds to the
above-specified level under the previous rating system.

Expenses - Section 9.6.

GAAP - United States generally accepted accounting principles as in effect on the Closing Date applied in a manner
consistent with the most recent audited financial statements of Borrower furnished to Lender and described in Section 5.7 herein.

Government Acts - Section 2.2(f)

Governmental Authority - Any federal, state or local government or political subdivision, or any agency, authority, bureau,
central bank, commission, department or instrumentality of either, or any court, tribunal, grand jury, or arbitration.

5

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Government Contract - Any contract with the United States of America or any of its departments and agencies under which
the Borrower is the prime contractor or a subcontractor.

Guarantor - Any Person who may guaranty, as surety, all of the Obligations. As of the date of this Agreement no Person
(other than a Borrower) is a Guarantor.

Guaranty Agreement - A guaranty agreement executed by any Guarantor in favor of Lender, in form and substance
satisfactory to Lender.

Hazardous Substances - Any substances defined or designated as hazardous or toxic waste, hazardous or toxic material,
hazardous or toxic substance or similar term, under any Environmental Law.

Hedging Agreements - Any Interest Hedging Instrument or any other interest rate protection agreement, foreign currency
exchange agreement, commodity purchase or option agreement, or any other interest rate hedging device or swap agreement (as defined
in 11 U.S.C. § 101 et. seq.).

Indebtedness - Of any Person at any date, all liabilities of such Person, including without duplication (i) all indebtedness of
such Person for borrowed money (including with respect to Borrower, the Obligations) or for the deferred purchase price of property or
services, (ii) any other indebtedness of such Person which is evidenced by a note, bond, debenture or similar instrument, (iii) all
accounts payable and Capitalized Lease Obligations of such Person, (iv) the face amount of all letters of credit issued for the account of
such Person and all drafts drawn thereunder, (v) all obligations of other Persons which such Person has guaranteed, (vi) Disqualified
Stock, (vii) all net obligations of such Person under Hedging Agreements, and (viii) all liabilities secured by any Lien on any property
owned by such Person even though such Person has not assumed or otherwise become liable for the payment thereof.

Interest Hedging Instrument - Any documentation evidencing any interest rate swap, interest “cap” or “collar” or any other
interest rate hedging device or swap agreement (as defined in 11 U.S.C. § 101 et. seq.) between Borrower and Lender (or any Affiliate

of Lender).

Inventory - All of the “inventory” (as that term is defined in the UCC) of Borrower, whether now existing or hereafter
acquired or created.

IRS - Internal Revenue Service.
L/C Commitment - The sum of Zero Dollars ($0).
L/C Fees - Section 2.7(d).

Letters of Credit - Standby letters of credit issued by Lender for the account of Borrower pursuant to Section 2.2 herein.
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Letter of Credit Amount - The sum of (i) the aggregate undrawn amount of all Letters of Credit outstanding at any time plus
(ii) the aggregate amount of all drawings under Letters of Credit for which Lender has not been reimbursed at such time.

Letter of Credit Documents - Any Letter of Credit, any amendment thereto, any documents delivered in connection
therewith, any application therefor, or any other documents (all in form and substance satisfactory to Lender), governing or providing
for (i) the rights and obligations on the parties concerned or at risk, or (ii) any collateral security for such obligations.

Leverage Ratio - At any time, the ratio of Borrower’ s (i) Indebtedness to (ii) Tangible Capital Funds.

Lien - Any interest of any kind or nature in property securing an obligation owed to, or a claim of any kind or nature in
property by, a Person other than the owner of the Property, whether such interest is based on the common law, statute, regulation or
contract, and including, but not limited to, a security interest or lien arising from a mortgage, encumbrance, pledge, conditional sale or
trust receipt, a lease, consignment or bailment for security purposes, a trust, or an assignment. For the purposes of this Agreement,
Borrower shall be deemed to be the owner of any Property which it has acquired or holds subject to a conditional sale agreement or
other arrangement pursuant to which title to the Property has been retained by or vested in some other Person for security purposes.

Loan Documents - Collectively, this Agreement, the Notes, the Avon Subordination Agreement, the Letter of Credit
Documents, and all agreements, instruments and documents executed and/or delivered in connection therewith, all as may be
supplemented, restated, superseded, amended or replaced from time to time.

Loans - Collectively, the unpaid balance of Advances under the Revolving Credit, any unreimbursed draws under any Letter
of Credit and the unpaid principal balance of the Term Loan.

Material Adverse Effect - A material adverse effect with respect to (a) the business, assets, properties, financial condition,
stockholders’ equity, liabilities (contingent or otherwise), prospects, material agreements or results of operations of Borrower, or
(b) Borrower’ s ability to pay the Obligations in accordance with the terms hereof, or (¢) the validity or enforceability of this Agreement
or any of the other Loan Documents or the rights and remedies of Lender hereunder or thereunder.

Maximum Revolving Credit Amount - The sum of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).
Minimum Compliance Level - One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).

Moody’ s - Moody’ s Investors Service, Inc., and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer
perform the functions of a securities rating agency, “Moody’ s” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities
rating agency designated by the Borrower with the consent of the Lender.
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Notes - The Revolving Credit Note and the Term Loan Note.

Obligations - All existing and future debts, liabilities and obligations of every kind or nature at any time owing by Borrower
to Lender or any other Bank Affiliate, whether under this Agreement, or any other existing or future instrument, document or
agreement, between Borrower or Lender or any other Bank Affiliate, whether joint or several, related or unrelated, primary or
secondary, matured or contingent, due or to become due (including debts, liabilities and obligations obtained by assignment), and
whether principal, interest, fees, indemnification obligations hereunder or Expenses (specifically including interest accruing after the
commencement of any bankruptcy, insolvency or similar proceeding with respect to Borrower, whether or not a claim for such post-
commencement interest is allowed), including, without limitation, debts, liabilities and obligations in respect of the Revolving Credit,
Reimbursement Obligations and Term Loan and any extensions, modifications, substitutions, increases and renewals thereof; any
amount payable by Borrower or any Subsidiary of Borrower to Lender or any other Bank Affiliate pursuant to an Interest Hedging
Instrument; the payment of all amounts advanced by Lender or any other Bank Affiliate to preserve, protect and enforce rights
hereunder and in the Collateral; and all Expenses incurred by Lender or any other Bank Affiliate. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, Obligations shall include any other debts, liabilities or obligations owing to Lender or any other Bank Affiliate in connection
with any lockbox, cash management, or other services (including electronic funds transfers or automated clearing house transactions)
provided by Lender or any other Bank Affiliate to Borrower, as well as any other loan, advances or extension of credit, under any
existing or future loan agreement, promissory note, or other instrument, document or agreement between Borrower and Lender or any
other Bank Affiliate.

Original Holders - Jim McCarthy, Richard Nathan, Greg McCarthy and Kevin Berrigan.
Overadvance - Section 2.1(a).
PBGC - The Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation.

Permitted Indebtedness - (a) Indebtedness to Lender in connection with the Revolving Credit, Term Loan and Letters of
Credit or otherwise pursuant to the Loan Documents; (b) trade payables incurred in the ordinary course of Borrower’ s business;
(c) purchase money Indebtedness (including Capitalized Lease Obligations) hereafter incurred by Borrower to finance the purchase of
fixed assets; provided that, (i) such Indebtedness shall not exceed Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($250,000) in the aggregate at
any one time, (ii) such Indebtedness shall not exceed the purchase price of the assets funded and (iii) no such Indebtedness may be
refinanced for a principal amount in excess of the principal amount outstanding at the time of such refinancing; and (d) Subordinated
Debt.

Permitted Investments - (a) investments and advances existing on the Closing Date that are disclosed in writing to Lender by
Borrower on or prior to the date hereof, (b) investments in Affiliates, (c) cash, (d) (i) obligations issued or guaranteed by the United
States of America or any agency thereof, (ii) commercial paper with maturities of not more than 180 days and a published rating of not
less than A-1 or P-1 (or the equivalent rating) by a nationally
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recognized investment rating agency, (iii) certificates of time deposit and bankers’ acceptances having maturities of not more than 180
days and repurchase agreements backed by United States government securities of the Lender or another commercial bank if (A) such
bank has a combined capital and surplus of at least $100,000,000, or (B) its debt obligations, or those of a holding company of which it
is a Subsidiary, are rated not less than A (or the equivalent rating) by a nationally recognized investment rating agency, and (iv) U.S.
money market funds that invest solely in obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States of America or an agency thereof or

(e) investments in government contracting entities in accordance with the Parent’ s Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation A
filing of record as of the Closing Date.

Permitted Liens - (a) Liens securing taxes, assessments or governmental charges or levies or the claims or demands of
materialmen, mechanics, carriers, warchousemen, and other like persons not yet due; (b) Liens incurred or deposits made in the ordinary
course of business in connection with workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, social security and other like laws; (c) Liens
on fixed assets secured by purchase money Indebtedness permitted under Section 7.6; provided that, (i) such Lien attached to such
assets concurrently, or within 20 days of the acquisition thereof, and only to the assets so acquired, and (ii) a description of the asset
acquired is furnished to Lender; and (d) Liens in favor of Lender securing the Obligations.

Person - An individual, partnership, corporation, trust, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, unincorporated
association or organization, joint venture or any other entity.

Prime Government Contract - A Government Contract under which Borrower is the prime contractor.

Prime Rate - The “Prime Rate” of interest as published in the “Money Rates” section of The Wall Street Journal on the
applicable date (or the highest “Prime Rate” if more than one is published) as such rate may change from time to time. If The Wall
Street Journal ceases to be published or goes on strike or is otherwise not published, Lender may use a similar published prime or base
rate. The Prime Rate is not necessarily the lowest or best rate of interest offered by Lender to any borrower or class of borrowers.

Property - Any interest of Borrower in any kind of property or asset, whether real, personal or mixed, or tangible or
intangible.

Regulation D - Regulation D of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System comprising Part 204 of Title 12, Code
of Federal Regulations, as amended, and any successor thereto.

Reimbursement Obligations - Section 2.2(c).
Related Borrower - Section 2.13.
Revolving Credit - Section 2.1(a).

Revolving Credit Fee - Section 2.7(a).
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Revolving Credit Fee Amount - Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500).

Revolving Credit Maturity Date - July 31, 2017, or such later date as Lender may, in its sole and absolute discretion,
designate in writing to Borrower.

Revolving Credit Note - Section 2.1(b).

S&P - Standard & Poor’ s, a division of McGraw-Hill, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State
of New York, its successors and assigns, and, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the
functions of a securities rating agency, “S&P” shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally recognized securities rating agency
designated by the Borrower with the consent of the Lender.

Subordinated Debt - Indebtedness of Borrower subject to payment terms and subordination provisions acceptable to Lender
in its sole discretion, including without limitation, Indebtedness referenced in the Avon Subordination Agreement.

Subsidiary - With respect to any Person at any time, (i) any corporation more than fifty percent (50%) of whose voting stock
is legally and beneficially owned by such Person or owned by a corporation more than fifty percent (50%) of whose voting stock is
legally and beneficially owned by such Person; (ii) any trust of which a majority of the beneficial interest is at such time owned directly
or indirectly, beneficially or of record, by such Person or one or more Subsidiaries of such Person; and (iii) any partnership, joint
venture, limited liability company or other entity of which ownership interests having ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the
board of directors or other Persons performing similar functions are at such time owned directly or indirectly, beneficially or of record,
by, or which is otherwise controlled directly, indirectly or through one or more intermediaries by, such Person or one or more
Subsidiaries of such Person.

Tangible Capital Funds - As of any date of determination, (a) the amount by which all of Borrower’ s consolidated assets
(less (i) trademarks, copyrights, goodwill, covenants not to compete, and all other assets which would be classified as intangible assets
under GAAP and (ii) assets owing from officers, directors, equity holders and Affiliates), exceed all of Borrower’ s consolidated
liabilities and (b) the amount of Subordinated Debt outstanding, each as would be shown on Borrower’ s consolidated balance sheet
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Term Loan - Section 2.3(a).

Term Loan Amount - The sum of One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000).

Term Loan Commitment Fee - Section 2.7(b).

Term Loan Maturity Date - February 15, 2019.

Term Loan Note - Section 2.3(b).

CC - The Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the Commonwealth of Virginia, as the same may be amended from time
to time.
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Other Capitalized Terms - Any other capitalized terms used without further definition herein shall have the respective
meaning set forth in the UCC.

1.2. Accounting Principles: Where the character or amount of any asset or liability or item of income or expense is required to be
determined or any consolidation or other accounting computation is required to be made for the purposes of this Agreement, this shall
be done in accordance with GAAP as in effect on the Closing Date, to the extent applicable, except as otherwise expressly provided in
this Agreement. If there are any changes in GAAP after the Closing Date that would affect the computation of the financial covenants in
Section 6.9, such changes shall only be followed, with respect to such financial covenants, from and after the date this Agreement shall
have been amended to take into account any such changes.

1.3. Construction: No doctrine of construction of ambiguities in agreements or instruments against the interests of the party
controlling the drafting shall apply to any Loan Documents.

SECTION II. THE LOANS

2.1. Revolving Credit - Description:

a. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Lender hereby establishes for the benefit of Borrower a revolving
credit facility (the “Revolving Credit”) which shall include cash Advances extended by Lender to or for the benefit of Borrower as well
as Letters of Credit issued for the account of Borrower from time to time hereunder. The aggregate principal amount of unpaid cash
Advances, plus the Letter of Credit Amount, shall not at any time exceed the Borrowing Base. Subject to such limitation, the
outstanding balance of Advances under the Revolving Credit may fluctuate from time to time, to be reduced by repayments made by
Borrower, to be increased by future Advances, which may be made by Lender, to or for the benefit of Borrower and, subject to the
provisions of Section VIII below, shall be due and payable on the Revolving Credit Maturity Date. If the aggregate principal amount of
unpaid cash Advances, plus the Letter of Credit Amount, at any time exceeds the Borrowing Base (such excess referred to as
“Overadvance”), Borrower shall immediately repay the Overadvance in full.

b. At Closing, Borrower shall execute and deliver a promissory note to Lender for the Maximum Revolving Credit Amount
(“Revolving Credit Note™). The Revolving Credit Note shall evidence Borrower” s unconditional obligation to repay Lender for all
Advances made under the Revolving Credit, with interest as herein provided. Each Advance under the Revolving Credit shall be
deemed evidenced by the Revolving Credit Note, which is deemed incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof. The
Revolving Credit Note shall be in form and substance satisfactory to Lender.

c. The term of the Revolving Credit shall expire on the Revolving Credit Maturity Date. On such date, unless having been
sooner accelerated by Lender pursuant to the terms hereof, and without impairing any rights under Section 3.1, all sums owing under the
Revolving Credit shall be due and payable in full, and as of and after such date Borrower shall not request and Lender shall not make
any further Advances under the Revolving Credit.
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2.2. Letters of Credit:

a. As a part of the Revolving Credit and subject to its terms and conditions (including, without limitation, the Borrowing
Base), Lender shall make available to Borrower Letters of Credit which shall not exceed, in the aggregate at any one time outstanding,
the L/C Commitment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all Letters of Credit shall be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to
Lender. No Letter of Credit shall be issued with an expiry date later than (i) three hundred sixty five (365) days from the date of
issuance for a stand-by letter of credit or (ii) ten (10) Business Days prior to the Revolving Credit Maturity Date. Borrower shall execute
and deliver to Issuer all Letter of Credit Documents required by Lender for such purposes. Each Letter of Credit shall comply with the
Letter of Credit Documents.

b. Each Letter of Credit issued from time to time under the Revolving Credit which remains undrawn (and the amounts of
draws on Letters of Credit prior to payment as hereinafter set forth) shall reduce, dollar for dollar, the amount available to be borrowed
by Borrower under the Revolving Credit.

c. In the event of any request for drawing under any Letter of Credit by the beneficiary thereof, Lender shall promptly notify
Borrower and Borrower shall immediately reimburse Lender on the day when such drawing is honored, by either a cash payment by
Borrower or, so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, in the absence of such payment by Borrower, and at
Lender’ s option, by Lender automatically making or having been deemed to have made (without further request or approval of
Borrower) a cash Advance under the Revolving Credit on such date to reimburse Lender. Borrower’ s reimbursement obligation for
draws under Letters of Credit along with the obligation to pay L/C Fees shall herein be referred to collectively as Borrower’ s
“Reimbursement Obligations.” All of Borrower’ s Reimbursement Obligations hereunder with respect to Letters of Credit shall apply
unconditionally and absolutely to Letters of Credit issued hereunder on behalf of Borrower.

d. The obligation of Borrower to reimburse Lender for drawings made (or for cash Advances made to cover drawings made)
under the Letters of Credit shall be unconditional and irrevocable and shall be paid strictly in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement under all circumstances including, without limitation, the following circumstances:

i. any lack of validity or enforceability of any Letter of Credit;

ii. the existence of any claim, setoff, defense or other right that Borrower or any other Person may have at any time
against a beneficiary or any transferee of any Letter of Credit (or any persons or entities for whom any such beneficiary or transferee
may be acting), Lender or any other Person, whether in connection with this Agreement, the transactions contemplated herein or any
unrelated transaction;

iii. any draft, demand, certificate or any other document presented under any Letter of Credit proving to be forged,
fraudulent, invalid or insufficient in any respect or any statement therein being untrue or inaccurate in any respect;

iv. payment by Lender under any Letter of Credit against presentation of a demand, draft or certificate or other
document that does not comply with the terms of such Letter of Credit unless Lender shall have acted with willful misconduct or gross
negligence in issuing such payment;
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v. any other circumstances or happening whatsoever that is similar to any of the foregoing; or
vi. the fact that a Default or Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing.

e. If by reason of (i) any change after the Closing Date in any applicable law, regulation, rule, decree or regulatory
requirement, or any change in the interpretation or application thereof by any Governmental Authority or (ii) compliance by Lender
with any direction, reasonable request or requirement (whether or not having the force of law) of any governmental or monetary
authority including, without limitation, Regulation D:

i. Lender shall be subject to any tax or other levy or charge of any nature or to any variation thereof (except for
changes in the rate of any tax on the net income of Lender or its applicable lending office) or to any penalty with respect to the
maintenance or fulfillment of its obligations under this Section 2.2, whether directly or by such being imposed on or suffered by Lender;

ii. any reserve, deposit or similar requirement is or shall be applicable, imposed or modified in respect of any Letter of
Credit issued by Lender; or

iii. there shall be imposed on Lender any other condition regarding this Section 2.2 or any Letter of Credit; and the
result of the foregoing is to directly or indirectly increase the cost to Lender of issuing, creating, making or maintaining any Letter of
Credit or to reduce the amount receivable in respect thereof by Lender, then and in any such case, Lender shall, after the additional cost
is incurred or the amount received is reduced, notify Borrower and Borrower shall pay on demand such amounts as may be necessary to
compensate Lender for such additional cost or reduced receipt, together with interest on such amount from the date demanded until
payment in full thereof at a rate per annum equal at all times to the applicable interest rate under the Revolving Credit. A certificate
signed by an officer of Lender as to the amount of such increased cost or reduced receipt showing in reasonable detail the basis for the
calculation thereof, submitted to Borrower by Lender shall, except for manifest error and absent written notice from Borrower to Lender
within ten (10) days from submission, be final, conclusive and binding for all purposes.

f. i. In addition to amounts payable as elsewhere provided in this Section 2.2, without duplication, Borrower hereby agrees to
protect, indemnify, pay and save Lender harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, damages, losses, costs,
charges and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) which Lender may incur or be subject to as a consequence, direct or
indirect, of (A) the issuance of the Letters of Credit or (b) the failure of Lender to honor a drawing under any Letter of Credit as a result
of any such act or omission, whether rightful or wrongful, of any present or future de jure or de facto government or Governmental
Authority (all such acts or omissions herein called “Government Acts”) in each case except for claims, demands, liabilities, damages,
losses, costs, charges and expenses arising solely from acts or conduct of Lender constituting gross negligence or willful misconduct.
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ii. As between Borrower and Lender, Borrower assumes all risks of the acts and omissions of or misuse of the Letters
of Credit issued by Lender by the respective beneficiaries of such Letters of Credit. In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing,
Lender shall not be responsible: (A) for the form, validity, sufficiency, accuracy, genuineness or legal effects of any document submitted
by any party in connection with the application for and issuance if such Letters of Credit, even if it should in fact prove to be in any or
all respects invalid, insufficient, inaccurate, fraudulent or forged; (B) for the validity or sufficiency of any instrument transferring or
assigning or purporting to transfer or assign any such Letter of Credit or the rights or benefits thereunder or proceeds thereof, in whole
or in part, that may prove to be invalid or ineffective for any reason; (C) for failure of the beneficiary of any such Letter of Credit to
comply fully with conditions required in order to draw upon such Letter of Credit; (D) for errors, omissions, interruptions or delays in
transmission or delivery of any messages, by mail, cable, telegraph, telex or otherwise, whether or not they are in cipher, unless any of
the foregoing are caused by Lender’ s gross negligence or willful misconduct; (E) for errors in interpretation of technical terms; (F) for
any loss or delay in the transmission of any document or required in order to make a drawing under such Letter of Credit or of the
proceeds thereof, unless caused by Lender’ s gross negligence or willful misconduct; (G) for the misapplication by the beneficiary of
any such Letter of Credit of the proceeds of any drawing under such Letter of Credit; and (H) for any consequences arising from causes
beyond the control of Issuer, including, without limitation, any Government Acts. None of the above shall affect, impair or prevent the
vesting of any of Lender’ s rights or powers hereunder.

iii. In furtherance and extension and not in limitation of the specific provisions hereinabove set forth, any action taken

or omitted by Lender in connection with the Letters of Credit issued by it or the related certificates, if taken or omitted in good faith,
shall not create any liability on the part of Lender to Borrower.

2.3. Term Loan - Description:

a. Lender hereby agrees to advance to Borrower, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, up to the sum of the
Term Loan Amount (“Term Loan”). Borrower may request Lender to make an advance to Borrower of the Term Loan, provided (i) such
advance is made no later than July 31, 2017, (ii) the amount of the advance made under the Term Loan does not exceed the Term Loan
Amount, (iii) no more than one request for an advance of the Term Loan is made, (iv) the request for the cash advance of the Term Loan
is made pursuant to a written request executed by an Authorized Officer of Parent delivered to Lender not less than three (3) Business
Days before the date the Term Loan advance is to be made, identifying the date of the advance and the amount of the advance to be
made and (v) a Term Loan Note is executed by Borrower and delivered to Lender no later than 10:00 am the date of the advance. Lender
shall make any properly documented and requested advance if the amount of the requested advance is not greater than the Term Loan
Amount. Any request for an advance of the Term Loan is irrevocable. Only one advance of the Term Loan shall be made. Any portion
of the Term Loan Amount not advanced, and any advance of the Term Loan repaid prior to maturity, may not be borrowed or
reborrowed by Borrower.
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b. Prior to Lender making an advance of the Term Loan, Borrower shall execute and deliver a promissory note to Lender in
the original principal amount of up to the Term Loan Amount, dated as of the date that the Term Loan is advanced, substantially in the
form of Exhibit “B” attached hereto (“Term Loan Note™). The Term Loan Note shall evidence Borrower’ s unconditional obligation to
repay to Lender the Term Loan (including the advance made thereunder) with interest as herein provided. The advance under the Term
Loan shall be deemed evidenced by the Term Loan Note, which is deemed incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof. The
Term Loan Note shall be in form and substance satisfactory to Lender.

c. The principal balance of the Term Loan shall be paid in consecutive equal monthly installments of principal in an amount
equal to one forty-eighth (1/48th) of the original principal amount of the Term Loan advanced, on the last Business Day of each
calendar month, beginning on the last Business Day of the month in which the Term Loan is advanced. A final installment of all unpaid
principal and all accrued and unpaid interest outstanding under the Term Loan shall be due and payable on the Term Loan Maturity
Date.

2.4. Advances and Payments:

a. Except to the extent otherwise set forth in this Agreement (or in the case of an Interest Hedging Instrument under the
applicable agreements), all payments of principal and of interest on the Revolving Credit, Reimbursement Obligations, Term Loan and
all Expenses, fees, indemnification obligations and all other charges and any other Obligations of Borrower, shall be made to Lender at
its banking office located at 17801 Georgia Avenue, Olney, Maryland 20832, in United States dollars, in immediately available funds.
Lender shall have the unconditional right and discretion (and Borrower hereby authorizes Lender) to charge any of Parent’ s operating
and/or deposit account(s) (or if there are insufficient funds in such accounts, any operating and/or deposit account(s) of any other
Borrower), for all of Borrower’ s Obligations as they become due from time to time under this Agreement including, without limitation,
interest, principal, fees, indemnification obligations and reimbursement of Expenses. Alternatively, Lender may in its discretion (and
Borrower hereby authorizes Lender to) make a cash Advance under the Revolving Credit in a sum sufficient to pay all interest accrued
and payable on the Obligations and to pay all costs, fees and Expenses owing hereunder. Borrower acknowledges that Borrower’ s
failure to maintain sufficient funds in any checking, operating or deposit account for payment of any of the Obligations, or Lender’ s
failure to charge any such account shall not relieve Borrower of any payment obligation under this Agreement or any other Loan
Document. Any payments received prior to 4:00 p.m. Eastern time on any Business Day shall be deemed received on such Business
Day. Any payments (including any payment in full of the Obligations), received after 4:00 p.m. Eastern time on any Business Day shall
be deemed received on the immediately following Business Day.

b. Each Borrower shall cause (and Lender is hereby irrevocably authorized to cause) the transfer of all payments on such
Borrower’ s Accounts into the Parent’ s operating account maintained at Lender (the “Operating Account”). Deposits into the Operating
Account shall be applied by Lender daily, subject to Lender’ s standard clearing procedures and clearing periods for deposited funds, to
reduce the outstanding principal amount under the Revolving Credit.
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c. Cash Advances which may be made by Lender from time to time under the Revolving Credit shall be made available by
crediting such proceeds to Parent’ s operating account with Lender.

d. All requests for a cash Advance under the Revolving Credit are to be pursuant to a working capital loan sweep or a written
request (“Advance Request”) executed by an Authorized Officer of a Borrower. Requests for Advances must be requested by 2:00 p.m.,
Eastern time, on the date such Advance is to be made. Upon receiving a request for an Advance in accordance with this subparagraph,
and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, Lender shall make the requested Advance available to Parent as soon as is
reasonably practicable thereafter on the day the requested Advance is to be made.

2.5. Interest:

a. The unpaid principal balance of cash Advances under the Revolving Credit shall bear interest, subject to the terms hereof,
at the per annum rate equal to the Prime Rate plus fifty (50) basis points. Changes in the interest rate applicable to the Revolving Credit
shall become effective on the same day that there is a change in the Prime Rate. Interest on the Revolving Credit shall be payable
monthly, in arrears, on the last Business Day of each month, beginning on August 31, 2016 and on the Revolving Credit Maturity Date.

b. The unpaid principal balance of the Term Loan shall bear interest, subject to the terms hereof, at a per annum rate equal to
the Prime Rate plus seventy five (75) basis points. Changes in the interest rate applicable to the Term Loan shall become effective on the
same date that there is a change in the Prime Rate. Interest on the Term Loan shall be payable monthly, in arrears, on the last Business
Day of each calendar month, beginning on the last Business Day of the month in which the Term Loan is advanced and on the Term
Loan Maturity Date.

2.6. Additional Interest Provisions:

a. Interest on the Loans shall be calculated on the basis of a year of three hundred sixty (360) days but charged for the actual
number of days elapsed.

b. After the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default hereunder, the per annum effective rate of interest
on all outstanding principal under the Loans shall be increased by two hundred (200) basis points. All such increases may be applied
retroactively to the date of the occurrence of the Event of Default. Borrower agrees that the default rate payable to Lender is a
reasonable estimate of Lender’ s damages and is not a penalty.

c. All contractual rates of interest chargeable on outstanding principal under the Loans shall continue to accrue and be paid
even after Default, an Event of Default, maturity, acceleration, judgment, bankruptcy, insolvency proceedings of any kind or the
happening of any event or occurrence similar or dissimilar.

d. In no contingency or event whatsoever shall the aggregate of all amounts deemed interest hereunder and charged or
collected pursuant to the terms of this Agreement exceed the highest rate permissible under any law which a court of competent
jurisdiction shall,
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in a final determination, deem applicable hereto. In the event that such court determines Lender has charged or received interest
hereunder in excess of the highest applicable rate, Lender shall apply, in its sole discretion, and set off such excess interest received by
Lender against other Obligations due or to become due and such rate shall automatically be reduced to the maximum rate permitted by
such law.

2.7. Fees and Charges:

a. At Closing, Borrower shall pay to Lender a non-refundable fee with respect to the Revolving Credit (“Revolving Credit
Fee”) in an amount equal to the Revolving Credit Fee Amount.

b. At Closing, Lender shall have fully earned and Borrower shall unconditionally pay to Lender a non-refundable
commitment fee with respect to the Term Loan (“Term Loan Commitment Fee”) of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000).

c. Borrower shall unconditionally pay to Lender a late charge equal to five percent (5%) of any and all payments of principal
or interest on the Loans that are not paid within fifteen (15) days of the due date. Such late charge shall be due and payable regardless of
whether Lender has accelerated the Obligations. Borrower agrees that any late fee payable to Lender is a reasonable estimate of
Lender’ s damages and is not a penalty.

d. Borrower shall pay to Lender a fee in the amount of two percent (2%) per annum of the face amount of each Letter of
Credit issued by Lender. Such fee shall be payable on the date the Letter of Credit is issued. In addition, Borrower shall pay to Lender,
upon billing therefore, all of Lender’ s standard commissions for the issuance of banker’ s acceptances and standard charges for
issuance, amendment, extension and cancellation of any Letter of Credit. All such fees and charges are referred to herein collectively as
the “L/C Fees.”

2.8. Prepayments: Borrower may prepay the Revolving Credit and Term Loan in whole or in part at any time or from time to time,
without penalty or premium. Any prepayment shall be accompanied by all accrued and unpaid interest. Any partial prepayment of the
Term Loan shall be applied to installments of the Term Loan due in the inverse order of maturity.

2.9. Use of Proceeds: The extensions of credit under and proceeds of the Revolving Credit shall be used to refinance AOC’ s
existing line of credit with the Lender and to support short-term working capital needs and general corporate purposes. The extensions
of credit under and proceeds of the Term Loan shall be used to provide permanent working capital.

2.10. Capital Adequacy: If any present or future law, governmental rule, regulation, policy, guideline, directive or similar
requirement (whether or not having the force of law) imposes, modifies, or deems applicable any capital adequacy, capital maintenance
or similar requirement which affects the manner in which Lender allocates capital resources to its commitments (including any
commitments hereunder), and as a result thereof, in the opinion of Lender, the rate of return on Lender’ s capital with regard to the
Loans is reduced to a level below that which Lender could have achieved but for such circumstances, then in such case and upon notice
from Lender to Borrower, from time to time, Borrower shall pay Lender such additional amount or amounts as shall compensate Lender
for such reduction in Lender’ s rate of return.
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Such notice shall contain the statement of Lender with regard to any such amount or amounts which shall, in the absence of manifest
error, be binding upon Borrower. In determining such amount, Lender may use any reasonable method of averaging and attribution that
it deems applicable.

2.11. Borrower Representation; Reliance: Each Borrower irrevocably appoints Parent as its agent for all purposes relevant to this
Agreement and all other Loan Documents, including the giving and receipt of notices, making of Advance Requests and advances of the
Term Loan and execution and delivery of all documents, instruments, and certificates contemplated herein and therein and all
modifications hereto and thereto. Any acknowledgment, consent, direction, certification, or other action which might otherwise be valid
or effective only if given, taken or received by all or any Borrower acting singly, shall be valid and effective if given, taken or received
only by an authorized officer of Parent, whether or not any of the other Borrowers joins therein, and Lender shall not have any duty or
obligation to make further inquiry with respect to the authority of Parent under this Section 2.11, provided that nothing in this
Section 2.11 shall limit the effectiveness of, or the right of Lender to require and rely upon, any notice, document, instrument,
certificate, acknowledgment, consent, direction, certification, or other action to be delivered by an authorized officer of each Borrower
pursuant to this Agreement or the other Loan Documents. With respect to any action hereunder, Lender may conclusively rely upon, and
shall incur no liability to any Borrower in acting upon, any request or other communication that Lender reasonably believes to have
been given or made by an authorized officer on such or any Borrower’ s behalf, whether or not such Person is listed on the incumbency
certificate delivered pursuant to this Agreement. In each such case, each Borrower hereby waives the right to dispute Lender’ s actions
based upon such request or other communication.

2.12. Concerning Joint and Several Liability of the Borrowers:

a. Each Borrower acknowledges that it is jointly and severally liable for all of the Obligations under the Loan Documents,
and any amendment, modification, waiver, consent or other agreement which affects the Obligations shall be deemed to affect the
Obligations of all Borrowers on a joint and several basis unless expressly specified otherwise. Each Borrower expressly understands,
agrees and acknowledges that (i) Borrowers are all Affiliates, (ii) each Borrower desires to have the availability of one common credit
facility instead of separate credit facilities, (iii) each Borrower has requested that Lender extend such a common credit facility on the
terms herein provided, (iv) Lender will be lending against, and relying on a Lien upon, all of Borrowers’ assets even though the
proceeds of any particular Loan made hereunder may not be advanced directly to a particular Borrower, (v) each Borrower will
nonetheless benefit by the making of all such Loans by Lender and the availability of a single credit facility of a size greater than each
could independently warrant, (vi) all of the representations, warranties, covenants, obligations, conditions, agreements and other terms
contained in the Loan Documents to which any Borrower is a party shall be applicable to and shall be binding upon each Borrower,
unless otherwise expressly provided herein, and (vii) Borrowers have each executed this Agreement as co-obligors, and that it would not
be able to obtain the credit provided by Lender without the financial support provided by the other Borrowers. Each Borrower is
accepting joint and several liability hereunder and under the other Loan Documents in consideration of the financial accommodations to
be provided by Lender under this Agreement, for the mutual benefit, directly and indirectly, of each Borrower and in
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consideration of the undertakings of each other Borrower to accept joint and several liability for the Obligations. With respect to any
Borrower’ s Obligations arising as a result of the joint and several liability of Borrowers hereunder with respect to Loans or other
extensions of credit made to any of the other Borrowers hereunder, such Borrower hereby waives, as long as any Obligations are not
paid in full and the commitment of Lender under this Agreement has not been terminated, any right to enforce any right of subrogation
or any remedy which Lender now has or may hereafter have against any other Borrower, or any endorser of all or any part of the
Obligations, and any benefit of, and any right to participate in, any security or collateral given to Lender to secure payment of the
Obligations or any other liability of any Borrower to Lender. During the existence of any Event of Default, Lender may proceed directly
and at once, without notice, against any Borrower to collect and recover the full amount, or any portion of the Obligations, without first
proceeding against any other Borrower or any other Person, or against any security or collateral for the Obligations. Each Borrower
consents and agrees that Lender shall be under no obligation to marshal any assets in favor of any Borrower or against or in payment of
any or all of the Obligations.

b. Each Borrower hereby guarantees the prompt payment and performance in full of all Obligations (including the Term
Loan). Such guarantee constitutes a guarantee of payment and not of collection. Each Borrower’ s guarantee under this Agreement shall,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, be unconditional irrespective of (i) the validity or enforceability, avoidance or subordination of the
Obligations of any other Borrower or of any promissory note or other document evidencing all or any part of the Obligations of any
other Borrower, (ii) the absence of any attempt to collect the Obligations from any other Borrower, or any other security therefor, or the
absence of any other action to enforce the same, (iii) the waiver, consent, extension, forbearance or granting of any indulgence by
Lender with respect to any provision of any instrument evidencing the Obligations of any other Borrower or any part thereof, or any
other agreement now or hereafter executed by any other Borrower and delivered to Lender, (iv) the failure by Lender to take any steps
to perfect and maintain its security interest in, or to preserve its rights to, any security or collateral for the Obligations of any other
Borrower, (v) Lender’ s election, in any proceeding instituted under the Bankruptcy Code, of the application of Section 1111(b)(2) of the
Bankruptcy Code, (vi) any borrowing or grant of a security interest by any other Borrower, as debtor-in-possession under Section 364 of
the Bankruptcy Code, (vii) the disallowance of all or any portion of Lender’ s claim(s) for the repayment of the Obligations of any other
Borrower under Section 502 of the Bankruptcy Code or (viii) any other circumstances which might constitute a legal or equitable
discharge or defense of a guarantor or of any other Borrower (other than actual indefeasible payment in full).

2.13. Limitation of Liability: Notwithstanding any provisions contained herein to the contrary, the liability of each of Parent and
AOC (each a “Related Borrower”) under this Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall be limited to an amount not to exceed as
of any date of determination the amount which could be claimed by Lender from such Related Borrower under the Loan Documents
without rendering such claim voidable or avoidable under Section 548 of the Bankruptcy Code (Title 11, U.S.C.) or under any
applicable state Uniform Fraudulent Transfer Act, Uniform Fraudulent Conveyance Act or similar statute or common law (the
“Avoidance Provisions™) after taking into account, among other things, such Related Borrower’ s right of contribution and
indemnification from other Borrowers, if any. To the extent set forth above, but only to the extent that the obligations of a Related
Borrower hereunder (for
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each Related Borrower, the “Related Borrower Obligations™) would otherwise be subject to avoidance under the avoidance provisions,
if the Related Borrower is not deemed to have received valuable consideration, fair value, fair consideration or reasonably equivalent
value for its Related Borrower Obligations, or if its Related Borrower Obligations would render the Related Borrower insolvent, or
leave the Related Borrower with an unreasonably small capital to conduct its business, or cause the Related Borrower to have incurred
debts (or to have intended to have incurred debts) beyond its ability to pay such debts as they mature, in each case as of the time any of
its Related Borrower Obligations is deemed to have incurred for the purposes if the avoidance provisions, the maximum Related
Borrower Obligations for which the Related Borrower shall be liable hereunder shall be reduced to that amount which, after giving
effect thereto, would not cause the Related Borrower Obligations as so reduced, to be subject to avoidance under the Avoidance
Provisions.

SECTION III. COLLATERAL

3.1. Collateral: As security for the payment of the Obligations, and satisfaction by Borrower of all covenants and undertakings
contained in this Agreement and the other Loan Documents, Borrower hereby assigns and grants to Lender, a continuing Lien on and
security interest in, upon and to all assets of Borrower, including but not limited to the following Property, all whether now owned or
hereafter acquired, created or arising and wherever located:

i. Accounts - All Accounts;

ii. Chattel Paper - All Chattel Paper;

iii. Documents - All Documents;

iv. Instruments - All Instruments;

v. Inventory - All Inventory;

vi. General Intangibles - All General Intangibles;

vii. Equipment - All Equipment,

viii. Fixtures - All Fixtures;

ix. Deposit Accounts - All Deposit Accounts;

x. Goods - All Goods;

xi. Letter of Credit Rights - All Letter of Credit Rights;
xii. Supporting Obligations - All Supporting Obligations;

xiii. Investment Property - All Investment Property;

xiv. Commercial Tort Claims - All Commercial Tort Claims identified and described in a writing delivered by
Borrower to Lender;
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xv. Property in Lender’ s Possession - All Property of Borrower, now or hereafter in Lender’ s possession; and

xvi. Proceeds - The Proceeds (including, without limitation, insurance proceeds), whether cash or non-cash, of all of
the foregoing property described in clauses (i) through (xv).

3.2. Lien Documents: At Closing and thereafter as Lender deems necessary, Borrower shall execute and/or deliver to Lender, or
have executed and delivered (all in form and substance satisfactory to Lender and its counsel):

a. Financing statements pursuant to the UCC, which Lender may file in the jurisdiction where Borrower is organized and in
any other jurisdiction that Lender deems appropriate; and

b. Any other agreements, documents, instruments and writings, including, without limitation, intellectual property security
agreements, required by Lender to evidence, perfect or protect the Liens and security interests in the Collateral or as Lender may
reasonably request from time to time.

3.3. Other Actions:

a. In addition to the foregoing, Borrower shall do anything further that may be reasonably required by Lender to secure
Lender and effectuate the intentions and objects of this Agreement, including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of security
agreements, contracts and any other documents required hereunder and the delivery of motor titles with Lender’ s lien noted thereon. At
Lender’ s reasonable request, Borrower shall also immediately deliver (with execution by Borrower of all necessary documents or forms
to reflect, implement or enforce the Liens described herein), or cause to be delivered to Lender all items for which Lender must receive
possession to obtain a perfected security interest, including without limitation, all notes, stock powers, letters of credit, certificates and
documents of title, Chattel Paper, Warechouse Receipts, Instruments, and any other similar instruments constituting Collateral.

b. Lender is hereby authorized to file financing statements and amendments to financing statements without Borrower’ s
signature, in accordance with the UCC. Borrower hereby authorizes Lender to file all such financing statements and amendments to
financing statements describing the Collateral in any filing office as Lender, in its sole discretion may determine, including financing
statements listing “All Assets” in the collateral description therein. Borrower agrees to comply with the requests of Lender in order for
Lender to have and maintain a valid and perfected first security interest in the Collateral including, without limitation, executing and
causing any other Person to execute such documents as Lender may require to obtain Control (as defined in the UCC) over all Deposit
Accounts, Letter of Credit Rights and Investment Property.
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3.4. Searches, Certificates:

a. Lender shall, prior to or at Closing, and thereafter as Lender may determine from time to time, at Borrower’ s expense,
obtain the following searches (the results of which are to be consistent with the warranties made by Borrower in this Agreement):

i. UCC searches with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware and local filing office of each state where
Borrower is organized, maintains its executive office, a place of business, or assets; and

ii. Judgment, state and federal tax lien and corporate tax lien searches, in all applicable filing offices of each state
searched under subparagraph (i) above.

b. Borrower shall, prior to or at Closing and at its expense, obtain and deliver to Lender good standing certificates showing
Borrower to be in good standing in its state of organization and in each other state in which it is doing and presently intends to do
business for which qualification is required.

3.5. Landlord’ s and Warehouseman’ s Waivers: Borrower will, at Lender’ s request, use commercially reasonable efforts to cause
each owner of any premises occupied by a Borrower or to be occupied by a Borrower and each warehouseman of any warehouse,
where, in either event Collateral is held, to execute and deliver to Lender an instrument, in form and substance satisfactory to Lender,
under which such owner(s) or warehouseman subordinates its/his/their interests in and waives its/his/their right to distrain on or
foreclose against the Collateral and agrees to allow Lender to remain on such premises to dispose of or deal with any Collateral located
thereon. The failure of Borrower to obtain the foregoing after using commercially reasonable efforts to do so shall not constitute an
Event of Default.

3.6. Filing Security Agreement: A carbon, photographic or other reproduction or other copy of this Agreement or of a financing
statement is sufficient as and may be filed in lieu of a financing statement.

3.7. Power of Attorney: Each of the officers of Lender is hereby irrevocably made, constituted and appointed the true and lawful
attorney for each Borrower (without requiring any of them to act as such) with full power of substitution to do the following: (a) endorse
the name of Borrower upon any and all checks, drafts, money orders and other instruments for the payment of monies that are payable
to Borrower and constitute collections on Borrower’ s Accounts or proceeds of other Collateral; (b) execute and/or file in the name of
Borrower any financing statements, schedules, assignments, instruments, documents and statements that Borrower is obligated to give
Lender hereunder or is necessary to perfect (or continue or evidence the perfection of such security interest or Lien) Lender’ s security
interest or Lien in the Collateral; and (c) upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of Default, do such other and
further acts and deeds in the name of Borrower that Lender may reasonably deem necessary or desirable to enforce any Account or other
Collateral.
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SECTION IV. CLOSING AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO ADVANCES

Closing under this Agreement is subject to the following conditions precedent (all instruments, documents and agreements to be in
form and substance satisfactory to Lender and Lender’ s counsel):

4.1. Resolutions, Opinions and Other Documents: Borrower shall have delivered, or caused to be delivered to Lender the
following:

a. this Agreement, the Notes and each of the other Loan Documents, all properly executed,

b. financing statements and each of the other documents to be executed and/or delivered by Borrower or any other Person
pursuant to this Agreement;

c. certified copies of (i) resolutions of each Borrower’ s board of directors or other governing body authorizing the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Notes to be issued hereunder and each of the other Loan Documents required to be
delivered by any Section hereof and (ii) each Borrower’ s certificate of incorporation and bylaws;

d. an incumbency certificate for each Borrower identifying all of its Authorized Officers, with specimen signatures;

e. such financial statements, reports, certifications and other operational information as Lender may reasonably require,
satisfactory in all respects to Lender;

f. certification by an officer of each Borrower that there has not occurred any material adverse change in the operations and
condition (financial or otherwise) of Borrower since December 31, 2015;

g. payment by Borrower of all fees including, without limitation, the Revolving Credit Fee, Term Loan Commitment Fee and
Expenses associated with the Loans;

h. searches and certificates required under Section 3.4;

i. insurance certificates and policies required under Section 6.2;

j- evidence that Avon has loaned at least Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) to Borrower;
k. a pro forma Compliance Certificate;

1. an initial Borrowing Certificate dated the Closing Date; and

m. such other documents reasonably required by Lender.

4.2. Absence of Certain Events: At the Closing Date, no Default or Event of Default hereunder shall have occurred and be
continuing.

4.3. Warranties and Representations at Closing: The warranties and representations contained in Section 5 as well as any other
Section of this Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects on the Closing Date with the same effect as though made on and as of
that date. Borrower shall not have taken any action or permitted any condition to exist which would have been prohibited by any Section
hereof.
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4.4. Compliance with this Agreement: Borrower shall have performed and complied with all agreements, covenants and conditions
contained herein including, without limitation, the provisions of Sections 6 and 7 hereof, which are required to be performed or
complied with by Borrower before or at the Closing Date.

4.5. Officers’ Certificate: Lender shall have received a certificate dated the Closing Date and signed by an officer of Borrower
certifying that all of the conditions specified in this Section have been fulfilled (except for conditions specifically identified therein as
having been waived by Lender).

4.6. Closing: Subject to the conditions of this Section, the Loans shall be made available on such date (the “Closing Date’”) and at
such time and location as may be mutually agreeable to the parties contemporaneously with the execution hereof (“Closing”).

4.7. Waiver of Rights: By completing the Closing hereunder, or by making Advances hereunder, Lender does not thereby waive a
breach of any warranty or representation made by Borrower hereunder or under any agreement, document, or instrument delivered to
Lender or otherwise referred to herein, and any claims and rights of Lender resulting from any breach or misrepresentation by Borrower
are specifically reserved by Lender.

4.8. Conditions for Future Advances: The making of Advances under the Revolving Credit in any form following the Closing
Date, and the making of any advance under the Term Loan, are each subject to the following conditions precedent (all instruments,
documents and agreements to be in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Lender and its counsel) following the Closing Date:

a. This Agreement and each of the other Loan Documents shall be effective;

b. No event or condition shall have occurred or become known to Borrower, or would result from the making of any
requested Advance or advance of the Term Loan, which could have a Material Adverse Effect;

c. No Default or Event of Default then exists or after giving effect to the making of the Advance (or if applicable, advance of
the Term Loan) would exist;

d. Each Advance (or if applicable, advance of the Term Loan) is within and complies with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement including, without limitation, the notice provisions contained in Sections 2.3 and 2.4 hereof;

e. No Lien (other than a Permitted Lien) has been imposed on Borrower; and

f. Each representation and warranty set forth in Section 5 and any other Loan Document in effect at such time (as amended or
modified from time to time) is then true and correct in all material respects as if made on and as of such date except to the extent such
representations and warranties are made only as of a specific earlier date.
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SECTION V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

To induce Lender to complete the Closing and make the initial Advances under the Revolving Credit and Loans to Borrower, each
Borrower warrants and represents to Lender that:

5.1. Organization and Validity:

a. Each of AOC and Parent is a corporation, duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of the State of Delaware.
Borrower (i) has the appropriate power and authority to operate its business and to own its Property and (ii) is duly qualified, is validly
existing and in good standing and has lawful power and authority to engage in the business it conducts in each state where the nature
and extent of its business requires qualification, except where the failure to so qualify does not and could not have a Material Adverse
Effect.

b. The making and performance of this Agreement and the other Loan Documents will not violate any law, government rule
or regulation, court or administrative order or other such order, or Borrower’ s certificate of incorporation or bylaws, or violate or result
in a default (immediately or with the passage of time) under any contract, agreement or instrument to which Borrower is a party, or by
which Borrower is bound. No Borrower is in violation of any term of any agreement or instrument to which it is a party or by which it
may be bound which violation has or could have a Material Adverse Effect, or of its certificate of incorporation or bylaws.

c. Borrower has all requisite power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and to incur the obligations herein
provided for, and has taken all proper and necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, and
the other Loan Documents as applicable.

d. This Agreement, the Notes to be issued hereunder, and all of the other Loan Documents, when delivered, will be valid and
binding upon Borrower, and enforceable in accordance with their respective terms except as enforceability may be limited by applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and by
general equitable principles.

5.2. Places of Business: The only places of business of Borrower, and the places where Borrower keeps and intends to keep its
Property, are at the addresses shown on Schedule “5.2” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

5.3. Pending Litigation: Other than as disclosed in writing by Borrower to the Lender prior to the Closing Date, there are no
judgments or judicial or administrative orders or proceedings pending, or to the knowledge of Borrower, threatened in writing, against
Borrower in any court or before any Governmental Authority. To the knowledge of Borrower, there are no investigations (civil or
criminal) pending or threatened in writing against Borrower in any court or before any Governmental Authority. Borrower is not in
default with respect to any order of any Governmental Authority. To the knowledge of Borrower, no shareholder or executive officer of
Borrower has been indicted in connection with or convicted of engaging in any criminal conduct, or is currently subject to any lawsuit
or proceeding or under investigation in connection with any anti-racketeering or other conduct or activity which may result in the
forfeiture of any property to any Governmental Authority.
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5.4. Title to Properties: Borrower has good and marketable title in fee simple (or its equivalent under applicable law) to all the
Property it purports to own, free from Liens and free from the claims of any other Person, except for Permitted Liens.

5.5. Governmental Consent: Neither the nature of Borrower or of its business or Property, nor any relationship between Borrower
and any other Person, nor any circumstance affecting Borrower in connection with the issuance or delivery of this Agreement, the Notes
or any other Loan Documents is such as to require a consent, approval or authorization of, or filing, registration or qualification with,
any Governmental Authority on the part of Borrower.

5.6. Taxes: All material tax returns required to be filed by Borrower in any jurisdiction have been filed, and all taxes, assessments,
fees and other governmental charges upon Borrower, or upon any of its Property, income or franchises, which are shown to be due and
payable on such returns have been paid, except for those taxes being contested in good faith with due diligence by appropriate
proceedings for which appropriate reserves have been maintained under GAAP and as to which no Lien has been entered. Borrower is
not aware of any proposed additional tax assessment or tax to be assessed against or applicable to Borrower.

5.7. Financial Statements: The annual audited balance sheet of AOC as of December 31, 2015, and the related statements of profit
and loss, owners’ equity and cash flow as of such date (complete copies of which have been delivered to Lender), and the internally-
prepared balance sheet of AOC as of March 31, 2016 and the related statement of profit and loss and owners’ equity as of such date
have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and present fairly the financial position of Borrower as of such dates and the results of its
operations for such periods. The fiscal year for Borrower currently ends on December 31.

5.8. Full Disclosure: The financial statements referred to in Section 5.7 of this Agreement do not, nor does any other written
statement of Borrower to Lender in connection with the negotiation of the Loans, contain any untrue statement of a material fact. Such
statements do not omit a material fact, the omission of which would make the statements contained therein misleading. There is no fact
known to Borrower which has not been disclosed in writing to Lender which has or could have a Material Adverse Effect.

5.9. Subsidiaries: Borrower does not have any Subsidiaries or Affiliates (other than another Borrower), except as shown on
Schedule “5.9” attached hereto and made a part hereof.

5.10. Investments, Guarantees, Contracts, etc.:

a. Borrower does not own or hold equity or long term debt investments in, or have any outstanding advances to, any other
Person. Borrower has not made a loan or advance to any holder of its Capital Stock except as disclosed in writing to Lender.

b. Borrower has not entered into any leases for real or personal Property (whether as landlord or tenant or lessor or lessee),
except as communicated in writing by Borrower to Lender.
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c. Borrower is not a party to any contract or agreement, or subject to any charter or other corporate restriction, which has or
could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

d. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, Borrower has not agreed or consented to cause or permit any

of its Property whether now owned or hereafter acquired to be subject in the future (upon the happening of a contingency or otherwise),
to a Lien not permitted by this Agreement.

5.11. Government Regulations, etc.:

a. The use of the proceeds of and Borrower’ s issuance of the Notes will not directly or indirectly violate or result in a
violation of Section 7 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or any regulations issued pursuant thereto, including,
without limitation, Regulations U, T and X of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 12 C.F.R., Chapter II. Borrower
does not own or intend to carry or purchase any “margin stock” within the meaning of said Regulation U.

b. Borrower has obtained all licenses, permits, franchises or other governmental authorizations necessary for the ownership
of its Property and for the conduct of its business.

c. As of the date hereof, no employee benefit plan (“Pension Plan”), as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA maintained by
Borrower or under which Borrower could have any liability under ERISA (i) has failed to meet the minimum funding standards
established in Section 302 of ERISA, (ii) has failed to comply in a material respect with all applicable requirements of ERISA and of
the Internal Revenue Code, including all applicable rulings and regulations thereunder, (iii) has engaged in or been involved in a
prohibited transaction under Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code which would subject Borrower to any
material liability, or (iv) has been terminated if such termination would subject Borrower to any material liability. Borrower has not
assumed, or received notice of a claim asserted against Borrower for, withdrawal liability (as defined in Section 4207 of ERISA) with
respect to any multi-employer pension plan, and is not a member of any Controlled Group (as defined in ERISA). Borrower has timely
made all contributions when due with respect to any multi-employer pension plan in which it participates and no event has occurred
triggering a claim against Borrower for withdrawal liability with respect to any multi-employer pension plan in which Borrower
participates.

d. Borrower is not in violation of or receipt of written notice that it is in violation of any applicable statute, regulation or
ordinance of the United States of America, or of any applicable state, city, town, municipality, county or of any other jurisdiction, or of
any agency, or department thereof, (including, without limitation, Environmental Laws or government procurement regulations), a
violation of which causes or could cause a Material Adverse Effect.
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e. Borrower is current with all reports and documents required to be filed with any state or federal securities commission or
similar agency and is in full compliance in all material respects with all applicable rules and regulations of such commissions.

5.12. Business Interruptions: Within five (5) years prior to the date hereof, none of the business, Property or operations of
Borrower have been materially and adversely affected in any way by any casualty, strike, lockout, combination of workers, order of the
United States of America, or any state or local government, or any political subdivision or agency thereof, directed against Borrower.
There are no pending or, to Borrower’ s knowledge, threatened labor disputes, strikes, lockouts or similar occurrences or grievances
affecting Borrower. No labor contract of Borrower is scheduled to expire prior to the Revolving Credit Maturity Date.

5.13. Names and Intellectual Property:

a. Within five (5) years prior to the Closing Date, Borrower has not conducted business under or used any other name
(whether corporate or assumed).

b. Borrower is not in violation of any rights of any other Person with respect to trademarks, service marks, patents or
copyrights which Borrower uses.

c. (1) Borrower does not require any copyrights, patents, trademarks or other intellectual property, or any license(s) to use any
patents, trademarks or other intellectual property in order to provide services to its customers in the ordinary course of business; and
(i1) Lender will not require any copyrights, patents, trademarks or other intellectual property or any licenses to use the same in order to
provide such services after the occurrence of an Event of Default.

5.14. Other Associations: Borrower is not engaged and has no interest in any joint venture or partnership with any other Person
except as communicated in writing to Lender.

5.15. Environmental Matters:

a. To the best of Borrower’ s knowledge after due inquiry, no Property presently owned, leased or operated by Borrower
contains, or has previously contained, any Hazardous Substances in amounts or concentrations which (i) constitute or constituted a
violation of, or (ii) could give rise to liability under, any Environmental Law.

b. To the best of Borrower’ s knowledge after due inquiry, Borrower is in compliance, and, for the duration of all applicable
statutes of limitations periods, has been in compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws, and there is no contamination at, under
or about any properties presently owned, leased, or operated by Borrower or violation of any Environmental Law with respect to such
properties which could reasonably be expected to interfere with any of their continued operations or reasonably be expected to impair
the fair saleable value thereof.

c. Borrower has not received any notice of violation, alleged violation, non-compliance, liability or potential liability
regarding environmental matters or compliance assessment with Environmental Laws and Borrower has no knowledge that any such
notice will be received or is being threatened.
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d. Hazardous Substances have not been transported or disposed of in a manner or to a location which are reasonably likely to
give rise to liability of Borrower under any Environmental Law.

e. No judicial proceeding or governmental or administrative action is pending, or to the knowledge of Borrower, threatened
under any Environmental Law to which Borrower is, or to Borrower’ s knowledge will be, named as a party, nor are there any consent
decrees or other decrees, consent orders, administrative orders or other orders, or other administrative or judicial requirements
outstanding, the implementation of which is reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect on any natural resources or on
Borrower’ s business, financial condition, Property or prospects under any Environmental Law.

5.16. Regulation O: No director, executive officer, or principal shareholder of Borrower is a director, executive officer or principal
shareholder of Lender. For the purposes hereof the terms “director” “executive officer” and “principal shareholder” (when used with
reference to Lender), have the respective meanings assigned thereto in Regulation O issued by the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System.

5.17. Capital Stock: The authorized and outstanding Capital Stock of each Borrower and the owner thereof, is as shown on
Schedule 5.17 attached hereto. All of the Capital Stock of Borrower has been duly and validly authorized and issued and is fully paid
and non-assessable and has been sold and delivered to the holders thereof in compliance with, or under valid exemption from, all
Federal and state laws and the rules and regulations of all Governmental Authorities governing the sale and delivery of securities.
Except for the rights and obligations shown on Schedule 5.17, there are no subscriptions, warrants, options, calls, commitments, rights
or agreements by which Borrower or any of the shareholders of Borrower is bound relating to the issuance, transfer, voting or
redemption of shares or interests of its Capital Stock or any pre-emptive rights held by any Person with respect to the shares or interests
of Capital Stock of Borrower. Except as shown on Schedule 5.17, Borrower has not issued any securities convertible into or
exchangeable for shares or interests of its Capital Stock or any options, warrants or other rights to acquire such shares or interests or
securities convertible into or exchangeable for such shares or interests.

5.18. Solvency: After giving effect to the transactions contemplated under this Agreement, Borrower is solvent, is able to pay its
debts as they become due, and has capital sufficient to carry on its business and all businesses in which it is about to engage, and now
owns Property having a value both at fair valuation and at present fair salable value greater than the amount required to pay Borrower’ s
debts. Borrower will not be rendered insolvent by the execution and delivery of this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents
executed in connection with this Agreement or by the transactions contemplated hereunder or thereunder.

5.19. Perfection and Priority: This Agreement and the other Loan Documents are effective to create in favor of Lender legal, valid
and enforceable Liens in all right, title and interest of Borrower in the Collateral, and when financing statements have been filed with
the
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Secretary of State of the State of Delaware under each Borrower’ s name, Borrower will have granted to Lender, and Lender will have
perfected first priority Liens in the Collateral that may be perfected by the filing of a financing statement, superior in right to any and all
other Liens, existing or future.

5.20. Commercial Tort Claims: As of the Closing Date, Borrower is not a party to any Commercial Tort Claims.

5.21. Letter of Credit Rights: As of the Closing Date, Borrower has no Letter of Credit Rights.

5.22. Deposit Accounts: All Deposit Accounts of Borrower have been identified in writing by Borrower to Lender.

5.23. Anti-Terrorism Laws:

a. General. Neither Borrower nor any Affiliate of Borrower is in violation of any Anti-Terrorism Law or engages in or
conspires to engage in any transaction that evades or avoids, or has the purpose of evading or avoiding, or attempts to violate, any of the
prohibitions set forth in any Anti-Terrorism Law.

b. Executive Order No. 13224: Borrower and each Affiliate of Borrower, and to Borrower’ s knowledge, each of their
respective agents acting or benefiting in any capacity in connection with the Loans, Letters of Credit or other transactions hereunder, is
not any of the following (each a “Blocked Person™):

i. a Person that is listed in the annex to, or is otherwise subject to the provisions of, the Executive Order No. 13224;

ii. a Person owned or controlled by, or acting for or on behalf of, any Person that is listed in the annex to, or is
otherwise subject to the provisions of, the Executive Order No. 13224;

iii. a Person with which Lender is prohibited from dealing or otherwise engaging in any transaction by any Anti-
Terrorism Law;

iv. a Person that commits, threatens or conspires to commit or supports “terrorism” as defined in the Executive Order
No. 13224;

v. a Person that is named as a “specially designated national” on the most current list published by the U.S. Treasury
Department Office of Foreign Asset Control at its official website or any replacement website or other replacement official publication
of such list; or

vi. a Person who is affiliated with a Person listed above.

5.24. Debarment: No event has occurred and no condition exists that may result in the debarment or suspension of any Borrower
or any Subsidiary from any Government Contracts, and any Borrower, any Subsidiary nor any Affiliate been subject to any such
debarment or suspension.
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5.25. Government Contracts: As of the Closing Date, with respect to each Prime Government Contract, Borrower has provided to
Lender such Prime Government Contract’ s (a) contract number, (b) project number, (c) agency name and address, (d) period of
performance, (e) name, address and telephone number of the contracting officer and (f) name, address and telephone number of the
disbursing officer. Each Prime Government Contract has not been assigned to any Person (other than an assignment that has been
terminated). Each Prime Government Contract is not subject to any right of setoff by any other party to the contract.

SECTION VI. BORROWER’ S AFFIRMATIVE COVENANTS

Borrower covenants that until all of the Obligations are paid and satisfied in full and the Revolving Credit has been terminated,
that:

6.1. Payment of Taxes and Claims: Borrower shall pay, before they become delinquent, all obligations, taxes, assessments and
governmental charges, or levies imposed upon it, or upon Borrower’ s Property, and all claims or demands of materialmen, mechanics,
carriers, warechousemen, landlords and other Persons, entitled to the benefit of statutory or common law Liens which, in any case, if
unpaid, would result in the imposition of a Lien upon its Property; provided however, that Borrower shall not be required to pay any
such tax, assessment, charge, levy, claim or demand if the amount, applicability or validity thereof, shall at the time, be contested in
good faith and by appropriate proceedings by Borrower, and if Borrower shall have set aside on its books adequate reserves in respect
thereof, if so required in accordance with GAAP; which deferment of payment is permissible so long as no Lien other than a Permitted
Lien has been entered and Borrower’ s title to, and its right to use, its Property are not materially adversely affected thereby.

6.2. Maintenance of Properties and Corporate Existence:

a. Property - Borrower shall maintain its Property in good condition (normal wear and tear excepted), make all necessary
renewals, replacements, additions, betterments and improvements thereto and will pay and discharge when due the cost of repairs and
maintenance to its Property, and will pay all rentals when due for all real estate leased by Borrower.

b. Property Insurance, Public and Products Liability Insurance - Borrower shall maintain insurance (i) on all insurable
tangible Property against fire, flood, casualty and such other hazards (including, without limitation, extended coverage, workmen’ s
compensation, boiler and machinery, with inflation coverage by endorsement) and (ii) against public liability, product liability and
business interruption, in each case in such amounts, with such deductibles and with such insurers as are customarily used by companies
operating in the same industry as Borrower. At or prior to Closing, Borrower shall furnish Lender with duplicate original policies of
insurance or such other evidence of insurance as Lender may require, and any certificates of insurance shall be issued on Acord
Form-27. In the event Borrower fails to procure or cause to be procured any such insurance or to timely pay or cause to be paid the
premium(s) on any such insurance, Lender may do so for Borrower, but Borrower shall continue to be liable for the same.
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The policies of all such casualty insurance shall contain standard Lender’ s Loss Payable Clauses (and, with respect to liability and
interruption insurance, additional insured clauses) issued in favor of Lender under which all losses thereunder shall be paid to Lender as
Lender’ s interest may appear. Such policies shall expressly provide that the requisite insurance cannot be altered or canceled without
thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lender and shall insure Lender notwithstanding the act or neglect of Borrower. Borrower hereby
appoints Lender as Borrower’ s attorney-in-fact, exercisable at Lender’ s option to endorse any check which may be payable to
Borrower in order to collect the proceeds of such insurance and any amount or amounts collected by Lender pursuant to the provisions
of this Section may be applied by Lender, in its sole discretion, to any Obligations or to repair, reconstruct or replace the loss of or
damage to Collateral as Lender in its discretion may from time to time determine. Borrower further covenants that all insurance
premiums owing under its current policies have been paid. Borrower shall notify Lender, immediately, upon Borrower’ s receipt of a
notice of termination, cancellation, or non-renewal from its insurance company of any such policy.

c. Financial Records - Borrower shall keep current and accurate books of records and accounts in which full and correct
entries will be made of all of its business transactions, and will reflect in its financial statements adequate accruals and appropriations to
reserves, all in accordance with GAAP. Borrower shall not change its fiscal-year end date without the prior written consent of Lender.

d. Corporate Existence and Rights - Borrower shall do (or cause to be done) all things necessary to preserve and keep in full
force and effect its existence, good standing, rights and franchises.

6.3. Compliance with Laws: Borrower shall be in compliance in all material respects with any and all laws, ordinances,
governmental rules and regulations, and court or administrative orders or decrees to which it is subject, whether federal, state or local,
(including, without limitation, Environmental Laws and government procurement regulations) and shall obtain any and all licenses,
permits, franchises or other governmental authorizations necessary to the ownership of its Property or to the conduct of its businesses.
Borrower shall timely satisfy all assessments, fines, costs and penalties imposed (after exhaustion of all appeals, provided a stay has
been put in effect during such appeal) by any Governmental Authority against Borrower or any Property of Borrower. Neither Borrower
nor any Subsidiary shall take any action that would result in the debarment or suspension of any Borrower or any Subsidiary from
contracting with the Government.

6.4. Business Conducted: Borrower shall continue in the business presently operated by it using its best efforts to maintain its
customers and goodwill. Borrower shall not engage, directly or indirectly, in any material respect in any line of business substantially
different from the businesses conducted by Borrower immediately prior to the Closing Date; provided that subject to the terms of
Section 7.2, Parent may acquire one or more Subsidiaries providing various services to companies in the government contracting
industry, including but not limited to accounting and financial support services, human resources services and employee benefit
services, and Parent may make investments in government contracting entities in accordance with the Parent’ s Securities and Exchange
Commission Regulation A filing of record as of the Closing Date.

32

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

6.5. Litigation: Borrower shall give prompt notice to Lender of any litigation claiming in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($150,000) from Borrower, or which may otherwise have a Material Adverse Effect.

6.6. Issue Taxes: Borrower shall pay all taxes (other than taxes based upon or measured by any Lender’ s income or revenues or
any personal property tax), if any, in connection with the issuance of the Notes and the recording of any lien documents. The obligations
of Borrower hereunder shall survive the payment of Borrower’ s Obligations hereunder and the termination of this Agreement.

6.7. Bank Accounts: Borrowers shall maintain their primary depository and disbursement account(s), and the treasury management
relationship, with Lender. Parent will use the Lender’ s cash management services and deposit accounts with respect to equity funds
raised by Parent outside of the ordinary course of operations.

6.8. Employee Benefit Plans: Borrower shall (a) fund all of its Pension Plan(s) in a manner that will satisfy the minimum funding
standards of Section 302 of ERISA, (b) furnish Lender, promptly upon Lender’ s request, with copies of all reports or other statements
filed with the United States Department of Labor, the PBGC or the IRS with respect to all Pension Plan(s), or which Borrower, or any
member of a Controlled Group, may receive from the United States Department of Labor, the IRS or the PBGC, with respect to all such
Pension Plan(s), and (¢) promptly advise Lender of the occurrence of any reportable event (as defined in Section 4043 of ERISA, other
than a reportable event for which the thirty (30) day notice requirement has been waived by the PBGC) or prohibited transaction (under
Section 406 of ERISA or Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code) with respect to any such Pension Plan(s) and the action which
Borrower proposes to take with respect thereto. Borrower will make all contributions when due with respect to any multi-employer
pension plan in which it participates and will promptly advise Lender upon (x) its receipt of notice of the assertion against Borrower of a
claim for withdrawal liability, (y) the occurrence of any event which, to the best of Borrower’ s knowledge, would trigger the assertion
of a claim for withdrawal liability against Borrower, and (z) upon the occurrence of any event which, to the best of Borrower’ s
knowledge, would place Borrower in a Controlled Group as a result of which any member (including Borrower) thereof may be subject
to a claim for withdrawal liability, whether liquidated or contingent.

6.9. Financial Covenants: Borrower shall maintain and comply with the following financial covenants:

a. Tangible Capital Funds - Borrower shall maintain Tangible Capital Funds of not less than the Minimum Compliance Level,
measured quarterly as of the end of each quarter.

b. Leverage Ratio - Borrower shall maintain a Leverage Ratio of not more than 3.0 to 1.0, measured quarterly as of the end of
each quarter.
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6.10. Financial and Business Information: Borrower shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Lender the following:

a. Financial Statements and Collateral Reports: such data, reports, statements and information, financial or otherwise, as
Lender may reasonably request, including, without limitation:

i. within fifty (50) days after the end of each calendar quarter, the consolidated and consolidating (if applicable)
income and cash flow statements of Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the expired portion of the fiscal year ending with the end of such
quarter, and the consolidated and consolidating (if applicable) balance sheet of Borrower and its Subsidiaries as at the end of such
quarter, all in reasonable detail and certified by Parent’ s president or chief financial officer to have been prepared from the books and
records of Borrower;

ii. no later than May 31 of each fiscal year of Borrower, the consolidated and consolidating (if applicable) income and
cash flow statements of Borrower and its Subsidiaries (or with respect to the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015, only AOC) for the
prior year, and the consolidated and consolidating (if applicable) balance sheet of Borrower and its Subsidiaries (or with respect to the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2015, only AOC) as at the end of such fiscal year, setting forth in each case in comparative form the
corresponding figures as at the end of and for the previous fiscal year, all in reasonable detail, including all supporting schedules, and
audited by an independent public accounting firm reasonably acceptable to Lender, and unqualifiedly certified to have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP, and with respect to fiscal years ending after December 31, 2015, such independent public accountants shall also
unqualifiedly certify that, in making the examinations necessary to their certification mentioned above, they have reviewed the terms of
this Agreement and the accounts and conditions of Borrower during the accounting period covered by the certificate and whether such
review did or did not disclose the existence of any condition or event which constitutes a Default or an Event of Default (and if such
conditions or events existed, describing them) together with copies of any management letters provided by such accountants to
management of Borrower;

iii. on a monthly basis within fifteen (15) days of each month-end, a borrowing base certificate for Borrower in a form
reasonably acceptable to Lender, setting forth in detail all of Borrower’ s Accounts and Eligible Accounts, calculating the Borrowing
Base as of each month end and providing such other information as is reasonably requested by Lender (“Borrowing Certificate”),
together with (x) an accounts receivable aging report, and (y) an accounts payable aging report, each in a form reasonably acceptable to
Lender as of each month end; and

iv. no later than March 31 of each fiscal year, Borrower’ s annual consolidated financial statements projections for
such fiscal year.

b. Notice of Event of Default - promptly upon becoming aware of the existence of any condition or event which constitutes a
Default or an Event of Default under this Agreement, a written notice specifying the nature and period of existence thereof and what
action Borrower is taking (and proposes to take) with respect thereto;

c. Notice of Claimed Default - promptly upon receipt by Borrower, notice of default, oral or written, given to Borrower by
any creditor for Indebtedness for borrowed money, otherwise holding long term Indebtedness of Borrower in excess of One Hundred
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000);
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d. Securities and Other Reports - if Borrower shall be required to file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, promptly upon its becoming available, one copy
of each financial statement, report, notice or proxy statement sent by Borrower to stockholders generally, and, a copy of each regular or
periodic report, and any registration statement, or prospectus in respect thereof, filed by Borrower with any securities exchange or with
federal securities and exchange commissions or any successor agency; and

e. Updated Projections - no later than August 15, 2016, revised consolidated financial statement projections of Borrower for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.

6.11. Officers’ Certificates: Along with the set of financial statements delivered to Lender at the end of each fiscal quarter
pursuant to Section 6.10(a)(i) hereof and the annual financial statements delivered pursuant to Section 6.10(a)(ii) hereof, Borrower shall
deliver to Lender a certificate (““Compliance Certificate™) (in the form of Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made part hereof) from the
chief financial officer, chief executive officer, or president of Borrower (and as to certificates accompanying the annual financial
statements of Borrower, also certified by Borrower’ s independent certified public accountant) setting forth:

a. Event of Default - that the signer has reviewed the relevant terms of this Agreement, and has made (or caused to be made
under his/her supervision) a review of the transactions and conditions of Borrower from the beginning of the accounting period covered
by the financial statements being delivered therewith to the date of the certificate, and that such review has not disclosed the existence
during such period of any condition or event which constitutes a Default or an Event of Default or, if any such condition or event exists,
specifying the nature and period of existence thereof and what action Borrower has taken or proposes to take with respect thereto.

b. Covenant Compliance - the information (including detailed calculations) required in order to establish that Borrower is in
compliance with the requirements of Section 6.9 of this Agreement, as of the end of the period covered by the financial statements
delivered.

6.12. Audits and Inspection: Borrower shall permit any of Lender’ s officers or other representatives to visit and inspect upon
reasonable notice during business hours any of the locations of Borrower (provided that, while an Event of Default exists, Lender may
make such visits and inspections at any time without prior notice) to examine and audit all of Borrower’ s books of account, records
(including System for Award Management, if applicable), reports and other papers, to make copies and extracts therefrom and to discuss
its affairs, finances and accounts with its officers, employees and independent certified public accountants all at Borrower’ s expense,
plus Lender’ s reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (all of which amounts shall be Expenses); provided, however, that unless an Event of
Default has occurred and is continuing, only two field exams of Borrower shall be conducted by Lender in any calendar year and the
Borrower shall not be liable for the costs and expenses of more than one such field exam during any calendar year. If a Default or Event
of Default has not occurred and is continuing,
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Lender will work in good faith with Borrower to minimize the costs of such exams and Lender will share with Borrower the cost
proposals for any exams received from Lender’ s accounting firm vendors. The cost the field exam of AOC performed in July, 2016
shall not exceed $3,500.

6.13. Tax Returns, Financial Statements and Other Reports: With respect to each calendar year, Borrower shall furnish, or shall
cause to be furnished, to Lender copies of the state and federal income tax return of each Borrower of such calendar year; provided that
if the due date for any such tax return is extended, such return shall be furnished within thirty (30) days of filing such return with the
applicable governmental agency. Borrower further agrees that, if requested by Lender, it shall promptly furnish Lender with copies of all
reports filed with any federal, state or local Governmental Authority.

6.14. Information to Participant: Lender may divulge to any participant, assignee or co-lender or prospective participant, assignee
or co-lender it may obtain in the Revolving Credit or Term Loan or any portion thereof, all information, and furnish to such Person
copies of any reports, financial statements, certificates, and documents obtained under any provision of this Agreement, or related
agreements and documents.

6.15. Material Adverse Developments: Borrower agrees that immediately upon becoming aware of any development or other
information outside the ordinary course of business and excluding matters of a general economic, financial or political nature which
would reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect it shall give to Lender telephonic notice specifying the nature of such
development or information and such anticipated effect. In addition, such verbal communication shall be confirmed by written notice
thereof to Lender on the same day such verbal communication is made or the next Business Day thereafter.

6.16. Places of Business: Borrower shall give thirty (30) days prior written notice to Lender of any changes in the location of any
of its respective places of business, of the places where records concerning its Accounts or where its Inventory are kept, or the
establishment of any new, or the discontinuance of any existing place of business; provided that Borrower may not establish any place
of business outside of the United States.

6.17. Commercial Tort Claims: Borrower will immediately notify Lender in writing in the event that Borrower becomes a party to
or obtains any rights with respect to any Commercial Tort Claim. Such notification shall include information sufficient to describe such
Commercial Tort Claim, including, but not limited to, the parties to the claim, the court in which the claim was commenced, the docket
number assigned to such claim, if any, and a detailed explanation of the events that gave rise to the claim. Borrower shall execute and
deliver to Lender all documents and/or agreements necessary to grant Lender a security interest in such Commercial Tort Claim to
secure the Obligations. Borrower authorizes Lender to file (without Borrower’ s signature) initial financing statements or amendments,
as Lender deems necessary to perfect its security interest in the Commercial Tort Claim.

6.18. Letter of Credit Rights: Borrower shall provide Lender with written notice of any Letters of Credit for which Borrower is the
beneficiary. Borrower shall execute and deliver (or cause to be executed or delivered) to Lender, all documents and agreements as
Lender may require in order to obtain and perfect its security interest in such Letter of Credit Rights.
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6.19. Government Contract Notices: Borrower shall furnish to the Lender notice within three (3) Business Days of (a) the
institution by the Governmental Authority of any investigation of or claim against the Borrower or any Subsidiary, (b) any final decision
of a contracting officer disallowing costs aggregating more than One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) with respect to a
Government Contract, (c) the results of any audit of its Government Contracts, (d) any Governmental Authority setting off amounts due
to Borrower under a Government Contract for claims due to a Governmental Authority that are not related to such Government
Contract, and (e) any material modifications to, or any termination of, any material contract or agreement relating to any Eligible
Accounts. Borrower shall promptly furnish to the Lender copies of any reports from auditors of Government Contracts.

6.20. Contract Assignments: If a Default or Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, Borrower and each Subsidiary shall
execute and deliver to the Lender such assignments and acknowledgments as Lender shall request with respect to any Borrower’ s
contracts to provide for receivable payments to be made by Account Debtors directly to the Lender, and the Borrower and each
Subsidiary shall direct all automated clearing house and other electronic payments with respect to the accounts receivable to be made to
the Lender. Assignments of Prime Government Contracts shall be subject to and conform to the requirements of the Assignment of
Claims Act.

6.21. New Subsidiaries: Each direct or indirect Subsidiary of the Parent shall become a Borrower or Guarantor within twenty
(20) days of the creation or acquisition such Subsidiary, and shall satisfy all of the following conditions within such twenty (20) day
period (except for the requirement of Section 6.21(g), which may be satisfied within forty five (45) days of the creation or acquisition
such Subsidiary):

a. The Subsidiary shall execute and deliver to the Lender a Guaranty Agreement or joinder to this Agreement, all in form and
substance reasonably acceptable to Lender.

b. All legal matters incident to such Subsidiary becoming a Borrower shall be satisfactory to counsel for the Lender, and the
Subsidiary shall execute and deliver to the Lender such additional documents and certificates relating to the Loans as the Lender may
reasonably request.

c. The Subsidiary shall grant to Lender a security interest in all of the Collateral (determined as if such Subsidiary was a
Borrower), and financing statements in form and substance satisfactory to the Lender shall have been properly filed in each office where
necessary to perfect the security interest of the Lender in such assets of the Subsidiary, termination statements shall have been filed with
respect to any other financing statements covering all or any portion of such assets (except with respect to Permitted Liens), all taxes
and fees with respect to such recording and filing shall have been paid by such Subsidiary and the Lender shall have received such lien
searches or reports as it shall require confirming that the foregoing filings and recordings have been completed.

d. The Subsidiary shall have delivered the following documents to the Lender, each of which shall be certified as of the date
on which it is to become a Borrower or
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Guarantor, by its secretary or representative performing similar functions: (1) copies of evidence of all actions taken by the Subsidiary
to authorize the execution and delivery of the Loan Documents to which it will be a party; (2) copies of the articles or certificate of
incorporation and bylaws (or comparable organizational documents) of the Subsidiary; and (3) a certificate as to the incumbency and
signatures of the officers executing the Loan Documents to which the Subsidiary is a party.

e. The Lender shall have received a certificate of good standing and qualification (or similar instrument) issued by the
appropriate state official of the state of formation of the Subsidiary, dated within 30 days of the date of the applicable Loan Documents.

f. If the Subsidiary is to become a Borrower, the Lender shall have received a listing and aging of Accounts, a listing of
accounts payable of the Subsidiary, a report setting forth the status of all contracts relating to its Eligible Accounts and such other
financial information of such Subsidiary as may be requested by the Lender from time to time, all of which shall be of a current date and
shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Lender.

g. If the Subsidiary is to become a Borrower, if required by the Lender, the Lender shall have received a satisfactory field
examination of the Collateral and internal control systems of the Subsidiary performed by a consultant selected by the Lender, and the
Borrowers shall have reimbursed the Lender for the cost of such consultant.

SECTION VII. BORROWER’ S NEGATIVE COVENANTS:
Borrower covenants that until all of the Obligations are paid and satisfied in full and the Revolving Credit has been terminated,

that:

7.1. Merger, Consolidation, Dissolution or Liguidation:

a. Borrower shall not engage in any Asset Sale other than equipment that is replaced by other equipment of comparable or
superior quality and value within ninety (90) days of such Asset Sale.

b. Borrower shall not merge or consolidate with any other Person if a Default or Event of Default exits or would result after
giving effect to such transaction on a pro forma basis, or commence a dissolution or liquidation.

7.2. Acquisitions: Borrower shall not acquire all or a material portion of the Capital Stock or assets of any Person in any
transaction or in any series of related transactions if a Default or Event of Default exits or would result after giving effect to such
transaction on a pro forma basis, or enter into any sale and leaseback transaction.

7.3. Liens and Encumbrances: Borrower shall not: (i) execute a negative pledge agreement with any Person covering any of its
Property, or (ii) cause or permit or agree or consent to cause or permit in the future (upon the happening of a contingency or otherwise),
its Property (including, without limitation, the Collateral), whether now owned or hereafter acquired, to be subject to a Lien or be
subject to any claim except for Permitted Liens.
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7.4. Transactions With Affiliates or Subsidiaries:

a. Borrower shall not enter into any transaction with any Subsidiary or other Affiliate, including, without limitation, the
purchase, sale, or exchange of Property, or the loaning or giving of funds to any Affiliate or any Subsidiary unless: (i) the transaction is
in the ordinary course of and pursuant to the reasonable requirements of Borrower’ s business and upon terms substantially the same and
no less favorable to Borrower as it would obtain in a comparable arm’ s length transactions with any Person not an Affiliate or a
Subsidiary, and so long as such transaction is not prohibited hereunder; (ii) such transaction is intended for incidental administrative
purposes; or (iii) the transaction is the Berrigan Loan.

b. Borrower shall not create or acquire any Subsidiary unless such Subsidiary becomes (i) a Borrower hereunder or (ii) a
Guarantor pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement, in each case pursuant to documentation reasonable acceptable to Lender and executed
promptly by such Subsidiary (but in each case no later than twenty (20) days after the creation or acquisition of such Subsidiary).

7.5. Guarantees: Excepting the endorsement in the ordinary course of business of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection,
Borrower shall not become or be liable, directly or indirectly, primary or secondary, matured or contingent, in any manner, whether as
guarantor, surety, accommodation maker, or otherwise, for the existing or future Indebtedness of any kind of any Person.

7.6. Distributions, Bonuses and Other Indebtedness: Borrower shall not: (a) declare or pay or make any form of Distribution to
holders of Borrower’ s Capital Stock if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or would result from the payment hereof
(provided that (i) Parent can pay dividends to its holders of preferred stock if (x) such dividends are required by the terms of the
certificate of incorporation of Parent and (y) such dividends are permitted by applicable law and (ii) a Borrower may pay dividends to
another Borrower); (b) declare or pay any bonus compensation to its officers, if an Event of Default exists or if a breach of a financial
covenant would result from the payment thereof; (c) hereafter incur or become liable for any Indebtedness other than Permitted
Indebtedness; (d) make any prepayments on any existing or future Indebtedness (other than the Obligations); or (¢) make any payments
on Subordinated Debt in violation of the Subordination provisions applicable thereto.

7.7. Loans and Investments: Borrower shall not make or have outstanding loans, advances, extensions of credit or capital
contributions to, or investments in, any Person other than Permitted Investments.

7.8. Use of Lenders’ Name: Borrower shall not use Lender’ s name in connection with any of its business operations. Nothing
herein contained is intended to permit or authorize Borrower to make any contract on behalf of Lender.

7.9. Miscellaneous Covenants:

a. Borrower shall not become or be a party to any contract or agreement which at the time of becoming a party to such
contract or agreement materially impairs Borrower’ s ability to perform under this Agreement, or under any other instrument, agreement
or document to which Borrower is a party or by which it is or may be bound.
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b. Borrower shall not carry or purchase any “margin stock” within the meaning of Regulations U, T or X of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, 12 C.F.R., Chapter II.

c. No Borrower may change its name without the prior written consent of Lender, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

7.10. Jurisdiction of Organization: If a Registered Organization, Borrower shall not change its jurisdiction of organization without
the prior written consent of Lender, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

SECTION VIIL. DEFAULT
8.1. Events of Default: Each of the following events shall constitute an event of default (“Event of Default”):

a. Payments - if Borrower fails to make any payment of principal or interest, including any Overadvance, under the
Obligations on the date such payment is due and payable; or

b. Other Charges - if Borrower fails to pay any other charges, fees, Expenses or other monetary obligations owing to Lender
arising out of or incurred in connection with this Agreement on the date such payment is due and payable; or

c. Particular Covenant Defaults - if Borrower fails to perform, comply with or observe any covenant or undertaking contained
in this Agreement and (other than with respect to the covenants contained in Sections 6.2(b), 6.8, 6.9, 6.10, 6.11 and VII for which no
cure period shall exist), such failure continues for fifteen (15) days after the occurrence thereof; or

d. Financial Information - if any statement, report, financial statement, or certificate made or delivered by Borrower or any of
its officers, employees or agents, to Lender is not true and correct, in all material respects, when made; or

e. Uninsured Loss - if there shall occur any uninsured damage to or loss, theft, or destruction in excess of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000) in the aggregate with respect to any portion of any Property of Borrower; or

f. Warranties or Representations - if any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of Borrower contained in
or pursuant to this Agreement, the other Loan Documents or in any document, agreement or instrument furnished in compliance with,
relating to, or in reference to this Agreement, is false, erroneous, or misleading in any material respect when made; or

g. Agreements with Others - (i) if Borrower shall default beyond any grace period in the payment of principal or interest of
any Indebtedness of Borrower in excess of One
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Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000) in the aggregate; or (ii) if Borrower otherwise defaults under the terms of any such
Indebtedness if the effect of such default is to enable the holder of such Indebtedness to accelerate the payment of Borrower’ s
obligations, which are the subject thereof, prior to the maturity date or prior to the regularly scheduled date of payment;

h. Other Agreements with Lender - if Borrower breaches or violates the terms of, or if a default (and expiration of any
applicable cure period), or an Event of Default, occurs under, any Interest Hedging Instrument or any other existing or future agreement
(related or unrelated) (including, without limitation, the other Loan Documents) between Borrower and Lender; or

i. Judgments - if any final judgment for the payment of money in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000)
in the aggregate (i) which is not fully and unconditionally covered by insurance or (ii) for which Borrower has not established a cash or
cash equivalent reserve in the full amount of such judgment, shall be rendered by a court of record against Borrower and such judgment
shall continue unsatisfied and in effect for a period of thirty (30) consecutive days without being vacated, discharged, satisfied or
bonded pending appeal; or

Jj- Assignment for Benefit of Creditors, etc. - if Borrower makes or proposes in writing, an assignment for the benefit of
creditors generally, offers a composition or extension to creditors, or makes or sends notice of an intended bulk sale of any business or
assets now or hereafter owned or conducted by Borrower; or

k. Bankruptcy, Dissolution, etc. - upon the commencement of any action for the dissolution or liquidation of Borrower, or the
commencement of any proceeding to avoid any transaction entered into by Borrower, or the commencement of any case or proceeding
for reorganization or liquidation of Borrower’ s debts under the Bankruptcy Code or any other state or federal law, now or hereafter
enacted for the relief of debtors, whether instituted by or against Borrower; provided however, that Borrower shall have sixty (60) days
to obtain the dismissal or discharge of involuntary proceedings filed against it, it being understood that during such sixty (60) day
period, Lender shall not be obligated to make Advances hereunder and Lender may seek adequate protection in any bankruptcy
proceeding; or

1. Receiver - upon the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, custodian, trustee or similar official or fiduciary for Borrower or
for Borrower’ s Property; or

m. Execution Process, etc. - the issuance of any execution or distraint process against any Property of Borrower; or

n. Termination of Business - if Borrower ceases any material portion of its business operations as presently conducted; or

o. Pension Benefits, etc. - if Borrower fails to comply with ERISA so that proceedings are commenced to appoint a trustee
under ERISA to administer Borrower’ s employee plans or the PBGC institutes proceedings to appoint a trustee to administer such
plan(s), or a Lien is entered to secure any deficiency or claim or a “reportable event” as defined under ERISA occurs; or
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p. Investigations - any indication or evidence received by Lender that reasonably leads it to believe Borrower may have
directly or indirectly been engaged in any type of activity which, would be reasonably likely to result in the forfeiture of any material
property of Borrower to any governmental entity, federal, state or local; or

g. Change of Control - if there shall occur a Change of Control; or

r. Guaranty Agreement - if any breach or default occurs under any Guaranty Agreement, if any individual Guarantor dies, or
if any Guaranty Agreement, or any obligation to perform under such agreement, is terminated;

s. Liens - if any Lien in favor of Lender shall cease to be valid, enforceable and perfected and prior to all other Liens other
than Permitted Liens or if Borrower or any Governmental Authority shall assert any of the foregoing; or

t. Material Adverse Effect - if there is any change in Borrower’ s financial condition which, in Lender’ s reasonable opinion,
has or would be reasonably likely to have a Material Adverse Effect; or

u. Debarment, etc. - if Borrower or any Subsidiary shall be debarred or suspended from any contracting with any
Governmental Authority; or if a notice of debarment or notice of suspension shall have been issued to Borrower or any Subsidiary; or if
a notice of termination for default or the actual termination for default of any Government Contract, shall have been issued to or
received by Borrower or any Subsidiary; or

v. Setoff of Government Contract - if any Governmental Authority exercises a setoff (or gives notice of its intent to exercise a
setoff) against amounts due to Borrower under a Government Contract for claims of a Governmental Authority; or

w. Other Loan Documents - if any other Person (other than Lender) party to a Loan Document, breaches or violates any term,
provision or condition of such Loan Document.

8.2. Cure: Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Loan Documents shall be deemed to compel Lender to accept a cure of any
Event of Default hereunder.

8.3. Rights and Remedies on Default:

a. In addition to all other rights, options and remedies granted or available to Lender under this Agreement or the Loan
Documents (each of which is also then exercisable by Lender), or otherwise available at law or in equity, upon or at any time after the
occurrence and during the continuance of a Default or an Event of Default, Lender may, in its discretion, withhold or cease making
Advances under the Revolving Credit or modify the terms of the Borrowing Base.

b. In addition to all other rights, options and remedies granted or available to Lender under this Agreement or the Loan
Documents (each of which is also then exercisable by Lender), or otherwise available at law or in equity, upon or at any time after the
occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default Lender may, in its discretion, terminate the
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Revolving Credit and declare the Obligations (other than any Obligations arising under an Interest Hedging Instrument) immediately
due and payable, all without demand, notice, presentment or protest or further action of any kind (it also being understood that the
occurrence of any of the events or conditions set forth in Sections 8.1(j),(k) or (1) shall automatically cause an acceleration of the
Obligations (other than any Obligations arising under an Interest Hedging Instrument)).

c. In addition to all other rights, options and remedies granted or available to Lender, under this Agreement or the Loan
Documents (each of which is also then exercisable by Lender), upon or at any time after the occurrence and during the continuance of
an Event of Default, Borrower shall be obligated to deliver and pledge to Lender, cash collateral in the amount of all outstanding Letters
of Credit.

d. In addition to all other rights, options and remedies granted or available to Lender under this Agreement or the Loan
Documents (each of which is also then exercisable by Lender), or otherwise available at law or in equity, upon or at any time after the
acceleration of the Obligations following the occurrence of an Event of Default (other than the rights with respect to clause (iv) below
which Lender may exercise at any time after an Event of Default and regardless of whether there is an acceleration), Lender may, in its
discretion, exercise all rights under the UCC and any other applicable law or in equity, and under all Loan Documents permitted to be
exercised after the occurrence of an Event of Default, including the following rights and remedies (which list is given by way of
example and is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all such rights and remedies):

i. The right to take possession of, send notices regarding and collect directly the Collateral, with or without judicial
process (including without limitation the right to notify the United States postal authorities to redirect mail addressed to Borrower to an
address designated by Lender); or

ii. By its own means or with judicial assistance, enter Borrower’ s premises and take possession of the Collateral, or
render it unusable, or dispose of the Collateral on such premises in compliance with subsection (e) below, without any liability for rent,
storage, utilities or other sums, and Borrower shall not resist or interfere with such action; or

iii. Require Borrower at Borrower’ s expense to assemble all or any part of the Collateral (other than real estate or
fixtures) and make it available to Lender at any place designated by Lender; or

iv. The right to reduce or modify the Borrowing Base or to modify the terms and conditions upon which Lender may
be willing to consider making Advances under the Revolving Credit or to take additional reserves against the Revolving Credit; or

v. The right to enjoin any violation of Section 7.1, it being agreed that Lender’ s remedies at law are inadequate.

e. Borrower hereby agrees that a notice received by it at least ten (10) days before the time of any intended public sale or of
the time after which any private sale or other disposition of the Collateral is to be made, shall be deemed to be reasonable notice of such
sale
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or other disposition. If permitted by applicable law, any perishable inventory or Collateral which threatens to speedily decline in value
or which is sold on a recognized market may be sold immediately by Lender without prior notice to Borrower. Borrower covenants and
agrees not to interfere with or impose any obstacle to Lender’ s exercise of its rights and remedies with respect to the Collateral, after
the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder. Lender shall have no obligation to clean up or prepare the Collateral for sale. If Lender
sells any of the Collateral upon credit, Borrower will only be credited with payments actually made by the purchaser thereof, that are
received by Lender. Lender may, in connection with any sale of the Collateral specifically disclaim any warranties of title or the like.

8.4. Nature of Remedies: All rights and remedies granted Lender hereunder and under the Loan Documents, or otherwise available
at law or in equity, shall be deemed concurrent and cumulative, and not alternative remedies, and Lender may proceed with any number
of remedies at the same time until all Obligations are satisfied in full. The exercise of any one right or remedy shall not be deemed a
waiver or release of any other right or remedy, and Lender, upon or at any time after the occurrence of an Event of Default, may proceed
against Borrower, at any time, under any agreement, with any available remedy and in any order.

8.5. Set-Off:

a. In addition to all other rights, options and remedies granted or available to Lender under this Agreement or the Loan
Documents (each of which is also then exercisable by Lender), upon or at any time after the occurrence and during the continuance of
an Event of Default, Lender (and any participant) shall have and be deemed to have, without notice to Borrower, the immediate right of
set-off against any bank account of Borrower with Lender, or of Borrower with any other Bank Affiliate or subsidiary or Affiliate of any
participant and may apply the funds or amount thus set-off against any of Borrower’ s Obligations hereunder.

b. If any bank account of Borrower with Lender, any other Bank Affiliate or any participant is attached or otherwise liened or
levied upon by any third party, Lender (and such participant) shall have and be deemed to have, without notice to Borrower, the
immediate right of set-off and may apply the funds or amount thus set-off against any of Borrower’ s Obligations hereunder.

SECTION IX. MISCELLANEOUS

9.1. Governing Law: THIS AGREEMENT, AND ALL MATERS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT,
AND ALL RELATED AGREEMENTS AND DOCUMENTS, SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE SUBSTANTIVE LAWS OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT
AND ALL OTHER AGREEMENTS AND DOCUMENTS REFERRED TO HEREIN ARE TO BE DEEMED SEVERABLE, AND
THE INVALIDITY OR UNENFORCEABILITY OF ANY PROVISION SHALL NOT AFFECT OR IMPAIR THE REMAINING
PROVISIONS WHICH SHALL CONTINUE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.
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9.2. Integrated Agreement: The Note, the other Loan Documents, all related agreements, and this Agreement shall be construed as
integrated and complementary of each other, and as augmenting and not restricting Lender’ s rights and remedies. If, after applying the
foregoing, an inconsistency still exists, the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute an amendment thereto and shall control. This
Agreement and all of the other associated Loan Documents represent the final agreement between the parties on the subject matter
thereof and may not be contradicted by evidence of prior agreements of the parties whether in writing or oral, none of which, to
whatever extent they might exist, survive the execution of this Agreement.

9.3. Waiver: No omission or delay by Lender in exercising any right or power under this Agreement or any related agreements and
documents will impair such right or power or be construed to be a waiver of any Default, or Event of Default or an acquiescence
therein, and any single or partial exercise of any such right or power will not preclude other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of
any other right, and as to Borrower no waiver will be valid unless in writing and signed by Lender and then only to the extent specified.

9.4. Indemnity:

a. Borrower releases and shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Lender and its respective officers, employees and agents,
of and from any claims, demands, liabilities, obligations, judgments, injuries, losses, damages and costs and expenses (including,
without limitation, reasonable legal fees) resulting from (i) acts or conduct of Borrower under, pursuant or related to this Agreement and
the other Loan Documents, (ii) Borrower’ s breach or violation of any representation, warranty, covenant or undertaking contained in
this Agreement or the other Loan Documents, (iii) Borrower’ s failure to comply with any or all laws, statutes, ordinances, governmental
rules, regulations or standards, whether federal, state or local, or court or administrative orders or decrees, (including without limitation
Environmental Laws, etc.), and (iv) any claim by any other creditor of Borrower against Lender arising out of any transaction whether
hereunder or in any way related to the Loan Documents and all costs, expenses, fines, penalties or other damages resulting therefrom,
unless resulting solely from acts or conduct of Lender constituting willful misconduct or gross negligence.

b. Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under subsection (a) above of notice of the commencement of any action by
a third party, such indemnified party shall, if a claim in respect thereof is to be made against the indemnifying party under such
subsection, notify the indemnifying party in writing of the commencement thereof. The omission so to notify the indemnifying party
shall relieve the indemnifying party from any liability which it may have to any indemnified party under such subsection only if the
indemnifying party is unable to defend such actions as a result of such failure to so notify. In case any such action shall be brought
against any indemnified party and it shall notify the indemnifying party of the commencement thereof, the indemnifying party shall be
entitled to participate therein and, to the extent that it shall wish, jointly with any other indemnifying party similarly notified, to assume
the defense thereof, with counsel satisfactory to such indemnified party (who shall not, except with the consent of the indemnified party,
be counsel to the indemnified party), and, after notice from the indemnifying party to such indemnified party of its election so to assume
the defense thereof, the indemnifying party shall not be liable to such indemnified party under such
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subsection for any legal expenses of other counsel or any other expenses, in each case subsequently incurred by such indemnified party,
in connection with the defense thereof other than reasonable costs of investigation.

9.5. Time: Whenever Borrower shall be required to make any payment, or perform any act, on a day which is not a Business Day,
such payment may be made, or such act may be performed, on the next succeeding Business Day. Time is of the essence in Borrower’ s
performance under all provisions of this Agreement and all related agreements and documents.

9.6. Expenses of Lender: At Closing and from time to time thereafter, Borrower will pay upon demand of Lender all reasonable
costs, fees and expenses of Lender in connection with (i) the analysis, negotiation, preparation, execution, administration, delivery and
termination of this Agreement, and other Loan Documents and the documents and instruments referred to herein and therein, and any
amendment, amendment and restatement, supplement, waiver or consent relating hereto or thereto, whether or not any such amendment,
amendment and restatement, supplement, waiver or consent is executed or becomes effective, search costs, the reasonable fees,
expenses and disbursements of counsel for Lender, any fees or expenses incurred by Lender under Section 6.12 for which Borrower is
obligated thereunder, and reasonable charges of any expert consultant to Lender, (ii) the enforcement of Lender’ s rights hereunder, or
the collection of any payments owing from, Borrower under this Agreement and/or the other Loan Documents or the protection,
preservation or defense of the rights of Lender hereunder and under the other Loan Documents, and (iii) any refinancing or restructuring
of the credit arrangements provided under this Agreement and other Loan Documents in the nature of a “work-out” or of any insolvency
or bankruptcy proceedings, or otherwise (including the reasonable fees and disbursements of counsel for Lender and, with respect to
clauses (i) and (iii), reasonable allocated costs of internal counsel) (collectively, the “Expenses”).

9.7. Brokerage: This transaction was brought about and entered into by Lender and Borrower acting as principals and without any
brokers, agents or finders being the effective procuring cause hereof. Borrower represents that it has not committed Lender to the
payment of any brokerage fee, commission or charge in connection with this transaction. If any such claim is made on Lender by any
broker, finder or agent or other person, Borrower hereby indemnifies, defends and saves such party harmless against such claim and
further will defend, with counsel satisfactory to Lender, any action or actions to recover on such claim, at Borrower’ s own cost and
expense, including such party’ s reasonable counsel fees. Borrower further agrees that until any such claim or demand is adjudicated in
such party’ s favor, the amount demanded shall be deemed an Obligation of Borrower under this Agreement.

9.8. Notices:

a. Any notices or consents required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given if delivered
in person to the person listed below or if sent by telecopy or by nationally recognized overnight courier, as follows, unless such address
is changed by written notice hereunder:

If to Lender to: Sandy Spring Bank
9910 Main Street
Fairfax, Virginia 22031
Attention: Frank Merendino
Telecopy No.: 703-319-7912
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With copies to: Holland & Knight LLP
1600 Tysons Boulevard, Suite 700
McLean, Virginia 22102
Attention: David Matuszewski, Esq.
Telecopy No.: 703-720-8610

If to any Borrower to: KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
14420 Albemarle Point Place, Suite 200
Chantilly, Virginia 20151
Attn: CFO
Telecopy No.: 703-953-3877

With copies to: Crowell & Moring LLP
1001 Pennsylvania Avenue NW
Washington, DC 20004
Attention: Morris DeFeo, Esq.
Telecopy No.: 202-624-2925

b. Any notice sent by Lender, or Borrower by any of the above methods shall be deemed to be given when so received.

c. Lender shall be fully entitled to rely upon any telecopy transmission or other writing purported to be sent by any
Authorized Officer (whether requesting an Advance or otherwise) as being genuine and authorized.

9.9. Headings: The headings of any paragraph or Section of this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be used to
interpret any provision of this Agreement.

9.10. Survival: All warranties, representations, and covenants made by Borrower herein, or in any agreement referred to herein or
on any certificate, document or other instrument delivered by it or on its behalf under this Agreement, shall be considered to have been
relied upon by Lender, and shall survive the delivery to Lender of the Notes regardless of any investigation made by Lender or on its
behalf. All statements in any such certificate or other instrument prepared and/or delivered for the benefit of Lender shall constitute
warranties and representations by Borrower hereunder. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all covenants made by Borrower
hereunder or under any other agreement or instrument shall be deemed continuing until all Obligations are satisfied in full. All
indemnification obligations under this Agreement, including under Sections 2.2, 9.4 and 9.7, shall survive the termination of this
Agreement and payment of the Obligations.

9.11. Successors and Assigns: This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and the
successors and assigns of each of the parties. Borrower may not transfer, assign or delegate any of its duties or obligations hereunder.
Borrower
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acknowledges and agrees that Lender may at any time, and from time to time, (a) sell participating interests in the Loans, and Lender’ s
rights hereunder to other financial institutions, and (b) sell, transfer, or assign the Loans and Lender’ s rights hereunder, to any one or
more additional banks or financial institutions, subject (as to Lender’ s rights under this clause (b)) to Borrower’ s written consent,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided that, no consent under this clause (b) shall be required if an Event of
Default exists at the time of such sale, transfer or assignment.

9.12. Duplicate Originals; Counterparts: Two or more duplicate originals of this Agreement may be signed by the parties, each of
which shall be an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement may be executed by
facsimile, pdf and in any number of counterparts, and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes be deemed to be an original, and
all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same agreement. Each party hereby agrees to be bound by such party’ s
facsimile or pdf signature.

9.13. Modification: No modification hereof or any agreement referred to herein shall be binding or enforceable unless in writing
and signed by Borrower and Lender.

9.14. Signatories: Each individual signatory hereto represents and warrants that he is duly authorized to execute this Agreement on
behalf of his principal and that he executes the Agreement in such capacity and not as a party.

9.15. Third Parties: No rights are intended to be created hereunder, or under any related agreements or documents for the benefit of
any third party donee, creditor or incidental beneficiary of Borrower. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a
delegation to Lender of Borrower’ s duty of performance, including, without limitation, Borrower’ s duties under any account or
contract with any other Person.

9.16. Discharge of Taxes, Borrower’ s Obligations, Etc.: Lender, in its sole discretion, shall have the right at any time, and from
time to time, with at least ten (10) days prior notice to Borrower if Borrower fails to do so, to: (a) pay for the performance of any of
Borrower’ s obligations hereunder, and (b) discharge taxes or Liens, at any time levied or placed on Borrower’ s Property in violation of
this Agreement unless Borrower is in good faith with due diligence by appropriate proceedings contesting such taxes or Liens and
maintaining proper reserves therefor in accordance with GAAP. Expenses and advances shall be added to the Revolving Credit, and bear
interest at the rate applicable to the Revolving Credit, until reimbursed to Lender. Such payments and advances made by Lender shall
not be construed as a waiver by Lender of a Default or Event of Default under this Agreement.

9.17. Withholding and Other Tax Liabilities: Lender shall have the right to refuse to make any Advances from time to time unless
Borrower shall, at Lender’ s request, have given to Lender evidence, reasonably satisfactory to Lender, that Borrower has properly
deposited or paid, as required by law, all withholding taxes and all federal, state, city, county or other taxes due up to and including the
date of the requested Advance. Copies of deposit slips showing payment shall constitute satisfactory evidence for such purpose. In the
event that any Lien, assessment or tax liability against Borrower shall arise in favor of any taxing authority, whether
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or not notice thereof shall be filed or recorded as may be required by law, Lender shall have the right (but shall not be obligated, nor
shall Lender hereby assume the duty) to pay any such Lien, assessment or tax liability by virtue of which such charge shall have arisen;
provided, however, that Lender shall not pay any such tax, assessment or Lien if the amount, applicability or validity thereof is being
contested in good faith and by appropriate proceedings by Borrower. In order to pay any such Lien, assessment or tax liability, Lender
shall not be obliged to wait until such lien, assessment or tax liability is filed before taking such action as hereinabove set forth. Any
sum or sums which Lender shall have paid for the discharge of any such Lien shall be added to the Revolving Credit and shall be paid
by Borrower to Lender with interest thereon at the rate applicable to the Revolving Credit, upon demand, and Lender shall be
subrogated to all rights of such taxing authority against Borrower.

9.18. Consent to Jurisdiction: Borrower and Lender each hereby irrevocably consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts
of the Commonwealth of Virginia or the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia in any and all actions and
proceedings whether arising hereunder or under any other agreement or undertaking. Borrower waives any objection which Borrower
may have based upon lack of personal jurisdiction, improper venue or forum non conveniens. Borrower irrevocably agrees to service of
process by certified mail, return receipt requested to the address of the appropriate party set forth herein.

9.19. Additional Documentation: Borrower shall execute and/or re-execute, and cause any Guarantor or other Person party to any
Loan Document, to execute and/or re-execute and to deliver to Lender or Lender’ s counsel, as may be deemed appropriate, any
document or instrument signed in connection with this Agreement which was incorrectly drafted and/or signed, as well as any document
or instrument which should have been signed at or prior to the Closing, but which was not so signed and delivered. Borrower agrees to
comply with any written request by Lender within ten (10) days after receipt by Borrower of such request.

9.20. Waiver of Jury Trial: BORROWER AND LENDER EACH HEREBY WAIVE ANY AND ALL RIGHTS IT MAY HAVE
TO A JURY TRIAL IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING WITH
RESPECT TO RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HERETO OR UNDER THE LOAN DOCUMENTS OR WITH
RESPECT TO ANY CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF ANY DISCUSSIONS, NEGOTIATIONS OR COMMUNICATIONS INVOLVING
OR RELATED TO ANY PROPOSED RENEWAL, EXTENSION, AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, RESTRUCTURE,
FORBEARANCE, WORKOUT, OR ENFORCEMENT OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THE LOAN
DOCUMENTS.

9.21. Consequential Damages: Neither Lender nor agent or attorney of Lender, shall be liable for any consequential damages
arising from any breach of contract, tort or other wrong relating to the establishment, administration or collection of the Obligations.

9.22. Patriot Act Notice: Lender is subject to the requirements of the USA Patriot Act (Title III of Pub. L. 107-36) (signed into law
October 26, 2001) (the “Act”) and hereby notifies the Borrower that pursuant to the requirements of the Act. It is required to obtain,
verify and record information that identifies the Borrower, which information includes the name and address of the Borrower and other
information that will allow Lender to identify the Borrower in accordance with the Act.
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9.23. Keepwell: Borrower hereby absolutely and unconditionally and irrevocably undertakes to provide such funds or other
support as may be needed from time to time by each Borrower and Guarantor (if any) to honor all of its obligations under any guaranty
in respect of any Hedging Obligations (provided that the obligations of each Borrower hereunder shall be up to the maximum amount of
such liability that can be incurred without rendering its obligations hereunder or otherwise voidable under applicable law relating to
fraudulent conveyance or fraudulent transfer and not for any greater amount). The Borrower intends that this Section 9.23 constitute,
and this Section 9.23 shall be deemed to constitute a “keepwell, support or other agreement” for the benefit of each Guarantor for all
purposes of Section 1a(18)(A)(v)(I) of the Commodity Exchange Act and all regulations thereunder.

[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON SEPARATE PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the day and year first above
written.

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ James McCarthy

James McCarthy
Chairman

AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: /s/ Gregory McCarthy

Gregory McCarthy
Chief Executive Officer

SANDY SPRING BANK

By: /s/ Frank Merendino

Frank Merendino
Senior Vice President

STATE OF VA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF Fairfax )

On this 5 day of August, 2016, before me personally came James McCarthy, to me known, who, being by me duly sworn, did
depose and say that he is the Chairman of KeyStone Solutions, Inc., the corporation described in and which executed the foregoing
agreement; and that he signed his name thereto on behalf of such corporation.

/s/ Carla Nixon
Notary Public
STATEOF VA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF Fairfax )

On this 8 day of August, 2016, before me personally came Gregory McCarthy, to me known, who, being by me duly sworn, did
depose and say that he is the Chief Executive Officer of AOC Key Solutions, Inc., the corporation described in and which executed the
foregoing agreement; and that he signed his name thereto on behalf of such corporation.

/s/ Carla Nixon

Notary Public

(Signature Page to Loan and Security Agreement)
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EXHIBIT “A”

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

U spiRiNeG

COVENANT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
Sandy Spring Bank, 9910 Main Street Fairfax, VA 22031

The undersigned, an officer of KeyStone Solutions, Inc. and AOC Key Solutions, Inc. (“Borrower”), gives this certificate to Sandy
Spring Bank (“Lender”), in accordance with the requirements as outlined in the Loan and Security Agreement dated August __, 2016,
by and among Borrower and Lender (as amended, restated or otherwise modified from time to time, “Loan Agreement”). Capitalized
terms used in this Certificate, unless otherwise defined herein, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Loan Agreement.

Based upon my review of the consolidated balance sheets and statements of income of Borrower, for the fiscal period ending R
20__, copies of which are attached hereto, I hereby certify that:

Actual Amount Required Amount
Minimum Tangible Capital Funds $ >
Tangible Capital Funds is the sum of total assets $ 1,000,000
minus total liabilities minus the sum of all
intangible assets, all accounts receivables and
notes receivables due from affiliates, directors,
equityholders and officers, plus Subordinated
Debt.
Leverage Ratio <3:0:1
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed and delivered this certificate, this __ day of .
KeyStone Solutions, Inc. AOC Key Solutions, Inc.
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT “B”
FORM OF TERM LOAN NOTE

IMPORTANT NOTICE: THIS INSTRUMENT CONTAINS A CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT PROVISION WHICH
CONSTITUTES A WAIVER OF IMPORTANT RIGHTS YOU MAY HAVE AS A BORROWER/DEBTOR AND ALLOWS
THE LENDER/CREDITOR TO OBTAIN A JUDGMENT AGAINST YOU WITHOUT ANY FURTHER NOTICE.

TERM LOAN NOTE

[$100,000] ,201_

FOR VALUE RECEIVED and intending to be legally bound, the undersigned, KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware
corporation (“Parent”) and AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (“AOC”; together with Parent, individually and
collectively, “Borrower”), jointly and severally promise to pay, in lawful money of the United States of America, to the order of
SANDY SPRING BANK (“Lender”), at the address set forth in Section 9.8 of the Loan Agreement, the maximum aggregate principal
sum of [One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000)] or such lesser sum which represents the principal balance outstanding under the
Term Loan established pursuant to the provisions of that certain Loan and Security Agreement dated as of August __, 2016, among
Borrower and Lender (as may be supplemented, restated, superseded, amended or replaced from time to time, “Loan Agreement”). The
outstanding principal balance hereunder shall be payable in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement. All capitalized terms
used herein without further definition shall have the respective meanings ascribed thereto in the Loan Agreement.

Borrower further agrees to pay interest on the outstanding principal balance hereunder from time to time at the per annum rates set
forth in the Loan Agreement. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days but charged for the actual number of days
elapsed, and shall be due and payable as set forth in the Loan Agreement.

This Term Loan Note (“Note”) is that certain Term Loan Note referred to in the Loan Agreement.
If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing under the Loan Agreement, the unpaid principal balance of this Note along with all

accrued and unpaid interest and unpaid Expenses shall become, or may be declared, immediately due and payable as provided in the
Loan Agreement. The obligations evidenced by this Note are secured by the Collateral.
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This Note may be prepaid only in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement.

Borrower hereby waives protest, demand, notice of nonpayment and all other notices in connection with the delivery, acceptance,
performance or enforcement of this Note.

This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. The
provisions of this Note are to be deemed severable and the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision shall not affect or impair the
remaining provisions of this Note which shall continue in full force and effect. No modification hereof shall be binding or enforceable
against Lender unless approved in writing by Lender.

BORROWER (AND LENDER BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF) HEREBY WAIVES ANY AND ALL RIGHTS IT MAY
HAVE TO A JURY TRIAL IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM ARISING WITH
RESPECT TO RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES HERETO OR UNDER THE LOAN DOCUMENTS OR WITH
RESPECT TO ANY CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF ANY DISCUSSIONS, NEGOTIATIONS OR COMMUNICATIONS INVOLVING
OR RELATED TO ANY PROPOSED RENEWAL, EXTENSION, AMENDMENT, MODIFICATION, RESTRUCTURE,
FORBEARANCE, WORKOUT, OR ENFORCEMENT OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREUNDER OR UNDER
THE LOAN DOCUMENTS.

UPON THE FAILURE TO PAY ANY AMOUNT WHEN DUE UNDER THIS TERM LOAN NOTE, OR UPON ANY
DEFAULT UNDER ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT, BORROWER AUTHORIZES THE CLERK OF ANY COURT AND ANY
ATTORNEY ADMITTED TO PRACTICE BEFORE ANY COURT OF RECORD IN THE UNITED STATES, ON BEHALF OF
BORROWER, TO THEN CONFESS JUDGMENT AGAINST BORROWER IN FAVOR OF THE LENDER IN THE FULL
AMOUNT DUE ON THIS TERM LOAN NOTE PLUS ATTORNEYS’ FEES OF FIFTEEN PERCENT (15%) OF THE AMOUNT
DUE ON THIS TERM LOAN NOTE, OR SUCH LESSER MAXIMUM AMOUNT AS MAY BE PERMITTED UNDER
APPLICABLE LAW (PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT IF ACTUAL ATTORNEYS’ FEES EXCEED THIS AMOUNT, BY REASON
OF JUDGMENT BEING CONTESTED OR OTHERWISE, THE LENDER MAY RECOVER ALL SUCH FEES ACTUALLY
INCURRED). FOR THE PURPOSE OF ALLOWING THE LENDER TO FILE A CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT IN THE
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, BORROWER HEREBY DULY CONSTITUTES AND APPOINTS EACH OF DAVID
MATUSZEWSKI AND BRANDON ELLEDGE ITS TRUE AND LAWFUL ATTORNEY-IN-FACT, TO CONFESS JUDGMENT
AGAINST IT IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR FAIRFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA OR FOR ANY OTHER COUNTY OR CITY OF
THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, OR IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF
VIRGINIA AND/OR IN ANY OTHER COURT OF RECORD IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA, AND BORROWER
FURTHER CONSENTS TO THE JURISDICTION OF AND WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO IMPROPER VENUE AND/OR
FORUM NON CONVENIENS WITH RESPECT TO SUCH COURT(S). BORROWER WAIVES ALL ERRORS, DEFECTS AND
IMPERFECTIONS IN THE ENTRY OF
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JUDGMENT AS AFORESAID OR IN ANY PROCEEDING PURSUANT THERETO AND THE BENEFIT OF ANY AND EVERY
STATUTE, ORDINANCE OR RULE OF COURT WHICH MAY BE LAWFULLY WAIVED CONFERRING UPON BORROWER
ANY RIGHT OR PRIVILEGE OF EXEMPTION, STAY OF EXECUTION, OR SUPPLEMENTARY PROCEEDINGS, OR OTHER
RELIEF FROM THE ENFORCEMENT OR IMMEDIATE ENFORCEMENT OF A JUDGMENT OR RELATED PROCEEDINGS
ON A JUDGMENT. THE AUTHORITY AND POWER TO APPEAR FOR AND TO ENTER JUDGMENT AGAINST BORROWER
SHALL NOT BE EXTINGUISHED BY ANY JUDGMENT ENTERED PURSUANT THERETO; SUCH AUTHORITY AND
POWER MAY BE EXERCISED ON ONE OR MORE OCCASIONS FROM TIME TO TIME, IN THE SAME OR DIFFERENT
COURTS OR JURISDICTIONS, AS OFTEN AS THE LENDER SHALL DEEM NECESSARY OR ADVISABLE UNTIL ALL
SUMS DUE UNDER THIS TERM LOAN NOTE HAVE BEEN PAID IN FULL.

[SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW ON SEPARATE PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound hereby, Borrower has executed these presents the day and year first
above written.

KEYSTONE SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:

AOC KEY SOLUTIONS, INC.

By:
Name:
Title:
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Exhibit 11.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the use, in the Offering Statement on Form 1-A of KeyStone Solutions, Inc., of our report dated March 15, 2016, on our

audit of the balance sheets of AOC Key Solutions, Inc. as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of operations,
changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Evichoen., Faeniel & LaPoile, 11P
Ericksen Krentel & LaPorte LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
August 24, 2016
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September 2, 2016

Coy Garrison, Esq.

Special Counsel

Office of Real Estate and Commodities
Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE

Washington, D.C. 20549

Re: KeyStone Solutions, Inc.
Amendment No. 1 to
Offering Statement on Form 1-A
Filed July 15, 2016
File No. 024-10551

Dear Mr. Garrison:
Set forth below are responses to the comments that were provided by the Commission’ s staff to our client, KeyStone Solutions,
Inc. (“KeyStone” or the “Company”), by your letter dated August 9, 2016 (the “Comment Letter”), regarding the above-referenced

filing (the “Amended Offering Statement”).

The text of each comment in the Comment Letter is included in the Company’ s responses for your reference. The references in the
captions below to “Comment” correspond to the numbered paragraphs of the Comment Letter.

In addition to the responses to the Commission’ s comments, concurrently with the filing of this letter, KeyStone will file
Amendment No. 2 to the Offering Statement on Form 1-A (the “Second Amendment”) reflecting the Commission’ s requested

disclosure edits.

Part II, Cover Page

Comment 1. We note your response to comment 2 of our letter stating that the offering will commence two days after qualification. It is
therefore not clear how twelve months from qualification could occur earlier than six months after commencement of the offering.
Please revise as appropriate. Please also reconcile this disclosure with your last sentence on page 71, which appears to equate the
“Offer Expiration Date, ” which is eighteen months after the initial closing, with the minimum offering period. Please ensure that your
disclosure is consistent throughout the offering circular.

Response: The Company has revised the Minimum Offering Period to be six months from the Qualification Date, and the Offering
Expiration Date to be twelve months from the Qualification Date, and has made corresponding revisions throughout the entire offering
circular to ensure consistency. The Company confirms the offering will still commence two calendar days after the Qualification Date as
previously disclosed in the Amended Offering Statement.

Note 2 - Pro forma adjustments, page 30

Comment 2. Please tell us how you determined it was appropriate to eliminate the impact of adjustments (c), (e) and (f) from your pro
forma financial statements.

Response: The pro forma financial statement presentation has been revised in response to this comment. Please see pages 26-30 of the
Second Amendment.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources, page 40

Comment 3. Please revise your disclosure to state your anticipated source of funds to pay the 7% per annum cash dividend for your
Series A Preferred Stock included in this offering and to discuss whether you believe the dividend payments will have a material effect
on your liquidity and capital resources.

Response: The disclosure has been revised as requested to state the anticipated source of funds for both a minimum and maximum
offering and to discuss that the Company does not believe the dividend payments will have a material affect on its liquidity and capital

resources. Please see page 1 and page 43, respectively, of the Second Amendment.

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers, page 48

Comment 4. We note your response to comment 9 of our letter. Please revise your disclosure to clarify that you do not have a
compensation committee comprised of a majority of independent directors and to state whether the objective goals upon which bonuses
may be conditioned may be waived after being set.

Response: The disclosure has been revised as requested, and the Company confirms and has now disclosed that the objective goals may
not be waived after being set. Please see the revised disclosure at page 51 of the Second Amendment.

Plan of Distribution, page 69

Comment 5. We note your response to comment 11 of our letter. We will continue to monitor for disclosure regarding the actual
percentages and expense amounts that are to be paid to Folio.

Response: The underwriters have advised us that they are discussing a revised compensation structure with FINRA and are awaiting
final approval of their proposal by FINRA. Please see the revised disclosure in the Plan of Distribution at page 72 of the Second

Amendment for the revised compensation structure that is being proposed to FINRA by the underwriters.

Underwriter Warrants, page 71

Comment 6. We note your response to comment 4 of our letter. Please clarify, if true, that the units and common stock being offered in
this offering statement will not be issued to the underwriters upon exercise of the underwriter warrants that you intend to issue in
reliance upon Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.

Response: As a result of the underwriter’ s discussions with FINRA regarding compensation as set forth above in response to Comment
No. 5, the Underwriter Warrants have been eliminated in their entirety. All references to the Underwriter Warrants have therefore been

deleted from the Second Amendment.

KeyStone Solutions, Inc. consolidated financial statements, page F-22

Comment 7. We have reviewed your response to comment 12 of our letter. Please provide audited financial statements of the registrant
in your next amendment. Refer to Form 1-A, Part F/S (c)(1)(i).

Response: As discussed by telephone with the staff in response to this Comment No. 7, and as previously disclosed in response to prior
Comment No. 12, as the Company was formed in March of 2016, has no assets other than its shares in AOC Key Solutions, Inc., and
has had no operations since its formation other than those incidental to its formation and the proposed offering, no substantive
information would be communicated to investors by including audited financials for KeyStone Solutions, Inc. that is not otherwise
provided by the included AOC Key Solutions, Inc. audited and interim financials and the pro forma financial information. The
Company has added explanatory disclosure to this effect at page 24 of the Second Amendment.

(7) Merger, page F-34
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Comment 8. We note your response to comment 13 of our letter. In your next amendment to the document, please disclose the
information required by ASC 805-10-50-2 for this transaction or tell us why the required disclosures are not provided. Additionally,
please tell us who the accounting acquirer is and how you considered the guidance in ASC 805- 40.

Response: The requested disclosure has been added. Please see revised Note 7 on page F-37 of the Second Amendment. To address the
accounting for the business combination and the presentation and footnote disclosure in the financial statements, the Company used the
guidance of ASC 805-40 to identify the Company as the accounting acquirer and AOC Key Solutions, Inc. as the accounting acquiree.
The Company determined that the ownership and control of both companies were the same immediately prior to, and subsequent to, the
merger. Post-merger the ownership and management of the Company had control over the operations of the combined entity, including
AOC Key Solutions, Inc. Based on that assessment management determined that the Company should be identified as the parent and
AOC Key Solutions, Inc. as the subsidiary.

% %k %k

If you have any questions regarding the matters discussed above, please telephone the undersigned, outside counsel to the
Company, at 202.624.2925 or via email at mdefeo@crowell.com.

Sincerely,

/s/ Morris F. DeFeo, Jr.
Morris F. DeFeo, Jr.

cc:  Robert Berman

Enclosures
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